%

=

: inland Empire Utilities Agency
" A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting

AGENDA
Thursday, March 3, 2016
4:30 p.m.

Location

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
6075 Kimball Avenue

Chino, CA 91710

Call to Order and Roll Call
Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment
1. Technical Committee Report — Ryan Shaw (Orai)

2. Approval of Minutes

A. Minutes of November 4, 2015 Joint IEUA Board and Policy Committee
Workshop

3. Action ltems
A. Recycled Water Policy Principles (Written)

4. Informational ifems
A. Regional Contract Amendment

6. Receive and File

RP-1/RP-5 Predesign Report

JCSD Recycled Water Term Sheet
Mid-Year Building Activity Update

Recycled Water Distribution — Operations Summary
Energy Management Plan

Recycled Water Semi-Annual Update
Organics Diversion Feasibility Study

Septic Area Analysis

IEUA Storage Agreement

Elf Nino Preparation

Regional Contract Audit Notification Process

AT IOMMOO W



Special Regional Sewerage Program Policy Committee Meeting Agenda
March 3, 2016

Page 2 of 2

6. Other Business
A. IEUA General Manager's Update
B. Committee Member Requested Agenda Items for Next Meeting
C. Committee Member Comments
D. Next Meeting — April 7, 2016

7. Adjournment

DECLARATION OF POSTING

I, Laura Mantilla, Executive Assistant of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District,
hereby certify that a copy of this agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. in the foyer at the Agency's main
office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino, CA on Monday, February 29, 2016.

W{ﬂﬁu

Laura Mantilla




APPROVAL OF
MINUTES

2A




Infand Empire Utilities Agency
Lo, A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Regional Sewerage Program
Policy Committee Meeting

MINUTES OF November 4, 2015 MEETING

CALL TO ORDER

A special meeting of the {EUA/Regional Sewerage Program — Policy Committee was held on Wednesday,
November 4, 2015, at the Inland Empire Utilities Agency located at 6075 Kimball Avenue, Chino,
California. Jim Bowman, City of Ontario, called the meeting to order at 11:30 a.m.

ATTENDANCE

Committee Members:
Eunice Ulloa City of Chino
Jesse Sandoval City of Fontana
Tricia Martinez City of Montclair
Jim Bowman City of Ontario
Debbie Stone City of Upland
James Curatalo Cucamonga Valley Water District
Terry Catlin Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Absent Commiitee Members:
Peter Rogers | City of Chino Hilis

Others Present:
Ryan Shaw City of Ontario
John Bosler Cucamonga Valley Water District
Christina Valencia Infand Empire Utilities Agency
Chris Berch Inland Empire Utilities Agency
P. Joseph Grindstaff inland Empire Utilities Agency
Sylvie Lee Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Melinda J. Temblador Inland Empire Utilities Agency

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Committee Member Jim Bowman, City of Ontario led those present in the Pledge of Aliegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

There were no public comments.



IEUA/RSP —Policy Committee Meeting Minutes of November 4, 2015

1. TECHNICAL COMMITTEE REPORT

Ryan Shaw/City of Ontario gave a brief update on the Regional Technical Committee meeting,
stating that the committee neither approved, nor adopted, the Recycled Water Policy Principles.
However, with the exception of Principle 3.2 which is still under discussion and revision, the
Technical Committee is in support of the remaining Policy Principles as presented today.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
A. Minutes of August 5, 2015 Special Joint IEUA Board and Regional Policy Committee Meeting

Motion: By Debbie Stone/City of Upland and seconded by Jesse Sandoval/City of Fontana to

approve the minutes of the August 5, 2015 Meeting Special Joint IEUA Board/Regional Policy
Committee meeting.

Motion carried: Unanimously.

3. ACTION ITEMS
A. Recycled Water Policy Principles

Sylvie Lee/IEUA reviewed the Recycled Water Policy Principles and requested comments and
recommendations from the Policy Committee for IEUA Board consideration and approval, with
the understanding that item 3.2 regarding entitlement is the one remaining item still under
discussion. IEUA staff will continue conversation with the Technical Committee over the next
several months to reach a consensus on the language and will bring the item back to the Policy
Committee in the future. Debbie Stone/City of Upland agreed that more time was needed to
discuss the remaining item, otherwise she was in support of the balance of the principles. Jim
Bowman/City of Ontario also agreed, and there being no other comments or questions, it was

the consensus of the Policy Committee to review the item in the future after refinement of
item 3.2.

4. INFORMATIONALITEMS
None.

5. RECEIVE AND FILE ITEMS
A. Building Activity Report (YTD)
The Building Activity Report (YTD) was received and filed by the Committee.

B. Recycled Water Operations Summary
The Recycled Water Operations Summary was received and filed by the Committee.

€. Annual Water Use Report
The Annual Water Use Report was received and filed by the Committee.




IEUA/RSP —Policy Committee Meeting Minutes of November 4, 2015

P. Ten-Year Growth Forecast
The Ten-Year Growth Forecast was received and filed by the Committee.

E. Conservation Program Update
The Conservation Program Update was received and filed by the Committee.

F. Energy Management Plan
The Energy Management Plan was received and filed by the Committee.

G. 4™ Quarter Budget Variance

The 4™ Quarter Budget Variance was received and filed by the Committee.

6. OTHER BUSINESS

A. IEUA General Manager's Update
P. Joseph Grindstaff had no updates to report.

B. Committee Member Requested Agenda Items for Next Meeting
None.

C. Committee Member Comments
None.

D. Next Meeting — December 3, 2015

7. ADJOURNMENT - Meeting was adjourned at 11:40 a.m.

Transcribed
by:

Melinda J. Temblador
Administrative Coordinator, IEUA



ACTION
ITEM

3A



-

“ h Inland Empire Utilities Agency
B A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 3, 2016

To: Regional Committees

From: Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subject: Recycled Water Policy Principles
RECOMMENDATION

It is requested that the Regional Committees provide recommendation for IEUA Board’s
consideration and approval on the following items:

1. Recycled Water Policy Principles, and

2. Development of Regional Contract Amendment with the proposed Recycled Water Policy
Principles.

BACKGROUND

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and its contracting agencies have developed a
successful regional Recycled Water Program for both direct use and groundwater recharge. In
2000, the region identified that recycled water use was a critical component in drought-proofing
and maintaining its economic growth. With imported water rates increasing and long-term
imported supply reliability in decline, the region committed to aggressively and proactively
develop local water supplies to offset these impacts. This set the path for the development of a
regional recycled water distribution system.

While the foundational commitment to beneficial reuse of recycled water has remained unchanged,
some fundamental concepts have been questioned over the past few years, particularly since 2011.
This has resulted in the region working together to develop Recycled Water Policy Principles to
address the changes since the inception of the program. The region’s goal to maximize the
beneficial use of recycled water has not changed. However, the commitment to connect additional
recycled water users has stagnated over the past few years. At this time, several contracting
agencies are struggling with the inherent conflict between use in excess of “base entitlement” (as
defined by the Regional Sewage Service Contract) and the prioritization of direct use over
groundwater recharge. The struggle has led some contracting agencies to be concerned about their
local benefit and perceived inequities.

In order to move forward together as a region, it is appropriate to reevaluate and affirm the regional
Recycled Water (RW) Policy Principles prior to implementing any remaining significant system
improvements to the Recycled Water Program and to clarify how these principles will govern the
future benefits received by all IEUA contracting agencies.



Recycled Water Policy Principles
March 3, 2016

Page 2 of 4

IEUA has been meeting with the contracting agencies for the last few years to develop
modifications to the foundational principles. Subsequent to the Regional Technical Committee
Meetings and Special Technical Committee Workshops held between July 2015 and January 2016,
the agencies collectively provided input and guidance to finalize recommendations on the RW
Policy Principles.

The proposed RW Policy Principles resulting from these discussions are summarized below and
provided in the attachment in detail.

Recycled Water Policy Principles

1.

IEUA will continue the development of the Regional Recycled Water infrastructure
by providing equitable access for the contracting agencies to achieve reuse of 50,000
AF/year by 2025.

IEUA will pursue the long term acquisition of recycled water from out of service
area sources to supplement the regional supply.

IEUA will pursue the long term transfer of recycled water from IEUA service area
in exchange for supplemental water supply.

The parties acknowledge that IEUA is currently meeting the SAR Judgment
obligation with recycled water.

Ensure efficient use of recycled water at the point of use, consistent with rules and
expectations of responsible potable water use and laws governing the use of recycled
water.

Contracting agency entitlement based on wastewater contribution, future external
supplies and any acquisition of another contracting agency’s unused entitlement.

i. This entitlement will be used for each contracting agency’s Santa Ana River
discharge obligations, direct use and /or regional recharge.

Contracting agency use above entitlement, as described in 3.1, will require
replacement water (i.e., Stored water, surcharge, etc., acquisition of another
contracting agency’s unused entitlement, etc.), collected by IEUA, and passed on to
contracting agencies with surplus entitlement.



Recycled Water Policy Principles
March 3, 2016
Page 3 of 4

i. This entitlement may be used for Santa Ana River discharge obligations,
direct use or regional recharge.

ii. If a contracting agency’s current direct use exceeds entitlement, current
direct use corresponding to existing customers will be temporarily
substituted for entitlement until June 30, 2023, as defined in section 3.1. In
addition, groundwater recharge allocations will be curtailed and
redistributed to the other agencies under entitlement during the temporary
period. Any new connections that require additional supplies above an
agency’s entitlement and the current grandfathered amount will require
replacement water.,

4. The regional recycled water system will be operated based on the following priorities
for recycled water deliveries:

1. Minimal operational discharges (instrumentation, environmental obligations, etc.)
2. Contracting agency deliveries
3. Regional groundwater recharge

5. Meet peak recycled water direct demands through coordinated demand management
of recycled water deliveries.
1. Large users will have pressure sustaining valves to ensure that overall regional
demands are reliably met.

6. Maintain a financially viable recycled water program with rates that incentivize use
of all available recyeled water and that provides funding to achieve full cost-of-service
for the recycled water program.

1. Set recycled water rates that cover the full cost of Operations & Maintenance
{O&M}) and Rehabilitation & Replacement (R&R) for the system.

7. Maximize the use of recycled water capital investments made by IEUA and its
contracting agencies with recycled water use within the region.

1. Retail contracting agencies shall substantially fulfill prior recycled water connection
commitments for all existing infrastructure.

2. Firm contracting agency commitments for recycled water use will drive new
regional investments.

The item will be presented to the Regional Technical Committee on January 28, 2016 and the
Regional Policy Committee on February 4, 2016 for their consideration and recommendation to
the IEUA Board.



Recycled Water Policy Principles
March 3, 2016
Page 4 of 4

The development of the Recycled Water Policy Principles is consistent with the Agency 's Business

Goal of increasing Water Reliability by meeting the region’s need to develop reliable, drought-
proof and diverse local water resources in order to reduce dependence on imported water supplies.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On November 4, 2015, the item was presented as an informational item to the Joint IEUA Board
and Regional Policy Committee.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

There is no direct impact on the budget as a result of the adoption of the Recycled Water Policy
Principles.

ATTACHMENTS: RW Policy Principles



A N

RECYCLED WATER POLICY PRINCIPLES

Introduction

The I[nland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA} and its contracting agencies have developed a successful regional
Recycled Water Program for both direct use and groundwater recharge. As the Program continues to advance, it
is important to summarize and update the history, operating philosophies, and policy principles on which the
Program was founded.

In 2000, the region identified that recycled water use was a critical component in drought-proofing and
maintaining its economic growth. With imported water rates increasing and long-term imported supply reliability
in decline, the region committed to aggressively and proactively develop local water supplies to offset these
impacts. This set the path for the development of a regional recycled water distribution system and a Recycled
Water Implementation Plan.

The use of recycled water presented several advantages to the region: it is one of the most significant and
underutilized sources of local water supply; it is reliable during drought and climate change conditions; and it
requires significantly less energy than imported water to deliver to customers thus reduces greenhouse gas
emissions. The development of recycled water is the cornerstone of a larger regional initiative to improve water
supply reliability through enhanced local supplies. IEUA, in partnership with its contracting agencies and Chino
Basin Watermaster (CBWM), invested over $600 million over the last fifteen years in water recycling,
conservation, recharge improvements, the MWD groundwater storage and recovery project, the Chino Desalter,
and other water management programs. These programs collectively reduce the region’s need for imported
water especially during drought or conditions when imported water supplies are not available. In addition to the
region switching large potable water users to recycled water, IEUA and CBWM obtained a landmark permit in
2005 for groundwater recharge using IEUA’s high-quality recycled water.

By 2007, Southern California was experiencing one of its driest years with the potential for entering an extended
drought period. The State of California subsequently made water recycling an important element of California’s
water supply policy and adopted a statewide goal of achieving 1,000,000 acre-feet {AF) of reuse by 2010. In
response, in November 2007 IEUA and its contracting agencies unanimously adopted and committed to
implement the Three Year Recycled Water Business Plan which laid out a focused and cost-effective approach to
rapidly expand the availability and use of recycled water within IEUA’s service area.

By 2014, over $250 million has been Invested into the implementation of a robust Recycled Water Program. The
region has achieved Program success by leveraging heavily on grant funding and loans. With unanimous regional
support, annual recycled water use grew from approximately 5,000 AF in FY 04/05 to over 38,500 AF in FY 13/14.
Critical to the economical and efficient operation of the system, each contracting agency made commitments to
complete initiatives with the goal to increase direct reuse within their service areas. While some contracting
agencies accomplished or far exceeded their local goals, some contracting agencies have not been able to fully
achieve their original commitments.

January 28, 2016 Page 1of3



//\

[
-

Intand Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

The region’s goal to maximize the beneficial use of recycled water has not changed. However, the commitment
to connect additional recycled water users has stagnated over the past few years. At this time, several contracting
agencies are struggling with the inherent conflict between use in excess of “base entitlement” (as defined by the
Regional Sewage Service Contract} and the prioritization of direct use over groundwater recharge. The struggle
has led some contracting agencies to be concerned about their local benefit and perceived inequities.

In order to move forward together as a region, it is appropriate that we reevaluate and affirm the regional
Recycled Water Policy Principles, in order to guide the updates to the Regional Sewer Service Contract, prior to
implementing any remaining significant system improvements to the Recycled Water Program and to clarify how
these principles will govern the future benefits received by all IEUA contracting agencies.

These principles are not binding. These principles are intended to be a framework for the development of regional
contract amendment.

Recycled Water Policy Principles

1. IEUA will continue the development of the Regional Recycled Water infrastructure by providing
equitable access for the contracting agencies to achieve reuse of 50,000 AF/year by 2025.

2. IEUA will pursue the long term acquisition of recycled water from out of service area sources to
supplement the regional supply.

3. |EUA will pursue the long term transfer of recycled water from 1EUA service area in exchange for
supplemental water supply.

4. The parties acknowledge that IEUA is currently meeting the SAR Judgment obligation with
recycled water.

1. Ensure efficient use of recycled water at the point of use, consistent with rules and expectations
of responsible potable water use and laws governing the use of recycled water.

1. Contracting agency entitlement based on wastewater contribution, future external supplies and
any acquisition of another contracting agency’s unused entitlement.

i. This entitlement will be used for each contracting agency’s Santa Ana River discharge
obligations, direct use and /or regional recharge. -

2. Contracting agency use above entitlement, as described in 3.1, will require replacement water (i.e.,
Stored water, surcharge, etc., acquisition of another contracting agency’s unused entitlement,
etc.), collected by IEUA, and passed on to contracting agencies with surplus entitlement.

January 28, 2016 Page 2 of 3



(\

4,

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRMCT

i. This entitlement may be used for Santa Ana River discharge obligations, direct use or
regional recharge.

ii. If a contracting agency’s current direct use exceeds entitlement, current direct use
corresponding to existing customers will be temporarily substituted for entitlement until
June 30, 2023, as defined in section 3.1. In addition, groundwater recharge allocations
will be curtailed and redistributed to the other agencies under entitlement during the
temporary period. Any new connections that require additional supplies above an
agency's entitfement and the current grandfathered amount will require replacement
water.

The regional recycled water system will be operated based on the following priorities for recycled water
deliveries:

1. Minimal operational discharges {instrumentation, environmental obligations, etc.)
2. Contracting agency deliveries
3. Regional groundwater recharge

Meet peak recycled water direct demands through coordinated demand management of recycled water
deliveries.
1. Large users will have pressure sustaining valves to ensure that overall regional demands are
reliably met.

Maintain a financially viable recycled water program with rates that incentivize use of all available
recycled water and that provides funding to achieve full cost-of-service for the recycled water program.

1. Set recycled water rates that cover the full cost of Operations & Maintenance (O&M) and
Rehabilitation & Replacement (R&R) for the system,

Maximize the use of recycled water capital investments made by IEUA and its contracting agencies with
recycled water use within the region.

1. Retail contracting agencies shall substantialiy fulfill prior recycled water connection commitments
for all existing infrastructure.

2. Firm contracting agency commitments for recycled water use will drive new regional investments.

January 28, 2016 Page 3 of 3



9 10T Y24PW
Buyasyy siopauig jo pioog VNI LORLSIA Y3V TVAIDINOW vV

£ouaby sanyin andusz pupjuj ,

s9|didulld AdI[0d 12IPAA PO|2AdSY




Q10T Y24owW
Bulaaw siopaliq Jo pirog vn3I|

uoljelapisuod 1o} pajuasaid ale ss|dioulid
Ko110d MY pasinal ay) ‘Yoeqpasa) Aousbe Jaquaw uo paseq

G10Z AON @8)iwuwon) Ao1jod 0} pajuasaid sem wa}|
G1L0Z 1200 990N |Bdluyoa] 0} pajuasaid sem way|
GL0OZ INC Ul pawnsal suoissnasi(g

7102 99 9@3a)Iwwon Ad1jod 8y} 01 pajuasaid sem Wa)|
Z10Z Ul salouabe Jaquiaw Yyum suoissnosip uebaq yn 3|

sa|dioulid Adljod MY




?LOT YaIPW
Bulesw si1o40ali( Jo pirog N3

‘18)em pajoAoal yum uonebijqo juswbpnre
HVS oy} Buneaw Apuaund sl yN3j jeyl abpsmouoe seipyed syl f

‘Alddns Jajem |ejuswa|ddns 1o} ebueyoxs ul eale adIAISS
VN3] Wol} J81em pajoAoal Jo Jajsued) wud) Buoj ay) ensind [myN3l €

‘Alddns jeuoifal ay) Juswa|ddns 0} S82IN0S BBJIE BJIAISS
JO N0 Wolj 18)em pajoAoal jo uolisinboe wia) Buoj ay) ensind (M yN3|l ¢

‘6Z0Z Aq Jeak/dV 000°0S JO @snal aAsiyoe 0} saloushe
Buioesjuoo ay) Jo} ssedoe s|qeunbs Buipiroid AQ ainjonljsesul
Ja)1ep\ pojohiosy [euoiBay ay) Jo JuswdojeAsp 8y} snujuod IMyYNT] |

"19)em papoduwi uo asuejjal
aonpal pue Ajljige|ieAe 921n0sal I13)eM [ed0]| adueyud
0} J9)em pa|dAdal JO asn Jeldljauaq ay) aziWIXe| L

sa|dioulld Adljod MY




9L0C Ya1PwW
Buliesyy siopali] 4o pabog vN3|

‘asn Jajem a|gelod a|qisuodsail Jo suoleloadxa pue sajni
UJIM JuS)SISUO0D ‘a@sn Jo julod oY) je Jajem pajoAoal JO ash Juaiold ainsug |

‘eale 39IAI9S YN3I| 8y} Buoouad-3ybnoup
jo Jusuodwod jejuswiepun) pue ajqel|al e se 1d}em
pajoAoal Jo asn pue uonesijdde Juaidiyd ayowold °Z

so|dioulld Adljod MM




?10C Y24oW
Buysaw sioalig jo pirog yn3|

‘uonebijqo jeuoiba.
e s1 Juawbpnl yys ay) Aq psejeald uonebiqo ay) 1ey) sbpajmouoe sajyed ey i
‘abseyoal [euoibal 1o/ pue
2sn ]oallp .mco_u—mm__no mm._mr_ow_v JBARY euy ejueg 10 pash 2q Aew Jusw9nua siy | |
"Juswiajue
pasnun s Aouabe Bunoesuod tayjoue jo uolisinboe Aue pue sajjddns jeusaixe
aininj ‘uoinNguUIUOD I9JeMalSem UO paseq juswapijus Aousabe bBunoenuo)n |

:Buimojjo} ayj uo
paseq aq |[IM Judwaipud Jajem pajoAoal jeuoibair ayl ‘¢

——

so|diould Aoljod MY




PLOC Y2+oW
Buysew sioali(] Jo pivog yn3l

‘191em juswsoe|dal

alinbal jjim Junowe palaylejpuelb Jusiind ay) pue Juswajud s Aouabe ue anoqe

sal|ddns jeuonippe alinbal jey} suonosuuod mau Auy "pouad Atesodwe) ay) Buunp

Juswigiijue Japun sajpuabe Jaylo syl 0) paInqulsipal pue pajleund aq ||Im suoneoo|e

abieyoal Jo)empunclb ‘uonippe U} ‘L' UOf08Ss Ul paulsp se ‘€zZ0zZ ‘0¢ aunr nun

JuUswWaInua Joj pajnysqns Ajuelodws) aq ||Im siawo)sno Bulsixe 0} Buipuodseuloo
2SN J0alIp JUSLIND ‘JUsLUBjue SPasdXa asn JoalIp Juaund s Aouabe Bugoenuoo ey Il

-abi1eyoal |euoibal 1o
asn 10a.1p ‘suonebijqo abieyosip J9AIY Uy BlUBRS JO) pasn aq Aew Juswiepua siyl

‘It'g Ul MOjeq 8y} JO uondaoxs sy} yum ‘Juswapijue snidins yum sajouabe

Bunoeliuod 0} uo passed aq (918 ‘JuswWs|IuS pashun s Aouabe Bunoeljuod 1ayjoue

Jo uonisinboe ‘ebieyoins ‘Us)em |ejuswalddns ‘Uajem palo)g ‘al) iojem Juswaoe|dald
alinbaJ |m ‘L€ Ul paquasap se ‘Juswaiue anoqe asn Aouabe Bunoenuon  z

panuiuod ¢

sa|dioulid Adljod MY




?10C Y21PW
Buleaw siofoadiq jo pipog vnIi

abieyoal Jojempunolb jeuoibay ¢
solAllap Aouabe Bunoenuon -z
(-0)e ‘suonehijqo
|eluUsWUOIIAUS ‘uoijejuswniisul) sabieyosip |euonjelado jewiuipy |
:SOIIDAIIRP
Ja)em pajoAoal 1o} sanliolid Buimo||oy ayj} uo paseq
pajeltado aq |Im wd)sAs Jajem pajoAdal [euolibal ayl ‘¥

sa|diould Aoljod MY




10T Y21owW
Buysaw siopdallq o pipog yN3i

19W A|geljad ale spuewap [euoibal [|esono
Jey] aJnsua 0} saAjeA Buluielsns ainssaid aAey |Im siesn abie7 |

‘SOII9AI|9p
lajem pa|oAoai Jo jJuswabeuew puewap pajeulplood
ybnoay) spuewsp joalip Jajem pajoAoas jyead 89N G

sa|dioulld Adljod MY




910C Yaiow
Bulesw sioaliq jo pipog yN3I|

‘we)sAs ay) Joj
(4'gy) Jusweoe|day @ uoneljiqeysy pue (N’8Q) edueusjulejy
Q wco_”_m._mao JO 1S0J [N} ayj JBAO0D Jey] saleld JaleM _u®_0>0®._ 1°S |
‘wesboud Jajem pajaAoal ay) 10} 921AI9S-JO
-}S09 ||n} aAdIYse 0} Buipuny sapinoad jey) pue Jajem
paj2Aoal 9|qe|leAe ||e JO Sh 3ZIAIJUdIUI Jey] sajed Y)im
welboud 1ajem pajaAosal 9jqelAa Ajjeloueul) e utejuie|y ‘9

sa|dioulld Aoljlod MY




910 Y21owW
Bunsaw siopaaig jo pipog yN3|

"S]UBW]SOAUI [BUOIBBS MaU SALIP ||IM SUOI}OBUUOD
lolem peojoAdal Jo) Sjuswpwwod Aousbe Dunoenuod wul{ 7

‘ainjonJjsedul
Bunsixa |8 JOJ SJUSWIIWWOD UOIoBuUu0D Jolem  pajoAosl
.ho_._n_ Ny >__m_u_cm“_wﬁ_3w lleys ww_ocmmm mc_uom‘_u—coo leloy |
uoiBbad ayj uIY}Mm asn Jajem pajdAsal ypum
salouabe Hunioesyuod s} pue ynNIJ| JO SJU3WSIAUI
jeyides Jajem po2hoas Jo asn Y} dziwixepw °/

sa|dioulld Adijod M




@10Z Y24PrW
Bunosw siosulqg 40 parog vN3|

'020Z SuNf [N JUSLISRIUS 1o} paINNISans
aq [|IM s18wo)sno Bunsixa o) Buipuodsalios asn 198.IP SL/vL A
USWIaNUS SPaaIXa asn JoalIp Jualind s Aouabe Bunoesjuod e y| =

'€ 9|dpuud
A21|04 U0 paseq a( ||IM SUOoIpuod ‘Juswa|lijud aAoge asn 10 =
pamaual
sl joe5uo9 [euoibal nun 10 (A4V 000°ZL) uonebijqo juswabpnl
oy} 198w 0] ab.ieyosip Jajemslsem ay) sasnbal uonebiiqo
JBAIY euy BlUBS 8y} |UN UONQUIU0D J8}eMa)}SEM UO paseqg =
(1°¢ aidiould Adjjod) paysiigeise 8q ||Im Juswajjuse aseq =

:910¢ ‘I AInp bujuuibeg =

r...:I-I o [ =R -

mm_m__oc_,(_n_

A21104 MY 1O uoiejuswa|dwi




9107 Y21PW
Buisaw sioaaig jo pireg vn3|

MY 1o} Juswipuswy 10e5U0)) [euolbay jo uondopy .
pleog wYN3| :91L0Z dunf .

|eAoiddy 10} uonepusWWOI9Y JoBjJuUO)) [euoibay .
a9)lwwo) Adjjod/ediuyoss] 910z Aey — |udy

MY J0J 10B41U0 ) [euoifiay JO JusWpPUBWY JO) UOIIN|0SDY .
pieog VN3l :9L0Z Y21ei

so|didulld A2110d MY :WB)| UoIOY
aljod/leauydsa] 910z Aienuiqga4 - Atenuep

]
i

e

s
50

sapiwwo) A

sda)g 1XoN



Q@ LOT Y24PW
Buiiosw 51040241 Jo pipog vN3Ii

sa|diouLid A21jod M Uo paseq
juswpusWwy Joenuo)) [euoibay Jo JuawdolpAaq sjeniu|
padojaaa(g
se sa|diould A21104 MY |eAcidde 10} puswiluoday |
JuswpuaWy JoeU0) |eucibay

SUOIEpUBWWO0O9Y




INFORMATION
ITEM

4A



% ) inland Empire Utilities Agency
s A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 3, 2016

To: Regional Committees

From; Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Subject: Regional Sewage Service Contract Revision
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Regional Committees regarding the Regional Sewage Service
Contract Revision.

BACKGROUND

In July 1972, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and the Regional Contracting Agencies
(Member Agencies) entered into the Regional Sewage Service Contract (the Contract), Since that
time, the Contract has been amended in April 1984 and again in October 1994. In its current state,
the Contract itself consists of eighty-seven pages with an additional ten exhibits (“A” through “J*),
a Regional Pretreatment Agreement and Wastewater Ordinance that are essential components of
the Contract.

The IEUA has evolved dramatically since the inception of the Regional Program. Producing high-
quality renewable products such as recycled water, compost, and energy have become core
business objectives, to name just a few. During this period, new policies and procedures have been
implemented to accommodate the changing environment and reflect improved effectiveness and
efficiencies of the Regional Program.

The Contract in its current state does not accurately reflect the IEUA’s expanded operations, nor
does it concisely follow IEUA business practices and key policy principles. There is a need to
streamline the Contract for procedures, language and better understanding. As a result, the contract
needs to be revised to address the items mentioned above.,

As previously discussed with the Regional Technical Committee (Committee), it is IEUA’s goal
to complete revisions to the Contract by January 2017. In order to meet this schedule the Agency
is proposing monthly workshops with the Committee to develop language for the Contract
revision. The meetings through April 2016 will be used to prepare a term sheet with key principles
for developing revised contract language.



Regional Sewage Service Contract Revision
February 25, 2016
Page 2 of 2

On February 10, 2016, IEUA and Committee members met to discuss what contract revisions are
important to the committee and what policy elements would the committee like to be considered
in the Contract rewrite. Several draft documents were provided including the Regional Wastewater
Contract Term Sheet. The Committee was asked to review the documents and provide feedback
prior to or during the February 25 Committee meeting.

ATTACHMENTS: Regional Wastewater Contract Term Sheet



HETTL )

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

REGIONAL WASTEWATER CONTRACT TERM SHEET

Inland Empire Utilities Agency and its Member Agencies agree to the following as the terms of wastewater
service within the IEUA service area:

IEUA Rights and Responsibllities

* |EUA is responsible for the collection and treatment of wastewater that is generated by its
Member Agencies within the IEUA service area.

© IEUA shall apprave any new connections to the IEUA Regional Sewer System.

¢ IEUA will responsibly plan for current and future development needs and provide reliable
wastewater treatment and service consistent with governing regulations.
* IEUA will be fiscally responsible in the planning and operation of its facilities.
o IEUA Board will adopt rates and charges for services provided.
o IEUA shall administer the collection of sewer fees.

© IEUA shall have the right to audit member agency financials for the appropriate collection
of IEUA rates and charges.

* IEUA will be the lead agency for the pretreatment program for industrial users.
IEUA shall have final approval for any requests for services outside of IEUA service area.

Member Agency Rights and Responsibilities

* Member Agencies are responsible for the operation and maintenance of their respective local
sewer systems.

* Member Agencies are responsible for the payment of applicable IFUA rates and charges.

* Member Agencies via the Regional Committees shall provide recommendations on budgets and
policy issues to the IEUA Board.

* Member Agencies shall have the right to audit IEUA financials and operation records for
transparency.

* Member Agencies shall collaboratively work with IEUA to protect the treatment plants.

Contract Term
e Term of Contract will be 50 years with 5 year reviews or as requested by MA’s.
Exhibit

¢ Service Area Map

February 3, 2016 Page 10of 2



IEUA Documents of Governance

¢ Recycled Water Ordinance
o Rate Resolutions
¢ Regional Wastewater Ordinance with the following Exhibits
o Regional Pretreatment Program
o Determination of Sewer Fees
o Rate Resolutions

IEUA Business Practices

¢ |EUA Business Goals

* IEUA Financial Plan

e |EUA Operating Budget

s |EUA Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
e Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan

e Asset Management Plan (AMP)

e Wastewater Facilities Master Plan (WFMP)

s Recycled Water Program Strategy (RWPS)

February 3, 2016 Page 2 of 2



RECEIVE AND
FILE

S5A



- LOWMLSIO ¥2LVM TVEIDINNW ¥V
Aouaby sagjiian aJjdw3 pubjuj ’y

ajepdn 910z Areniga4
8Z09LN3 *® GZ09LN3 'soN }oaloid
JJoday ubisag-aid uoisuedx3 G-d4 ¥ L-dy




ADVLESIE WREYM TYEDINIA ¥

¢ £u3By SN a3 PUBIU] ’d

‘Aemjjidg we( opeld Jo uoljeaste asies 0}
108loid Bunejdwos 39vSnN 01 foud Ajjioe Juawieal] spiloS G-d¥ MeU 0] Z-dy 81ed0|8y =

GZ0Z Aq G-dY puedxe o} juatwainbay
0£0Z Aq L-dH puedxa 0} juswalinbay =«

sduwing YW 40 uone|elsu| yim Ayoede) pejepol Ueld JSISBly senlioed] 181emalSep GLOT «
*TA 1A aonelé asneoe aon o'sk G-dd
0c0¢ aon £€'9¢ o L°ee *dON ¢ l-d¥

papaadxy
fuoeden | M014090¢ Mo|4 SE£0Z foede Bunsix3y Ayjroe4

G-dM ® L-d¥ 10} SMO]4 JaMag Juanjju] paisesalo
ST -0z |udy pays| (dINAM) UBld JeISBlN SONOe] JOJEMRISBA, =

puno.ib)oeg Homv.@n_

Hdd uoisuedx3y G-d4 ® L-dY



¢ Aslia 7 SR O PTG

LORUSIO BRIVAM TVIDINOWY .J'
)
y

suoles0T 108loid




T T
)

e e

uoisuedx3g
juswiess] splos
BSPNDA b

/.. \.. Y
|
|
uotsuedxg Ayjoe
Jusuness] | juswesi) SpIOS
muma@@_m&m_- _ G-dd

2d09og 108(01d

LINUASHD BAAVM WIIDINAW ¥ U

Eﬂﬂaﬁgf

sauInjo sjeiedes
SSIL} YIM H(d BUO




syafold sples pue
spinbri S-dy paciddy

s3o3(o.d spijos
@ spinb7 1-4Y poAoiddy

dd
Jo Suluoissiiwodsq

Z10E Alenuer

9LOT J3qLuadag

G doysyIopm

Hdd |eul]

sanpede)
spijos pue spinbi -4y

uoijels a8eydsiq g1l
pue uoRnels Y 7-dy

juswWlead] SpPloS pue SIARBUIDYY JuSLIRDL|

spinbri S-4y 404 5,304 SP1|oS R spmbr] &-dy
syuWRa.IBY uauneads)
3419 13Moduns I93eAA padUBAPY

glLot Jaquuajdasg
£ doysyuops

gloZ IsNeny
Z dousyIopA

AMNMASHI H2IVAA TVAIDUINOW ¥ s Jﬁ
Dusby Ssnypn 2AdWT pUDIUf e .
=
i

sen 193s331q
JO 9 [EIPaUag

IEI-ET] ]
21SBAM POO4 S-dY

L0L 1200330

b doyssopn

uonezijenb3 eniys
Kiewid jo uoneujuify

S-dd
0 uolsuedx3 ajewnin

F4MID
Jo Suuolssiuodag

gioz Alenuer
paemy IDBHLDD plEog

gloT LydIe
L doysHIOM

a|npayos 108loid




,.m-h-ﬁ..ﬂﬁﬂn WEAEWAA TVAIDINMY W J
9 AousBYy So1AN Aidw3 puojaj - “

D

ueo Buiuueld 44S INES 10} 8|qiblie st j108lold -
000'000‘6¢  106png 100foid [ejoL
865°180°'€S  lelol
000°059% (Joge [euwssiu] '1s3) Juswabeuely 1osloid

86G'LEY'TS 004 ubiseq-aid suosied

| 1509 pajaaloid uondiiosag

19bpng 108l0.d




LOMISIA ALY TVLIDINNW vV J

Asuaby sanqun ahdusg pupgup '

«®




RECEIVE AND
FILE

5B



K \ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

e i A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 3, 2016

To: Regional Committees

From: Intand Empire Utilities Agency

Subject: Term Sheet for Recycled Water (RW) Interconnection with Jurupa

Community Services District (JCSD)

RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Regional Committees to review.
BACKGROUND

The item was presented as an action item at the IEUA Board of Directors meeting on November
18, 2015.



Vand Eirplie Utholes Agency

A0 RIS IREL DT

Date: November 18, 2015

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

Through: Public, Legislative Affiirs, and Water Resources Committee (11/11/15)
Engineering and Operations Committee (11/11/15)
Finance, Legal and Agiministration Committee (11/11/15)

From: P. Joseph Grindst '
General Me

Submitted by: Chris Berch
Executive ger of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Sylvie Lee
Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources

Subject: Term Sheet for Recycled Water (RW) Interconnection with Jurapa
Community Services District (JCSD)

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

i

Approve the Term Sheet between Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA) and JCSD

for the development of a RW Interconnection; and

BACKGROUND

Authorize the General Manager to make non-substantive changes and execute the final
Term Sheet,

In August 2013, IEUA began working on two of its long term planning initiatives; the Integrated
Resources Plan (IRP) and Recycled Water Program Strategy (RWPS). Several conceptual
projects bave been identified in the IRP, including RW interties to supplement RW for the IEUA
service area. -As the RW system is being planned for growth and demand management, intesties
with neighboring agencies are being considered to maximize the beneficial use of RW.

One project that is being considered for the RW intertie is the recycied water from Westemn
Riverside County Regional Wasteweter Anthority (WRCRWA). JCSD and Western Municipal
Water District (WMWD) provide their sewage to WRCRWA for treatment, and the WRCRWA
produces teriiary treated recycled water. This project would include a new comnection between
the existing IRUA recycled water system end the proposed WRCRWA RW system.



Term Sheet for RW Interconnection with JCSD
November 18, 2015
Page 2 of 3

Over the past eighteen months, IEUA has been working with JCSD on a potential recycled water
interconnection opportunity. In August 2014, a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was
developed to initiate the planning process of creating alternative approaches in determining the
long term water supply options for IEUA and the expansion of the recycled water system. Based
on the results of the initial feasibility study and hydraulic modeling, 4,000 Acre Feet per Year
(AFY) would be made available for the RW Interconnection Project.

Since then, staff has been working on developing 2 Term Sheet for the RW Interconnection, with
a particular focus to submit a State Revolving Fund Loan Application utilizing the Proposition 1
funding opportunity by December 2, 2015, Key terms included in the Term Sheet are provided
below:

e JCSD will develop 800 AFY of direct use.

JCSD will deliver 4,000 AFY ultimately to the IEUA RW system, of which JCSD will
receive 50% as recharge water credit in the Chino Basin.
Capital costs for facilities will be paid based on the project benefit.

s Pending completion of this project, the previous MZ-3 agreement with JCSD (benefit of
950 AFY) will be modified to have a sliding scale benefit through the end of its term
based on the total volume that is recharged in MZ-3.

e JCSD will pay for the groundwater recharge (GWR) maintenance charge (as adopted by
the IEUA Board) currently at $60/AF of RW recharged.

o For the first ten years, the O&M costs associated with additional RW pumping from RP-1
to GWR (approximately $50/AF) will not be charged to JCSD. Following this time
period, JCSD will fund the pro-rata portion of recycled water pumped from RP-1 to the
1158 pressure zone. The time period may be modified as part of the formal Agreement
based on the expected pumping costs determined in the predesign report.

o IEUA and JCSD will be mutually responsible for any WRCRWA administrative or
operational charges at the WRCRWA facility, on a pro-rata basis.

The current estimated total project cost for the project is $52.46 million. IEUA’s portion of the
project cost is estimated to be $13 million, and JCSD’s share of the project costs is $39 million.
With Proposition 1 funding, the project is also eligible for a maximum principal forgiveness in
the amount $15 million. This project demonstrates the integrated regional approach of RW
supply optimization.

This Term Sheet is consistent with the Agency’s Business Goal of increasing Water Reliability
by meeting the region’s need to develop reliable, drought-proof and diverse local water resources
in order to reduce dependence on imported water supplies.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On August 20, 2014, the Board approved the MOU with JCSD and WMWD for the RW
Interconnection project.

G:\Planning and Water Resources\Administration\Board Reports (Final for Reference)\2016 Tech & Policy\3E.
IEUA JCSD RW Term Sheet 15266 IEUA Board Letter 11-18-15.docx



Term Sheet for RW Interconnection with JCSD
November 18, 2015
Page 3 of 3

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The Joint IEUA - JCSD Regjonal Water Recycling Program currently has a total project budget
of $10,000,000 in TEUA’s Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP). IEUA’s total project

share will be $13,000,000, less approximately $4,000,000 in principle forgiveness. The
application would request $52,460,000 in CWSRF funding.

Of the total project costs of $52,460,000, JCSD’s cost for this project is approximately $39
million, less approximately $11,000,000 in principle forgiveness.

| W WD
o | R
[y i
<
A

IEUA  $ 13 M AamM 3 IM $  10M
L JesD $  39M - 5 28 M N/A
$ 52M ~ 15M  § 3TM N/A
*Numbers are rounded

Attachment: Term Sheet with JCSD

G:\Planning and Water Resources\Administration\Board Reports (Final for Reference)\2016 Tech & Policy\3E.
IEUA JCSD RW Term Sheet 15266 IEUA Board Letter 11-18-15.docx



Jane F. Anderson, President
Chad Blais, Vice President

Kenneth J. McLaughlin, Director et :

A. Anderson, Directo I _ P s
i T Comuitnity Sexrvices District
November 24, 2015
Joe Grindstaff
inland Emplre Utilities Agency
P O Box 9020

Chino Hills CA 91709

Re: Term Sheet for the Joint inland Empire Utilities Agency-Jurupa Community
Services District (IEUA-JCSD) Reglonal Water Recycling Program

At its meeting of November 23, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Term Sheet
between IEUA and JCSD for the development of a recycled water interconnection and
delivery pipelines; and authorized the General Manager to execute the Term Shest,

subject fo non-substantive changes. Enclosed please find a fully-executed original for
your records.

If you have questions pertaining to the content of the Term Sheet, please contact
Robert Tock, Director of Engineering & Operations, at (951) 685-7434.

Sincerely,
Q,o IMnany

Rosemary H ndez
Administrative Assistant

Enclosure

cc: Michelle Lauffer {w/o enc.)

11201 Harrel Street, Jurupa Vallay, CA 81762 * Phone (951) 885-7434 * Fax (851) 727-3501



Joint IEUA-ICSD RW Project Term Sheet

JOINT IEUA = JCSD REGIONAL WATER RECYCLING PROGRAM PROJECT

INTERCONNECTION CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATING TERM SHEET BETWEEN INLAND EMPIRE
UTILITIES AGENCY AND JURUPA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

The Inland Empire Utilities Agency (Agency) and Jurupa Community Services District {District)
(Collectively referred to as the Parties) agree to an "unbalanced exchange” regarding the conveyance of
the District’s proportionate share of the Western Riverside County Regional Wastewater Authority
(WRCRWA) treated wastewater effluent to the Agency for direct irrigation use by the Agency ,as supply
for the Agency’s Groundwater Recharge (GWR) program and corresponding District storage credits in
Chino Basin. The recycled water will be conveyed through a series of pumping systems and pipelines
(the Project) within the District and Agency service areas.

Section 1. Recycled Water Supply Projections

A. Itis understood that the following Is the projected District proportionate share of WRCRWA

treated wastewater:
Current Entltlement Expansion Entitlement
low {m Volume/YR (Al Flow (mgd Volume/YR (AF
3.25 2600-3600 6.00 4800-6000

B. Risacknowledged that this project is based on work to date regarding the current WRCRWA
Petition for Change of Use (Discharge Permit} regarding releases to the Santa Ana River. This
applicatioh is filed and well underway regarding required releases to the Santa Ana River. The
final status or outcome Is not known at present.

C. District and Agency project available supply, at full development, estimated as follows:

District (Direct use} 800 AF/Year (16.6%)
Agency Deliveries 4000 AF/Year for use as:
1. Direct Use 2000 AF (41.7%); Use by Agency
2. Recharge 2000 AF (41.7%); District to recelve recharge credits

D. Both partles acknowledge that there are seasonal use aspects assoclated with recycled water
deliveries for both direct use and recharge applications. Higher demands exist in the peak
summer months while lower demands exist in the winter months. Both parties desire steady
state daily flow availabllity (+/- 15%) because there {s no reservolr storage contemplated in this
project.

E. tnthe event that the District Identifles an opportunity to expand direct use in excess of the
volume identified in Section 1C, the Agency and the District commit to meet and negatiate

Page 1of7



Joint IEUA-ICSD RW Project Term Sheet

reallocation/expansion terms in good falth consistent with this Term Sheet or the subsequent
Agreement. Example: A connection between Ontario’s future recycled water system and the
District’s Area B Development.

Both parties acknowledge that Agency may request that Santa Ana River (SAR) discharges may
be made in lleu of the Agency introducing reclaimed water into the Agency system as part of
seasonal beneficial use. This Is acceptable if coordinated with Section 2C, Beneficial Use, and
Recharge Plan. District shall receive Recharge Credit as outlined In Section 1C.

Section 2. Beneficlal Use

Al

District will construct and convey recycled water for direct use by its large users within its retall
water system.

Agency wlili construct and convey recycled water for direct use, primarily within its lower 930
pressure zone.

Agency will utilize existing infrastructure or construct necessary facilities for the introduction of
this recycled water for recharge in the Chino Basin,

Agency and District shall cooperatively develop, coincidental with the project design and
commitments, a mutually-agreed upon plan through a Project Committee to maximize recharge
primarily within the Chino Basin Management Zone 3. Itis understood that this recharge plan
may be phased in nature due to the concurrent planning and construction of recharge basins
within the 2013 Chino Basin Recharge Master Plan Update.

Agency and District acknowledge that, pending completion of item D above, recharge capacity
and other constraints may exist between this project and the provisions of the January 28, 2013
Management Zone 3 Recycled Water Groundwater Recharge Agreement (2013 Agreement). In
consideration for the additional recharge associated with the Project, the maximum amount of
groundwater recharge available through the 2013 Agreement will be amended as follows for the
fiscal year immediately subsequent to the startup of the Project.

MZ-3 Recycled Water Recharge® Maximum Eligible for RW Purchase Through
2013 Agreement

{AF/YY) {AF/Yr)
<ADDD 950

5000 850

6000 750

7000 650

8000 550

9000 450
10000 350

*from prior year

Page 20f7



Joint IEUA-ICSD RW Prgject Term Sheet

Section 3. Envircnmental, Pre- Design and Design

A,

Parties acknowledge and agree to the current project description as contained in the joint I[EUA-
JCSD Reglonal Water Recycling Program Project State Revolving Fund Loan/grant application.
This'is detailed as Alternative 4 table and map (Attachment A},

Parties have mutually-funded and initiated the Preliminary Design Repbrt under separate
agreement. District has engaged the consultant in this work.

District has completed required California Environmental Quality Act {CEQA Plus)
documentation with Board of Directors acceptance on September 26, 2015. Agency and District
shali coordinate funding at 50% each following the execution of this Term Sheet.

District shall coordinate appropriate land at its existing American Heroes Park In support of this
project during the design phase at no cost to the Parties. The deslgn and construction of the
pump station at the Park shall be completed with appropriate water conservation measures.
The Agency shall lead the design effort for the Project. The selection of consultants shall be
through a competitive sclicitation process and led by the Agency with participation/input by the
District.

Partles agree to mutually fund projeét design in a pro-rata allocation as describe in Section 4
Construction and Ownership.

Project management costs directly associated with the Project (project management,
construction management, grants management, etc.) shall be Induded as actual project costs
and as such, shall be subject to pro-rata funding as outlined in Section 4D.

Design of Agency facilities shall be in conformance with Agency standards.

Design of District facllities shall be in conformance with District standards.

The Agency shall engage participation from the District throughout the design processes
through the Project Commitiee.

Sectlon 4. Construction and Ownership

A. Parties acknowledge and agree that commitment to design and construction are subject to the

D.

successful obtainment of the Joint IEUA-JCSD Regional Water Recycling Program Project State
Revolving Fund Loan/grant.

It is contemplated, subject to further discussion, that the Project design will be conducted under
one project award and subject to the same cost allocation as describe In Section 4D,

Both partles agree that the final construction approach shall be performed with a mutual goal of
efficient design and pracess in order to meet the commitments made through the Joint funding
application. Determination of the number of bid packages and construction management
leadership will be determined by the Agency and District concurrent with the design process,
but prior to the finalization of the design.

Capital Costs and ownership (Based on pro-rata volume methodology in Section 1C):

Page 30of7



Joint IEUA-ICSD RW Project Term Sheet

Facillties District Share Agency Share
WRCRWA Pump Station 58.3% 41.7%
Transmission Pipeline (WRCRWA-AHP) 58.3% 41.7%
| Agency Booster Pump and Pipeline (AHP-930 PZ) 50.0% 50.0%
District Booster Pump and Pipeline (AHP-ICSD) 100.0% 0.0%

District shall operate and maintain the WRCRWA Pump Station, Transmisslon Plpeline
(WRCRWA-American Heroes Park) and the District Pump Statlon and Pipeline to the retail area
Agency shall operate and maintain the Agency Pump and Pipeline from American Heroes Park to
the 930 pressure zone connection point.

Agency and District coordination throughout the construction of the Project will be effectively
communicated through the Project Committee.

Section 5. Operations and Maintenance Expenditures

A.

Parties acknowledge and agree that the allocation and payment of annual operations and
maintenance expenses shall on a pro-rata basls, consistent with that defined In Section 1C
applied io actual expenditures.

District recognizes and agrees that there is a groundwater recharge maintenance charge {as
adopted by the IEUA Board) currently at $60/AF of recycled water recharged, that will be
applied to the Project recharge.

Agency agrees that for the first 10-years, the O&M costs assoclated with additional recycled
water pumping from RP-1 to GWR (approximately $50/AF) shall not be charged to the District,
Following this time period, the District will fund the pro-rata portion of recycled water pumped
from RP-1 to the 1158 pressure zone. This time period {10-years) may be modified as part of
the formal Agreement based on the expected pumping costs determined in the predesign
report.

District shall coordinate electrical service for WRCRWA Pump Station and District distribution
pumps at American Heroes Park.

Agency shall coordinate electrical service for the Agency Pumnp Station at American Heroe's
Park.

Parties shall be mutually responsible {pro-rata Section 1C) for any WRCRWA administrative or
operational charges at the WRCRWA facility.

Parties shall stay current on all operational billings and shall coordinate program reconclliations
between the partnering agencies on a quarterly basis. Monthly reports shall indude project
expenditures, recycled water deliveries, and recharge credits.

Annual budgets and billings shall be reviewed by the Project Committee.

Page 4 of 7




Joint IEUA-ICSD RW Project Term Sheet

Sectlon 6. Service Disruptions

A. District and Agency acknowledge that the provision of recycled water to this program is
Interruptible in nature. The supply is contingent on many factors including WRCRWA facility
operations, and electrical service provision, which are provided by others.

B. Itis acknowledged that the current project does not include back-up power generation at any
facilities.

C. Inthe event of pianned or unplarned supply disruptions, District shall make every reasonable
effort to resume recycled water delivery as soon as possible and shall keep Agency informed as
to the status of service.

Section 7. Water Quality and Water Metering

A. District and Agency acknowledge that the water quality of the District wastewater shall comply
with WRCRWA's Regiona! Water Quality Control Board Water reclamation requirements and
Title 22 permits. Measurement shall be at the point of compliance at the WRCRWA facility.

B. Water quality reports from WRCRWA shall be made avallable on an appropriate schedule.

C. Agency is responsible to ensure that their direct use wholesale customers comply with all
necessary regulatory and permit requirements for the application of the recycled water.

D. Water deliveries shall be measured at the WRCRWA metering points within the facility and at
American Heroes Park.

E. Water quality and quantities shall be subject to review and validation by the Project Committee.

Section 8. Financing

A. District hereby agrees to allow Agency to apply on District’s behalf to the California State
Revolving Fund Loan/grant program.

B. Agency has negotiated an agreement with the Chine Basin Regional Financing Authority (CBRFA)
that allows Agency to become the lead agency to apply for the above grant and CBRFA to administer
the grant, if received.

€. District shall annually appropriate funds for the repayment of the State Revolving Fund (SRF)
Loan/Grant, If received.

D. The District and the Agency may elect to pursue additional or alternate funding sources as
otherwise agreed upon.

Section 9. Term and Termination

A. {tis contemplated that the SRF grant or Loan will have a repayment period of 30 years.
B. This construction and operating agreement shall be for a period of 45 years, with autematic 10-
year renewals unless either Party objects in writing.

Page 50f7



Jaint IEUA-JCSD RW Project Term Sheet

C. Each party shalf have the right to terminate the agreement with a 3-year notice unless a shorter
notice s mutually agreed upon In writing.

D. The terminating party is responsible for repayment of the affected party’s proportionate share
of the project commitments that is outstanding at the time of termination.

Section 10. Project Commilitee

Conslstent with the roles as defined within this Term Sheet, a Project Committee shall be
established to ensure effective coordination between the Agency and District throughout the
planning, design, construction and operation of the Froject. The Project Committea shall be
comprised of at least one leadership representative from each party. The Committee shall meet no

less than twice per year to review Project design, construction, budgets, costs and operational
coordination.

Section 11. Preparation of an Agreement

Both Parties agree to give best faith efforts to execute a formal Construction and Operations

Agreement based on the terms identified herein within 180 calendar days, but no later than the
award of a consultant design contract.

Section 12. Contingent on Grant Funding and Change of Use Petition

The obligations set forth in the formal Agreement sha'l not become effective, as to either party,
unless and until the CBRFA executes a Grant Funding Agreement with the State of California which
commits the delivery of grant funds to be applied to the Froject as provided hereln. In addition,

praject commitments shall be based on the successful Issuance of a Change In Use permit regarding
residual refeases to the Santa Ana River.

Page 60of7



Section 18.

Approval of Terms

loint IEVA-JCSD RW Project Term Sheet

General Manager
Dated:__//~ 1¥-15

SURUPA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

General Maniger

Dated:

Page 7 of 7



Joint IEVA-JCSD RW Project Term Sheet

Section 13. Approval of Terms

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY

General Manager

Déted:

JURUPA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

AETEELN

Todd M. Corbin
General Manager

Dated: November 23, 2015

ATTEST:

Julie B. Saba
Board Secretary

Page 7 of?7



bierepiioed Chmis

LEGEND
@  Non-Poisble Wall

= Preesure Reduting Station

w—==—== Phaga | [mprovemnent
Phaaa Il Fipelira

Parka
[ exinting
Proposad
Schools
(] Exeng
|__ | Under Corstruation
T Proposed
[] city Boundaries

"~ 168D Boundery _J,

-

4

Sourcas: Riverskie Co, GIS, 2015 Sen Bemandino
Co. (I8, 2015; Corona-Nonoe USD; Jurupa USD.

IEUA Alternative 4

No Reservolr Project - Future 800PZ Cennectlon - Local 830PZ Gannection

AL ®ERT A

[(EEFEEE RN T



Joint [EUA-JCSD RW Project Term Sheet

EASTVALE RECYCLID WATIR BYE EM
[B0A RLTIRKATIVE 4 - C3TION 1
INCELA RESESVO!R PROIZCT - LOTAL & 850 P2 COVNEITICNI

B ol Ismated
’z‘ ,revs:-‘am P:E.
Boziids Toavien: g WEREESA Plonl it e
o eda wws
- d

BOORIRO0on Fug dvi (AZPIDR. TR0 HR)

247 Dog. Tramgraission Mpghine rom PEY R 18320000
WRORWL 33w B0 FT 00 on hung Ana,
rAGay 36300 F

FobeTora) Teaep 1 £12.070.08D 535,300,000

" 257 T g, Transw gor vipgding fraan L7000 ssaInnen
waliman 05 /Fing Ave. migrssrlion
3% Spamgl Ametiihn METEE PRI
LADETTY SR LR
b MR N R I R T L A 3588 5 TR
AR Bp T R

i F SN [T FITRP shandr RAT
B e RN R
AL St Irguian BRIy 3TN FLH I
A A

Iud-Tota Hy Bt - hl 1 et
Boarvar Boevis e g Renae EL 1 = . § PR Eilw L
= olee Bete g BRSO ETEND Mrota oE2
I3 T T Lide B R e B WA Ea I
DB SANICLLE AR P BYTRLIDS
Az 1100

BT Fah dan TN [ENEE XY

TOTALS 3Tdah Rl 3 o 1 & o v

FEXTH

PrOBTIIOTY S L4 TS CONEIrATon 2ome TR S0gF tallotES EOTETISLON (2 D7
TREGT ENGIRIng g g piatians mhar Tivinar Jasgt ats tyitteo Fr T BRI LI 1T RARS" O 2hS rhen
FAPRRCTE IOA D 30 ~iresmam NS ITIDeTHIN AT BT Sthe e wes! doeu be ution DTEDE B meprd ea 7 vt e Proz-a IS
locrtnnion Db v Los Anpuiay +ThT LLEIE . oume DDEENL Bismhedan Tmavoig -eWRIT OIS RRIULITIT, LR 2R3 RaDon LINF #R
Myt mIiLeal

rution ioningEncies

dogowprTcase WR2 pom weg I8 ppipmen ypeg s menatioma B2 AT BES aup nam s 400,000 27
seprde oy ime dae Ll BNt st WG SE C2EPTLEET o AR Y A B pattle T

vevamer Dpag 3 PObUyrmovrd W gl comaemiae penne mp w O AT PO ASpamemar PN S
wrgrnass Ent s bt rennend tepiy S IR T R G D M



RECEIVE AND
FILE

5C



IDRLSIA ¥3LVM TVAIDINNW ¥V

Aouaby saiin asdwg pupjuf ’U

910z Ateniqey

(5L0Z 12quadaq - A|nr)
Joday A)iAoy Bulpjing JeaA-pin




}sedal04 pajebpng YN[ JO %6S =
S1se2a104 Aousabyy JaquIB|p JO %l =

sNAa3 L2S°g «(eyep 01) Aanoy Buipjing

SNQ3 0¢E'y ‘Isedaliod pajebpng vn3| =
SNA3 6178'S :1seda104 Aouaby JoquB|N =

AiAnoy Buipjing JeaA-pi :Atewwing




ADIRLS WLV TVIDINOW ¥

e1eq STOZ Jaqwiadad sliH oulyd Suipuad
JaGUINU 3|OYM 1S31B3U 34} 0] PAPUNOI SNQT [eled -

snaid

puejdn oueu Jiejouow euejuo4 aAMAD S||tH oulyd ouiyd
I‘ - o= 1 S fe
so1 *" vt . 001 |
£ p9e—— |68 i
ESE SEVSTY € 00S
- 0001
6vT‘T
00S‘T
000°C
— 00S°C
|enloy @
; 000°€
000°€ palaloid =
00S°€E

L

, 19quie0aq —/

Aoy Buipjing 91/G1 JeaA-pI



g

eled ST0? Jagquwiadaq s||IH ouyd mc_“ur_mn_ cp ..._W_s.-m.nxwpqg..ﬁ_.“_mz:_‘.g.qs

T Jaquinu ajoum 53129 o1 01 papuNo SG3 [ENIEd —— )

6v8‘S 0SZ‘L 665y sjejo] pajosfoid

11§ 8LL'L LSP'L S[ejo] [enjoy JesA PI

G9l ze eel pueidn

88¢ 0cl 851 olEeO

9% Ll 4% JIe[OJUoi

1% 4 G 8¢ BUEjUO
6i7L°1 08 Ghe AMAD

00} 19 6€ SlliH oulyo

68¢ 12 29¢ ouIyo

(sna3)
i i Aouaby Bunoenuon
/le1aiawiwon |eljuspIsSay

GSN 19quisoaq — A
Aoy m_,___o__sm 91/G| JedA-pIN




(%S1)
o sNQa3 68€
oulyD

eleq STOT Joquwiaaad §||IH oujyD Sulpuad  «
J2gUINuU 2joym 1S2UE3U 33 0] papunol snad3d [elled -

(%)
sna3 001
“S[IH ouIyD

(%S¥)
snag3 oSL°L
AMAD

(%1L1)
snNQa3d 682
ouellO

(%9)
sNQd3 $91
pueidn

(%2)
sNa3a ev
e S . (%LL) Jle[Pjuony
mt o e BRIl - sNa3 sev
: X _ euejuod

Buipung vy ul INE°L$ Ul pejnsay sNa3

iAoy Buipjing 91/G1 JeaA-pPI



"

ADVALSIA WALV, WAIINNIW Y

A50i3By Seisling exdes proj f.’

{8107 29q)
Jicuon

Wpomwon..
ouIy o~

{910% 20q)
SIIiH oWy

(g10Z 290)
pueidn

TR

3 (g 1oz aeq) eumiuod |

¥

i

R 2L THE 5T L T
3% o TE jd] s
[ 3 T et PHERD
[ L] 3T I AT
St 0 or m ]
BT o9 (3 S QNI
1] 0 L] SE SlH =
— —
55 o F:4 6

Aizs L ey

sy

+#5L 9¢ 02 S1 .1 SO0 0O

I

| [

g =003 TVLOL *QRIO TN 4 TVH

o< )
oo -oLE 4G

o= o
reigsnpu|
oai=< @)
ooL-0t D
0l=> a
ETETETTTT XY
oo ()
ool-0L O
0l= o
[epuspisay

tain naa

pajeadrosun

ol 303G D
puaba

91/G10Z 1edA Jeasid dLA - nodoay AjAnOY Butpjing




AHLSIO ELYM

suolsan




RECEIVE AND
FILE

5D



T

Sl A P

a9 o€ -

asw 98  :(€00) S-dY __ o = r T N 315 Nl :

OGE QHN.H -HANOOu Hl&m .... L | % ... S :..._ Lh o= I [ £ % .H b | ...“ ....... : . ' ”.... .. { ... OGE m m >_QQ—.—W gx

GOW 9'T_ :(T00) ied opeid it AR - 5 GO ©'T L | qowsor  auenyy
K v IF rda i 3 | 1 u m:GN c..n_m | . R

| GO O'TE :[el0L
. 181\ POPPAISY
Ao 00 :(AMIN) J23eM pariodu
a9 H._O.N :jouny [e207/WI01S

owS_ <0 .nm.“m>__wm_
aow 19 :Alddns my
asin N.m .Em:_mc_

%St ”_umhma_mn_ Emu‘_mn_
as 6°£¢ :Alddng pay
aoW ¥9¢ 1Juan|puy

. 9UDZ BEZT = :

.R._K. Um._m_;__oa ucmu..mm
aoiN 8L Aiddns my
aow £'8 ;Juanyu|

cws_ L'1S >_&=m My
aon 129  uenjul
SINVd T1V 1VIOL

9T0Z AUVNNYT — NOLLNEIYLSIA Y3LVM a3 1DAD3Y vnal




RECEIVE AND
FILE

S5E



N

| Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

L

Date: March 3, 2016

To: Regional Committees

From: Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subject: Energy Management Plan (EMP)
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Regional Committees to review.

BACKGROUND

The item was presented as an action item at the IEUA Board of Directors meeting on February 17,
2016.



h e

iy,

A MURICIPAL WATER TS T{ICT

Date: Febranry 17, 2016

To: The Honoreble Boerd of Directors
Through:

From:

Submitted by:

Subject:

RECOMMENDATION

Rhm@ﬁuh&ﬂof%ﬂmmﬁﬁmwhﬂﬁmmﬂm
as outlined in the Energy Management Plan,

BACKGROUND

The primary objectives of the EMP is to benchmark the Agency's current energy pecformance
ond greenhouse gas emisaions baseline; forecast frture demands; and explore measures that will
cultivate a reliable and pustainable energy infrastructure to aghisve the objectives set forth #n
IEUA’s Business Goals. This plan also aitis to identify projects and business practices that can
improve the Agency’s Integrated Demand Side Management (IDSM) and wusk in concert with
energy utilities whenever poasible to benefit grid management.

The major initiatives discossed in the EMP are:
¢ Pesk power independence
* Qrid interdependence
s  Organics diversion, and
o Catbon neutrality

As described in past planning docements, peak power independance has been & ocatral goal for
the Agency due to cost of this power. IEUA has progressed toward this goal by developing a
diverse energy portfolio thet includes energy efficiency, a3 well as solar, wind, and fuel cell
generation.  As more reneweble energy comes into the state’s power grid: however, the State



Energy Mmmagement Plan
February 17, 2016
Page2 of 3

must cope with chenging grid conditions. This meuns that asswuptions sbout peak power
demand petiods will shift, as will the times when surplus power nceds o be taken off the grid.
IEUA’s demand response and battery storsge projects are at the cuiting edge of addressing this
energy peneration will require detailed studies to identify new technologies to address these
185068,

In concert with pesk power independence and grid imterdependence, the EMP also introduces a
new initiative to assist the member agencies in complying with the States anticipated increase in
organics diversion requirements, by diverting food waste to the Agency’s anserobic digesters
and composting facility. The Statc has a target to reduce landfilling of solid waste by 75% by
2020, and this is expected, under the 2016 Short Lived Climate Pollutants Plan, to incoease to
90% by 2025 in oxder to further reduce greenhouse gas emisgions. Steff is currently conducting a
feusibility stady to estimate the amount of food waste evailable in the setvice ares; the biogas
generation potentisl; and the possible altcrnatives o beneficially use the digester gas generated
in & cost effective manner,

A direct consequence of the implementation of the first two initiatives is the proposed carbon
neutrality goal, which requires the Agency to acquire 100 percent of its electricity needs from
carbon neutral sources by 2030. This will be accomplished through increased encrgy efficiency
and renewable energy gencration, and optimized interdependence with the State’s power grid. In
addition 1o greenhouse gas emissions voluntary reporting initiated in 2013 (with an eudited
catbon emissions baseline completed in 2016), staff will establish a carbon impact evaluation
criterie to ensure future emergy projects selected for implementation contribute to the Agency’s
achievement of the 100% carbon neutral goal,

The EMP relied on forecasting to eveluate the feasibility of site-specific energy projects.
Forecasts were developed by incorporating projects from the Ten-Year Capital Improvement
Plan (TYCIP) end findings from the Wastewater Facilitics Master Plans, as well as, the
anticipated performance of applicable sclf-generation installations. Wastewater flow projections
were utilized to forecast anticipated seasonal demends at each IEUA facility. The EMP identified
several potentisl energy projects, such as lighting upgrades end expemsion of the solsr
installation. at the IERCF, that are recommended to undergo more detailed analyses to determine
whether they will be incorporated into the 2016/17 TYCIP.

Focused business practices, much #s encrgy procurement straiegies and improved energy
monitoring werc discussed within the plam, as cost saving messures can extend beyond
conservation projects. Through prudent planning that considers past performance and anticipates
regional needs, this EMP constructs a blucprint to shepe a reliable and efficient energy profile for
the Agency and an open commmmication with energy utilities to ephance the water-enargy
relationship.

The EMP will be reevaluated svery two years. A Programmatic Environmental Impact Repart
(PEIR) is being prepared and will incorporate the findings of the EMP, along with the remainder
of the Agency’s planning documents, such as the Wastewater Facilities Master Plan and the
Integrated Resources Plen. Following the Board approval of the PEIR, anticipated in summer

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16033 Energy Manngoment Plan 02-17-2016



Energy Management Plan
February 17, 2016
Page 3 of 3

2016, each of these planning documents will be brought to the Board for final approval.
Development of the EMP i3 consistent with the IRUA business goel of Wastewater Management,
namely optimizing facility energy use, achieving state environmental sustainability and
rencwable energy goals, cffictively managing renewable resoutces to achiove peak power
independence, and providing for future rate stabilization.

ERIOR POARD ACTION

None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The EMP was entirely developed in-house, Projects recommended by the EMP will be included
in the TYCIP to ensure they are properly funded.

Attachments:
Attachment 1: PowerPoint Presentetion

Attachment 2: 2015 Energy Management Plan
Attachment 3: Fact Sheets



(\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

f‘-u-r. =

;f'u-“‘liﬂ"iﬁQ: '




Inland Empire Utilities Agency
2015

Energy Management Plan

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
6075 Kimball Avenue
Chino, CA 91708



Executive Summary

he Southern California water industry is currently operating within a

burdensome climate, as adverse environmental conditions are driving

policy change during a time of continued population growth and

socioeconomic decline. Meeting both water and energy demands in this
region in a reliable and environmentally responsible manner have converged to form
a substantive challenge for water agencies. The Inland Empire Utilities Agency has
addressed this challenge through the development of an Energy Management Plan
(EMP) that will focus on resource optimization and sustainable operations.

This EMP analyzes historical energy usage, defines a current energy and Greenhouse
Gas emissions baseline, forecasts future demands, examines procurement strategies,
and proactively explores measures that can ease the Agency’s load on the utility
while cultivating a reliable and sustainable energy infrastructure across its facilities.
This plan also aims to identify projects and business practices that can improve the
Agency’s [ntégrated Demand Side Management (IDSM) and work in concert with
energy utilities whenever possible to benefit grid management.

As detailed in past planning documents, grid independence during peak periods has
been a central goal within the Agency. Though IEUA has taken advantage of its
renewable resources by developing a diverse energy portfolio, further planning is
needed to address changing environmental regulations that may dictate available
technologies. The EMP introduces a new initiative to assist the member agencies in
complying with the organic diversion goals, by diverting food waste to the agency’s
anaerobic digesters and composting facility. The EMP also establishes a new
Business Goal that will require 100 percent of IEUA’s electricity needs to be procured
from carbon neutral sources by 2030 through strategic planning and renewable
resource optimization.

Wastewater flow projections are utilized to forecast anticipated seasonal demands at
each IEUA facility. The EMP relies on forecasting to evaluate the feasibility of site-
specific energy projects, which resulted in a total of 11 projects that are estimated to
require approximately $38 million in capital expenditures. These projects will
undergo more detailed analyses to determine whether they will be implemented into
IEUA's Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP).



The EMP outlines economic, operational, environmental, and regulatory factors that
influence new project implementation at the Agency’s wastewater treatment plants,
as well as current aspects that tend to impede new project development. Costly and
time-intensive grid interconnections, generating capacity limitations on Net Energy
Metering {NEM) eligible renewable installations, and limited economic incentives
are all identified as elements that can negatively impact new energy management
projects. This EMP also offers recommendations that would address each obstacle
for regulatory consideration.

Focused business practices, such as energy procurement strategies and improved
energy monitoring are discussed within the plan, as cost saving measures can extend
beyond conservation projects. Through prudent planning that considers past
performance and anticipates regional needs, this EMP attempts to construct a
blueprint to shape a reliable and efficient energy profile for the Agency and open
communication with energy utilities to enhance the water-energy relationship.



Table of Contents

EX@CULIVE SUIMIMIAT Y 010rerrssisassassessscssassssnseussassssissasss sesasssass asssss sssses sosssss sessasss sssasss s suns s sussessanss i
018 g+ 6 11 Lot o) T 1
Water-Energy NeXUS s sarsssssssessss sssasssssssssss sissssssssssss ssrssssssssssessies 1
Regional Programs and Facilities OVeIrvieW..... s s ssssnses 2
Work Completed Since 2008.......ercrmsimmmss s ssssse 5
SHOTt-Term GOAlS...coiuerurersermrmees s e e s s s s e s na s 10
Long-Term GoalS.... . s s e e 13
Policy Recommendations..........oconninis s s sessssssssssss s 16
Energy Data.. S teene EEEEE aai e assssa e e e 19
NATUTA] GAS..ocveieeirerrersnn vossesreeerecse e eseseseeae e e s sen em e ee et b em et st st s snssts sosses . 19
24 7<To1 0 g o 17/ ; 22
Greenhouse Gas Emissions — 29
Facility Descriptions.......... R 35
Regional PIANt NO. Lummusssemmermsasmsimsssessecsssssssssssssssssasesseasssssssssenses sssssssesssssn sse 35
Regional Plant No. 4 and Inland Emplre Composting Facility.....mm. 51
Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility ..o 62
Regional Plant NO. 2.t s s s sns s e sss s ens s s 71
Regional Plant No. 5 and IEUA HeadqUartersS... s ssssmesssass 81
Al TEUA Facilities ..c.cvvvieereeeeerceesse e cese s e s ese st e sasss st sas sassns s s ans 92
Path to Implementation. ... s e o e s 106
NEW Project DIIVerS. s sssssssssssssssssassssassssss sssssas ssesssssosssassassssossasasss 106
New Project Barriers. ..o e st esiti i s s s 108



Management PractiCes. . ssssssessessn 115
0T 1h 1 =3 01 1= L 115
Increased MONITOTING. . sasssrmmsssssrssssssssssersssess 117
215 11 Lo 0 ) 00O 118
New Project SoliCitatioN.. s ssssssss . 119
U0 T )L | 1 R 119

Appendices:

A: IEUA Business GOals...cummummmmmmmmsmnmssssm s . 120
B: Carbon Management Plam.........ooemmiem e sressstsscsssemsemssessssstsnons 160
C: Organics DIiVErsion .o 168




Acronyms

AMP
AF
BAC
BCE
BTU
CARB
CASA
CBWM
CBWCD
CEC
CCWRF
CEC
CEQA
CHs
co2
COze
CPUC
CWCCG
DA

DG

Asset Management Plan

Acre-foot

Bioenergy Association of California

Business Case Evaluation

British Thermal Unit

California Air Resources Board

California Association of Sanitation Agencies
Chino Basin Watermaster

Chino Basin Water Conservation District
California Energy Commission

Carbon Canyon Wastewater Recycling Facility
California Energy Commission

California Environmental Quality Act
Methane

Carbon Dioxide

COz Equivalent

California Public Utilities Commission
California Wastewater Climate Change Group
Direct Access

Distributed Generation



DOE Department of Energy

DR Demand Response

EMP Energy Management Plan

EMS Energy Management System

ESP Energy Service Provider

FY Fiscal Year

GHG Greenhouse Gas

GWP Global Warming Potential

HVAC Heating/Ventilation/Air Conditioning
ICE Internal Combustion Engine

IDSM Integrated Demand Side Management
IE Inland Empire

IERCF Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility
10U Investor-Owned Utility

KW Kilowatt

KWH Kilowatt-hour

MW Megawatts

MWH Megawatt-hour

MWD Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
N0 Nitrous Oxide

NEM Net Energy Metering

NGOM Net Generation Qutput Meter

0&M Operations & Maintenance

vi



PPA Power Purchase Agreement
REC Renewable Energy Certificate
REEP Renewable Energy Efficiency Project

RES-BCT Renewable Energy Self-Generation Bill Credit Transfer

RFP Request for Proposal

RP-1 Regional Plant No.1 in the City of Ontario

RP-2 Regional Plant No.2 in the City of Chino

RP-4 Regional Plant No.4 in the City of Rancho Cucamonga
RP-5 Regional Plant No.5 in the City of Chino

RP-5 SHF  RP-5 Solids Handling Facility

RPS Renewable Portfolio Standard

RWRPs Regional Water Recycling Plants

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board
SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority
SBCFCD San Bernardino County Flood Control District

SCAQMD South Coast Air Quality Management District

SCAP Southern California Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works
SCE Southern California Edison

SCF Standard cubic feet

SCGC Southern California Gas Company

SGIP Self-Generation Incentive Program

SLCP Short-Lived Climate Pollutant

sSwp State Water Project

vii



TA/TI
TCR
TOU
TYCIP
VFD

VOC

Technical Assistance and Technology Incentives
The Climate Registry

Time of Use

Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan

Variable Frequency Drives

Volatile Organic Compounds

viii



Introduction

WATER-ENERGY NEXUS

Tightening environmental regulations and increasing electrical demand has brought
significant challenges to Southern California electrical utilities. Meeting the electrical
demands of millions of consumers becomes more difficult during periods of peak
activity {generally between 12:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m., and highest in summer
months), as reflected in increased utility rates during these times. The water
industry is not only one of the electrical utilities’ largest consumers, but is also
subject to the same tempeoral variability in demand.

The water sector is subject to many energy-intensive processes, including water
extraction, conveyance, treatment, distribution, and wastewater treatment. Since
population growth drives demand for water and energy usage, both are expected to
continue increasing in parallel. The wastewater treatment industry is in a unique
position to positively impact both water and energy sectors through improved
efficiency and using renewable resources from the process.

[EUA has taken advantage of its position by focusing efforts to reduce energy
consumption and ease demand on the local electric utility. In 2012, IEUA developed
an energy management plan with the goal of going “gridless” by 2020, with the intent
of generating enough electricity on site that Agency facilities would be independent
from the already taxed Southern California power grid system. IEUA has explored
various power generating technologies in pursuit of this goal since its inception.
Although IEUA prioritizes the utilization of renewable digester gas produced on site,
a spectrum of renewable energy systems have been pursued to develop a robust
portfolio across all facilities. While securing renewable technologies along the way,
[EUA has also learned lessons that altered the roadmap te meet the 2012 goal.

In order to achieve grid independence with renewable technologies, IEUA must build
an energy infrastructure that is capable of handling the full demand of each facility at
any given time. Realistically, this would result in the daily export of energy back to
the grid when generation exceeded demand. Furthermore, Southern California
Edison (SCE) policies dictate that renewable installations are subject to standby and/
or departing load charges that rise as the nameplate rating increases, hindering the



cost effectiveness of renewable technologies as the generating capacity grows. Since
one of the pillars of the “Gridless by 2020” initiative was to hedge against market
volatility, [EUA adjusted its focus on achieving relative independence from the grid
during peak periods, when electricity costs are highest. This effort aligns with IEUA’s
Business Goals (included in Appendix A), adopted by the Board of Directors in 2013
as part of the Agency’s Strategic Plan.

REGIONAL PROGRAMS & FACILITIES OVERVIEW

IEUA is a regional wastewater treatment agency and wholesale distributor of
imported water. Today the Agency is responsible for serving approximately 830,000
people: over 242 square miles in western San Bernardino County. The Agency is
focused on providing three key services: (1} treating wastewater, developing
recycled water, local water resources, and conservation programs to reduce the
region’s dependence on imported water supplies and drought-proof the service
area; (2) converting biosolids and waste products into a high-quality compost made
from recycled materials; and (3} generating electrical energy from renewable
sources.

Industrial and municipal wastewater collections are provided through regional
wastewater interceptors and two non-reclaimable wastewater pipeline systems.
Recycled water is produced at four regional water recycling plants (RWRPs). In
addition, the Agency has three facilities where the biosolids produced at the water
recycling plants are handled: RP-1 Solids Handling Facility, RP-2 Solids Handling
Facility, and the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility. The Agency also has a
solids handling facility at RP-5 which is leased to a private enterprise that intends to
produce biogas and energy from food waste.

Although the Agency is a wholesale water provider, the Agency has very little
infrastructure or assets related te potable water treatment, conveyance, or use.
Water resources-related assets are primarily connected to the recycled water
program. In addition to recycled water and wastewater services, the Agency
operates a network of groundwater recharge facilities in partnership with Chino
Basin Watermaster {(CBWM), San Bernardino County Flood Control District
(SBCFCD), Chinc Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD). The Agency also
operates the Chino Desalter I facility in coordination with the Chine Desalter
Authority. The Agency alsc manages an extensive regional water use efficiency
program, and collaborates with Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority (SAWPA),
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), and the Regional Water

!Sgurce: California Department of Finance, Aprif 2013 census projection.

2



Quality Control Board {(RWQCB) to develop regional planning documents.

Regional Wastewater Facilities

The Agency has four RWRPs which produce recycled water that meets Title 22
standards for indirect reuse and groundwater recharge. All of the RWRPs have
primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment and recycled water pumping facilities
and are interconnected in a regional network. Agency staff routinely uses the
Agency’s bypass and diversion facilities, such as the San Bernardino Lift Station,
Meontclair Diversion Structure, Etiwanda Trunk Line, and Carbon Canyon bypass, to
optimize the Agency’s flows and capacity utilization. In general, flows are routed
between regional plants in order to maximize recycled water deliveries while
minimizing overall pumping and treatment costs. Figure 1 illustrates the service
area boundaries for the Agency’s four RWRPs.

The

FIGURE 1. REGIONAL PLANT SERVICE AREA BOUNDARIES

b [ om— T )
Fotur Trunk
to RP-4.
Drveamon tv
g ¥ or RE.1
Foranral FUIS
ez, of Divadtion ‘o P-4 '
= ﬁnm——a
L*] i N 1 ]
. e I et .r#li's!-'im -
Bomma e
Chnc o rP 1 [
-
i m L5 1
= o -, Fislure to R
Creno 1o COWRF
= éhc'm- Mo
b
Imh-q.mﬂ_l;ﬂ - o
i . Cheo b RE-§
. . [— o o RP-2
Ctano iHAs lo RP-5 g o — %ﬁ four
L P
g 406 AP-2 # fegional Plants
Sumpad it RP & €1 Lif Station
~— Sewer Pipelines
Ut Prangid Andg OF Crormd Hes.
Hotn Bpous Goll Counss ‘o AR @




Regional facilities are: Regional Water Recycling Plant Neo. 1 (RP-1), Regional Water
Recycling Plant No. 4 {RP-4), Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 (RP-5), and
Carbon Canyon Wastewater Recycling Facility (CCWRF). The biosolids produced at
RP-4 and RP-1 are thickened, digested, and dewatered at solids handling facilities
located at RP-1. Similarly, the CCWRF and RP-5 biosolids are treated at Regional
Water Recycling Plant No. 2 (RP-2). The stabilized and dewatered solids are then
transported to the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF)} for
processing into soil amendment.

The Agency has a network of regional interceptor sewers that can be used to bypass
flow from one water recycling plant to another to balance and optimize the use of
treatment capacity. Currently, the regional interceptors can bypass flow from RP-4
to RP-1 and from CCWRF to RP-5. In addition, primary effluent can be bypassed
from the RP-1 equalization basins to RP-5.

The Agency also has four wastewater lift stations, which are used to shift flows that
would naturally flow from one portion of the service area to a different treatment
plant. The lift stations are instrumental in balancing flows and keeping water in the
northern portion of the service area to maximize potential recycled water use.

Recycled Water Distribution System

The Agency has been serving recycled water to its member agencies since formation
of the Regional Sewerage Service Contract in 1973. Initially, recycled water was
delivered to Whispering Lakes Golf Course and Westwind Park in the city of Ontario,
as well as to Prado Regional Park and El Prado Golf Course in San Bernardino
County. In the early 1990’s, the Agency planned and built the first phase of the
Carbon Canyon Recycled Water Project, which now serves several customers in
Chino and Chino Hills. The connected demand for the recycled water has more than
tripled since FY 2006/07 from 13,000 AFY to cver 43,800 AFY. Recycled water and
groundwater recharge sales have nearly tripled as well.

Groundwater Recharge Basins

The Agency, in conjunction with the CBWM is implementing the groundwater
recharge program to increase artificial groundwater recharge within Chino Basin
using storm water, recycled water, and imported water. By enhancing the recharge
capacity in the Chino Basin, greater quantities of high quality water can be captured



and stored during wet years. Subsequently, the stored water can be drawn from the
Basin during droughts and shortages of imported water. Annual recharge varies due
to weather patterns, and the availability of imported water and recycled water
supplies.

Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility

The IERCF, constructed in Rancho Cucamonga in 2007 under a Joint Powers
Authority agreement between the Agency and the CSDLAC, is completely enclosed to
control odors and meet stringent air quality regulations. It is the nation’s largest
indoor biosolids composting facility. The IERCF uses the Aerated Static Pile
composting process to recycle approximately 150,000 wet tons per year of
dewatered and stabilized biosolids from the Agency and CSDLAC's wastewater
treatment processes, as well as wood waste from local communities, It

The facility is currently operating at its design capacity, receiving nearly 600 tons per
day of combined biosclids and recycled waste amendments and producing over
230,000 cubic yards of high quality compost each year for local landscaping and
horticultural use. For energy management purposes, RP-4 and IERCF are considered
to be a single entity, as they share the same electrical meter.

WORK COMPLETED SINCE 2008

Renewables

[EUA began the renewable energy procurement process by issuing Requests for
Proposals (RFPs) for sclar, wind, fuel cell, and in-conduit hydroelectric projects in
2008. The RFPs offered vendors the ability to propose outright sale of equipment or
Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) that would eliminate up front capital costs,
aside from labor, for the Agency. Multiple proposals were received for solar, wind,
and fuel cell projects, while no in-conduit hydroelectric proposals were received.
[EUA performed Business Case Evaluations (BCEs) for the proposals received to
determine the most economical projects for each facility. In addition to cost and
operational reliability, site variations such as digester gas preduction, land use, and
electrical load were important factors in determining the site-specific feasibility of
each project.

The first product of the RFP process was a PPA, signed in June 2008, for 3.5 MW of
solar energy across four Agency facilities. The solar installations were completed in



LA SR e R TR

December of the same year. Through the agreement, IEUA purchases the energy
produced by the solar panels at a competitive rate with fixed escalation over a 20-
year period.

This rate structure, typical for all PPAs that the Agency has since entered into, allows
the Agency to avoid capital outlay while still receiving the benefit of on-site
renewable energy. In each PPA project, the private entity has financed, designed,
constructed, operated, and maintained the generation equipment. In return, the
private entity receives any incentives available through government funding
programs and sells the energy generated to IEUA at a fixed rate.

In March 2010, IEUA entered into a second public-private partnership to install a 1
MW wind turbine at Regional Plant No. 4. The PPA is structured similarly to the solar
agreement, with the Agency purchasing 100 percent of the energy produced by the
equipment at a fixed escalating rate over 20 years. The turbine installation was
completed in December 2011.

In September 2010, IEUA entered into a third public-private partnership with an
environmental engineering consulting firm to develop IEUA's RP-5 Solids Handling
Facility (RP-5 SHF) as a food waste digestion site. The facility, initially designed as a



manure digestion site, has been diverting food waste regionally since 2012 with the
goal of producing enough digester gas to fuel two 1.5 MW cogeneration engines that
will provide power for the facility. The project is still under development, with
engine commissioning expected in June 2015.

The Agency has historically employed cogeneration engines to combust the digester
gas and produce heat and power to be used on-site, However, the 2008 amendment
to South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) Rule 1110.2 required
cogeneration engines to be retrofitted with costly pollution control technologies in
order to achieve stringent emissions limits. The Agency issued another RFP to
evaluate potential alternatives that could utilize the digester gas in a more cost-
effective manner.

In October 2010, IEUA entered into a PPA with a third party to install, maintain, and
operate a 2.8 MW molten carbonate fuel cell operating on digester gas at Regional
Plant No. 1. The fuel cell is also equipped with a 4.1 MMBtu/hr heat recovery unit to
increase overall plant efficiency. As with other PPAs, the Agency agreed to purchase
all renewable electricity generated by the fuel cell at a fixed escalation rate over 20
years. The agreement not only provided the Agency with the ability to procure clean
renewable energy with no capital costs, but it also mitigated risk associated with the
fuel cell technology by combining the digester gas cleaning system and fuel cell
power plant under a single entity. In researching the feasibility of a fuel cell system,
[EUA staff discovered that previous installations suffered from ineffective gas
conditioning that resulted in prolonged shutdowns and reduced equipment
lifecycles. IEUA’s fuel cell agreement is structured to ensure that downtime is
minimized and equipment maintenance is optimized.

Conservation

In addition to the renewable installations, IEUA worked with third parties to
perform energy audits at Agency facilities. Select recommendations from these
audits were implemented to reduce energy consumption. Lighting retrofits and
controls were installed across several facilities, along with variable frequency drives
(VFDs) on many pumps and motors. Damper installation on high volume air blowers
also resulted in significant electricity savings at the Agency’s composting facility.
Furthermore, a project is currently underway to improve the aeration basin air
handling system at Regional Plant No. 1 to minimize air leaks. This project is
expected to reduce electricity consumption at the plant by approximately 1,500
MWh annually.



Demand Response

IEUA has also been involved in Demand Response (DR) programs to reduce Agency
costs and to ease pressure on the electrical grid during times of high usage. The
Agency's first involvement in DR was in a Time-of-Use Base Interruptible Program
(TOU-BIP) from 2008 to 2010, However, because of the financial risk associated with
the BIP, the Agency terminated the TOU-BIP contract, and since July 2011, has
participated in a Demand Response (DR) program through EnerNOC (a SCE
authorized third-party DR provider), a private entity providing energy intelligence
software that displays real-time electricity usage. In addition to facilitating DR
events, EnerNOC software is used to track consumption from facility processes over
time,

The Agency has agreed to provide EnerNOC a total cumulative curtailment of 1,230
kW for all facilities enrolled in the program (RP-1, RP-2, RP-4/IERCE, RP-5 and
CCWREF) at a value of approximately $74,000 per year. Reduced energy import from
the grid during demand response events is primarily achieved by shutting down
some of the recycled water pump stations and through reduced ventilation at the
IERCE. These temporary energy conservation techniques do not have any negative
impact to the recycled water customers (operations staff was able to increase the
reservoir level prior to the event) or to the indoor air quality at IERCF.

Table 1 shows the results of the six DR events that SCE dispatched during FY 13/14.
Each facility enrolled in the DR program has a curtailment target, but the IEUA
combined total of 1,230 kW is used to determine whether the Agency will be
compensated for its performance during each event. IEUA’s DR contract with
EnerNOC contains a provision that requires the delivered load capacity to be at least
75 percent of the target reduction. If the delivered capacity falls below 75 percent,
IEUA does not receive any credit for reducing load during the DR event. However,
IEUA strives to reduce its load to match 100 percent of the target reductions at each

plant during every event. In FY 13/14, IEUA reached its overall reduction goal in
three of the six DR events.

Table 1 shows that IEUA's facilities generally perform better during DR events that
occurred in warm months. The reason for this seasonal difference stems from
reduced recycled water demand during winter months. Because each DR reduction
target is calculated using a baseline averaging energy usage from the previous ten
working days, reducing energy usage from RW pumping is difficult, or even
impossible, during periods in winter months when pumping is limited or stopped
completely due to low demand. The table also shows that RP-1 consistently



TABLE 1. FY 13/14 IEUA DEMAND RESPONSE RESULTS

Percentage of Target Reduction Achieved
Event Date

RP-1 RP-2  RP-4/IERCF. RP-5 CCWRF  Overall

7/31/2013 552 130 81 422 4 96
8/29/2013 484 90 95 974 6 125
8—/30/-2013 1,550 120 91 968 -20 160
2/6/2014 666 0 86 -636 -68 43

2/6/2014 1,608 0 44 -108 4 91
5/29/2014 786 0 114 428 80 145

Average 941 57 85 341 1 110

performed above expectations, while CCWRF had difficulty meeting its target goal.
The DR capabilities of each facility will be examined in detail later in the EMP.

Monitoring

ENERNOC's software also allows IEUA to track electricity usage at each facility in real
time. The Agency invested in sub-meters that gauge electricity usage from individual
processes within the treatment facilities. Sub-metering involves the use of digital
meters connected to the SCADA system as a resource to help monitor kW, kWh,
amperes, load factor and other units of energy consumption.

A combination of sub-meters and load profiling data can help staff understand
operating patterns, increase operating efficiency, assist in identifying malfunctioning
equipment and reduce energy demand charges. In addition, this electronic data can
be brought into the treatment plant control systems, which will enhance operational
control of the facilities, reduce maintenance costs, and prolong equipment operating
life.

As of April 2015, the sub-metering installation was complete, but various pieces of
equipment were undergoing modifications to improve performance and reliability.
Once the modifications are complete, IEUA intends to compare the energy usage of
each process to industry metrics to gauge levels of efficiency. Continuous energy
tracking of treatment processes will also allow Agency staff to measure the
effectiveness of energy projects that are implemented.



SHORT-TERM GOALS

This EMP establishes goals aimed to improve the Agency’s energy management
through various means, including renewable portfolio diversification, increased
monitoring, resource optimization, and strategic procurement. This section focuses
on goals that are to be achieved within the next five years.

Procurement

IEUA’s renewable PPAs benefit IEUA by establishing energy rates for the next 20
years and eliminating uncertainty that comes with purchasing imported electricity.
Nevertheless, IEUA is continuously evaluating the economic landscape of its
renewable resources, and is in the process of evaluating the option of purchasing the
solar installations that were procured through a PPA in 2008. If the purchase value
is economical, IEUA could benefit over the remaining term of the agreement . As the
owner of the solar arrays, IEUA would assume responsibility for any required
Operations and Maintenance {O&M]) expenses, but would also avoid electricity
expenses for the energy generated from the panels moving forward.

In addition to renewable installations, IEUA is consistently evaluating procurement
options for imported purchases. IEUA purchases both electricity and natural gas
from an Energy Service Provider (ESP) through the Direct Access (DA) program.
These services are procured via an agreement that has a one-year term. The term
length is designed to allow the Agency flexibility to adapt to market changes. IEUA
will continue to evaluate its procurement options on an annual basis and extend the
DA agreement in one-year increments, as necessary.

Integrated Demand Side Managemen:

The California Public Utilities Commission {CPUC) has funded programs designed to
help Investor-Owned Utilities (I0Us) develop Integrated Demand Side Management
(IDSM) programs that focus on energy efficiency, conservation, demand response,
and distributed generation (DG). With an array of renewable resources at its
disposal, IEUA has plenty of opportunity to assist the I0Us by improving demand
side management at all of its facilities.

IEUA's solar, wind, and fuel cell installations provide a DG portfolio with a total
nameplate capacity of 7.3 MW. IEUA will track the generation profiles of these
resources to optimize their integration into the grid. Further expansion of the

10



Agency’s renewable portfolio will consider current and future load demands te
determine the impact on imported needs and potential for export. IEUA is also
pursuing energy storage technology, which would add significant flexibility to the
Agency’s energy usage profile. By integrating energy storage into its renewable
installations, JEUA could temporally manage its load on the grid at each facility.
Storage would also impact procurement, as IEUA could take advantage of TOU rates
by purchasing and storing electricity when grid demand and tariffs are lowest.

Integrating energy storage into IEUA’s energy infrastructure would also benefit the
DR capabilities of each facility. During DR events, facilities with energy storage
maximize electricity consumption from batteries in order to offset grid demand.
Unlike typical DR load reduction techniques, which require turning off equipment
otherwise used for normal operations, integrating energy storage into IEUA’s DR
program would reduce imported electricity levels without interrupting operations.
Combining both techniques could result in significantly more load reduction capacity
to offer SCE during DR events.

Increasing energy efficiency at IEUA facilities is another component of improving
IDSM. IEUA has partnered with The Energy Network, which is part of the Energy
Coalition and funded by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), to
conduct comprehensive energy audits of IEUA's treatment plants and identify
efficiency measures that can reduce energy consumption. Results from these audits
will provide direction on the potential reductions that can be achieved at each site.

I —

i] il'
i

11



Each of these IDSM concepts will require collaboration with SCE. New distributed
generation projects will require interconnection agreements with SCE, as will
incorporating battery storage into IEUA’s energy infrastructure. Efficiency projects
may also be eligible for SCE’s incentive programs, so IEUA will coordinate with The
Energy Network and SCE to ensure that all available funding resources are properly
utilized.

Resource Management

RP-1 and RP-2 generate renewable digester gas. Gas produced at RP-1 is either
consumed by a fuel cell, boilers, or an emergency flare. Gas produced at RP-2 is
either consumed by an internal combustion engine (ICE), boilers, or an emergency
flare. Both sites utilize anaerobic digestion processes to generate the gas. The first
phase of this process produces a low quality acid phase gas that has a heat content
between 200 and 300 Btu/scf. Due to its reduced quality, this acid phase gas cannot
be directly consumed by the boilers, ICE, or fuel cell. At RP-1, this acid phase gas is
constantly flared. At RP-2, the acid phase gas is injected in the digester gas mixing
system, blended with the high BTU gas, and beneficially used.

IEUA will conduct an evaluation to determine the most effective method of utilizing
the acid phase gas at RP-1. Even with a Jow heat content, continuous flaring of this
gas amounts to wasted energy that could otherwise be beneficially used. IEUA
Engineering, Technical Services, and Operations staff will collaborate to identify
projects that can utilize the acid phase gas through mixing, conditioning, or storage.

In addition, this EMP establishes a goal of reducing the total digester gas consumed
by the flares at RP-1 and RP-2 by 50 percent within the next five years. Integrating
acid phase gas into the gas loop will significantly reduce the amount of gas flared at
RP-1, but IEUA will also pursue projects that optimize gas usage.

LONG-TERM GOALS

Long-term goals, discussed in the following section, are expected to be completed
within the next 20 years. These goals typically require significant modifications to
the Agency's infrastructure and coordination with multiple utilities, which requires
considerable planning and engineering efforts.

12



Peak Independence

IEUA’s Business Goals state that peak power independence will be achieved by 2020,
This EMP details the Agency’s current sustainable capacity during peak periods.
Achieving peak power independence will require further distributed generation
projects and improved energy management capabilities. New projects that can take
advantage of IEUA’s renewable resources will be evaluated to determine the most
cost effective and prudent path to accomplishing this goal.

Carbon Neutrality

In FY 13/14, approximately 36 percent of the electricity consumed at IEUA facilities
was generated by carbon neutral sources. This includes IEUA’s solar, wind, fuel cell,
and biogas ICE installations, as well as a portion of imported electricity that was
procured from Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) certified sources. By continuing
to improve the Agency’s renewable portfolio, optimizing digester gas utilization,
increasing energy efficiency, and procuring greater amounts of RPS-certified
electricity as needed, IEUA intends to procure 100 percent of its electricity needs
from carbon neutral sources by the year 2030.

Table 2 summarizes the short and long-term goals established in this EMP, Each goal
is evaluated in greater detail in following sections of the EMP.

13



L1/91
Ad Jo J911end) pu?

L1/91
Ad Jo 1a11end) puz

91/ST Ad jo pug

91/ST Ad jo pug

91/ST Ad jo pug

I91Jeaiays A[[enuue
20uo pue 9T1/ST
Ad Jo 131eng) pug

gona[dwoy)
pajemnsy

*paimbal s] suopE[[RISUL JB[0S A3 JO

Jaumo pue Japiaoad yad a3 jo uonesadoos ydnoyye ‘Aously
a1} 1yauaq pInod SUOHB[EISUL a1} Jo aseyoand JYSLIno ue

1Y) SJEDIPUI SITOU0IS AJojoutos) 1e[os Vdd e ysnotyj sdelre
JB[0S Jo MIN §' € Wo.Ly £10LN23[@ saIndoad Apussmd yndl
“Ly1poe) Loualy yoes 1oj uopdwnsuod ur suononpal

195.1€} pue sfeod AousioLye ysIqeIsa [[Im yNF] ‘souljeseq a8esn
A819ua Sunsixa pue sypne £5.1aUa aY} Jo S)NSal a1} U0 pasey
"$919UIDLYA [euoleIado JoY3Iy ur Jnsad

ued 1Bl sucnesyIpow ssasold osfe Ing ‘syyonal juswdinba
woyy sSutaes fenuajod syen[eAa A[UC 10U BRI} SHPNe A313Ud JAIS
-uayaxduos Jonpuod ued sarueduiod adlates A81sus Liaed papy L,
'siseq Je[ndal

e UO BJEp 31} JOJ[UOWI PUE pI02aJ 03 weadoad e dojaaap 03 pasu
M YN[ ‘S92.1n0Sa1 95913 Jo a8ejurApE 93] 0] J9P.Io uf Juatl
-aSeueuw apis puewsap s AI[1oe] yoes 1oj yuridan|q e apraoxd
pue juawasoldur Jo seale [ejusied AJnuUapt 03 pasn aq ued
e} UOTIBULIOJUT 2[(EN]eA SUTEIU0D e1ep uLialaw-qns s,yndl
'ssa20.1d UOTIII[aS pue malaal

3Y} Ul paIapISuod aq [[m resodoad yaea jo syoedurr A31aua

a1} ‘arouLiayiny "uondwnsuc) A81aus seonpad 1eyl juswdmba
Aouspyya-ydyy axmbad [[m yNE] Aq pansst sdAY ‘9T/ST Ad

w1 Sunuur8ag ‘patmbai yuawdinba pue y.1om Jo adods a3 [e19p
1B ST SONSSI Y] ‘PAI0s Ik s1oalord mau Isasuaym
"9AI3SUOD

01 SABM MaU JIPISUO3 0] saakojdwo Jamoduwa osfe Ing ‘odesn
pue spuewap A210ua S Ously ay3 Jo SSaUAIEME aseasdul A[uo
J0U [[M SWIea) dueuajuiejy pue suoneladp s,ynd[ Suneonpy

nondLnsa(

STVOD LNIWHIVNVIN ADUANY VNI 2 H19V.L

suone[eIsu]
Iefos Sunsmy
Jo aseyoand ajenfeay

s39d1e ], UOTIONPAY
AUy ysiqelsy

sppny
A310ug Hoeg

we1doad Suppely,
J919uW-qus
do[aasg

uonelnlos
afoxg
o3ju] SeINSeIP]
Loustoyly A81auy
ayesodiodug

Jeis 03 Sururex],
JuauIaSBUBH

AZ1auq apLaotd

2]

Juawadeuey
ABaaug

Auapyrq
[euoneradg

fouapiyyg

[euonesadQ

juawaseuey
Ad1aug

Juawadeuey
A810ug

JUaUIagdeuep
PR |

adAj,

14



18/0¢
A4 10 1831eNY 7

12/02
Ad JO I8LIEND mZ

6T/81 Ad jo pug

8T/L1 Ad jo pug

L1/91 Xd Jo pug

LT/91 Ad Jo pug

zopadume?
pajewinsy

‘0€02
Aq Aennau uoqJed Juadiad go T Surasiyoe jo (eod a3 ym syoaload

ansand 03 9ALDS [[IM Y] pUE ‘@NUUoD [[lm Bunodal Suossiu
[enuuy “Ansidsy ajew)) ay3 01 suoissiua nHn Sunuedas Aq Juridioo;
uoqJes e paysiqelss yndl ‘€10z ul ‘Aennau uoqded 1oy yuridaniq

e aplaoad sed 1a35a81p Jo uononpoeld pue oljopaod a[qemausl s, ynAl

spoLiad
¥ead Surinp souspuadapur pLi3 aunsua [[Im 1Y) AMIGEUIEISNS JO [9A3]
B aA3[Y2e 0] swile AOuady oyl ‘sjeon ssaursng s,yNa1 yim Sutuldiy

'61/8T Ad Jo pua a1 £q Juadaad (g Aq syuefd Juauneany asay)
1e duLIe[] sanpad 03 SuIle ynH[ ‘AJ[eloyauaq pasn aSIMIII0 3q Jouued
Jey) sed 131saS1p 1snquiod 03 saaey Louadiaws Jetado 7-4Y pue [-dH

‘Sanloe; ynda[ ¥e

aBeu03s A819ua [[eISul A[9AND93§0 1500 0} SJUAWSAIBY aFe10)s AB1auy
asucdsay puewa( pue ‘ucnezipisqns jueid sy JJ Suipnpur ‘serdajens
Juawaanooad asneudajfe snsind [jim YN HI Inq ‘@amqiyoad 3502 aq

0] £3010UYH3] WS.LIND UMOYS dAEY Saidajen)s juswanioad [euonipes],
‘saniqedes Wsdj S.vnHI aacadwi Apuesyudis pynom adeoys A81auyg

-a8el1031s

pue ‘Buxtui ‘SuruonIpuod sed ‘03 pajwil] 9q Jou Ing ‘Opn[oul [[Im
suondQ "A[jeroyausq pasn aq ues sed aseyd ploe a[gemau a1 18y}
os dooy ses s Qo) 0jur sed aseyd poe ay) Sunelodioour doy suondo
a1e811SaAUI [[Im Y(1F] IUaued () 1g pue AJifenb mo[ S| 01 anp aJep 313
01 A[303.11p Juas AQuaLind sT T-dY 1€ pasnpoud ses aysadip aseyd poy

*BATIOB]JD 1500 3q 0] PIWIIP s10aloid Jusurardulr
pue sjrpne A313U2 31} WO.LJ SUOREPUIWILI0IS Y3 JIPISUCD [[IM VNI

uondinsag

0£0Z 49
Aennap ueqie)
juanxad gotT

ozoz
Aq souapuadapu]
Jamod Jead

D219 0§
Aq Surrerd aonpay

sannoeq
vNd13e adeiong
A319u7 [R3SU]

uoneziumdQ
sen J1a15a81]

s193[o1d AdusIY
Juawaduu]

€09

$92IN0SaY
a[qemauay

Jowedeuey
Afisug

$82.IN0S9Y
a[qemauay

Juawadeuely
AB19ug

$32.1N0S5Y
a[qemauay

Ayuapyyg
[euoneradg

adA],

15



POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Improving energy management requires effort in many facets of an organization. In
addition to monitoring and analyzing energy data, IEUA staff must raise awareness
within the Agency of energy conservation opportunities. Training will be given to
[EUA employees to bring attention to current consumption trends and highlight
areas or strategies that can improve efficiency. This training will be conducted
annually to foster and maintain continued awareness.

Additionally, IEUA’s procurement strategy will be revised to include standard
language requiring high-efficiency equipment whenever possible. Proposals
received are typically weighed by selection criteria such as cost, experience, and
operatienal impact. IEUA will add another criterion that evaluates the impact on
energy consumption. Proposals that reduce energy consumption will be judged
more favorably than those with negligible or adverse impacts.

Southern California Edison

Any substantial energy improvements at IEUA will rely on coordination with SCE.
Each project is subject to the CPUC's policies, and interconnection of new projects
requires significant effort from both SCE and IEUA staff. IEUA has secured
interconnection agreements for all of the renewables at Agency facilities. Qverall,
IEUA has generally experienced difficulties during the interconnection process.
Significant staff time and costs have been devoted to completing the agreements.

IEUA concedes that interconnecting large DG projects with the capacity for
intermittent export presents complexities that must be addressed to ensure
uninterrupted grid service. Interconnection agreements at RP-5 SHF and RP-1 saw
marked progress improvement when twice-weekly conference calls were held with
SCE staff, though SCE is assuredly not capable of offering this level of service for
every interconnection agreement. IEUA believes that improving communication and
policy understanding can streamline the interconnection process, and I[EUA is
committed to maintaining a dialogue with SCE and assist as needed.

IEUA’s IDSM improvements rely on participation in SCE’s DR program. IEUA is
enrolled in SCE's Aggregator-Managed Portfolic DR program through EnerNOC.
Increasing the Agency's load reduction capacity will benefit SCE during periods of

16



high grid demand. IEUA’s contract with EnerNOC contains a provision that requires
the delivered load capacity to be at least 75 percent of the target reduction. If the
delivered capacity falls below 75 percent, IEUA does not receive any credit for
reducing load during the DR event. As a result, IEUA is hesitant to increase the
curtailment target until reliable load reduction measures can be identified.

Furthermore, the current DR program does not provide any incentive for additional
power that is exported to the grid during DR events. Adding energy storage could
further increase reduction capacities, but current DR program language is unclear
regarding integration of energy storage. Modifying the DR program to include
incentives for exported power above a baseline export level could result in higher DR
commitments.

California Public Utilities Commission

IEUA has relied on PPAs to install renewable technologies, each of which has a
purchase rates between $0.08 and $0.13 per kWh, Since exported is compensated at
a rate between $0.04 and $0.06 per kWh, IEUA’s DG projects are typically sized to
maximize on-site use of the electricity generated and avoid export. Increasing export
rates would benefit IEUA, but are unlikely to occur.

An alternative solution to improving renewable economics would rely on
meodifications to the RPS, which mandates that all electric service suppliers provide
at least 33 percent of their energy from renewable sources by 2020. These suppliers
can achieve the mandated limits by purchasing Renewable Energy Certificates
{RECs) that satisfy one of three content categories, often referred to as buckets:

¢ Bucket 1: Energy and RECs (bundled) from an RPS-eligible facility that is
directly connected to the transmission grid

¢ Bucket 2: RECs are purchased and renewable energy is firmed and shaped
with substitute electricity that is scheduled into a California Balancing
Authority within the same calendar year as the RPS generation

¢ Bucket 3: Unbundled RECs from RPS-eligibly facility

Because IEUA uses the renewable energy it generates on site, any RECs generated fall
into Bucket 3, which carries the lowest value on the trading market. IEUA’s
experience in pursuing RECs for its renewable installations found that the cost of
obtaining the certificates often negated the potential profits of any sale. However, the
California assembly, with assistance from the California Association of Sanitation
Agencies (CASA) and the Bioenergy Association of California (BAC), is pursuing

17



legislation that would allow for renewable installations at wastewater facilities to be
eligible for Bucket 1 status as part of Assembly Bill 1144. This designation could
drastically improve renewable project economics. IEUA is in support of AB 1144 and
will track its progress closely.

18



Energy Data

NATURAL GAS

Figure 2 shows the Agency’s wide fluctuation in natural gas usage in recent years.
The changes are mainly due to the renewable self-generation technologies employed
at the biosolids handling facilities. Beginning in 2001, IEUA operated naturai-gas
fired engines which generated electricity during peak periods to assist the SCE grid.
A blend of natural gas and digester gas was also used in the cogeneration engines at
RP-1. However, the peaking engines were removed from service in 2008, and
SCAQMD Rule 1110.2 curbed natural gas usage in digester gas-fueled cogeneration
engines in the same year, resulting in a dramatic reduction in natural gas
consumption.

FIGURE 2. AGENCY-WIDE NATURAL GAS USAGE FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14

1,400,000
1,200,000
1,000,000
2
£ 300,000
E
W 00,000
w r
2
=2
¥ 400,000 —
L]
3 200,00
,000
a R
L. d
2 H u N
0
07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
FISCALYEAR

EIEUA Usage .:Fuel Cell Credit

19



Between FY 09/10 and FY 11/12,
the natural gas usage at the Agency
was limited to hot water boilers used
to meet the anaerobic digestion
thermal demand and a minimal
amount needed to maintain
temperature in the digester gas-
fueled cogeneration engines. The
usage increase since FY 12/13 is due
to the fuel cell installation, which is
operated on a blend of digester gas
and natural gas. Since the fuel cell
catalyst is highly sensitive to air
contaminants, the blend may vary
depending on the status of the gas
conditioning system. As such,
natural gas can account for anywhere from 25 to 100 percent of the total fuel cell gas
blend..

The fuel cell agreement structure contains provisions that outline IEUA’s natural gas
responsibility depending on the operating condition of the power plant. Under
normal conditions, the fuel cell is expected to operate on a blend of approximately
75 percent digester gas and 25 percent natural gas by flow. As such, IEUA is
responsible for the procurement of 25 percent of the natural gas utilized by the fuel
cell. Natural gas usage on site is heavily dependent on the operational status of the
fuel cell and digester gas conditioning systems. The figures included in this plan
distinguish the natural gas used at [EUA’s discretion and any supplemental natural
gas required by the PPA provider to maintain operation of the fuel cell while the gas
conditioning system is down (“Fuel Cell Credit”}).

A breakdown of natural gas usage by facility is shown on Figure 3. This data further
elucidates the point that natural gas usage at the Agency is driven by the
requirements of the technologies installed. Natural gas usage was effectively
terminated at RP-4 and CCWRF when the natural gas peaking engines were removed
from service in 2008. Since the fuel cell was installed at RP-1 in 2012, the facility has
accounted for approximately 87 percent of the Agency’s total natural gas
consumption.

20



FIGURE 3. NATURAL GAS USAGE FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14 BY FACILITY

800,000
700,000
& 600,000 H
= 5
E 500,000 - 2
w 400,000 - T :
S 300,000 - | i
] i j
& 200000 4 — ‘
2 |
£ 100000 —§ & it : :
2 FFEN BT R
r 0 - am W i \.u.] i l-l . .__i/._._ i
07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
mRP-1 509,800 | 54,200 17,500 | 25000 36400 | 398,281 | 340,581
4+ Fuel Cell Credit 0 0 0 0 337,819 | 730,919
id RP-4/IERCF 37,800 | 28,000 0 0 0 0 0
@ CCWRF 74,700 8,200 0 0 0 0 0
# RP-2 196,100 | 95100 | 74,900 59,100 67,800 | 63500 | 71,200
% RP-5/HQ 93,900 | 184,600 | 76,100 69,500 | 75200 | 75300 | 52,500

As aforementioned, one of the core goals of the Energy Management Plan is to reduce
energy costs as well as usage. Figure 4 shows the Agency’s overall costs for natural
gas consumption from FY 07/08 to FY 13/14 with the average rate, on a
basis, tracked alongside. The recent decline in natural gas pricing resulted in lower
natural gas costs for FY 13/14 when compared to FY 07 /08, despite the fact that gas
usage was approximately 31 percent higher in FY 13/14. Consequently, [EUA
routinely analyzes energy rate trends in addition to overall cost.

21

$/therm



FIGURE 4. AGENCY-WIDE NATURAL GAS COSTS FROM FY 07/08 TC 13/14

$1,000,000 $1.00
$900,000 $0.90
$B00,000 $0.80
$700,000 $070 =
[T}
g $600,000 so.soé
<
g $500,000 - $0.50 &
2
| L]
g $400,000 $0.40 3
$300,000 | - $0.30 E
| 2
$200,000 | : $0.20
$100,000 - . . ; $0.10
N b N

07/08  08/09  09/10  10/11 1112  12/13  13/14
FISCALYEAR

I Agency-Wide Natural Gas Costs  w.....Fuei CeliCredit e=pmmAverage Natural Gas Rate

While the decreased price of natural gas has contributed to lower rates in recent
years, IEUA has alse reduced costs by procuring natural gas through an Energy
Service Provider, rather than SCGC. The ESP offers both fixed and variable rates for
natural gas that are based on market trends. By utilizing these variable rate
structures through an ESP, IEUA has seen consistent cost savings when compared to
SCGC rates.

ELECTRICITY

The Agency’s efforts to optimize electricity consumption by increasing energy
efficiency and expanding its renewable portfolio are evident on Figure 5. The figure
shows the total electricity usage for the regional wastewater facilities, composting
facility, recycled water pumping stations, and groundwater recharge basins between
FY 07708 and FY 13/14, as well as the energy efficiency projects certified by SCE
over the same time period. Efficiency projects included damper installations at the
IERCF and VFD installations and chiller replacement at RP-1.

22



FIGURE 5. AGENCY-WIDE ELECTRICITY USAGE FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14

100,000
90,000
i
80,000 t I | '
p— . !
_ 70,000 A - . :
= — —
2 60,000
£
['7]
& 50,000
2
40,000
E
g
E 30,000 -
=
i 20,000
10,000 |
1] T 1 4
07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
FISCALYEAR

Wimported Electricity i Cogeneration  .iSolar wiWind il FueiCell .3Energy Efficiency

In FY 08/09, IEUA installed its solar generation systems and began implementing
energy efficiency projects, resulting in lower electricity usage when compared to FY
07/08. Electricity usage has climbed incrementally since FY 09/10. This can be
attributed to expansions of the Agency’s Recycled Water and Groundwater Recharge
programs, which require significant pumping demand to move water regionally.
Despite the increase in energy demand to the Agency, these practices play a vital role
in sustainable water management in the region and significantly reduce the global
energy consumed in importing water from the State Water Project (SWP). In FY
13/14 alone, the electricity used by IEUA to distribute 38,252 acre-feet (AF) of
recycled water to end users and groundwater recharge basins resulted in the
conservation of approximately 91,000 MWh that would have been required to pump
the equivalent amount of water from the SWP.2

The amount of renewable energy utilized by the Agency has fluctuated annually, with
electricity produced by cogeneration engines decreasing and low-emitting
renewables (solar, wind, and fuel cells) steadily increasing each year. Due to
increasingly stringent air quality regulations, the Agency has decreased reliance on
the cogeneration engines in favor of technologies with lower emissions. The fuel cell
installation at RP-1 resulted in a reduction of the facility’s criteria pollutant

2source: California’s Water-Energy Relationship, Final Staff Report. California Energy Commission, 2005.
23



emissions by approximately 90 percent while matching the nameplate generation
capacity, maintaining the ability to utilize digester gas, and recovering waste heat for
the anaerobic digestion process.

Figure 6 shows the annual electricity usage at each facility, including lift stations,
recycled water pumping stations, and groundwater recharge facilities. In 2011, IEUA
began to separately track electricity consumed by the recycled water pumps at each
RWRP. Prior to 2011, the lack of data availability prevented IEUA staff from
separating electricity usages from treatment and RW processes, so the RW pumping
power consumption is embedded in the totals for each plant. RP-1, RP-4, RP-5, and
CCWREF all employ RW pumping stations on site. For the purposes of this Energy
Management Plan, energy consumption in Fiscal Year 13/14 will be considered the
baseline value when calculating potential future energy savings.

FIGURE 6. ELECTRICITY USAGE FROM FY 07 /08 TG 13/14 BY FACILITY

35,000 1 - e e
i
30,000 -+
= !
g 25,000
B
< 20,000 -
=
& 15,000 -
o
E 10,000 -
u
bl
5,000 -
0 - E - 1
07/08 08/09 09/10 11/12 12/13
®WRP-1 30,990 26,392 27,372 26,702 22,811 25,333
WRPAJIERCF| 22,666 20,795 23,515 21,564 19,423 18,760
W CCWRF 7,782 8,046 7.314 6,789 6,340 5,738
WRP-2 2,198 | 1924 1,950 2,019 2,035 1,635
BRP-5/HQ 16,081 13,134 9,129 10,131 9,016 9,440
LIPS 616 748 1,483 1,438 1,445 1,496
5 RW 0 0 0 5,944 13,731 16,840
' 1l GWR 63 2 119 393 sa9 | 743 463

24



This figure illustrates the high energy intensity of RP-1 and RP-4/IERCF. In FY
2013/2014, these two sites combine to account for approximately 53 percent of the
total Agency energy demand. As such, IEUA’s Energy Management Plan has
particularly focused on these facilities when exploring potential efficiency projects.

Recycled water pumping also contributes significantly to the Agency’s electrical
demand. RW usage in the region has grown steadily in recent years, and is expected
to continue increasing moving forward. Due to the region’s reliance on the Agency's
RW distribution system, IEUA has begun to investigate projects that can optimize
electrical consumption in the energy intensive process.

In addition to total electricity usage, the Agency monitors the electrical demand of
each facility on an hourly basis. This information is required to assess the level of self
-generation needed to pursue grid independence during peak periods. The electrical
demand at IEUA’s facilities fluctuates throughout the day and also varies by plant. As
shown on Figure 7, the average hourly electrical demand across all IEUA facilities
varies seasonally as well.

FIGURE 7. FY 13/14 AVERAGE PEAK FACILITY ELECTRICAL LCAD

11,000
10,000 = ————
5,000 -
8,000 -
g 7,000 +— i =
‘g" 6,000 - i {
= 5000
2
B 4,000
3,000 ~-‘ ! =
2,000 + = = :
0 = . i S m— o - g el e L
Jul Mov | Dec | lan | Feb | Mar Jun | Ave.
ERP-1 2,954 (2,949 3,007 | 2,6462,651|2,85112,628|2,560; 2,443 2,634 | 2,698
WRP-2 173 | 153 | 153 | 161 | 146 | 155 | 152 | 147 | 152 186 | 158
HRP-4/IERCF| 2,364 12,235 (2,207 (2,061 | 2,148 | 2,163 | 2,320 {2,132 1 1,941 1,96212,121
WRP-5 1,050]1,127 (1,115]1,155{1,211{1,426! 1,116 1,101 | 980 979 71,101
M CCWRF 681 | 438 | 501 | 559 | 664 | 663 | 588 | 575 | 594 721 | 632
= Ps 213 | 213 | 222 | 212 | 202 ! 201 | 207 | 216 | 217 166 | 202
HRW 2,54812,633(2,959:2,5551,873:1,999|2,015;1,723 1,513 2,774 12,282

25



For reasons explained in the following section, the Agency does not intend to install
enough renewable energy technology to export electricity back to the grid. Instead,
the goal of IEUA’s Energy Management Plan is to procure sufficient renewable
technology to meet the average load identified through historical and projected
demand. Figure 8 compares the maximum hourly electrical generation by renewable
sources during each month of FY 2013/2014 to the average peak load for all Agency
facilities.

FIGURE 8. FY 13/14 MAXIMUM PEAK RENEWABLE GENERATION

11,000

10,000 -

go00 H I+ 4 [ e —+ F

sooo 4 H H H H H H H 1 = [

7,000 44 - 4 ] ] o] .. - o] ] - - —]

6,000 -H

5,000 -

4,000 -+

ELECTRICITY DEMAND {KWH)

i____
[—

3,000 |4

2,000 +

1,000 -

: . - l-—-_-lj_,_ bl =y =gl
Jul  Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

ElAverage Agency Peak Demand @ ICE Solar Wind i Fuel Cell

In FY 2013/2014, the Agency’s renewable portfolio was capable of providing
approximately 59 percent of the peak electrical demand for all facilities during
summer months, and approximately 62 percent over the course of the entire year.
Future energy efficiency projects and new technologies will be needed to grow the
renewable portfolio and progress toward sustainability.

Unlike natural gas procurement, IEUA’s electricity purchases are procured through a
mixture of Direct Access and bundled service through SCE. The advantages of

26



bundled service (paying the local utility for both transmission and generation
charges) through the 10U or DA (paying the local utility for transmission charges
and a competing ESP for generation charges) vary greatly depending on many
facility-specific factors.

Typically, ESPs offer cost savings opportunities with simplified rates that vary with
market trends and do not include expensive demand charges. SCE’s electricity
rates, although fixed, vary with time of use, and can include standby and departing
load charges that vary by facility and inflate (or in some cases, decrease) costs.
Due to the temporal and site-specific variability in energy rates, the Agency closely
evaluates the procurement options at each facility regularly. Figure 9 displays cost
data beginning in FY 07/08, including the overall average electricity rate, on a $/
kWh basis, that the Agency paid. This rate is inclusive of all renewable, IQU, and
ESP costs. Since there is no significant change over the years, the rate and usage
data track each other fairly closely.

FIGURE 9. AGENCY-WIDE ELECTRICITY COSTS FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14
$14,000,000 $0.14

s

$12,000,000 - @—-&\\ /”: — $0.12

$10,000,000

. W _ $0.10
$8,000,000 - _ - $0.08
56,000,000 I %006
$4,000,000 | | $0.04
$2,000,000 . $0.02

5_ } I o

07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
Fiscal Year

ELECTRICITY COSTS
ELECTRICITY RATE ($/KWH)

i

o Agency-Wide Electricity Costs ==z Average Electricity Rate

27



Figures 10 and 11 outline IEUA’s overall energy costs for FY 07/08 and FY 13/14
respectively. in both bases, electricity costs account for over 90 percent of the total
energy costs. Furthermore, current natural gas usage is almost exclusively tied to
fuel cell consumption, which is highly sensitive to operational adjustments.
Electricity usage, on the other hand, is widespread across all facilities and offers
more opportunities for optimization and efficiency increases. Therefore, much of
the focus of this Energy Management Plan and projects discussed herein will be on

reducing electricity consumption or increasing on-site electricity generation
through various means.

FIGURE 10.FY 07/08 AGENCY-WIDE ENERGY COSTS

TOTAL ENERGY COSTS = $10,248,000

28



FIGURE 11. AGENCY-WIDE ENERGY COSTS FORFY 13/14

ICE ELECTRICITY
(0&M)
1.7%

WIND
ELECTRICITY (PPA}
0.4%

FUEL CELL : :
NATURAL GAS ___——

IEUA NATURAL
GAS
24%  TOTALENERGY COSTS = $11,067,000

The financial impact of renewable installations is apparent when comparing the
two fiscal years. In FY 13/14, approximately 30 percent of all energy procurement
came from PPA sources (including natural gas paid for by PPA provider). Imported
electricity costs were reduced by approximately 10 percent, though the percentage
of bundled electricity purchased increased. The changes seen since FY 07/08 are
the result of several factors, including energy tariffs and procurement options. To
better understand the variance with each facility, the following section includes
details on each site.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Greenhouse Gases (GHGs) emitted in the state are regulated by the California Air
Resources Board (CARB). CARB has also developed the Climate Change Scoping
plan, most recently updated in March 2014, which targets industries and large
facilities with high global warming potential and mandates reduction measures to
in an effort to steadily decrease GHG emission levels, Wastewater treatment plants
and composting facilities are not subject to the reduction measures addressed in
the Scoping Plan. Furthermore, no IEUA facility emits GHGs at a level high enough
to reach the regulated threshold for GHG reporting.

29



Despite the lack of any GHG reporting requirements, in February 2014, IEUA
became a member of The Climate Registry (TCR), a nonprofit organization that
develops standards and protocols for GHG calculations and reporting. Membership
in TCR is voluntarily, and is a result of the Agency’s aim to practice environmental
stewardship as a regional leader. As a member of TCR, IEUA has committed to
publicly report annual GHG emissions. The first Agency-wide reported inventory,
spanning the 2013 calendar year, is shown in Table 3.

TABLE 3. 2013 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS BY SOURCE

SULTIRE (N?el:ficE Ei;:lggie] o
Heavy Duty vehicles 10 0.0
Fleet vehicles 297 09
Biosolids Hauling 124 0.4
Emergency Generators 99 03
LPG Combustion 33 01
Digester Gas Combustion 9,341 279
Natural Gas Combustion 6,735 20.1
Purchased Electricity 16,868 503
Total 33,506 100.0

The reported emissions use TCR protocols to calculate the metric tons of carbon
dioxide equivalents (CO-ze, a combination of COz, CH., and N0} emitted by [EUA
processes. Both direct (i.e., stack emissions) and indirect (i.e., emissions associated
with services procured by IEUA, such as purchased electricity) emissions were
included in the calculations. 2013 GHG emissions were reported through TCR but
not verified, IEUA has committed to pursuing verification for 2014 emissions.

In addition to annual reporting, IEUA aims to reduce these annual emissions
moving forward in order to align with state and federal GHG reduction goals. An
analysis of the reported data shows that an overwhelming majority of the Agency's
GHG emissions came from electricity purchases and stationary combustion.
Identifying the largest contributor to GHG emissions will also assist IEUA in
determining where reductions can be most effectively achieved. Figures 12 and 13
compare the percentage of GHG emissions and electricity usage, respectively, for
each facility.

30



FIGURE 12, 2013 GHG EMISSIONS BY FACILITY

2.3%
WRP-1 ™ RP-4/IERCF KLIRP-2 BRP-5/HQ BCCWRF LS  RW :IGWR

FIGURE 13. 2013 ELECTRICITY USAGE BY FACILITY

BRP-1 ®RP-4/IERCF = RP-2 MRP-5/HQ BMCCWRF = LS « RW  GWR

31



The contribution of gas combustion to GHG emissions is apparent when comparing
the figures above. Three IEUA facilities (RP-1, RP-2, and RP-5) consume digester
gas produced on-site. These facilities combine to account for approximately 66
percent of the Agency-wide GHG emissions. However, the same facilities accounted
for only 46 percent of the electricity usage during the same time period.

RP-4/IERCF and the RW program, on the other hand, used a combined 46 percent
of the Agency’s electricity consumption in 2013, but only produced 29 percent of
the GHG emissions. These data indicate that digester gas consumption is the major
contributing factor to [EUA’s carbon footprint.

The renewable installations and efficiency projects have had a significant impact
on IEUA's GHG emissions profile. Although the Agency only began reporting GHG
emissions in 2013, historical fuel usage and electricity purchase data can be used
to determine emissions in previous years under the same standards. Due to the
increase in on-site renewable generation and reduced cogeneration engine
operation, IEUA has reduced GHG emissions by approximately 36 percent since
2008. Neither the 2008 or 2013 emissions have been verified by a certified third

party.

TABLE 4. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS COMPARISON

2008 GHG Emissions 2013 GHG Emissions Percent
{Metric Tons CO:ze) (Metric Tens COze) Reduction
52,400 33,506 36.1

It should be noted that these emissions totals also include biogenic emissions, or
GHGs that were recently contained in living organisms and are therefore
considered carbon neutral. The Climate Registry requires these emissions to be
reported, though they are distinguished from anthropogenic source emissions. Of
the reported 2013 GHG emissions, approximately 28 percent are from biogenic
sources.

Overall, approximately 36 percent of the electricity consumed at IEUA facilities
during FY 2013/2014 was generated by carbon neutral sources (Figure 14). This
value only considers the digester gas usage in the RP-1 fuel cell. Natural gas
consumption in the equipment, though nearly devoid of criteria pollutant
emissions, does result in anthropogenic GHG emissions. The carbon neutrality
figure also accounts for the proportion of imported electricity that is obtained from
renewable or hydroelectric sources, which were obtained from the I0U or DA

32



provider directly. As previously stated in the Introduction, IEUA strives to increase
the carbon neutrality of electricity procurement to 100 percent by 2030. The long
term is needed to account for the significant planning and engineering efforts
involved in changing IEUA’s generation and procurement strategies to permit 100
percent neutrality.

IEUA has developed a preliminary Carbon Management Plan, included in Appendix
B, that identifies a proposed path to achieve 100 percent carbon neutrality. IEUA
will work with third party consultants to further develop the Carbon Management
Plan to include GHG reduction strategies and monitoring efforts.

FIGURE 14. CARBON NEUTRAL SOURCES OF FY 13/14 ELECTRICITY USAGE

@ Imported (Non-RPS) - Imported {RPS}  Solar ~ Wind #iBiogas (Fuel Cell and ICE} ® Fuei Cell {NG)

Evaluations for new projects will consider potential GHG reductions that benefit
the Agency’s carbon footprint. Due to the relative infancy of the reporting
protocols and emergence of new technologies, emission factors are not always
readily available through TCR. In these cases, IEUA must perform independent
research to estimate potential GHG emissions reductions.

Furthermore, IEUA has committed to assisting The Climate Registry to develop
Water-Energy GHG Reporting Protocols. With the advent of these protocols,
quantifying and verifying GHG emissions reductions can be standardized, an
essential component in establishing GHG credits and measuring reductions.

33



IEUA is also aware of the impact its facilities can have in reducing emissions of
methane, a short-lived climate pollutant (SLCP). In May 2015, CARB released a
concept paper documenting the importance of decreasing SLCP emissions and
potential measures that could achieve reductions. Wastewater treatment plants
have the potential to reduce methane emissions through effective resource
recovery. IEUA already utilizes anaerobic digestion and co-composting to minimize
methane emissions at its facilities. In addition, the RP-5 SHF diverts organic food
waste from landfills to further reduce methane emissions. This Energy
Management Plan will consider additional ways that IEUA’s facilities can minimize
fugitive methane emissions from equipment and potentially divert more organic
waste in a cost effective and reliable manner.

34



Facility Descriptions

REGIONAL PLANT NO. 1

RP-1 is IEUA’s largest treatment plant and is capable of treating an average of 44
MGD of wastewater flow. The facility employs primary, secondary, and tertiary
treatment to produce Title 22 compliant recycled water that is provided to end
users and groundwater recharge basins. RP-1 contains anaerobic digesters and
dewatering facilities that generate renewable digester gas from the sludge
removed during the liquids phase wastewater treatment process.

Gas Production

RP-1 has seven digesters operated in a three-phase thermophilic process. In FY
13/14, the digestion operation produced an average of 560 standard cubic feet per
minute (scfm) of digester gas, or approximately 800,200 scf per day.
Approximately 14 percent of total gas production was acid phase gas, which is the
product of the first phase of thermophilic digestion with a heat rating ranging from
200 to 300 Btu/scf. Due to its low quality, the acid phase gas is not consumed in
the boiler or fuel cell. Instead, the gas is continuously flared.

The heating value of the remaining 86 percent of digester gas typically measures
between 575 and 625 Btu/scf. The preferred destination for this gas is the 2.8 MW
fuel cell operated on site. Prior to introduction to the fuel cell, the gas is directed
through an extensive gas conditioning system that is designed to remove Volatile
Organic Compounds (VOC), sulfides, and siloxanes that may prove harmful to the
fuel cell catalyst. As part of the PPA, IEUA is required to deliver a minimum of
612,000 scf of digester gas per day to the fuel cell, averaged annually. This
requirement accounts for approximately 90 percent of the total consumable (high
Btu) gas produced at the facility daily.

RP-1's hot water boilers are the second option for the digester gas. The boilers are
required to produce heat for the digestion process, and are capable of operating on
either digester gas or natural gas, but not a blend. The boilers are operated on
digester gas when production is high enough to operate both the fuel cell and

35



boiler, or when the fuel cell is operating exclusively on natural gas. In instances
when the digester gas production exceeds both the fuel cell and boiler demands,
the excess gas is combusted in the flare. The frequency of flare operation heavily
depends on the status of the fuel cell's gas conditioning system. If the gas
conditioning system is inoperable, the boilers can combust up to 420,000 scf per
day, with the excess digester gas being flared.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February} months at RP-1 are shown on Figure 15.
Imported electricity, fuel cell generation, and solar generation are all included on
these two load profiles. The figure shows a slight reduction in overall load during
colder months, with peak consumption is approximately 4.2 MW in summer and
approximately 3.9 MW in the winter. In both cases, the peak electrical load occurs
around 13:00 in the afternoon. The generated solar electricity also varies between
seasons, as days are longer and sunnier in summer than winter.

The figure also shows that imported electricity consumption is fairly steady
throughout the day, with RP-1 purchasing approximately 1.4-1.7 MW throughout
the year, The amount of electricity imported was higher than expected, as the
generation capacities of the fuel cell and solar systems should have accounted for
more of the total facility load. In September 2013, a sulfides breakthrough in the
fuel cell’'s gas conditioning system diminished the catalyst performance and
constrained fuel cell operation to a reduced load. In FY 13/14, the fuel cell
generated, on average, approximately 420 kW less during winter months than
during summer months. However, since this limitation was operational in nature,
the power output of the fuel cell is not expected to vary seasonally in the future,

The data charted on Figure 15 includes electricity used by the recycled water
distribution pumps located on site. These pumping demands were removed in
previous sections to highlight the increasing power requirements that IEUA faces
in distributing recycled water. However, these recycled water distribution
pumping demands must be included when considering the overall facility load
because they impact the procurement and self-generation opportunities that IEUA
can pursue (as described below]).

36



0
00

00s
000'T
005'T
000'Z
008°Z

000 |
00S'E |
000
00sy -

iejog jo aBeliaayd (90 fend o afelaayd  pauodw jo oSelaav B

AL

& O S s S ¢
& q

L N AN 6N . . . . . . . . . :
S% $8 $F gV @ ¢ @ 6T @ T ¢ oT 0§ Y & $° ¢ ¢ $ ¢

- Ry
Qu.«o %...r

O
&
0

F1H404d AYOT HILNIM

- s PR o VR PR T T 3\ - R s JY Y
%‘@ %P %? %D %.m.. Qu.& Qu.r %.& %.nu oaz

SHLNOW YALNIM ANV YAWWNS ONRNA ATII0¥d AY0'T T-dd ADVIAAY ¥1/ET Ad ST TANDIL

T 1 TR R . . . . . . .
%.«c %ur av? %.0 Oo.o oom. Oo.r Oo,& 00.«9 00.4 oa.m. OO.A. 00.). oo.o

© 31140¥d QY01 YIWNNS

- 0

37



Electricity Procurement

RP-1 receives electricity from a mix of generation sources, which are listed in
Table 5. RP-1’s imported electricity purchases are obtained through Direct Access
at day-ahead market pricing. The cost of generation is paid to an ESP, which means
that RP-1 is not subject to high generation demand charges from SCE.
Transmission costs, paid to SCE for the imported power, are determined by the
applicable tariffs imposed by the 10U for large commercial customers with standby
service (TOU-8-B-Standby). The facility is assessed demand charges as part of the
transmission costs, although the demand is reduced by the nameplate rating of the
fuel cell each month. RP-1 is also subject to departing load charges as a result of
the on-site generation from the fuel ceil.

TABLE 5. FY 13/14 RP-1 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Generation Source Service Type Rate Type I;.:x:i:ﬁlt‘;i%:a;f
Imported (as needed) @ Direct Access Market-priced 45
Fuel Cell (2.8 MW) PPA Fixed w/ annual escalator 50
Solar (0.83 MW) PPA Fixed w/ annual escalator 5

In FY 13/14, on-site generation, consisting of the fuel cell and solar array,
accounted for 55 percent of the total facility load. This generation is lower than
expected due to the fuel cell’s extended operation at a reduced load. Table 6 shows
the anticipated electricity procurement scenario assuming full operation from the
fuel cell and 95 percent uptime.

TABLE 6. ANTICIPATED RP-1 PROCUREMENT WITH FULL FUEL CELL OPERATION

Percentage of
Generation Source Service Type Rate Type Facility Load
Imported (as needed) = Direct Access Market-priced 34
Fuel Cell (2.8 MW) PPA Fixed w/ annual escalator 61
Solar (0.83 MW) PPA Fixed w/ annual escalator 5

38



From data graphed on Figure 15, the average hourly winter load at RP-1 varies
from 3.1 - 3.8 MW, which means that RP-1's renewable installations are
periedically capable of producing more than 100 percent of the facility’s electrical
demand during peak generation periods. As such, RP-1 was required to secure an
export agreement with SCE to enable transmission of power back to the grid.

RP-1 was granted a multiple-tariff agreement that only compensates for power
export from the solar array. The export agreement was completed by utilizing
SCE’s Net Energy Metering (NEM) program. However, because SCE’s NEM program
limits inclusion of fuel cells to systems below 1 MW, Since RP-1 is a DA customer,
only the transmission portion of the power exported and attributed to the solar
array will be compensated by SCE. The entire generation portion will be sold by
the ESP at market price, effectively debiting the total electricity amount provided
by the ESP per the DA contract.

Demand Response

RP-1 participates in the Demand Response program through ENERNOC. During a
DR event, RP-1 staff is tasked with reducing the facility load by 50 kW through
reduced operation of the recycled water pumps. This drop in load represents
approximately four percent of the overall load reduction target of 1,230 kW that
IEUA has agreed to across all Agency facilities. In FY 13/14, RP-1 exceeded 100
percent of its target in all six DR events and averaged a load reduction of 470 kW
per event. The load reductions were achieved through limiting RP-1's recycled
water pumping. In FY 13/14, RP-1's recycled water distribution increased to
counteract the recycled water distribution that was lost due to a construction
project at CCWREF. As a result, RP-1 had more flexibility to curtail RW lead during
DR events.

IEUA’s DR contract with ENERNOC contains a provision that requires the delivered
load capacity to be at least 75 percent of the target reduction. If the delivered
capacity falls below 75 percent, IEUA does not receive any credit for reducing load
during the DR event. As a result, [EUA is hesitant to increase the curtailment target
until reliable load reduction measures can be identified.

Furthermore, the current DR program does not provide any incentive for
additional power that is exported to the grid during DR events. RP-1's potential to
export power is increased if load reductions are achieved during DR events.
However, since only a portion of the power exported is compensated by SCE,

39



generating more energy than needed to meet the facility load provides no cost
benefit to IEUA. If the DR program were to also incentivize power that is exported
above the facility’s baseline, IEUA could evaluate the potential for further reduc-
tions without fear of triggering cost prohibitive exports during DR events.

Energy forecast

[EUA’s Wastewater Facilities Master Plan (WFMP) was developed to strategically
prepare Agency facilities for forecasted flow demands. The WFMP is also used to
recommend engineering projects that will modernize facilities to more effectively
treat influent flows. The current WFMP forecasts flow projections and facility im-
provements through the year 2035. This EMP uses the same projections to fore-
cast energy demands over the next 20 years to meet the anticipated flow increases
and process changes. Figure 16 shows the forecasted demand for the summer and
winter months, respectively.

The figure incorporates the expected renewable generation from the solar arrays
and fuel cell with expected performance degradation and equipment (fuel cell cat-
alyst) replacement factored in. The demand growth is proportional to expected
flow increases of approximately 1 percent each year. The WFMP includes three
major projects to be implemented at RP-1 within the 20-year period. The first two
projects are modifications to the flow equalization process and installation of two
additional anaerobic digesters, which will command a small increase in electrical
demand. The third project involves the replacement of RP-1’s aeration system with
a membrane bioreactor (MBR) system and will result in a higher energy demand
estimated at 10 percent. TYCIP projects included for implementation at RP-1 also
considered in these projections.

The red shaded area in each figure represents the RP-1 demand exceeding the gen-
eration capabilities of RP-1's renewable portfolio. The red hatched area represents
the anticipated energy reductions to be achieved through efficiency projects that
are either under construction or included in the WFMP or TYCIP. The excess sum-
mer load ranges from approximately 500 kW in FY 15/16 to 1,400 kW in FY
33/34. The excess winter load fluctuates from approximately 200 kW in FY 15/16
to 1,100 kW in FY 33/34.

40



LU

005
000'T
00s'T
000'e
0052
000'E
005'€
ooo'y
005'%
0005

005s

008
0001
00S'T
000°Z
005°T
0OU'E
00%'¢
000y

005t

000's | : : 000'
AGNYIN3IA XV3ad YIWINNS

005's

i , e — 00Sy

IIFaendm  Jejos  suoponpay Afleulr  puewaq Aduaul @
YVY3IA YIS v

GO L o & @t Wb b e oL L R v & @ w N o~ M < :
N L R - R S B M M MR R L M L A AL L '

- 0085

000'T

- 00S'T
- 000"

2
~
{m31) ONYINTQ HIMOJ

_— _— = — = — . Doo's

p— 00s's

3 % % i 1 4 L L L & <, A <, & &
.ao.,e @o,a & \,.a,om o....,% I n% &.@. iy a.g% e._.,.a PONIPCT A L PV P VS oy aa,% o .,_%.a

LA—— L —— N

& = 5 — e e - —T1;

g
o~
(M) ANYIN3G ¥amod

005°s

J-_" ToTmwsTTTTT T oTTTT OTTTTOTT TTTTToO “'"-rle“"'-“' SeTSsSS,TOrTTTTrTTTT T TS

SHLNOW HHLNIM ANV YFWIWNS Y04 LSVOTHOd ANVINIA YAMOd YVHA-0Z T-dY "9T HdNDIA

41



for a public agency with limited capital, it is essential to pursue self-generation
projects that are cost effective. Renewable energy projects are typically cost
effective at higher capacities and when the energy generated is used on-site. RP-1's
renewable portfolio may be stagnant until the excess load during winter months
approaches 1 MW, which is expected to coincide with the MBR installation.
Alternatively, installing new distributed generation systems may make sense in the
near term if IEUA can secure an export agreement with SCE that is economically
favorable to power export from renewable sources. For these reasons, the focus on
energy management at RP-1 over the next 10 years will be placed on conservation
and efficiency projects.

RP-1’s digester gas production also plays a vital role in the energy potential of the
facility. In FY 13/14, the treatment plant produced an average of 560 scfm of
digester gas. However, low BTU acid gas accounted for approximately 80 scfm of
the production total. Figure 17 charts RP-1’s anticipated gas production with
expected flow increases, sludge thickening upgrades in the TYCIP, and two new
digesters coming online over the next 20 years.

FIGURE 17. RP-1 20-YEAR GAS PRODUCTION FORECAST
500 — 500

800 —— 800
o =DEMAND TQOPERATE FUEL CELL QNDBOILERS,.., oy o s

700 . 700

=
5 600 600
2
=
g 500 500
3 400 400
2
§ 300 300
(L)
lf_, 200 200
Q 100 100
a

0 g

A W2 we W P o ® oy b aP R a® n® ) P ad o b gl b ob

RGOSR W A S g APV L SR
FISCALYEAR

# Digester Gasto FuelCell  @Digester Gas Production  J Acld Gas Production (Corrected to 600 Btu/scf)

0

Currently, the acid gas is combusted in the flare and only digester gas produced in

42



the second of third phases of the thermophilic process are utilized in the fuel cell.
While there may be potential to use the acid gas phase in a future process, Figure
17 accounts for the difference in heat rating between the gases by converting the
amount of acid gas to an equivalent quantity of digester gas with a heat rating of
600 Btu/scf (the average heat rating of digester gas used in the fuel cell}.

The green shaded area represents the amount of digester gas that IEUA is
contractually obligated to provide for the fuel cell operator. The dashed line shows
the level of gas production needed to simultaneously operate the boiler and fuel
cell at full load. Since RP-1's boilers are not currently capable of operating on a
natural/digester gas blend, digester gas is only utilized in the boilers when the fuel
cell is operating solely on natural gas due to gas conditioning restrictions. As a
result, the facility is producing excess digester gas that cannot be used for energy
generation. This EMP will explore several projects that can take advantage of the
energy content in the digester gas.

Potential New Projects

RP-1's large electrical load and digester gas production offer a multitude of
opportunities for additional self-generation and efficiency projects. Table 7
outlines projects that are being considered for implementation at RP-1 and
discusses the feasibility of each. These projects may or may not align with the goals
introduced in Table 2. The objective of this section is to evaluate any concept that
could potentially result in energy conservation at IEUA facilities. Select projects in
the table were evaluated in separate fact sheets, which are included in Appendix C.

43



-ypne £313Ud JAIS

-uayazdwos e ydnoayl peAstyie aq p[nod juat
-$S3SSE Jo adA} STy, "9A1D9)J9 1803 IR SAINSEIWL
UOIEAISSUCI A813U3 J1 SUIKLIZIOP PUE JINJINIS
-BJJUT JUS.LIND 3L} SS9SSE 0] papasu aq p[nom
wi)sAs 1re passaldwod s A1) 3 Jo Jpne uy

-2 9.e S[0.NJU02 sty ey sadreyd NO.L YSIY

a3 01199{(NS 10U S] 3.10§2191} pue y( y3no.yl
L1008 stodwr - JY 92UIs ‘9ANI0aY9 150D pald
-p1suo2 A[jua.LInd jou st spolrad yead-uou 03 uon
-erado JYAH W] 03 sjonuc) ‘pasejdal aq ued
juawdimba Jo sasard yorym Anuap] o1 Lemaspun
ST SHUN DVAH Sunsixa s, T-d} JO JUSWISSIsse uy

SSHUSATIODYYS
1500 pue s8uraes [enjuajod a3 ssasse 0) paimnbaa
aq [[Im armpnseui Sunydi] Junsxs jo Jipne
sAIsuayaIduIod Y "9A139))9 1502 3q 07 A[8YI] 8
saniunioddo uonealasuos AS13us jeiy) sueawl
T-dYy e sways£s SunySi| jo awmnjoa ysuy sy
"231A

-19s 51U} 10J pAJIapIsuod AJ1[10e) 181y 3y 2q Ay
pImom [-dy ‘suonen[eaa jo sedA) asat] 3Im S3p
-uale o1jqnd 3s1ssE 03 poUBISApP 9I[ALIS JIpNe 1500
-0U € SI3JJO YI0MIDN A3aauy ay], "AN[Ioe] Yoed Jo
SUOTIEN[eAd SAISUSYS.1AIN0D 0] PAIIIUNLIOD J13ASU
sey Inq ‘supne jsed woy s)yauaq udas sey yNH|

Ayniqeseay

"Swa)sAs Ire passaid

-wo2 s L[10.) 3ty SUIZISUMOD UIAS J0 SulZ]
-[e1ua2 YSnoly passlyde aq p[noa sduises 43
-19u2 1eYy) a[qrssod s13] “A1[1o€] ay1 InoyFnoiy
Pa1ed0[ SWa)sAS Ie passatduwiod aidnnw
sureIod AIIoe) a1 4nsaJ e sy e passaid
-wod almbax sassanold yusunear) ayg Jo Auey

'sporiad yead-uou 03 uorjesado JyYAH

W] Jey] S[OU0D PIM PIjIINo Jo S[opowt
UsYJe 210wl 0] papelddn aq ued syun IS}
Jo Auepy "[0.13U0D SIBWID 10§ SJIUN JYAH Isn
1ey3 s8ujping Auew sasnoy Aef T-4d Y.L

*AIUDIDIJJa asead

-ul 03 S[OLJUOC) YIIM P3N0 10 sqHT adesn
-MO][ Y3m padepdal aq ued Jey) swalsAs 3uj
-3y81[ I00pINO pUE JOOPUI DAISUSIXS Se [-dY

"S91)
-ualoyje [euonerado JaysIy ur jnsal ued yey)
suonesyIpou ssadoxd os[e Ing ‘S}yo.nal juaw
-dinba wo.Jy sSuaes [enjuajod ajenjeas A[uo
10U Ye1} syipne £319u9 sAISuUaYs1dwoD 19Npuod
ued saruedurod adialas £31aua Ared paryl

uonduasag

SLOAIOUd ADMANE T-dd TVILNILOd "2 314V

uoneziuundp
a1y passaxdwio))

sapeaddp) pue
s[onue) aVvAH

sapeadd)
Sunydry

Jpny A315ug

oteN

Louapyd
[euoneladQ

Aduapdyyy
[euonexadg

Aousyrg
[euoneladQ

Aouaroyg
[euoneradp

ad4j,

Pafoad

44



"a]Qe[IBAE S3WI023q EIRD ISYlin] Se pala
-pIsu0 aq [Ism 103(0ad SIY) 08 ‘SanIIDE] JUIU EAL}
Ja130 18 pajuswa[durl Apuadas sem AScjouyrs)
QATJBAOUUL Y[, "SYdd Sunsixa 03 requuais drystau
-1red syealtd-o1qnd e se pansind ssajun ‘qejides
uepyudis sambaa pmom afoad yyoanox suyf,

*911s uo sar8ojou

-1[23] a[qemaual Iayliny 10j Sjunyioddo ue uado
01 10 S.I9[10q a1} Ul Sed [ed1EU SjRUTUII[a 0] pasn
aq p[no> uononpo.d ses pasealdu] ‘sa2Inos 1930
Jo s1ueJd wo.q uonezipisqns aambai £[jenuajod
p[nosm pue ‘Buryellapun aAlSuadxa ue ag pnom |
-dY 1e 51915831p J1qodseuR UaAds Ay} Sumyonay

*$11J0.1194 UOTJBI3E J0) MO][e 01 A[Sulpioise
sanpayas uonelado ysnlpe pue quawrdinba mau
91y1 JO SSoULANIBYJa 1502 AJnuapl ‘suondo Jusw
-ace[dal [enuajod ajenfeas 0} pasu pnom yNil

“Aunqises)
auruLIajap o} spedun feuonelado pue s8uraes
[enuajod ajenfeas [[1m Y] ‘s1s00 [eyded pue

Suruuerd yueogiudis axmbaa ppnom sanseaw sy,

Amqisesy

sutidiooj Jaysadip a3 Suiseatour no

-pw fypedes uonsagip oy aseatoul o) paudis
-ap aue jey sassao0ad Sutusydiyy pue Surxiw
adpnys Arejaradoad yym s1a)sadip Sunsixa
Sumyomnsi uo sasnaoj A3ojouroa Sudiewy

poAsIydR aq ued uociphpolid sed paseald

-u1 1o/ pue s3uiaes £8.15U9 J1 aUIULIDIAP 0}
paien[eas &q ued saigajens suxiul.lo sarde[ou
-[23) sAneuwIy "sedolq aonpoud 03 51315281
3y Jo aseq Iy 1k pasnpo.jur Suixiu sed az|
-On A[Jua.LIma T-Jy 1€ s191sa31p diqolaeue ay ],

"fousidyta Jajsuen) uad

-£%0 I3YS1Y YIMm SISSNIJIP I0 SI9MO[( £IUDID
-1jo I8YS1Y 0] Wd1SAS uoneiae Sunsixa ayy Sui
-peiddn £q pass1yde aq p[no? UoKeAlasuod £3
-13Uq ‘MO[j JIe Shonuuoed JUBdYusIs salmbax
11 se 'ssaooad aalsusjur AB.19uU3 UE ST UCNHEIAY

“Buipmq

auo 03UL S30YJO JJeIs [[e Sulsuapuod Aq adesn
A101.003[8 [[e1340 anpal A[[enuatod pnos £
-[10¥] ay ], *swalsAs JyAH pue Sunysij syeredas
duirmbaa yoes ‘sguip(ing odpnwr  saimb

=21 Porym ‘Aradoad Lrfoe] ayj ssotde patay
-}e2S aIB Jjels SdUBuS ulet pue suonesadg

uondLosag

1gonsy
Insadig

uoneziundg
Suxiy 1338981

sopeiddn
uIseg uoyeIay

sguip[ing
suonetadg
asuapuo?)

aweN

$30JN0SIY
a[qemausy

Sa0Inosay
a[qemauady

Louatoyyq
[eucneIadp

Lualiyg
[eucneiadg

adA],

3loag

45



‘8uipunj jueud pazipisqns Io/pue ucnanp

-04d sed 1015981p U1 9588.10UI U 1PLM 20NINJ 3}
Ul a[qeLA awodaq Lewt 10aload S "[[oMm Se HND
03 sed aseyd poe a1y SUnILAU0D JO L1fIqeLA 94
Sunenjeaa STy 192 [9NJ Y3 Ul passasoad st
T-d¥ 1e paonpoad sefoiq a1 jo L11ofew y3ny e se
‘a[qIsea) J0u AQuUaLind s1333(oad S| Jo a[eas sy,

‘uonels Surapdal [enualod e pue ‘suoner)
-U30u02 ‘soneded ‘s331nos JUInNPUI AJIIUSIPI 0]
paimbal aq pom Ucnen[eas Iayln, “uonsasp
-02 [)1m s3[nsad aanised umoys aaey sar}

-[[i9€} JUAUNEAL] JAJEMIISEM JOI0 Aq pala[dwod
s10afoad Juaday "uone)s Suipaaj pue Juiaaial
a15em pocj payewolne sjeLidoadde ue Jo yoe[ ayp
03 anp sadusey? eucnesado palagunosua pue
ased a3 ul spoafoad s1sem pooy patojdxe sey yd]
51502 uorssardurod

se3 [enuajod spnaul 01 paau OS[e [[im Pa1oNpPUod
Apmys Ai[qIsea) Auy *[[92 [y 3y Je painbad
suonesynads ay) 399w pinod sed papusaiq aiyl

J1 suuLIa1ap 01 £1enb sed sy Jo uonen[eas ue
almbau pjnom Surpuaq sed py "‘uonanpoid sed
paseaJour uo snaoj e} sypafold 194310 YIm [9]
-[exed u1 pa1apIsuod aq 03 pasu Lewn wafoad sy
‘Paziian aq pnom sed palols [BUODIPPE 9yl Moy
SUTULIDIDP 03 PAIINPUCD 2 C) pasu plnom ucly
-ENeAd SULI0OULSUS UR ‘I9AOMOY “I-JY Je Sed 1
-18381p e[qemaual ayy SulZIn uf AIIqIXs]] [eucn
-eJado Ja1ea13 aplactd pinom syue) adea0)s sen

Anqiseaq

"3SN [elDIIWWOD

10j nND aplaoad pue sAemydny Jo{ew

[BI2A3S 18U UOTIBIO] §,[-d¥ JO a8ejueape

9)E] pInod uone[elsut HN3 V "OND uo

ajexado o3 sa[21YaaA 193} ay3 Jo Jgonial axmbaa
pmom afoud e yong 'sa[o1ya4 198y S Aouady
a1} Ul pasn aq 03 NN 0} seforq ayl Bur
-112AUQD PaI9PISU0D SBY JJEls Y] 1[92 [ony 1o
Ja[10q 23 ur sed Ja3sa8[p Buisn 03 uonIppe uf

‘[P Se s133s981p d1qosruR 3y} 0qul (HOJ) 59
-SBaIn) pue ‘s[IQ ‘syeq 10 91Sem pooj Jo uononp
-0J3U1 313 UM pasealaul aq pnos uononpod

sen 'ssadoad uensafip su Ui Iajemalsem pa
-yean wiodj s3pn[s s1dazde Lfuo Apua.Lmd -4y

'sed

-01q JO 95N [B[oYSU(q 3] ISEIIUI 0] JOpIO U]
sed poe a3 jo Surpuajq apnjoul os[e p[no> 303(
-0ad s1y ], ‘yuswdinba L1yoe] Ul 38ESN 1oj 34N}
-Jnajseljul alow aimbal pnom ing ‘Koedes
a8e101s Jajea13 splacid pinod syue} suanssard
Y81y 'saaInosal ajqemausd s A[1Ie] o) 9Z]]
-[1n J3712q pue 38e103s 9A1I3YJ9 1502 aplaoad
pMmoo syuel a3elols sed aanssald mof Jo uon
-e[[BISU] "3JB} 93 UL PAISNIIod S1 [[30 [91] 3y}
ur passacoad 1o s19fIoq ayj Ul paisnquiod Jou
st je] sed Luy "a)1s uo sed 1315381p 31035 03
AI[Iqe ay) sAeY 10U Saop AQJua.LInd HI[Dej a1 ],

nondLdsaq

uoneresuy

(HND)
ser [eInjeN
passaxduo)

108foig
uonsadig-o)

afe101g
SeY [eisu]

aureN

$92IN053Yy
a[qemaudy

§22IN0SaY
A[qEMauY

S22IN0STY
a|qemausy

adAL
13foug

46



“J1jauaq 1509 aY) aonpad pue sadieys peol Sun.ted
-3p aseadoul p[nod ANjoe) sy Jo fidedes Sune
-1aual Jejos ayy Suiseadoul ‘uone[[elsul Je[os ayj}
Aq 19spj0 aq Aew $3502 YSnoyi[y Tejrden juednjiu
-31s axmbau [[1m urseq uonezifenba ay SulirA0)

'san

-1[oe] Aouady ssodoe 10 331 ayy Je yafead A81sua
alqemaua. 1a81e] e Jo Jusuodwiod € se aq pnom
uonejuswaldui 10aload 10} 8Inea Jfqela jsow
8L, "9A0DYJD 1500 10U S1 dUO[e uone)s Surdaeyd
a1 se ‘Buipuny juersd axmbal pnom 1afoad sy,

"9kl MO] B 1k 110dxa Jamod ul ynsal

Aew uoneIausd mau Lue Jey) 19pISu0d pnoys
Apms A)qiqisea) y "ABo[ouyos] 9 JO SSSUANII]
-J9 1502 31} ISEIIIIP P[NOM YIIYM ‘sadield peo|
Sunuedap 03 308(qns s1L)1[0E) 913 ‘A[[RUCIHPPY
‘JuaIaaIge JULIND 5, T-dY Jo Axadwod 3 Sur
~13pISu0d dwip e} P[Nod YIIYM ‘TS HHLM Jusw
-9s13e JuLialoul 13U pafjIpowl & axmbal pnom
A1119e] 9Y3 18 UoneIauas AB[0S UI ASEAIIU] AUY

‘uaaoad st A8cjouyos)

ay3 [nun a[qIseajut Ajay1] st afoad snp ‘Suipuny
jueld y3noaip pazipisqns AJiaeay s1 12aload e yons
ssaun Ayqer2a Sunesipul elep ap| St a3y}
‘padosasp uaaq asey saiSofouydal Yy S[IYM

Anpqisead

*aMS-u0 £DLIIALR elouad

03 19402 33 doje paxiyje Lelie 1e[os e Ijim UIS
-B( 913 19A0 JIACD E [[€ISUI pnom 3da3foad sy,
*S10PO 9)e31d Ued UYaIym ‘ssadoad jusunesn
2y} Suninp juanyye Arewtid a103s ALreiod
-u13} 0} uopezifenba mop sasn Apuaiind 1-4y

"SO[01YaA 193]
Louady pue orqnd £q pasn aq pined uonRIS
AL, "SUOHIR][BISUL I[qEMIUL.I 3)IS-UO 1) A
patamod uoness Suidieyds (AH) aIyaA DLV

. ue ajeJado pue [[e3sui 03 sAemyany Jolew Jeau
_UCLIEDO] [EIJUSD S)1 Jo a8ejueApe axe) ued [-Jy

‘puE|

d|qe[leAe Uo J1e[os a1owl [[elsul 0} [enuajod
213 91en[BAd UEd AJ[IDE] Y], "93IS UO pa[[elsul
sjoued Ie[os Jo MW £8°0 SeY APUaLIind T-4y

7eay pue L101309[0 Sudnpoid sjiym sesd

-01q A11[enb mef aZi[nn A[9A23]J2 150D UED Jel]}
$oUIqan) ses pue SISZIPIXOo [ewiay) sadexped
Aorouyoey mBrews uy "1amod a[jqemau

-ad Supnpoad w1 ssnnotyip syuasaid sed 19
-1sa31p aseyd pioe sy} Jo JUUOD JedY MO[ oYL

uondrLsaqg

AeLiy Jejog
pue 1aA07) Ulseq
uonezienby

uonejs
dumdreyy

3[IYaA DLNDB[T

uoneqeIsu]
Jejog puedxy

mﬁ_n—h—.—.ﬁ
sen aseyqd pPy

aureN

$32.1n0s3y
a[qemauay

$32Jnosay
a|gemauay

$92IN0S9Y
ajqemauay

$20IN0say
ajqemaudy

ad4L
13ford

47



"UOHEZIPISANS INCYNM J[qela paford s

ayew 03 ySnoua jou ST 1Jauaq 302 3y} 1oWo]
-ST) (I & se sadreyo asayy 01 30a{qns jou st T-d9
A2UIS ‘Ianamoy sefaeya puewap noL Suploae
£q 53500 £101.1103[3 U0 aAes 0] [enuajod sy

sey ‘sporiad yead-pgo Surmp Ayainoae SuLtols
USnoay) paAale ‘Suryiys peo Iawolsnd yq

© SE Sne1s s Q1[0e] a1 01 anp [-4H I8 8AT0a)d
1502 jou s1 A8ofou1da) afero1s AB19us JuaLIng

"[BIIUIOU0ID PAIIPISUOD aq 0] Y31y
©0) aq Aeul §3502 UONONLSU0D Y3noy) ‘Surdwnd
¥ead-jjo Jo paonpal YHm Uaas a p[nod sgurAes

AZ10wy “sxmpnuseyuy urdid s ANj1oey ayf) 03
sadue> Jueaiudis aambaa pnom joafoad sy g,

‘uonen[eAd

sIy1 uo santed ydd o1 UILM {I0M 03 SNUIU0D
MM vA[ £ouady a1 10] 2A1108)§8 3500 St 1B([ 8N
-[eA e e sAelIE 31} [[8S 03 SUI[[IM 9q ISNUW .IDUMO
83U} ‘I0ASMOH “1aUMmo 132[01d JUaLIND SYI 1M
aseround enualod sy 1noqe paxnbur sey v H:

Annqiseay

‘paamba. ag 2sIMISTHO pNOM
110dxa uUaya 3)1S U0 asn I91e[ JOJ PaIols
pue sporiad yead SuLnp pazIuIiuIu a1e

saseyaand ANOL1I32 1By} 2InSua p[hod ade
-10}S "Juswafeuew peo| Yim isisse 0] A3ojou
-1]23] a9e103s A3I3Ud JO UCNE[[BISUI B} WO.Y
auaq Aew T-JY ‘vonelauad ajqemoual yead
jo spontad Surinp Wodxa Joj fenjuajod ayj pue
Aep a1y oyFnoy) peoj Ul UCHIELIEA 3L UM

L311qrxafy Jeuonierado Sulurejuret afiym
SIOpO 20Npal ABUI Jusnjje pajean Alep.s)

J0 A1epucdas 2103s 0} suiseq s} SuIAIpoy
*SI0pO 3JBAII UBD YIIYM ‘ssado.ad Jusunear)
a3} Surnp juanyys Areurnid auojs Ajuerod
-uI3) 0] uonezijenba maopj sasn ApuaLInd -4y

‘uone

-19Ua8 Je[os uI0.1) 51500 )DL aININ] 91EU
-TWI[? 0} IN[eA J33jIen Jiej 1e sjpued ay Sur
-segpand Suliapisuos s yNAl 'Vdd & ysnoayy
VNI 01 p[os £3Ua.LImD si a31s uo s[aued Iejos
JO MIN £8'0 913 woJj pajelsussd Jomod ay[,

uondusag

Suone[eIsi]
adeamg Ad1suyg

uiseq
uonezirenbg
RETN1 ()

suonefesu]
Iefog Sunsixy
aseydIng

aumeN

Juswageuey
A31auq

juswadeuepy
Arauqg

Jusmadeurpy
FRE i

adAp,
13foig

48



‘aampnasesyul 3unsixa s Auady a3 uo edur
s Josfoad 3y sunuLIalap 03 JuswaaISe [epusled
alf} 21eN(eA3 [[IM VA ‘sAndeINe ale sTUlAeS
3500 pue A[[IqIX3]} peo[ JO JYauaq pue $31s0d
renidea jo ¥oe| ay g, 'sanijwe] £ouady e sixeload
ade.l01g A319uq asuodsay puewa(q doaaap

0] A)red panys e £q paypeotdde usaq sey v Al

Aymqiseaq

‘faed

PaIY3 941 Aq Pa.IsA0D 9 p[NOMm SUOTIE[[RISUI
ade10)s a1 J0J saumipuadxe reyden "sown
Jao e Suraeys yead 10y 3118 350y a1 £q
pue ‘ewn ayj jo uontod e uonduwnsuco yead
Jo spouad urinp asuodssl puewap 10J SN0]
£q pasn aq pmod 18y} $a)1s 3soy je agei0ys
Aramyeq Suijjeysur Lyured paiy) e sA[oAUl pinom
1aload sy Juswdofaasp Jo sadels [enul

ur Afua.LIng st iey) Yoeosdde aanesouu ue
51 [00] asuodsa.l puewsp e se 38e10)s L81ouy

uondrsag

uone[[eIsu]

a8ea0)g A318u7
asuodsay
puewaq

SWEN

Juswadeuely
Adraug

adAg,
13foag

49



Project Forecasts

RP-1's procurement strategy, current demand, and limited capital eliminate many
of these projects in the near term. Projects focusing on increasing operational
efficiencies are more favorable to current conditions, assuming cost effective
measures are identified. Table 7 includes broad areas of operation where energy
reductions could be realized, but further work will need to be conducted to isolate
and quantify savings from specific conservation measures. Tracking electrical
demand with the facility’s sub-meters will assist Agency staff IEUA in this
endeavor. IEUA will work with a third party energy consultant within the next year
to conduct a comprehensive energy audit of the RP-1 facility to develop a list of
energy efficiency projects.

Despite the fact that RP-1 imported approximately 45 percent of the total
electricity usage in FY 13/14, the potential to export power during periods of peak
generation impacts the facility’s ability to install new renewable generation
projects. A revision of IEUA’s net energy metering agreement with SCE would be
required. Previous agreement revisions have proven to be costly and time
consuming for Agency staff. Furthermore, any renewable technology utilizing
digester gas would require an increase in gas production, as over 9¢ percent of RP-
1's gas production is reserved for use in the fuel cell. The acid phase digester gas
presents an opportunity for renewable technology on-site, but no reliable, cost
effective solution has yet been found to properly utilize this gas.

Cost savings opportunities and operational flexibility could be achieved through
gas storage projects. IEUA will conduct further evaluations to determine the
potential savings opportunities from storing the gas, which will impact project
viability. Energy storage projects that require IEUA to purchase battery storage are
currently not cost effective because the facility purchases electricity through Direct
Access. IEUA will continue to monitor energy storage technologies and pursue
grant funding opportunities though, as the technology does present the benefit of
operational flexibility and improved demand side management.

RP-1 contains a significant portion of the Agency’s renewable portfolio that
contributes toward the goal of peak power independence by 2020. Further
evaluations will need to be conducted to determine the viability of expanding the
facility’s portfolio through increased digester gas production. In the short term,
IEUA will commit to an energy audit to identify efficiency projects that can reduce
the facility load and optimize the treatment processes.

50



REGIONAL PLANT NO. 4 AND INLAND EMPIRE
REGIONAL COMPOSTING FACILITY

RP-4 and the [ERCF are located adjacent to one another on 6% Street in Rancho
Cucamonga. RP-4 is designed to treat an average of 14 MGD of wastewater flow.
The treatment plant employs primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment to
produce Title 22 compliant recycled water that is provided for direct use and
groundwater recharge basins. Biosolids removed from the RP-4 treatment process
are conveyed by gravity through the regional sewer system as influent to RP-1.

The IERCF is capable of recycling approximately 210,000 wet tons of biosolids and
amendment per year into high quality compost. Although RP-4 and the IERCF
operate independently of one another, the two facilities share the same electricity
utility meter. For this reason, the EMP considers RP-4 and the [ERCF together.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February) months at RP-4 and the IERCF are shown on
Figure 18. Imported electricity, wind turbine generation, and solar generation are
all included in the load profiles. The figure shows a slight reduction in overall locad
during colder months, with peak consumption at approximately 3.7 MW in
summer and approximately 3.3 MW in the winter. In both seasons, the peak
electrical load is generally stable between 8:00 and 15:00. The generated solar
electricity also varies between the two seasons, as generation increases in summer
months having more sunlight hours each day. During winter months in FY 13/14,
the wind turbine produced more consistently. However, the maximum power
generated occurred during summer months from the late afternoon to early
evening.

51



009
000'T
005'T

0002

005T -

000°E
005'€

000"t

00s
000'T
005°T
000'Z
0057
O00'E
005‘e

000'f -

puian Jo afeleny 3 Iejos Jo aBeseayd  payodwi jo afesany

. mu.f_ . 3.{ - m‘.(

T T . ) & X T R N S P SO S T S
&V T GV 5T 5 o ot %ma %.oa P %,ea oo.»a &S §° o ¥ & oam & & S S
. ; " - - 0

8
e’

0007

0057

g

7

g

8

J1i40Hd AvOT HiLNIM

g

S g %.oe & & S § g GV aava SV T 0§ F §° & & & & O

== . 0
005
000'T
005’1
000'T
T 005

.- DOO'E

1
i

- D0S'E
- 000

= !
F1H0Ud AVOT HIWWNS |

SHLNOW YALNIM ANV YAWWNS SNIINA AY0'T AD4HI/V-dd IHVHHAY $T/E1 Ad 81 UNI1A

(WOI) 39WsN ALDIYLZT]

JOVSN ALDILIIT

(ol

52



The figure also shows that imported electricity demand peaks between the hours
of 7:00 15:00. This coincides with typical operations at the IERCF. Large fans are
used to continuously exhaust the fully enclosed composting process. These fans
operate at a higher flow rate during the day to achieve more frequent air
exchanges for staff working within the enclosed facility. As a result, the facility
experiences peak demand during the middle of the day.

The RP-4/1ERCF load charts include electricity used by the recycled water pumps
at RP-4. These pumping demands were not included in previous sections to
illustrate IEUA’s increasing power requirements in distributing recycled water.
However, these demands must be included when considering the overall facility
load because they influence the power procurement and self-generation
opportunities that IEUA can pursue.

The existing single electricity meter for RP-4/IERCF requires that the two facilities
be considered as a single power entity. However, load management of RP-4/IERCF
varies due to operational differences and can be improved by using the sub-
metering equipment installed in 2014. Future versions of the EMP will use the sub-
meter data to analyze the demand at each facility independently and focus on
specific site opportunities.

Electricity Procurement

RP-4/1ERCF receives electricity from a mix of generation sources, as summarized
in Table 8. Until April 2014, RP-4/IERCF received imported electricity through
Direct Access at day-ahead market pricing. These facilities were required to
withdraw from the Direct Access program as a result of the interconnection
agreement for RP-5 that was obtained through the Renewable Energy Self-
Generation Bill Credit Transfer (RES-BCT) program. As part of that agreement,
exported power is compensated with bill credits on other utility accounts owned
by the generating Agency. In order to qualify, IEUA had to identify non-RP-5
bundled accounts with sufficient load to credit the full RP-5 generation capacity.
RP-4/IERCF was selected as a credit account and removed from the DA program.

Switching to bundled service has resulted in high generation demand charges from
SCE during peak periods. Transmission costs, paid to SCE for the imported power,
are determined by the applicable tariffs imposed by the IOU for large commercial
customers with standby service (TOU-8-B-Standby). The facility is assessed
demand charges as part of the transmission costs, although the demand is reduced

53



by the nameplate rating of the wind turbine each month. RP-4/IERCF is also

subject to departing load charges as a result of the on-site generation from the
wind turbine.

TABLE 8. FY 13/14 RP-4/IERCF ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Percentage of

Generation Source @ Service Type Rate Type Facility Load
Imported Bundled TOU-8-B Standby g0
Solar (1 MW) PPA Fixed with annual escalator 8
Wind (1 MW) PPA Fixed with annual escalator 2

In FY 13/14, on-site generation, consisting of the wind turbine at RP-4 and solar
array at the IERCF, accounted for 10 percent of the total load of these facilities. As
shown on Figure 18, the minimum load at RP-4/IERCF was approximately 2.1 MW.
Even assuming peak generation, the wind turbine and solar array are not capable
of matching the minimum RP-4/IERCF load. As such, RP-4/IERCF is not required to
have an export agreement with SCE.

Demand Response

RP-4/IERCF participates in the DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event,
RP-4 staff reduces operation of the recycled water pumps and IERCF staff reduces
fan operation. These practices aim to achieve reductions of 830 kW, which
represents 67 percent of the overall Agency DR target. Additional reliable load
reductions at RP-4 have been difficult to identify. IEUA’'s DR contract with
EnerNOC contains a provision that requires the delivered load capacity to be at
least 75 percent of the target reduction. If the delivered capacity falls below 75
percent, IEUA does not receive any credit for reducing load during the DR event. In
FY 13/14, RP-4/IERCF reached 100 percent of their target in only one of six DR
events. On average, RP-4/IERCF achieved 85 percent of its reduction goal, which is
enough to achieve the minimum delivered capacity, but too low to commit to any
additional reductions in the near future.

54



Energy forecast

Figure 19 shows 20 years of forecasted demands at RP-4/1ERCF for the summer
and winter months, based on the WFMP projections. The figure includes the
expected renewable generation from the solar arrays and wind turbine with
expected performance degradation factored in. The demand growth is
proportional to an expected flow increase of approximately 2 percent each year at
RP-4 and an expected 0.5 percent increase in energy demand each year at the
IERCF. TYCIP and WFMP projects expected to affect the power demand were
included in the forecast. However, the only significant project demand involves the
replacement of RP-4’s aeration system with a membrane bioreactor (MBR) system.
This installation will result in a higher energy demand estimated at 10 percent.

The red shaded area in the two graphs represents the facility demand exceeding
the generation capabilities of the solar and wind turbine installations. The red
hatched area represents the anticipated energy reductions to be achieved through
efficiency projects that are either under construction or included in the WFMP or
TYCIP. The excess summer load ranges from approximately 1,500 kW in FY 14/15
to 3,700 kW in FY 33/34. The excess winter load fluctuates from approximately
1,400 kW in FY 14/15 to 3,600 kW in FY 33/34. Figure 19 shows that the peak
demand at RP-4/IERCF does not have much seasonal difference.

55



SHLNOW YALNIM NV YIFWIWS HO:L LSYITHOA ANVINFAC HHMO| YVEA-0Z D9E1/Y-dd "61 TUNDIA

56



Despite the rated capacity of the solar and wind turbine installations, data have
shown that RP-4/IERCF relies heavily on imported electricity during peak periods.
This reliance is expected to increase steadily over the next 20 years. The amount of
imported power indicates that the facility is capable of increasing the amount of
renewable generation on site. Depending on the size and timing of any new
renewable technology installed, it is possible that SCE would require an export
agreement to be established. If the rated capacity of new distributed generation
installations, when combined with the 2 MW generation capacity of the existing
solar and wind installations, is more than or equal to the minimum demand of the
facility at the time of installation, then IEUA will need to secure an export
agreement with SCE.

Potential New Projects

The large electrical load and bundled service at RP-4/IERCF offer an array of
opportunities for further self-generation, energy management, and efficiency
projects. Table S outlines projects that have been considered for implementation
at RP-4 and [ERCF and discusses the feasibility of each.

57



phe A313Ud 3AIS

-uayaiduod e YSno.y3 paAalyoe aq p[ned Jusaw
-ssasse Jo adfy S1y ], '9AN09]]2 1500 IR SaINSEa
UOTeAIaSU0D ASI3US JI SUIULISISP PUE SIS
-EIJUI JUS.LIND 1] S53SSE 0} pOpaau aq pinom
wasAs 1re passazdurod s A1oe] a1 Jo JIpne uy

"a)1s 913 J€ 1aford [oqu0d DVAH

ue ansand [[Im yr1d] 19WoISND 9d[ALaS ps[p

-unq e se sadJeyd puewap ysry o1 32alqns st 0]
/¥-d @snenaq aAnIaye 1509 aq Ued spouad yead
-uou 03 uonretado JyAH W[ 03 S{o1UC) 'parerd
-al1 aq ued e Juawdmba AJnuapi 01 Aemropun
8] sjun H¥AH Junsixs s,3-JY Jo JUIWSSasse uy

"SS3UIAIIFJS 1500 pue SFUIALS [enUd]}
-od ayg ssosse 03 palinbad 94 J[Im 2INIoNISBIU]
Sunys1] Sunsxa 9y Jo pne AAsuSYIdwod y

- ¥ IE S8.INSEal SUIAES-]1S0D [EI9ADS P[OIA
PINO2 AD[AISS STL ‘SUCTIEN[EAD 3SI} YIIM SO0
-ua8e orjqnd 1sisse 01 paudISsp 22[AIIS JIPNE 150D
-QU B SI3JJ0 YJomiaN A31auy ay], “A3xj1oe) yoes Jo
SUOTIEN[EAS SAISUAY21dUI0) 0} PARIUWINIO) JIAIU
Sey 1nq ‘syipne i1sed wodj sjgauaq uaas sey YAl

Rnyiseay

"SuIaISAS Ire passald

w02 S AH[19E) 31} SUIZISUMOP UaAD 10 Bul
~ZI[e1)uad Y3noaiy) passTyoe aq p[nod SSUIALesS
et aqissod s3] “AM[1o8) a3 InoySnoap pa
-Jeso] swalsAs Jare passsaduwos sidnnu surey
-u02 L)10€) 813 “nsad e sy “Ire passaiduiod

‘axmbal sassaoo1d yusunesa y-Jy 1 Jo Auejy

'sporiad yead-uou o3 uogeiado

JVAH 1| Jet S[0.QUOD HIM PINIANG 10 S[3

-pous JuaIdLJa alow 03 papeiddn aq ued syun
3591} JO AUe [C.1IUO3 FEWI[D JOJ SHUN IVAH
asn ey s3urp[ing Auew aaey JJYHI PUe -dY

181 y8nouo 1no

~YHM paysiujup aq uwed AN[Iqisia se ‘uipymq
Bunsoduwoeo ayy unpm junowrered si £yoyes
JANIOM "MJOJIZI 0] SADNPUOD SB 3¢ 10U LW
ADHA 93 unpim Sunysry “A2Uaiollje aseald
=Ul 0} S[CJIU0D (}IM PaNLIN0 J0 ST 28esn
-MO[ 1M paoe[dal aq ued Jey] swasAs gul
-3yS1| J00pING pUE ICOPUI SAISUIIX SBY $-JY
"SaUIIoLJ

reuonelado JaySIy ul 3 nsal UED JEY] SUOIIED
-yipour ssaoad osfe Ing ‘syyo.nial juswdnba
woly sSuraes [enuslod ajenjead L[uo jou
Je1]) sapne Ad1aua sAIsuayasdwod pnpuod
ued satuedurod ao1a1as A81sus Arted pary L

uondrsag

S1oA[0¥d ADYANE ADUAL/¥-dYd TYILNALOd "6 T14V.L

uoneziundQ
ary passaaduio)

sapeidd) pue
s[o.quo) HVAH

sapeiddn
Bunysr

npny 4810uq

aweN

Aousyg
[euonesadp

Luapyly
reuoneiadg

Aouanyg
[euonesadp

Lousroyly
[euoneaadp

adA],
P3forg

58



"UOLEN[BAI SIU

uo sanged yvdd aU) Y3lm YIom 03 anunued J[im
vndAI "£ouady a1 JoJ 8ANISIIS 150D ST 1B} aN[eA
B Je SAR.LIE 31} [[8S 0} SUI[[IM 3 }SNUI I3UMO
ay} ‘IsAamoy Jaumo 19foxd JuarIng ayl yum
aseloand renuajod ay ynoqe paimbut sey ynH1

'sa]

-[[oey Aouady ssodoe 1o 31S ay Je 12aload A8asua
alqemaual J1adae[ e Jo Jusuoduwied e Se ag pinom
uvoneusue[durt 109foad 10J 83001 [qelA JS0W
YL, *9A11291J3 1502 J0U S1 SUO[e UonE}S Suidieyn
alp se ‘Surpunj Jueas aimbal pnom joafoad sy,

*ais ay) 0] sppued

Jejos alow SUIppE JO SSSUIANISYYD 1S00 AU SUIW
-191ap 03 pPajonpuol aq [Im £pnis ANIqISes) y
*AS010UT)a] Y} JO SSIUDANDIIYD 1S0D I} ASEAIIIP
pinom yd1ym ‘sadreyd peol Sunredsp 01 122(qns
STAY[Ioey AU ‘A[feuonIppy *JDS Yilsm jusw

-aa1de 3UL1al9UI 19U paYIpow e aimbai pnom
Ayqey oyl Je uoneIauas JB[OS Ul 3SEaIIUT AUy

*s31jo.01a.l uorielae 10] moje o3 £]8uipiodoe
so[npayos uoneiado jsnpe pue quauwdinba mau
ay] Jo sseuaAnIAYs 1500 AJnuapl ‘suondo Juaw
-aoejdal [enjuajod ajen[eas 03 paau pnom vl

Aqiseay

"UonEIauUS3

Je[0S WCIJ S350 AILII0a[0 1NNy ajLUTI[S
0] anfea jaxJeul Jiej je spued ayl Jurseyoind
SuLrapisuod St yH] 'vdd & ydnoayp

¥4l 01 plos AQua.LInD s1 a)s uo spued

JB[0S JO (N T 213 WoJj pajetauad Jamod ay],

*SI[OIY9A 193]
£oualy pue oijqnd Aq pasn aq pjno» UOIE}S
9y, ‘Suone[[eIsul s[qemaua.l ajis-uo a1 £q

:patamod uonels Suidreyd (AN) JPIYaA IR
' ue ajesado Pue [[e1sul 03 sAemy31y Jofew Jeau
. UCTIEDO] [BIIUSD 51 JO dFeqUBApE 9XE) UBD H-JY

‘sAeLIE [BUCLHPPE

J10] PAZI[In aq OS[e p[no2 -4 e adeds

pueT "aceds Jool a[qe[reae Suisn WajsAS I1e[0S
dunsixa ay) puedxa 03 [enualod Y} djeN[eAD
uED L1[10€] a1, “PA[[EISUI 89 03 SABLIE J3()In]
J0J S[qEjIeae aceds [euonppe st ala1]], ‘Sul
-piing Sunsoduros aty) Jo Jood Y3 uo pI[[RISUI
sjoued Iejos jJo MW T SeY AIUSLING JOHHL SYL

-Aauapa Jajsueny uaddxo Bydiy
YIM SISTUJIP 0 SIamo[q A2UaloLa Jaysiy

0} waysAs uoneae unsixa ayy Suipeiddn Aq ¥

-dY 18 paARIYDE aq P[NO2 UOBAIDSUOD AIauy
*MO[] ITe snonunuod Jueagiuds saimbai
1 SE ‘ssaso.d aalsuajul £313U9 Ue SI UOTIRIDY

uondLisaq

suolye|
-[easuj Jefog Sul = juawadeuRy
-151Xq aseyaing A819uy
42841
uon

-ey5 duidre) SIINOSIY
APIYIA JLIII[H a[qemauay
-dd

uouE[[eIsu] $30.IM0S9Y
Jejog puedxy J[qemausy

sapeiddpn fHuapduly
uiseqg uonelay = [euoneradg

odAy,

SUIEN aloag

59



-a8e103s £819u3 0 SUOTE[[EISU]

a[qemaual [euonIppe jo uonejuswadwl aty)
Y1Lm 3SEII0Ap pNom SSUIAES 1502 axniny ‘108l
-aad e yons ySnoapy passnioe aq pinod jey] sdup
-AES 1502 3} EN[RAS 0] PI1INPU0T 8] 01 paau
pmom Apnis L1iqises) y ‘[eardes pue Suliasu
-18ua jueoyyrudis aambal pinom JJYHI pue F-Jd
Je waysAs uonnqLIsIp [e2L033[9 a1 Bumyonsy

7aaload stip jo yoeduwig

1502 atj) PUIINSP 03 padmbal s1 uonenjeas
Jayany ‘SundLid puewap Aqpue)s wodj 1jauag
paanpal os[e Inq ‘sadteys peoj Sun.redap jo
UCIeUTWI[S Y]} UBSW OS[E P[NOM SanI[Ioe] 8yl
Suneredag "a01A1as pajpung 03 YoIIMS 31} 30UlS
JUDISYIP 3¢ PINCM SSIUSALIIBIS 1503 ) ‘124
-moy -asaniqryoad 3500 aq 03 afoad ety punoj
pue dpyuepuadapur seniloe] om] ai} Sulrajaiu
J0J §)S Wo.1] SAEUNSD IS0 PAAIadal sey yNd[

"uon

~eZIpISqns Jueld yum I[qera aq Aew 1oaload sy,
“AIqixay wswafeueur a[qenfeaut apiaold ued
a8e103s se ‘AGo[ounoa) a1 ansand o3 snunuod
(1M VOHI "ADUHL/ b-dY 8 9A193JJ3 1502 10U ST
A8010U1[0a] JUSLIND JBY} pUncj pue siopusa ade
-101s AS12ua woy sesodoud paaedal sey vl

Aypgqiseay

'Sglel UoneIauss

PUE UOISSIUISUEI} JOMO[ S4B JeL{) SPLIE] j8
7S wiody £}Loa)e aseyaind ued Ay (S sa0qe
sa8eljoa 3014138 e Sunetsdo sonioey "WaysAs
Ad ZT ® uo sajerado Apualimd JOHAL/#-dd

sanyiumiioddo sAuL0Ul I[gEMAU

-a4 pue Juswafeuew 32.n0sal asoiduy pnod
SaNIIoE] paJdajatu om) oJul $9)S a) Suneredss
-I91owl AN [e3LNI9[a U 31eys jnq Jsyjoue
auo Jo Apuapuadapur sjeiado 409d] pue -4

1say31y

ale $3IBI ()] UIYM 23IS U0 pasn uay) pue
spouiad yead jo apisyno (A3o[out]ia) adelols
JR[IUIIS 10) satlaljeq agaeyd 0] pasn aq pned
SUOTIB[[EISUI D[CEMSUAI JBY} SINSUI p[nod 3de
-101$ “JuaweSeurw peo| Yym 1sisse o3 Adojou
-129) a8e103s £319ua Jo uonE[[EISUL B) WOY
1auaq Lewl 1DYH1/¥-dd ‘NOI 3y} woLy 3soy3ry
s1 Supud Ol uaym ‘Kep sy Jo s[ppiu ay)
Bupmp 1say81y st peoj L[ide] a3 SULApISUC)

uondLdsag

adejjop a01A
-I9g asealiu]

S1a]
-3t AM[OM oM}
UM IJYH] pue
-4 oyeredag

suone[eIsu]
a8euams A81suy

weN

JusaSeury
Adiauyg

Jawadeuey
Adxauyg

Juowagdeuey
A310uq

ad£Ly
SRETNE

60



Project Forecasts

Based on RP-4/IERCF’s high electrical demand, current generation capacity, and
status as a bundled service customer, there are many opportunities to improve
energy management at these sites. Cost effectiveness will be the main
consideration when determining the feasibility of potential new projects. Available
space can also be a limiting factor when considering expansion of the solar system.

As RP-4/IERCF is IEUA’s second largest user of electricity, IEUA will work with a
third party energy consultant to conduct a comprehensive energy audit of the RP-4
and IERCF facilities once the RP-1 audit has been completed. Such an audit would
be required to develop focused energy efficiency measures and reduce power
consumption cost effectively.

RP-4/1ERCF, as a bundled service customer, is an ideal candidate for energy
management technologies that reduce load during peak periods. The load profile
shows that IERCF’s peak usage coincides with SCE's on-peak rates. Reducing
imported electricity during these periods could result in savings from time-related
generation and demand charges.

Improved HVAC controls could improve energy management and reduce the
overall consumption across the facility during peak hours. IEUA staff intends to
pursue the HVAC control technology for implementation at RP-4 and IERCF. Based
on the project results, the technology could be used at other facilities as well.

Energy storage could have a large impéct on load and cost management. As
mentioned in Table 6, current storage technologies have proven cost prohibitive in
IEUA’s BCEs. IEUA is pursuing grant opportunities that will utilize energy storage
with existing or new renewable technologies. Implementing energy storage on site
is considered a valuable asset that can improve energy management capabilities,
reduce operating costs, and provide relief for the grid during peak periods.

Solar costs and land-use efficiency have changed considerably since IERCF entered
into its PPA in 2008. As a result, there may be the potential to add up to 1 MW of
additional capacity between [ERCF and RP-4. IEUA will pursue proposals for new
solar installations at each site.

61



CARBON CANYON WATER RECYCLING FACILITY

CCWREF is designed to treat an average of 11.4 MGD of wastewater flow. The
treatment plant employs primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment to produce
Title 22 compliant recycled water that is provided to end users. Biosolids removed
from the treatment process are pumped to RP-2 for processing.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February) months at CCWRF are shown on Figure 20.
Imported electricity and solar generation are included in the load profiles. The
figure shows energy consumption is 30 to 40 percent lower during winter months
than summer months. Peak summer consumption is approximately 1,200 kW and
peak winter consumption is approximately 820 kW.

The variation is due to the operation of CCWRF's recycled water pumps. During the
winter months in FY 13/14, the RW distribution system at CCWRF was under
construction and did not operate. However, the operation of these pumps typically
varies seasonally because RW direct usage is lower during winter months. When
RW demand is low, IEUA is able to satisfy direct use customer needs through RP-
1's supply system. As a result, the CCWRF RW pump distribution system can be
non-operational for weeks or months at a time. Therefore, despite the lack of
pump station operation, the FY 13/14 facility load is considered characteristic of
operations during the summer and winter months.

The CCWREF load profiles are unique in that two peak usage periods occur, one
during the morning (between 8:00 and 9:00) and the other during the evening
(20:00 to 24:00). During summer months, the daily electrical load varies based on
recycled water pumping demand. The load profile shows peak usage around 1,200
kW at 10:00 and a minimum consumption of approximately 880 kW at 5:00.
During winter months, when the recycled water pumps are typically non-
operational, the electrical load is consistent during the evening, then peaks in the
morning. Peak usage (approximately 820 kW) occurs between 8:00 and 10:00, and
the facility load is at a minimum (approximately 560 kW) between 15:00 and
16:00.

62



Jejos jo o8esanvd paodw) j0 aBelsoay

TR PRy TR PR Y n F e - R A, ut

oV O . ., 8 o ) i . . . .
S S % S F F gV ¢ ¢ Y @ & ¢ O
- — - - - - - .xo

000'T

00zt

FH0Ud AVOT HIINIM

0ob'T

B A.A. Sl

0oz

oot

009

008

Q00T

(M) 3DVWsn ALDINIDINA

00Z't

00P'T

2" AR PR s VD o P\ .
G S ST ST T ST T § @ ST ST S ST 8 P @ P ¢ ¢ o S S O

_ IN408d Y01 YIWANS w

SHLNOW YALNIM ANV YZAWWNS ONRRNA AVOT AMMDD HOVHEAY ¥T/ET Ad '0Z TUNDIA

0]

007 m

q

oy 3

(w)

009 3

w08 &

2

ooo't M

=~ 00Z'T .m
oov'T

63



CCWRF receives electricity from two generation sources, as listed in Table 10.
CCWRF purchases imported electricity through Direct Access at day-ahead market
pricing. In FY 13/14, imported purchases accounted for approximately 83 percent

of the total electricity consumed. The remaining consumption was generated from
the solar array.

TABLE 10.FY 13/14 CCWRF ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

h : Percentage of
Generation Source  Service Type Rate Type Facility Load
Imported Direct Access Market-priced 83
Solar (625 kW) PPA Fixed with annual escalator 17

As shown on Figure 20, CCWRF’s winter power demand can drop below 600 kW in
the afternoon. This demand could potentially be met with peak generation of the
solar array, which would result in a small amount of power being exported.
CCWRF does not currently have an export agreement with SCE. No export
agreement will be pursued considering the infrequency and small amount of
power that could be exported. However, if any additional distributed generation
projects were installed at CCWRF, IEUA would need to enter into an export
agreement with SCE.

Demand Response

CCWREF participates in the DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event,
CCWREF staff reduces operation of the recycled water pumps. The lead reduction
goal of 290 kW represents 24 percent of the overall Agency DR target. Due to the
seasonal nature of CCWRF’s recycled water operations, IEUA’s ability to meet the
reduction target varies. The DR pregram uses data from the ten working days
immediately prior to a DR event to calculate the baseline for each DR event, If
CCWREF did not utilize its recycled water pumps during these times, which is likely
during winter months, then meeting a winter reduction goal at CCWRF is
impossible.

In FY 13/14, CCWREF failed to reach 100 percent of its target in all six DR events
and actually saw a lead increase in two events. This was a result of the recycled
water pumping system’s non-operation during reconstruction. The Agency’s total
cumulative curtailment of 1,230 kW can be achieved through a combination of the
enrelled facilities. In FY 13/14, RP-1 reduced recycled water pumping loads to

64



compensate for CCWRF’s inability to drep load.

Energy forecast

Figure 21 shows the 20-year forecasted demand at CCWRF for the summer and
winter months, respectively, based on the WFMP projections. The figure
incorporates the expected renewable generation from the solar arrays, with
expected performance degradation factored in. Flow projections at CCWRF are
consistent with current operation, as the WFMP only predicts a cumulative
increase of 0.1 MGD over the 20-year period. As such, there are no significant
demand reduction projects expected at CCWRF. Existing equipment is expected to
be capable of providing the treatment necessary to produce and distribute Title 22
quality water until at least 2034.

The red shaded area in each graph represents the facility demand exceeding the
generation capabilities of the solar installation. There is no red hatched area on the
figure because IEUA has not yet identified efficiency projects to reduce energy
consumption. The seasonal difference in load at CCWRF is again apparent on
Figure 21. Imported power demand during summer months ranges from
approximately 560 kW in FY 14/15 to 660 kW in FY 33/34. The excess winter load
fluctuates from approximately 130 kW in FY 14/15 to 220 kW in FY 33/34. The
increase in these demands over the 20-year period is not a result of increased flow
projections. Rather, it reflects the amount of imported electricity that is expected
to increase each year because of the expected performance degradation of the
solar arrays (estimated to be 1 percent annually).

65



0

N P T USSR S TS WS S NSO NN S ——

|

JE[OS T SUCHINPaY JaMOdE,  puewaq AUl E
HVIA YIS

a@..m.@ m.&em. e&a@ ap_,on.. o..../ee Q‘,aa %_,m. ﬁ%e a.%e w.%e ae__&e &eﬁr ....¢»e ae,o.e o...‘.@». ea,&a @A?a rﬁ@a oa,&. &aﬁa aaﬁ,.

A e e o b e et 0

000'T

00z't

ONVYW3Q AV3d Y3LINIM

00zt

4%& e@?@ a%a ﬁ% o&% Qv% oe_...u. Eae o,%e n_.._,ae a‘%..c A%e ee_,aa a%e o.;af oair oa..—v 9..%. oa,aa nn%_a Aa,,&.

o . ot 0

GNYIN3A Jvad YINWINNS

— 0021

SHINGIW H4LNIM ANV YHWWNAS 04 LSVITH0d ANVNHA H3MOd dVEA-0Z AUMID "I HUNDIA

(M) aNvINEa Y3mod

(m) GNVINA HaMmOd

66



CCWRF projections indicate a reliable demand over the next 20 years. The amount
of imported electricity during winter months is not well-suited toward adding
additional renewable power projects, as installations in the 100-200 kW range are
typically cost prohibitive. Furthermore, expansion of the current solar system on
site is infeasible due to a lack of available space. Should a cost-effective distributed
generation project be identified, it would almost certainly require an export
agreement with SCE.

Potential New Projects

Opportunities for further self-generation, energy management, and efficiency
projects at CCWREF are limited due to the consistent electrical load, existing solar
generation, and status as a Direct Access customer. Table 11 lists projects that
have been considered for implementation at CCWRF and discusses the feasibility
of each.

67



“JIpne £3.13Ud JAIS

~uayaIdwod e YEnol(} paaalyde aq p[nod juaw
-§595Se JO ad£) SIY ], "9ADDAJ]3 1S0I JIE SINSEIUWL
UONBAIaSUO0D ASI9US JI QUIULIF]AP PUE 3IN1INYS
-BJIJU] JUS.LIND A1) SSASSE 0] Papaslu a( p[nom
wa)sAs I1e passaadwod s, L1[108) SY3 Jo 1ipne uy

*19$ wody sadaeyy puewdp Y3y 031 303[qns jou

SI pUe I3WO0ISND SS320Y 10811 © SI JYMD) 9Sned
-3 9A23JJ2 1500 3q 10U A3y [[m Spoliad yead
-uou 0} uonesddo HYAH N 03 sjonuo) "paserd
-al aq ued ey} Juawdinbs Amuapt 01 femiapun
ST SHUN JYAH Sunsix9 s, fumD?) Jo JuauIssasse uy

"SS9UDIA[IOA]JD 1502 PUE SSULAES [E[IUI)
-od s ssasse 0] palmbal aq [[Im aJmonIselyul
3unysi Sunsixa ay Jo Jpne sAsuayaIduod y

*TIMDD I saanseawl SUIABS-1S02 P[IL& p[nod
201AI3S ST "Suonen|eaa jo sadA) osatf (A1m S310
-uade o1yqnd 1sisse 03 psuBissp aIIAIIS JIPNE 1500
-0 € S.19JJ0 3I0MmIaN A31aug oy, "AI[de) yoes Jo

SUCHEN[BAD JAISUSYIAUIOD 0} PaIIMIWIOD 134U
sey Inq ‘syipne jsed woly sygeuaq uas sey vyl

Ayiqiseag

"SwiajsAs Ire passaiduwod

s A)[oe] a3 SUIZISUMOp U24Aa 10 SUIZI[BIIUD
yno1yy paastpoe aq p[noa sJuraes 4195
Jeyy aqissed st3] "Ape] 3yl JnoySneayy pajed
O] SWa)SAS Jre passardwiod s[dnnu sureucd
Ay[oey a3 9nsad e sy “1te passaidurod samb
-2 sassade.d Jusuneay JUMDD 913 Jo AUBp

‘spoLIad yead-uou o1 uonesado

JVAH W] Jey) S[OIU0D [IM P3N0 IO S[3

-pouw JUIMJO dJ0ul 03 papelddn aq ued sjun
asalf} Jo AUepy '[oNU0D 3JEWI]D 10] SHUN IYAH
asn Jelf} S3UIp[Ing Jo [nJpuey e seq LYMID

“£ouapiyye

aseaJoul 03 S[OTUOD IM PIPPIN0 J0 ST
a8esn-mo[ am paoerdal aq ued Jey) suIa)
-sAs Sury31[ Joopino pue 1oopul sey JHMID

"§9LD

-uapyys [euopnesado Joy31y uf I(nsal wed Jey]
suoneoyipow s5a30ad os[e Inq ‘Syo.nal JusW
-dmba wioy s3uraes [enuajod ajenjeas Ajuo
10U Jey} syipne £3.1aua sA1susyasduwes 1pnpuod
ued sajueduwod 31alas AS1aus Ajaed pawy L

uopdLsag

SLDA[0Yd ADMANT LAMO0 TVLLNALOd 1T ATaV.L

uoneziund
ary passatdwon

sapeadd[) pue
sfonuo) 3VAH

sapets
-d 3unysry

upny A818ug

aweN

fouspylq
[euonessdp

Auanuyy
reuoneradp

AHuanyyy
[euonetadp

Auayyg
reuonelado

2dA),
193foag

68



sanpnseyul 3unsxe s Lusdy syl

uo Yedun s1daload st sutmLIa]ap 0} JusWIILTe
renualod ay} a1enyeas [[Im yNH[ "SSUIAES 31500
poutad yead Jo aBejueape axe] 0] 3214138 papung
07} Y2UMS 03 pasau A9 pinom DIMDD 'sanIeI e
‘aJe SSUIAES 1502 pUB AJ[I(IXS[] peol JO 1Jauaq pue
s3500 [eyiden Jo o[ 8y, "senijoe] L>uady je syia(
-01d a8e103g AB1auq asucdsay] puews( doEasp
0} £&.1ed panyy e £q paypeordde usaq sey YAl

‘syaload aZe1oys £319u9 [enuslod ajen

-[eA?@ 01 aNURUOD [[IM yH[ 192foad aanoaye 1500
‘e pIal& A[Tenjualod pmoo el y(J oY) Sulijipout 10
UONBZIPISONS “13AIMOH “JOWI0IST) Y{J E SE SNIElS
s A11[10B] 31[3 01 aNP UMD IE ATIIAYJD 1500 10U

s1 ASojouy2s) ade10)s AB1aus JuaLin *sadreyd
puewRp NO.L Sulploae £q 51500 £110L1109[2 UC 2ABS
01 renuajod a) sey ‘spouad yead-pyo Burmp £
-LI9[2 FULI0)s YSnoiy) pasayoe ‘SuIyIys peo
'UOTIEN[EAD

ST uo senJed ydd 2Y3 YHM YI0M 03 anunued
M YA "Aoua8y aY} 10] 9A13I9]]a 1509 SI IR} an
-[ea B e sAELIE 91[1 [[@S 01 BUI[[IM 3( }SNUIL I3UMO
9} “1eAamoY “1aumo aload yuaiing ayy ym
aseyaand renyuajod syl Inoqe parmbur sey ynd1

‘s1jo.nal uonelae 1oj mofe o3 A|3uipioioe
so[npayos uonerado isnfpe pue quawdinba mau
a1} JO §SaUaANIAY)S 1502 AJnuapl ‘suondo juaur
-aoepdad renualod arenfeas 03 pasu prnom vl

Apqiseas

‘fyaed

PIIY) 8y AqQ paliaA0d aq p[nom sUoLe|[eIsul
adeao3s a1y 10] saanypuadxa [eyde) ‘sawin
Jay30 Je Sutaeys yead Joj a)s 350y a3 Aq
pue ‘awir} a1 jo uontod e uenydwinsuos yead
Jo spoliad SuLinp asuodsai puewap 10] S0l
Aq pasn aq pjnod 1B} s3I 350y 1 IZe10]s
A1ameq Surjeisul Ayled pIny) e 9AJj0AU] p[nom
309load ay L, Juswdo@aap Jo sade)s fenul

ur APuaLmo stiey3 ysrecidde sArzeaouur ue
s1 |oo} asuodsal puewap e se ader0ls A31aug

‘paainbai aq asimisiio pnom 11odxa
uayMm 33}iS UO 3sn Ja)e] 10] palols pue spoutad
yead Surmp pazruuru are saseydand £oLn
-D3[a 1.1} 2INSU3 p[nod 3Felols JawaSeusut
PeO[ YiLm 15155 0] A30j0ouyda) adeios Adioua

' JO UONB[[EISUT 3y} WOJ] JJauaq Aew JHMDD

‘uonelsuas Jefos wWo.lj s3sed £

-1011309]9 aIning s3eUlW|3 0} aNjea JayIen Iie}
je spaued ay Suiseyaand Surrapisuco s YAl
'Vdd B ySnoayl ynd] 03 pjos £pua.iind sy Ae.Lie
Je[os MY §Z9 a3 woldy pajetsuasd tamod ay],

"A3Uad1ps Ja)suel) uald

-£Ax0 JaY31Y YHm SISSNYIp 10 S1I9MO[q £OUdNd
-1}§a J9Yy31Y 0] We)sAs uonelse Sunsixa ayl Sul
-peaddn £q paaalyoe aq p[nod UCHEBAIISUCD A3
-1auq "Mo[j Il Snonunuod Juesyusis saimbax
11 se ‘ssaoo.ad aAlsuaju] A3Iaua UE S UONEISY

wondrsag

uone|
Jusw
-le1su] a8e10]S
-agdeuey
A31ouy asuods
A3reug
-2y puewa(
Jus U
suone[eIsu]
adel10g A310ug -oBEuEy
A81aug
suone| JuIW
-leisuj Jejos 3ut -a8euep
-1SIXH aseyaand A310Uug
sape1ddn LHuapiyyg
uiseg uopelay @ [euonetadg
adil

IueN I

69



Project Forecasts

IEUA's ability to install new renewable energy projects at CCWRF is limited by
available ]Jand and low import demand. In the near term, IEUA will focus on energy
efficiency projects to optimize the treatment process and minimize the electrical
demand. IEUA will work with a third party energy consultant to conduct a
comprehensive energy audit of CCWRF that will identify potential efficiency
projects.

70



REGIONAL PLANT NO. 2

RP-2 has been in operation since 1960. Originally designed to treat both liquids
and solids, the facility has exclusively treated biosolids since 2002. At RP-2, all
solids removed from RP-5 and CCWREF are thickened and digested. RP-2 contains
digesters and dewatering facilities that generate renewable digester gas from the
solids that have been removed during the liquids phase wastewater treatment
process.

RP-2 is operated under a lease with the United States Army Corps of Engineers.
With the lease term set to expire in 2035, IEUA plans to remove RP-2 from service
within the next eight to ten years and relocate the solids processing to RP-5. As a
result, the energy management opportunities at RP-2 are limited to projects with
short payback periods without significant infrastructure.

Gas Production

RP-2 has three anaerobic digesters in operation and an aerobic digester that is
only put in service during emergencies. In FY 13/14, the digestion operation
produced an average of 160 standard cubic feet per minute (scfm) of digester gas,
or approximately 229,100 scf per day. The acid phase gas, which is the product of
the first phase of mesophilic digestion, cannot be consumed in the boiler or
cogeneration engine due to its low quality. Unlike RP-1, RP-2’s acid phase gas is
not continuously flared. The acid phase gas is sent to gas mixers and injected into
the second phase of the digestion system. After assisting with solids mixing, the
acid phase gas is combined with the digester gas from the second phase and is
combusted as needed in RP-2’s boilers, engine, or flare. The acid phase gas can also
be sent directly to the flare if operating pressures of the second phase digesters are
too high.

The heating value of the digester gas typically measures between 550 and 625
Btu/scf. The preferred destination for this gas is RP-2’s 580 kW cogeneration
engine, This ICE is operated and maintained by IEUA staff on site. In FY 13/14, the
ICE consumed an average of 116 scfm. The ICE is subject to SCAQMD Rule 1110.2,
which requires that stationary digester gas-fueled engines meet stringent
emissions limits by January 1, 2016 for VOC, nitrogen oxides (NO.}, and carbon
monoxide (CO). While there has been discussion of extending this implementation
deadline to January 1, 2017, no rule language has been promulgated indicating as

71



such. Retrofitting the RP-2 ICE with sufficient emissions control technology to
meet these standards would prove to be cost prohibitive. Therefore, IEUA plans to
remove the ICE from service by the end of the 2015 calendar year.

RP-2's hot water boilers are the second option for the digester gas. The boilers are
required to produce heat for the digestion process, and are capable of operating on
either digester gas or natural gas, but not a blend. The boilers are operated on
digester gas when production is high encugh to operate both the ICE and boiler, or
when the ICE is down for maintenance. When the digester gas production exceeds
both the ICE and boiler demands, the excess digester gas is combusted in the flare,

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load at RP-2 for summer (June through September)
and winter (December through February) months are shown on Figure 22,
Imported electricity and ICE generation are included on these two load profiles.
The figure shows a slight reduction in overall load during summer, with peak
consumption around 180 kW in summer and approximately 165 kW during
winter. The load at RP-2 is so low that approximately 40 percent of the electricity
generated from the ICE was used on site in FY 13/14, while 60 percent was
exported.

72



oo

414
oy
09
08 -
00T
(4745
ort g
091

ol U ol v &b

&

uafon jo aBesony[@  pauodw) jo sBeleavd
v v &Y S e e

%%%%%%a%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%%

081

- Ot

00z

(¢14

J11108d AVO1 HIWINNS _

SHLNOW ¥HLNIM ANV dAWWAS INIHNA ATIA0¥d AV0T Z-dd ADVIIAY #1/£T Ad "ZZ TINDIL

(114
ot
08
08
00T
ot

19VSN ALDIYIDITI

091

(ol

- 0BE
F1130Ud AVOT YILNIM | 00

— §
(A1) 39YSN ALIDINIDIT

00<

73



Figure 22 also shows that imported electricity consumption is much higher at RP-2
during summer months, RP-2 has two electrical meters with SCE. One meter serves
the control room building, which typically imports electricity to power the lighting
and HVAC needs of the building. The second meter services the rest of the
treatment plant. With the two meter configuration, the ICE may be exporting
power while RP-2 still receives imported electricity for the control room needs.
Imported electricity is significantly lower during winter months, when the HVAC
system is not operated as frequently.

Electricity Procurement

Table 12 lists the two sources of electricity at RP-2. Imported electricity purchases
are cbtained through general bundled service with SCE. The cost of the electricity
generated by the ICE is determined by the average O&M costs IEUA spends to keep
the ICE in operation divided by the total electricity produced. Electricity costs
generated by the ICE have historically been estimated at $0.08/kWh. The
compensation that IEUA receives for exported power fluctuates each month. In FY
13/14, SCE paid IEUA an average of $0.052/kWh for electricity exported from RP-
2.

TABLE 12. FY 13/14 RP-2 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Generatlon Source Service Rate Percentage of

Facility Load
Imported Bundled General Service 22
ICE (580 kw) - O&M Costs 78

In FY 13/14, on-site generation accounted for 78 percent of the total facility load.
As expected with the engine size, the amount of electricity generated on site
regularly exceeds RP-2’s total consumption. However, power generated by the ICE
cannot be used in the control room building due to the separate utility metering.
As a result, 22 percent of RP-2's power needs are met through importing
electricity.

74



Demand Response

RP-2 participates in the DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event, RP-2
staff is tasked with reducing the facility load by 10 kW, a nominal value that was
selected in order to include RP-2 in the Agency’s DR portfolio. This drop in load
represents less than one percent of the overall load reduction target of 1,230 kW
that IEUA has agreed to across all Agency facilities. In FY 13/14, RP-2 exceeded
100 percent of its target in two of the six DR events and averaged a load reduction
of 6 KW per event.

RP-2 could contribute additional load during demand response events in the form
of exported power. Increasing the ICE output could have the same grid effect as
dropping load at the facility, but exported power is not compensated in the current
DR program. If the DR program were to incentivize power that is exported above
the facility’s baseline, [EUA could temporarily increase 1CE load to maximize the
power output.

Energy forecast

Figure 23 shows the 20-year energy forecast for RP-2. There are no significant
energy demand projects planned for the facility because the solids processing is
expected to be relocated within ten years. Figure 23 incorporates the expected
renewable generation from the ICE through December 2015. The demand growth
is assumed to be proportional to expected flow increases at CCWRF and RP-5.

The blue shaded area in each figure represents the anticipated generation from the
RP-2 ICE, which exceeds the RP-2 demand when operational. With the ICE
operation terminated by the end of 2015, RP-2 will import electricity for all of its
power needs beginning in 2016. The maximum summer load of approximately 180
kW occurs in FY 23/24, RP-2's expected final year of operation. The maximum
winter load of approximately 170 kW occurs in FY 23/24 also. RP-2 is expected to
remain in full operation until the solids processing operation is complete and
active at RP-5.

75



pauiodxatt DLW SUGHINPSY JAMOdF]  puewa(q ASIRu3fE
HY3A TVOSId
P . I R Ca alT o S e ! Sy S Lt (U N S AL
0 — — 0

00T — — oL @
Q
=
-]
o0z — ooz ®
<
>
2
00E . e ooe ¥
or 1 - . oot
ANVINIQ )VAd H31NIM
00S S — S L pos

PECG R s S T P e e S S P P R
& - —efom O

apr ——— oor @
=
m
-~
L4 - - = ooz &
:
00€ = — O0E .M.
z
0oV | T ooy
ne e (e a1

76



Despite the ICE shutdown at the end of 2015, RP-2 will continue to produce
digester gas. In FY 13/14, the treatment plant produced an average of 160 scfm of
digester gas. Figure 24 charts RP-2's anticipated gas production based on expected
flow increases to RP-5 and CCWRF. The projected ICE gas usage is shown in dark
blue. Once the ICE is shut down, digester gas will primarily be consumed by the
boiler. Boiler gas usage, shown in light blue, is estimated to meet the average heat
demand of the facility beginning in 2016. RP-2's digestion process does not require
the amount of heat generated by the boilers operating at full load, so there will be a
portion of digester gas combusted in the flare as well.
FIGURE 24. RP-Z 20-YEAR GAS PRODUCTION FORECAST

200
180
160
140
120
100

80

60

40

DIGESTER GAS PRODUCTION {SCFM)

20

0 |
SN T L T I nait's gy I S e AR gy L g SR g R IR
VIS I I I L I S g ol

FISCAL YEAR
@ Digester Gas Production  mBoiler Gas Usage = mEngine Gas Usage

RP-2 is in a unique position as a generator of renewable digester gas as it will no
longer be able to operate the existing ICE due to environmental restrictions. IEUA’s
Business Goals identify the need to beneficially use digester gas and strive toward
energy independence during peak periods. However, these goals must be achieved
cost effectively. New self-generation projects are difficult to justify for a facility
that is only expected to be in operation for an additional eight to nine years.

Potential New Projects

RP-2's digester gas production offers several opportunities for distributed
generation and efficiency projects, as shown in Table 13.

77



-Z-dy 3e uoneyuswa[duwil 10 1S

-e3Jul 3q 01 paUIIIalap sem 123foad sy *s-4y 01
paaoul s1 Surssaa0.1d SpIjos a1 a3U0 EeJ0[aI 0]
noyIp A184 aq os[e p[nom Aojouyda] 8y, "S9Al}
-U30U] JUSWILIBA0S ()M U0A3 ‘aAnIqIyoad 1503
a( 03 PAUIULI}AP SEM SIBUINISa S [, "UCIR[[EIsul
[[22 [N MY 00¢ ®© J0] [esodoad e paAlsdal ¥yl

"9AD9)J0 3 0}

uaaoud 124 sey Sunou 3ng ‘saurdus pajory-ses 12
-3s831p uo pajesjsuowap Suraq ApUALING aJe sa1d
-0[OUY23) [0LIU0D AEUIYY "3ANIqIYo1d 1500 aq
pinom sfoxd ays e pauTuLIAep pue jsed ayy
ul suonle[[elsul yons Joj sfesodoud paarasal yA]
-auidua z-J4y Y3 J0J UONE[[EISUI JAZIPIXO ILIATEIED
A0S ue Suuiapisuod usaym suonedtjduod yussald
[Ie #Z1s suidus pue ‘Lyijenb se8 ‘Inofe] A1oe] 2],

'SSAUIANIAYI 1502 pue

s8uraes renualod ay) ssasse 01 palmbal aq [[m
amjangseyul BunySi| 8upsma jo JIpne uy ‘Jels
10} 10 Juedgrudis aarnbau jou pip pue yoeqled
10Ys e paLLIEy A3 Jt pansand aq AJuo pnom
sigo.nail 1o saperddn Sunysi| ey APy1] S13]

Aypqiseay

"AWDVDS Y3 4q paen3al

3q jou pnom A3 3ey) YSnoua mo| 2q p[nom
1[92 [°1Y Y3 Wo.Jj SuolssTuy “Z-4y 1e uonelado
Joj az[s [ewndo ayn 3q p[nom [[99 [31Y MY 00E
e ‘paplacad s[esodoud uo paseq "a)s uo painp
-0ad se8 a1y woly Jamod pue 1eay 3elsusd

01 [[92 [9nJ seS 191sadIp e [[EISUl P[0 Y A]

‘GT0Z JO PUD AU} 18 UMOP Iy SI AD] SYA 2UQ

‘Z0TTT 3Ny AWV £q pasodul

SJIWI]| SUCISSTUIa 9T 0Z ) 199U 0] YSnous mo|
SucIsSIa SuPnpal 18 3ANIa])9 aq 03 usaoxd
UD3(| SABY SIIZIPIXO IIATEIRD Yim pajdnod
swa3sAs (YDS) IsA[erer uonInpal aAnNIaas
Auo ‘Apualing "weansumop ASojouyosa) (013
~u02 SUOISSI pue )] 8yl Jo weansdn wa
-sAs Juruonpuod sed e Suiqeisur £q o1 Sunst
-xa 3Y} Jo s8ejueApe axe) pmom asfoad sy,

*ADUaDI}a 3SE3JIIU] 03 S[C.LIU0I YILM Pany
-0 J0 ST 28esn-mo] Yyum paosejdsa aq ues
1ey) suralsAs Sunysyy Joopul Auewl seq Z-dd

nopdposag

SLOA[OUd ADHANH Z-d¥ TVLLN:LLOL "ET TTV.L

uonejesu]
[°D 1°nd

D] uo [ouo)

uonsNQuIo?)
-1s0d [eIsuf

sapeadd)
dunyar]

JwmeN

$32IN0SaY
a[qemaudy

S32IN0SIY
J[qemauay

Louayrg
reuonetadp

odAL
Pa3foigd

78



-uonydo

S} 93eN[RAS 03 FNUNUO0D [[IM V5] 08 ‘Palapisuos
Bu1aq aae sanuniioddo jueis [e1549S 19AaMmOY

- 198load pasodoad ayj Joy £j11enb jou pIp sanI[E]
VNAI 9Nsal e Sy "PIZIaNusdul adam sed 193sa81p
Jo wyos 0p0°T Jo SSaoxa ul Surnpoad £QuU3lSISuod
sjued Jusunear [uc Jey) A[3S03 0§ pAIIPISUOD
aIam $15093 uona(uf 'spmLOd 03 UoDenjead
uonaafur suepewolq e papiaold A[snotaard Hnng

"Z-dY 1. 21qiseajul Apua.Ling st 13afoxd

SIY L “SeTy[NOLIP pue 53500 Juedyiudis Aiied
prnom uonels durrany e Sunesofa.l ‘S0 wIdYLNg
'suonetado eaidAl s, ynA1 urqm 1y A[L1essasau
J0U $20p uonels durdny o) e Surdo[@aap
‘parisjaxd s1 uonrezinn sed 1215381p ySnopy

'sieaf g 01 £ Iayje

Sunesojai jo Juayul 8y} Yaim paudisap aq pnom
suwiaysAs Sutuonpuod sed pue aulgINIOIo N

a1} Jo uone[reisu] -aload syl jo ANQIqISea] Y
Buneneas ARUs.LId ST pue UOTIB[[EISUI UG
-0IDTW MY 009 ® Jo] [esodoad e paaladas yd[

Aqiseat

'$1502 SIUBUIUIBIU

Buro8uo pue ‘uorreuuodiajul ‘Juruonpuod
sed apnpul uonoslur auradid jo s3s07) “Ayenb
sed a3 JuauInoep o] patnbal aq pinom Sur
-daayjpaosa pue Sundures yureogiudis -suipdid
(99s] s, Aueduro?) ser) eruwiofe?) UIayios
91} ojur uonoalul 19a41p J0j JUSINS LNenb

e 03 Aj1[1oe) 213 1€ paonpoad sed 1315981

a3 Suruonipuod aimbai pinom 1aload sy,

*F1S U0 uonE)s sul

-[ary e do[aAap 01 HND ydnous essuasd pmom
Z-d¥ 9jqe[eAe sed .1a1sa81p Jo JUnouIe Iy}

. U0 pasey "OND uo 3jeiado 0] SaIYaA 133[) Y}
| Jo Jgoqjad axmbai pmom 133(0ad e yang "sapiy
' -2A 193] 5 £2uaSy ay) Ul pasn 8q 03 HN? 0} Sed
-01q 943 SUNJIAUOI PIISPISUOD Sey JJeIs VAl

qEsY pue A10LI19]0

aeiausad o1 Aioe] a Aq paonpoad sed ayy
Jo [[e 8z1[n pinod pue ‘Z’eT 1T 3Ny ANDVIS
Japun SUOTIEIUI] SUCGTSSIWS 03 199[qns aq j0u
pInoMm SUIqINMO.IIW Ay ], ‘u3)sAs SUOTHPUOI
Sed pue auIqInNI0ITW MY 009 B M suidus
uonerauadod ayy soe[dal pmom aload suy L

uondLmsag

uonoaluf
auradig
sen [einieN

uone[elsy]
(9ND)

SED) [BANIEN

passaidwion

uone[eIsu]

AUIQINOIDIIN

aweN

S0IN0S3Y
ajgemauay

530IN0S3Y
a|qemauay

$33.1N053Y
a[qemauay

ad4),
13foad

79



Project Forecasts

The relocation of solids processing from RP-2 to RP-5 within the next ten years
eliminates many energy projects from consideration. Efficiency projects with short
paybacks may be warranted, but the introduction of large pieces of equipment is
difficult to justify. Removing the cogeneration engine from service by the end of
December 2015 complicates RP-2’s energy forecast. RP-2 will continue to generate
renewable biogas with valuable energy content, but investing capital into a facility
expecting to cease operation within ten years has limited value.

IEUA evaluated several projects that could utilize RP-2's existing digester gas
production and comply with the stringent air quality regulations. Of the projects
identified, installation of 2 microturbine appears to be the most feasible based on
cost and portability. However, project success would rely on meeting strict
schedules and budgets. Deviating from either could drastically affect the cost
effectiveness of the microturbine installation. IEUA will consider all aspects of this
project before determining whether to invest in the technology.

80



REGIONAL PLANT NO. 5 AND IEUA HEADQUARTERS

RP-5 is designed to treat an average of 15 MGD of wastewater flow. The treatment
plant employs primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment to produce Title 22
compliant recycled water that is provided to direct use end users. Biosolids
removed from the RP-5 treatment process are pumped to RP-2 for thickening,
digestion, and dewatering.

RP-5 SHF is located adjacent to the RP-5 treatment plant and is designed to
process up to 705 tons per day of food waste and dairy manure. IEUA currently
leases the RP-5 SHF property and equipment to Inland Bioenergy, LLC (IBE). IBE
operates and maintains the facility with the goal of producing sufficient biogas to
operate two 1.5 MW cogeneration engines. IEUA has the option to purchase all of
the power purchased by the engines. Any excess power produced will be exported
to SCE. Currently, RP-5 SHF only processes food waste in two anaerobic digesters.
The first cogeneration engine began to produce power in February 2015,
Currently, IBE plans to operate only one ICE at any time.

IEUA’s two Headquarters (HQ) buildings are located directly west of the treatment
plant. The electricity used at the buildings and Central Plant (designed for heating
and cooling the HQ) is metered with the same utility meter as RP-5. For this
reason, energy efficiency projects considered for implementation in the HQ
buildings and Central Plant will be considered with RP-5.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February) at RP-5 are shown on Figure 25. Imported
electricity and solar generation are included in the load profiles. The figure shows
a slight reduction in average load during winter, with peak consumption at
approximately 2.0 MW in summer and approximately 1.7 MW in the winter. The
load reduction during winter months is a result of reduced HVAC operation and
recycled water pumping. The generated solar electricity also varies between the
two seasons, as generation increases in summer months, which have more sunlight
hours each day than winter months,

81



0se
00s
0SL
000t
oSzt

00ST -

0547

000°¢ -,

0se'L

05¢
00S
0SL
000
0sz'T
005'T

0sLT -

000'C
052'z

1ejo5 jo aBesaay[]  papodwy jo aBerony @

1 AL L & 1\ .
%e%e% S @ ¥ g

9)_ ). m‘). A..(

2

L]
) IDVWsn MDD

S F 57 ST S a%%%%%%%%%%

- 0

- 052
00s
0st
000°T
oSzt

-

i

o o
g R

'

o~
(

m JH08d AVO1 YIINIM

05z’

UA\ m.). o

A

. AN A Lo : : . . . K . :
& @V % T T e e 0 P Y S SO

0
0sz
00s
0S¢
0007
0sT’T

4-

) 3DVSN ALDMIDINI

(=]
(o]
un
-~

i
=
[Tg)
P~
Lol

I140¥d AvO1 HIWIANS

000

SHLNOW ¥ALNIM (NV J3WNNS ONMNA AVOT S-dd A9VHAAY ¥1/€T Ad "SZ HdNDId

18

82



Figure 25 also shows that total electricity consumption is fairly steady throughout
the day with the exception of a peak between the hours of 6:00 and 8:00 and a
drop in consumption between 16:00 and 18:00. The variability in overall electrical
consumption is more dramatic in summer months, as the average load fluctuates
between 1,200 - 2,000 kW. In winter months, the average load varies between
1,400 - 1,700 KW. The amount of electricity imported is expected to decrease in FY
14/15 with the introduction of the cogeneration engines at RP-5 SHF.

Figure 25 includes electricity used by the recycled water pumps. These pumping
demands were not included in previous sections to illustrate IEUA’s increasing
power requirements in distributing recycled water. However, these demands must
be included when considering the overall facility load because they influence the
power procurement and self-generation opportunities that IEUA can pursue.

Electricity Procurement

RP-5 receives electricity from the mix of generation sources listed in Table 14.
Electricity imported to RP-5 is procured through bundled service with SCE. RP-5
also utilizes two distributed generation sources in addition to SCE import. The
combination of 3 MW from the ICEs and the existing 1 MW of generation from the
solar array results in a renewable generation capacity that exceeds the typical
facility load. SCE required IEUA to obtain an interconnection agreement through
the RES-BCT program, which compensates exported electricity through bill credits
at other Agency facilities that are on bundled service. RP-5 distributed generation
projects began to export power in March 2015.

TABLE 14. FY 13/14 RP-5 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

. . Percentage of
Generation Source = Service Type Rate Type Facility Load
Imported Bundled TCU-8-B Standby 82
Solar (1 MW) PPA Fixed with annual escalator 18
9% of equivalent Import
ICEs (3 MW) PPA 89% o equ::)r:ten mpor 0

IEUA did not purchase power from IBE in FY 13/14 because the ICEs were not yet
operational. The procurement rate under the PPA with IBE allows IEUA to
purchase the electricity generated by the engines at a rate equal to 89 percent of
what IEUA would have otherwise paid SCE. A third-party energy service contractor
developed the appropriate tariff structure for power generated from the engines.

83



The contractor will also annually reconcile the hilling to ensure that the PPA
provisions are met.

Demand Response

RP-5 participates in the SCE DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event, RP-
5 staff reduce operation of the recycled water pumps. The RP-5 reduction target of
50 kW represents 4 percent of the Agency’s DR obligation. Achieving the DR target
is difficult during winter months because RW pumping and demands are already
reduced. In FY 13/14, RP-5 participated in four summer DR events and two winter
DR events. During the summer events, RP-5 reached 100 percent of its target in all
four events and averaged load reductions of 349 kW. However, during the winter
events, RP-5’s load increased by an average of 186 kW. Due to the seasonal
demand variations, it is unlikely that IEUA will commit to additional lead reduction
measures.

If the ICEs are operated at full load, RP-5 will likely consistently export to the grid.
Under this scenario, RP-5's participation in the DR program would be minimal
because reductions could not be achieved from a facility with no appreciable load.
Until the operational nature of the ICEs is known, RP-5’s DR contribution will
remain static.

Energy forecast

Figure 26 shows 20 years of forecasted average demands at RP-5 for the summer
and winter months, based on the WFMP projections. The figure includes the
expected renewable generation from the cogeneration engines and solar array
including expected solar performance degradation. Although the engines have a
combined capacity of 3 MW, their actual generation is limited by RP-5 SHF’s
digester gas production from the food waste feedstock available for processing.
Because RP-5 SHF has yet to achieve full operation, this plan assumes a consistent
output of 500 kW at the end of FY 14/15 and an increase of 500 kW every two
years thereafter until reaching a maximum sustained generation of 1.5 MW in FY
18/19.

The energy demand growth at RP-5 is proportional to an expected flow increase of
approximately 1 percent each year. TYCIP and WFMP projects expected to affect
the power demand were included in the forecast. The relocation of RP-2 solids
processing is expected to be completed in FY 23/24. This project is expected to

84



increase the facility load by over 50 percent. There are currently no energy
reduction projects planned at RP-5.

Figure 26 shows that the peak energy demand at RP-5 does not have much
seasonal difference. The red shaded area in the two graphs represents the facility
demand exceeding the generation capabilities of the solar and cogeneration
installations. Assuming the food waste digestion project is capable of generating
approximately 800 kW, RP-5's renewable portfolioc is expected to result in
continuous energy export. Once RP-5 is expanded to include RP-2’'s solids
processing, the facility load is expected to exceed the energy generated on site.

85



SHLNOW YALNIM ANV HAWIANS HOA LSVOHION ANVINIA dI4MOd UVIA-0Z S-dd "9Z H(101d

86



Potential New Projects

RP-5's imported electricity consumption depends heavily on the success of IEUA’s
food waste digestion project with IBE. With no generation from the engines, RP-5
will continue to import electricity and be subject to high SCE demand charges
during peak periods. If the engines consistently produce more than 800 kW, RP-5
will likely become a continuous exporter of electricity.

Due to the high variability of RP-5's energy forecast, RP-5 would be best served by
taking a cautious approach to new energy projects. Potential projects will also be
evaluated as part of the RP-5 expansion and RP-2 relocation Pre-design Reports.
Cost effective efficiency measures are most likely to be implemented in the short
term. Table 15 outlines projects that have been considered for implementation at
RP-5 and discusses the feasibility of each.

87



‘paziundo aq ued ssasoad ay JI suruLIa)

-3p 0] papuswIuIodal SI uonelado JuaLmo ayy Jo
UCEN[EAd Ue ING ‘PaIapIsuod aq 03 A[3YI] 30U aIe
SO0 TUSUDSIAUL JU3IA1 31]) 0] an( *pa[[eISuI
SEM J3[[IYD SL123[3 Jua I ‘mau e Qaafoxd suyl Jo
Med sy $10Z ul peirjdwod sem juepd [e.nusa 21}
Jo Aynqeral 23 durse.adunt uo ursnoao) 1osfoad v

"SSAUIANIAYS 1500 pue STUIAeS [eUua)
-od a1y} ssasse 03 paaimbau aq [Im samonaselur
Sunysi[ 3unsxa a3 Jo ypne aAlsusydidwod y

*G-dY 1e seanseaw Suiaes-1500 pRIA pnod
2D1AIAS STY L, "SUONENTEAS JO 59dA) 95aU) YIIM S312
-uade o11qnd 15188e 0] paudISOp IIAISS JIPNE 1500
-0U B $.13[J0 Y1oMIaN A81aus] sy, “£I11oe) yoes jo

sucTen[BAs aAIsuaya.Idmod 0} papIUIe) J8AdU
seq 1nq ‘sypne i3sed wouj $1yauaq Uaas sey YAl

Amqiseag

‘s3urAes ASIaUa Ul Jnsal

pmo3 uonerado payIpow Lo ‘S[0JIU0D ‘SOl
-121 ySnouy yued ap Jo Asuadige s Sutaoad
-ul] 'g-4y 3e pajeso jueld fejusd e ysnoay
paaatyae st DH J0j Surjoed pue Suneay ay],

s8uraes £31aua a1owr uy Jjnsal phod 480
-[outdal (37 01 IJOII3 B ISAIMO “S3INSeall
KLouapygs 3uny3i| Jo 943 B paambal yorym
‘Bulp[ing wnuneld 4371 & Se pausisop alam
s8uipimq OH VN4l “£ousmyje asealour 03 sjo.n
-Uod YIIM PINILANo 10 SOHT 98esn-mo[ YIm
paose[daa aq ues yey) swasAs Sunysi| Joop
-IN0 pUE JOOPUI AAISUIIX3 8ARY DH PUe §-dY

g16)

-uapyja [euonerado JayS1y Uy INSaI UED IRy}
suonesyjpowt ssa3o1d os[e Ing ‘S3JoIIL JUB UL
-dinba woJy s8ujaes [enuajod ajen[eAa A[uo
j0U 1B S1Ipnie A819U9 aAlISusyaIduIoD 39Npuod
uea satueduIod adiAlas Ad1aua faed panyg

uondLsag

SLDA[0Ud XD¥ANA S-d¥ TVILNALOd ‘ST 14V.L

sjuatusAoIduI]
ueld
[enua) PH

sopeaddn
Sunysry
OH/S-dd

3pny A31aug

aureN

Lousoyy
reuonesadp

FliGin)ith|
reuonesadp

LHuapiyg
Jeuonelado

adA]

13foad

88



SanI[oE]

AouaBy ssouoe 10 231s aiy Je 3foad £A81au9
a[qemaual 1ad1e] e Jo Jusuodwod e Se aq pnom
uonejuawa[duwi 3rsload 10] 33n0a s[qQeLs 150w
9, "2A129JJa 1502 10U 51 Juo[e uonels Surdeyo
ay} se ‘Surpunj yueid aimbal pnom yoafoad sy,

‘pagojdxo

9q os[e p[noys sjuLid100] Ja[[ewWS YIm sppued
JUSIIIS IOW ‘M3U YUMm S[ued Sunsixa 1gyonal
0} uonydo uy 's[aued apy 3uneosc(al 1o Surrcwal
Jo L11q15e9) a1} UIULISAP 03 Japlaoad

Vdd o3 YILm S1eUIplooD 0] padu [[im V]

‘frred paug) e AQ paumo st AelLie Je[os 3173 9sneday

*SIJ0.0121 UOTIRISE J0] MO[[E 0] A[SuIp1odoe
sa[npayas uoneiado ysnfpe pue Juawdinba mau
2] JO $SAUIANIYIS 1502 AJnuap! ‘suondo Juaw
-aoe[dal [enusiod s1en[eas 03 pasu pmom vl

“Mpne £819u3 aslsuayaduiod

B 3Nl paAsIde aq pPInod JUIUWSSISSE

Jo ad£) siy [, "9A1123]J2 1502 BJE SINSESUI
uoneAIasuod A519us J1 aUIULISISP PUE 21N}
~OTLISELJUT JUS.LIND Y3 SSISSE 0} PaPaau aq pnom
wa)sAs Jie passardwioo s AM[oe] oy} JO Jipne uy

Anqisead

SUONINPa1 HYY Ul }jns

-91 0S[e P[Nosm SAH 01193]] 3[21Ysa Aduady ay)
Sumyonay -safoad uonerausd painqLusip
5,5~-dY Aq patamod suonels duidreyd Aq
atow Burfeisul £q £315Ua3 S[qEMAUL PISEIID
-u1 9} Jo adejueApe ayE} Ued Y| "S3[IYaA
apqnd Aq pasn 5q ued jey) suonels suidieys
AT [BI2A3S UM vwm&:g Apeaare s1 OH V41

‘udisap palosd

0} JoLid [epysuaq aq pmom sppued 1ejos 313 Jo
uonJdod e 33830[3.1 10 sa0wal 03 suondo S,y Hl
Jo Buipueisiapun uy “suonesypows jued aya
Burudisap uaym UI2DUOD B aq 03 payoadxa si
asn pue| ‘G- gy 03 Suissasoad sprjos jo uonesof
-a1 a3} IAA "PUE[ JO Sa1de QT A[1Eau Suli3A0)
‘£110€] 3y} Jo uoptod 1ISIMIPINGS 3Y) U Pa([eIS
-ul spaued Jeos Jo MW T SeY ApuaLing -4y

*Aouanya Jejsuen uadixo 1aysdiy

IIM SJIISTYJIP 10 s1amofq £>uaiye Joysy
03 wajsAs uonesse Sunsixa aiyy Surpeaddn
Aq paasToE 8q p[nod UoTEAIaSU0D AS 18Uy
"MO[J JIe Snonunuod juedyludis samnbaa

1 se ‘ssa00.ad sarsuau] A315U9 Ue S| UOTJRIDY

SWaISAs Ie passaiduiod s L1

ay Surziundo ysnoays paasiyoe aq p[nod
s3uraes A81aua jei siqissod s1 3 "L 31
INoYInoay) pIeIo] SwNSAS Jie passardwod
adnmur sutejues A)[oe) Ay [, 11e passardurod

almbal sassanoad Juauriealy §-Jy 2U3 Jo Auep]

uondisa(g

SUOnEl§
Suidxeyn

SPIYSA JUIY
OH

uoneeisuy
JIe[0S
aseal’aq S-du

sapeaddn
uiseq uonelay
S-dd

uoneziupdp
a1y passardwor)
S-dd

ameN

$30IN059Y
a|qemausy

$a0IN0SaYy
a|qemauay

Aouapy
reuonetadp

£>usigy
[euonetadg

adAy
2loag

89



aInjonnsedjul funsxe s Husdy

ay uo yredun sJoafoad 93 dUTULIFSP 03 JUSW
-aa13e [enuajod sy a1EN[eA? [[IM YU "PADDRINE
aJe surAes 1560 pue AU[IQIXay} PeO[ JO 1Jsuaq pue
51502 [eydeD Jo yor[ ay, ‘seniioe) Aouady 1e spal
-01d a8e1035 A310uq asuodsay puewaq doaap
03 A11ed pang e £q payoeoadde uaag sey yn Il

“UOTRZIPISYNS Juelsd Yiim a[qers aq Aewl

130[0ad ay ], "fNpIqrxa} Juswadeueul ajqenjeAur
apraoad ues o3elo03s se ‘A3ojouyoa) ayy ansind

03 dNUNUO0D [[M YNHI *S-dY I8 2A[DIY 1500

10U 5[ A30[0UYD] JUILIND JEY) PUNOJ PUE SIOpUaA
a8e103s AS10ua woy stesodoad paaradal sey yNAl

‘uonen[eas
st} uo sanaed ydd 913 Ym JI0M 0] SNUNU0D
[Ilm YN “A2uaBy a1 10] 3ANIAYS 1500 SI1EY}

an[eaA e e sfelle 9 [[95 01 SUl[[Im 3Q ISNW ISUMO
3} “19A9MOY] “TauMo 103fo.1d JuaLIND Sy YIM
aseyaind [enuajod 3y noqe paxmbur sey y Al

Anngiseay

“Ared

PAIY3 943 A¢ paJ3A0d 3q pnom SUONE[[EISUL
a3eu101s ay J10J saamypuadxa [ende) ‘sowny
19130 J€ Bulaeys yead J10) 911S 1501 3y} AqQ
Pue ‘auin; ay3 jo uonaod e uonduinsuod yead
Jo sporrad SuLinp asuodsal puewap J10J 5101
Aq pasn aq pmod 1ey3 s3)1s 1s0Y je adeiols
Araneq Suijeysur £31ed paIyi e 3A[0AU] p[nom
19aload ay ], quauidofassp Jo saSeas renrur

ul ApuaIng sy yeyl yoeoldde saaneaouul ue
s1 [00} asuodsas puewsap e se agea0)s A81aug

1s9y31y aqe

sajel O] USYMm IS U0 Pasn uay} pue sporrad
yead jo apisino (AGojouydal 93e10)s JR[IWIS
J0) sel1a1yeq 98IeyD 0] pasn ag p[ned suon
-B[[EISU] S[BMIURL JBY) DINSUS P[No2 9gelols
Juawafeuew peo| yiim )sisse 03 A3ojou

-39 ade103s A819us Jo UONIR[[RISUL Y} WO
gauaq Aewl G-Jy ‘AIfIoE] 91AI9S pajpung e sy
‘G-4¥ 03 pajeso[al st Julssad

-01d sprjos aouo suondo s Arusdy ayy pued
-X3 0s[e p[nom sued Iejos a1 jo diysisumQ
"UONEISUIs Ie[0S UIOTJ $1S00 AP aIning
9)BUTWI][ 0} SN[A 19.Iell I1e] Je s[aued s}

Suiseraand Suriapisued st yNHl 'vdd € ysnoay)

V4l 03 p[os ARua.Lmna st s)s uo spued
Iejos je M T 3 wiog) pajesauasd Jamod ay ],

uondiLidsa(

uone[EIsuy
afe103g A818uy
asuodsoy

puema( S-dd

suone[EeIsu|
afeiolg
£d1oug -4y

suorne|

-[easuy Iejos Sul

-1SIXq aseyoand
S-dd

aweN

Jusua
-a8euep
A8Iaug

juaw
-agdeuepy
AB1ouy

Jus
-afeuep
Af10uy

adAg

123(0.4]

90



Project Forecasts

Forecasting the energy future of RP-5 is difficult with the uncertainty surrounding
the food waste digestion project at RP-5 SHF. The cogeneration engines fueled by
the digester gas from RP-5 SHF are rated at 3 MW. The facility has secured an
interconnection agreement with SCE that compensates the Agency for exported
power, but the food waste project has yet to prove that sustained operation.

Projects focusing on energy efficiency and load flexibility should yield positive
results regardless of the food waste digestion project’s success. IEUA will work
with a third party energy consultant to conduct a comprehensive energy audit of
the RP-5 and HQ facilities to develop energy efficiency measures and reduce power
consumption cost effectively.

As a bundled service customer with distributed generation, RP-5 is an ideal
candidate for energy storage that could reduce utility costs during peak periods
and optimize load management. Pursuing the Demand Response Energy Storage
project could improve RP-5’s resource flexibility and lower utility bills without
committing capital outlay.

The relocation of RP-2’s solids processing and RP-5 expansion will significantly
impact RP-5's infrastructure and energy profile. The pre-design phase of the
relocation project is expected to begin in July 2015. Given the large area currently
dedicated to the solar array, IEUA will evaluate the available options for modifying
the array if the land is needed for new solids processing equipment.

91



ALL TEUA FACILITIES

Overall, IEUA has the capacity to treat an average of 84.4 MGD of wastewater flow.
In FY 13/14, the RP-1, RP-4, RP-5, and CCWRF combined to produce 38,252 AF of
Title 22-compliant recycled water for indirect reuse and groundwater recharge
and the biosolids processed at RP-1 and RP-2 accounted for approximately 36
percent of the 147,800 wet tons of biosolids compaosted at the IERCF. In addition to
the treatment plants and composting facility, electrical consumption from the
pump stations and GWR facilities are included in this section as well.

Gas Production

IEUA generates renewable digester gas from solids processing at RP-1 and RP-2. In
FY 13/14, the two facilities combined to produce over 375 million cubic feet of
biogas at an average of 715 scfm. One of the Agency's energy goals is to effectively
manage the renewable digester gas by maximizing its beneficial use. Figure 27
categorizes the gas consumption at IEUA facilities in FY 13/14.

FIGURE 27. FY 13/14 DIGESTER GAS CONSUMPTION BY EQUIPMENT

92



In FY 13/14, over half of the digester gas produced by IEUA facilities was flared.
Ideally, the flares at RP-1 and RP-2 should be utilized as emergency relief valves
for the gas loop, rather than serving as the primary consumer. However, the
amount of gas flare in FY 13/14 was largely due to the complications with the fuel
cell’s gas conditioning system. Because the gas conditioning system was unable to
sufficiently treat the digester gas for consumption in the fuel cell, the fuel cell
operated strictly on natural gas during the majority of year. At RP-2, the ICE
proved more reliable as a consumer of digester gas. In FY 13/14, only 34 percent
of the digester gas produced at RP-2 was flared, while 58 percent of RP-1's gas was
consumed by the flare. Predicting the Agency’s gas consumption with full fuel cell
operation will be shown in the Energy Forecast section of this plan.

Agency Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February) months at all IEUA facilities are shown on
Figure 28. Imported electricity, energy reductions, and generation from solar,
wind, fuel cell, and ICE installations are included on these two load profiles.
Beginning in 2016, the RP-2 ICE will no longer operate, but the two 1.5 MW ICEs at
RP-5 SHF are expected to be operational. The figure shows an average load
reduction of 1.1 MW during colder months. Peak consumption is arcund 11,300
KW in summer and approximately 9,800 kW in the winter. In FY 13/14, on
average, approximately 68 percent of the Agency’s summer load was imported
from the grid, and approximately 72 percent of the electricity consumed during
winter months was imported. During peak periods, imported electricity accounted
for 62 percent and 70 percent, respectively.

93



371 Jo 9B8elany H puan jo a8esany O] 11327 |2n4 jo a8esany [} Jejos jo afeisayOd payoduw o afesany T

$ G T $F G @ 9T ¢ $F 6T G ST T 90 P $ ¢ ¢ o ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢

0 0
000t 000°F
0002 000'Z
Q00 - 000'E
000"y - 000
a00's . 000°S
000’ = e . e = —~ 000%
000'L - ) BN e . 000'Z
000'g - — - = e 0008
000°6 L 0006
000'0T 000°0T
000'FT + 000'TT
i | TIIOUdGVOTHINIM | .

aaae%ae%e% ¢ g g @ §F @ $C T P T 80 8 ¢ O ¢° % & ¢ & P

0 -0
000'T 000°T
ao00'z 000'Z
000°¢ 000°€
000'% - 000
000°S 000°S
Q009 0009
000°£ ——. 000"t
0008 000°8
0006 0006
0000T - . 00001 =
SQH.HH .ﬁ.... ST IR SRS Smm nmmAem A oy e —" - 3 = o C— £4 e .iln]iil!lnlﬂm;&.@lmmnolduql |WEEDIWI!I SOHH.H
000'7T 000°ZT

SHLNOW YALNIM ANY JFWINNS ONRINA FT40¥d V0T VAL ADVYIAY ¥1/€1 Ad 82 HUNDIA

(A1) 3I9VYSN ALDIMIDAT

(M) 29VSN ALDIMIDITI

94



Electricity Procurement

IEUA's diverse generation portfolio results in a number of procurement strategies
and sources. Table 16 lists the various sources of generation that provide power to
the Agency. The fuel cell costs in Table 16 include JEUA’s natural gas costs that are
required for the fuel cell operation. The cost of the electricity generated by the
cogeneration engines is determined by the average O&M costs IEUA spends to
keep the ICE in operation. These costs have historically been estimated at $0.08/
kWh.

TABLE 16. FY 13/14 IEUA ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Generation Service Percentage of Percentage of

Source Type At ¥pe Overall Load COverall Costs
Imported Bundled Various 23.0 217
Imported b Market-prices 45.8 45.7

Access

Fuel Cell (28 MW)* | ppa | [ixed withannual 19.6 22.3

___escalator
Fixed with annual
Solar (3.5 MW) PPA escalator 8.2 8.0
. Fixed with annual
Wind (1 MW) PPA escalator 0.6 0.4
ICE (0.58 MW) - 0&M Costs 2.8 1.7

*Includes IEUA’s natural gas costs for fue] cell operation.

In FY 13/14, on-site generation accounted for 31 percent of the total facility load
and 33 percent of the Agency’s electrical costs. The load from each generation
source only includes electricity. Thermal generation from the fuel cell and
cogeneration engine is not included in this table. The table shows that the fuel cell
electricity costs are the most expensive generation sources in IEUA’s portfolio. It is
likely that the proportionate cost of power generated from the fuel cell will
decrease in future years because the PPA’s annual escalation rate is lower than
historically averaged imported rate increases.

Demand Response

IEUA participates in the DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event, [EUA
staff is tasked with reducing the overall Agency load by 1,230 kW. In FY 13/14,
IEUA exceeded 100 percent of its target in three of the six DR events and averaged

95



a load reduction of 1,355 kW per event. IEUA’s ability to meet its reduction target
depended heavily on the time of year. Over the four warm weather DR events,
IEUA facilities averaged a load reduction of 1,619 kW per event. Over two events
during colder months, the average load reduction was 828 kW, The difference is
reduction ability is due to the seasonal RW pumping demands to which IEUA is
subject.

IEUA will further refine its demand response capabilities by evaluating the
treatment processes that can be turned off during DR events. In coordination with
Operations staff, IEUA’s Energy Management group will use the sub-metering data
to quantify the load required for each process, then formulate a DR plan that
details which processes can be called upon for load reductions throughout the
year. Seasonal variation will be avoided to the extent possible to ensure that DR
load reduction targets can be reliably met.

96



For the time being, IEUA’s inability to meet its DR reduction targets during colder
months means that the Agency is unlikely to increase the target in the next DR
contract. However, if SCE would consider compensating facilities for increased
export during DR events, IEUA could optimize its renewable resources to increase
the load available to the grid during demand response events.

IEUA will also evaluate Demand Response Energy Storage projects at several
facilities. Using energy storage to reduce grid demand is a favorable alternative to
taking facility processes offline. Stored electricity not used for grid dispatches can
then be used for peak shaving, resulting in cost savings for the Agency. The
proposed concept would also allow for more frequent demand response events,
which means the 10U would benefit as well.

Energy forecast

Figure 29 shows the 20-year energy forecast for the treatment plants, pump
stations, and composting facility. Energy efficiency projects currently planned are
anticipated to reduce peak consumption by approximately 875 kW. On site
renewable generation is expected to account for a minimum of 49 percent of the
Agency’s load in FY 33/34, and a maximum of 72 percent of Agency load in FY
18/19,

The difference between summer and winter demand ranges from 830 kW to 920
kW. The minimum Agency load over the next 20 years is expected to occur in the
winter of FY 14/15. In both summer and winter forecasts, the Agency demand is
expected to increase by approximately 4 MW over the course of the next 20 years,
with the largest demand increases coinciding with the solids expansion and MBR
installation projects.

97



SHINOW WALNIM (INV YHWWNS 404 LSVYIHU0d ANVINEA HIMOd dVIA-0Z VI "6€ HANOIA

98



Gas production forecasts for the entire agency are shown on Figure 30. The figure
estimates changes in gas production at RP-1, RP-2, and RP-5, as well as anticipated
gas usages in the RP-1 fuel cell, RP-2 engine, and RP-2 boiler. The relocation of RP-
2's solids handling process to RP-5 will result in the removal of the RP-2 boiler.
However, because the heat demand is not expected to change with the solids
handling relocation, an equivalently sized boiler is expected to begin operation at
RP-5. For this forecast, the RP-2 and RP-5 boilers are estimated to use the same
amount of digester gas.

FIGURE 30. IEUA 20-YEAR GAS PRODUCTION FORECAST

1,200 1,200
1,100 1,100
1,000 1,000
= 900 900
3
G 800 800
L2
2 700 700
o
G 60w 600
é 500 500
£ 400 400
2 30 300
0]
& 200 200
(=
2 100 100
2
[ 1] -1 3 1 T 0
ol RN I it e Lt Y LR g0 Iy AR R S IR LR L R
:\?)\ -&Dr\ -&‘9\ 'S-b\ ,;\\ s_%\ o@\ -LQ\ "I,‘“ 'I:l’\ 1:5\ o"ﬁ tf)\ 1’6\ n‘:\\ v]}\ 19\ %0.\ f,b\l q_,'ﬁ -5"5\
FISCALYEAR
[EDigester Gas Production L:Acld Gas Production L3RP-1 Fuel Cell Usage
WAP-2 Engine Usage M RP-2/RP-5 Boiler Usage

The dark red shaded area on the figure shows the average digester gas production
that exceeds the needs of the digester gas-consuming equipment on site. IEUA will
evaluate potential projects that can utilize this digester gas beneficially in order to
minimize flaring and optimize renewable resources.

Potential New Projects

This EMP has presented and assessed the feasibility of potential new projects at
each facility. Table 17 summarizes the potential projects considered to be feasible
based on available resources, facility load, and cost effectiveness. The projects
listed in this table will be evaluated further for implementation at IEUA’s facilities.

99



000°00S°L$

000°00¥%$

(Surpuny
amny
almbaua
[[Lm sypne
ut paynuapt
salnseaur)
EDGIN

1e8pny
pajewnsy

‘paseyaand aq [[Im sAelre ay)

J1 sUIULIAap 0] SISA[eue 1]Jouaq-
1502 B wirollad [Im vN4] ‘pearadal
s1[esodoad e 9oug "uondo aseld
-md 313 ansand o3 Japrao.ad ydd
911 01 INC UYJEAJ 0] INULIUOI [[IM
pes ynAd] spesodoad Aue psalesal
10U S$BY INq ‘SABLIE 9} JO 9sByD
-Ind [enuajod e Suipaedal.tapia
-0.d ydd 24} 2Im padmbur ynal
SoMmIaN

AS19uq o], Aq pa1onpuod Sp

-ne a3 jo L1Lic11d e aq [im £LousD
-13@ uny8ry quawdmba eumdo
913 AJauspt pue [0.1jU03 J0/pue
Jyo1al Jo seate [enuajod ay) ssas
-se 0] paimbal aq [[Im a1n3onas
-exjul Supnyal] Junsixa jo Jipne uy

‘Anoey yoea Je po

uawajdwil aq ues jerp) ssInseawt
UONEAI3SUO0D £313U3 2A11D3]Jd
-1502 AJyuapi 03 J1omIaN AS1aug
YL YIM 51I0JJ2 91BUIPIOOD [[IM
Jie3s Suuuerd pue ‘@oueusjuIEwW
‘suonelado ‘Supraaurdus yndl
‘G107 Arenaqag ut ssanoxd ypne
31 pajeLUI pue JIomioN Ad1a
-uq sy, yim dn pausis sey yn Al

noneyuauapdut] 0] yaed

*SWA)SAS JE[0S Y3 Aq pajetd
-ua8 Jamod a3 Surseyaund jo 51500

furo8uo ajeuuLIa] 01 J9PIO Ul AN[EA

1ad{Ieuw Jrej ye s{eLre ay) aseydand
01 axy| pimom YA J “Kared pag e

£q paurejurew pue paumo ale vl

e sAeire Je[os 3unsxa ay Jo [y

"$59 10 s1eaf
aaY Jo yoeqgAed e p[o1f pue pY
056 1940 Aq pUBWIAP 2INPaL p[Nod

ST M swaysAs Sunysi| Joopino
PUER 100pUT SUIJOIIS TEY) PaMOYs

uonenjeas Areuraad y sjon

-U0D pasealdur pue sjjo.nas Sunysi|
oy jsusq ues SanIE] ydl [V

*Sa[IUSDLJA [EUONE

-1ado 1ay81q Ut 3nsax ued ey suen
-edy1pouI ssado.ld os[e Inq ‘s1yoalal

juawidimbs woj sduiaes [enuajod

ajen[eaa £[uc jou Jey) supne £81aus

aalsuaya.rdulos 1oNpued ues sau
-edurod 2014195 A8aaua Laed paryL

uopdisag

JuauIageuey
Adiauyg

fouang
[euoneladp

fouspiyy
[euoneladp

ad£] Paloagd

suone[esu|
Jejog 3unsixy
aseypInd

sapeaddpn
Bunysry

syupny £318uq
aalsuays1dwo)

ameN

NOILVINTWATdWI HOA Q3G ISN0D 39 OL SLOH[0Ud ADHANE VI LT 3TdV.L

114

v

v

Aoy

100



‘uondo yoeo jo Ljrjiqises)

[euoneIado pUE SSOUIATIDIY 1500
J1[} SUIULIAIAP 0] PIJINPUOD 3( [[Im
UOLJEN[EAS 3SED SSAUISNY B ‘pajquias
-se U3 aAey suondo [[e adu ‘doo|
sed 1931sa81p ap ojul sed aseyd poe
a3} a1e1odiosur ¢} pausisap suon

-do [e1aaas Auapt 03 ajeloqe[jod
1M JJElS S§301A13S [EJIULYIS) PUE ‘SUOH
-elado ‘Buiuue(d ‘Burissurdua yH]

000°00ST$

*Spasu S, yH] S1I9aUWL
1e1]3 109(cad S e J0J JusuIasIde
ue do[aAap 03 9}e10qER[[0D [[IM JJElS
S3I1AISS 1JRIUOD pUR ‘BIUBUSIUTRUL
Burisaurdus ‘Suruueld ynd] S8l
-1[1oey YN A1 e s1a9(oad sy dojsasp
03 &aed pap e \pm Suipuelsiapug)

JO uINpueIoOWajy B 03Ul paIajus yNH]

(Aquo
o) jyels)
JUON

‘paataal sjesodoad

ay3 Jo A[IqIsea] at} SUlULIalAP

0] pa1INPUOd 3q [[LM UOTIEN|EAY 3SE)
ssauisng y “siapiaoad £A310ua J1ejos 0}
pansst aq [[Im s[esodoad Joj 3sanbal
B ‘UOTDI[IS 9115 SUIMO[0] "SAelte
Je[os afIe[ 8]EpOWIOIIE UEd JeY)
sa31s fenuajed ajenjeaa [[Im VN A

000°000'0Z%

1PEpng

TS uonejudwajdurf 0y Ped

‘a8e103s Sed SA[CALI PNOd

joaload ay, pasn L[ewysuaq s1 T-JY
1e pasnpoud sed ay Jo [[e Jey os doog
sed 13)5a81p sy yim sed aseyd poe
3y XTW 03 ABM JUSIOLJS 1S0D 1SOW oY}
SUIULISISP 0} PalONpU0d aq [[Im uonen
-[eAd uy "aAniqryoxd 150 aq 03 umoys
aAey asn epYaUA( J10] sed ay) Suzinn
s199(0.1 “a4e]) Y3 0] pajdaLIp APUsLInd
SI T-4¥ 1€ peonpoud sed aseyd poy

'S}
Iato Je Suraeys yead Joj a31s 350y a1}

. £q pue ‘awn} ay jo uornod e uonduins

-uod yead jo sporiad Surmnp asucdsal

puewap 10} s)O] £q pash aq p[nod yeyy

(V031 03 3502 ou 3e) sanijioe) vl e
aBe1031s Areneq Sureisur L.red panp
e aA[0AUl pInom 133foad ST YL

*SOI[IDE] JOYI0 S,§
-NA] 38 51562 AN 395)J0 0] YD

' y8noua 110dxa p[noo ey A1fe] yndl

auo Je Ae.LIe IE[0S B JO UCHE[[EISUl 31}

- aAoAul ppnom 1aload sty ‘uoneziues

-10 dWes 3y} Aq p[oY SIUN0IIR JIYI0
U0 $)patd se 3e 0) syalord AZ1oud
a[qemaual U0 A)31noa[a paliodxa
10] smofre werdord 1Hg-S9Y A0S

uondrsag

$90.IN0S
-9y ajqemauay

Juawdeuey
AS18ug

592.IN0S
-3y ajqemauay

adl4y, 1aloag

Suxipy
sen I131sadiq

UONE[[BISU]
a8e1031g
A81auy

asuodsay
puBwaQg

Aelry I1e[0S
MIN G [[EIsU]

JUIEN

T-d4

JdMD) pue
‘S-dY ‘T-dd

v

Ayoe

10



*sj00(oad a3e.103s £813ua

[enualod AJnuapi 0} s1apraold asapy
}im suondo SSnasip 03 sNURU0D

[[IM VF] "2AT9))9 180 s30afoxd
33ewW 0] SAIPISQNS JUIUIUISA0S
9ZI[ON .10 SJUDWITE AIBYS 1S0D IajJo
Je s1aplaoad anlalas A31sUs punoy
pue suonjdo a8ex0ys A8xaua ansind 0}
ponunuos sey ynAI -2aniqyoad 1soa
aJom suone[[ejsul agel0ls A31aua Jo
aseypand o1 10 s[esodoad snotaalg

00000S'T$

‘pauniojiad uopenjeay

aSE7) SSaUISng B pUe panssi aq [[ImM
sjesodo.ad 10] 3sonbaa e ‘vonejnsuod
ST} 3ULMO[[0,] “3SN pUE] A[(B[IRAR 31}
AT paAane aq pnod ey Lyoeded
uonerauss renuayed ayy sutuLIIAp
0] SIOpUSA ([}M INSUO0I [[tM YNHI

000'000%$

ANd] PUE -dd
Je uonejuswajdur ansind 03 JI0puaa

91 M AI0OM 0] STIUDUOD [[IM Y]
'sporad yead-uou o3 uonerado HJYAH
uiL| 03 pausdisap sjonuod Aiddns 03
JIOpUdA B [)Im JaW Sy y(1d] ‘padejdad
aq ued jeqy Juawdinba Anyuapr

0} AemIapun sI sjun YYAH

Sunsmxa s -4 Jo JUIUISSISSE Uy

000°SZ1$

193png

T uonenwduj 0y QIeg

15931y axe sajel NI

uayMm 3JIS UO PAsn Uy} pue sponrad
jead jo apisino (ABofouyda) a3el101s
Je[Iuifs 10) salIaneq asteyo o} pasn
3q p[nod SUONE[[EISUI I[qeMIUaI Jey)
aInsus pmoeo 98el01§ JUswIASeuew
PEO[ YiIm 151SSE 0} £Z0[0Uyra
aSel01s A31aus Jo UOE[[EISUT

33 WO JYaudd ued JOUAI/H-dy
‘NOI 3y wio.y 1saydry st Sunud NO.L
uaym "Aep a13 Jo I[ppiwt 213 uLmp
3soy31y st peo[ Aey ayy SuLIapIsuo)

‘fyoedes uonessuss Jejos

aypy puedxo 03 -4y e pue| ajqe[iear
U0 10 JJYAI Jo Joou ay) ue spued
[euonippe duifelsur 3uLIAPISUOD
S1YNdl 'Vdd & ysnoIyl ydi 03 pios
Apuarino sy ayis uo spaued Jejos Jo
MK T o) wog) pajesauad Jamod ay,

‘sporiad

yead-uou 03 ucnesado YYAH W]
JEY) S[C.IJU0D YUMm PARILINo 10 S[9powl
U013 a.Jow 0} papelddn aq ued
s3Iun 3say) Jo Auepy "[01IU0I WP
JI0J S}IUN JYAH asn jeq s3urp[mg
Auew aaey gJYA] PUe $-dy

nondunsaq

JusuIadeuey
Ag81suq

Louayrq
[euoneradgp

Aouapyq
[eucneradg

adA ], yafoad

uone[[eIsu]
ade101g wumm:
Ad1auy Lt
uone[[eIsu] 43441
Jejog puedxyg /y-dd

sapeaddn
pue sjo.nuo) wwﬂmm
JVAH
JureN Lyoe]

102



ddl

000000°c$

HumHgﬁm_
paremnsy

q10e

A ur mi8eq 03 pajradxa ST YIIYM
“03(o.1d uonesoas AyMoe) Suipuey
sprfos a3 Jo aseyd uSisapaad

a3 Yym [aqfered ul pajenjeas

aq [[m sucndo a[qefreay ‘spued ayy
Sunesofal Jo Bulaowal Jo LI[IQISEa)
91} FUIULINBP 0] Japraoad yvdd 243
M DIBUIPIOOD [[IM Y(H] ‘paseyaand
aq jouues sppued 1e[os sy} Sulwnssy

siead g 03 £ Jaye

8unyenolsa Jo Jusjul 313 Yyum pausisap
aq pnom swsisAs Surnoyipued

SEF pue auIqIMmoII 3} Jo
uone[[eisu] Joaload ay Jo uoneneay
asen ssauisng e Sunonpuod A[Uaring
SI PUB UOTIB[[EISUL QUIGINIOLIWL MY
009 e 10] [esodord e paaladal yd]

uonejusmaydu] 03 @Eed

‘usisap sfoad o1

Joud [eroyausq aq pnom s[aued xe[os
313 Jo uon.Jod € 31BJ0[4.1 10 SACWIAT

03 suondo s ynd[ Jo Sutpuelsiapun
uy ‘suonesyipow yue[d s Surudisep
UayM UI3DU0D € 3 03 pajdadxa

S1 9sn pue| ‘-4 01 Buissadoid spijos
JO UOTIB20[31 33 YHAA "PUB] JO SaI0e (T
AL1eau 3uLIaA03 ‘A11oey ay3 jo uondod
ISIMINOS 3] U0 paffeasut sppued
JejoSs JO MW T SEY Apua.aInd §-4y

“Jeay pue A1151023[a ajelousd

03 Ay1oe] ay Aq pasnpoad sed

93 JO [[e SZI[N p[Nod pue ‘Z°0TTT My
AWOVIS Japun SUCHe)IWI| SUOISSTUId
01 322[qns aq 30U p[NOM 3UIQINIOID U
ay [, 'wasAs uruonipuco sed

pue SUIG.IMOIIIW MY 009 B (IM FD
Z-d¥ 33 aoejdaa prnom yaload sy,

uondLsa(g

$20IN0SaY
a|qemauay

SadInosay
a[qemauay

ad4] yoloxg

uone[[eisu]
Jejes 5-dd
aseatds(]
UOTIB[[EISU]
Z-dd
AUIQITOIN
owmeN Aoey

103



re—

Project Forecasts

Implementing all of the projects listed in Table 13 is estimated to require
$38,025,000 in capital expenditures. However, these projects will require further
evaluation before funds can be committed to the Agency’s budget. Efficiency
projects with low pajback periods are most likely to be implemented. IEUA will
depend on The Energy Network’s comprehensive energy audits to identify
potential efficiency projects at each facility. Measures identified will be assessed by
IEUA staff for feasibility and operational impacts prior to implementation.

IEUA will investigate several new solar projects. Evaluating the cost effectiveness
of purchasing the existing solar arrays is a current priority, although it requires
collaboration from the PPA provider and equipment owner. Purchasing the

104



existing panels will also impact the Agency’s ability to remove or relocate a portion
of RP-5's solar array, if deemed necessary as part of the RP-2 solids processing
relocation project. Potential solar system expansion will be considered at RP-4/
IERCF, in addition to a new multi-megawatt capacity array that can benefit from
SCE's RES-BCT program by crediting IEUA’s SCE costs at Agency’s facilities through
export.

Energy storage will be heavily pursued to improve IEUA's demand side
management capabilities. [EUA will pursue energy storage installations through
two separate avenues: 1} as a demand response tool employed collaboratively
with SCE, and 2) through direct purchase with subsidization. Introducing energy
storage to IEUA’s portfolio would allow progression toward the goal of peak period
independence without devoting resources to new distributed generation projects.

Retrofitting inefficient HVAC equipment and installing controls to limit peak
period operation will target cost reductions at RP-4/IERCF. This project will be
closely monitored to determine actual savings based on system performance. If the
project proves to be a success, it will be considered for implementation at other
IEUA facilities that experience high demand charges.

Optimizing digester gas utilization will be addressed at RP-1 by evaluating options
to allow for the beneficial use of acid phase gas. IEUA staff will coordinate with
industry professionals to investigate several operational modifications that would
permit RP-1's equipment to operate on a fuel mixture that includes the acid phase
gas. At RP-2, removal of the ICE by the end of 2015 signals the end of distributed
generation using digester gas. IEUA evaluated several projects that could utilize RP
-2's existing digester gas production and comply with the stringent air quality
regulations. Of the projects identified, installation of a microturbine appears to be
the most feasible based on cost and portability. IEUA will perform a detailed BCE
of this project before determining whether to invest in the technology.

105



Path to Implementation

Evaluating potential energy projects at each [EUA facility produced several viable
projects to be considered for implementation. The process also uncovered
complexities that frequently affected the viability of potential projects. This section
aims to foster understanding of new project implementation by delineating the
typical incentives and disincentives.

NEW PROJECT DRIVERS

Electrical Demand

Any energy project considered for implementation should cost effectively achieve
at least one of two goals: 1) reduce the facility load through efficiency measures,
process modification, or new technology, and/or 2) increase the Agency’s self-
generation capacity. These goals can be achieved in several ways, but in each case,
the facility demand must be considered. Furthermore, recognition of the facility’s
electrical requirements alone is not enough. Since new projects are typically
evaluated for feasibility over a ten to twenty year period, each evaluation must
include current and future electrical loads. Forecasts should include anticipated
demand increases as well as efficiency measures. The EMP alse considers facility
demands during summer and winter months because of seasonal variation in
operations. For reasons described below, new project may be designed to avoid
power export. In such cases, the lowest facility demand must be considered when
determining the facility’s available load.

The scope of potential projects at IEUA facilities will vary widely depending on the
percentage of electrical load at each facility that is being supplied by an external
source (through either bundled or Direct Access service). Evaluations conducted in
this EMP have shown that projects focused on efficiency measures alone are more
likely to be considered when the imported contribution to facility load is below 1
MW. Distributed generation projects below 1 MW typically carry leng payback
periods and/or risks that hinder viability.

106



Available Resources

New project implementation, especially for distributed generation projects, is also
driven by the facility resources available. Renewable digester gas production at RP
-1 and RP-2 opens up a multitude of projects that can take advantage of the heat
content in the gas or optimize its use through more efficient processing. Increasing
IEUA’s renewable portfolio through additional solar or wind installations would
require available land space, which is increasingly more difficult to attain as
regional development grows.

Regulatery Impact

Environmental regulations must also be considered when evaluating a potential
project. As a public agency located in Southern California, IEUA is located in a
region that contains some of the more stringent regulatory air and water quality
measures in the country. IEUA’s ability to install renewable energy projects has
been greatly affected by air quality regulations for digester gas-fueled engines.
SCAQMD Rule 1110.2 played a role in IEUA’s decision to pursue fuel cell
technology at RP-1, and compliance with the rule will alse factor into future ICE
operations at RP-2 and RP-5 SHF.

Assembly Bill 32 {AB 32}, the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006,
requires industries to implement GHG reduction measures in order to achieve
1990 emissions levels by 2020 in the state. Although wastewater treatment plants
have not been identified in the state’s scoping plans and no IEUA facility emits
GHGs above the reporting thresholds identified in the bill, the Agency has
proactively begun to track GHG emissions and consider global warming potential
of new projects. IEUA recently joined the Climate Registry to voluntarily report
GHG emissions across the agency on an annual basis.

Cost Effective Sustainability

While each of these factors can drive potential projects toward or away from
feasibility, IEUA’s Business Goals dictate that new projects must be cost effective.
This EMP strives to work within the confines of Southern California’s
environmental regulations and modest capital as a public agency to achieve
sustainability at peak periods through efficiency projects and renewable
generation. New projects often require subsidization from outside sources to be
considered cost effective. As such, IEUA staff is continually pursuing grant

107



oppertunities that can be applied toward beneficial projects.

IEUA has utilized several sources of grant funding since 2002 to develop energy
efficiency projects. Both SCE and SCGC offer incentives for efficiency projects,
although IEUA has partnered with SCE more regularly due to the amount of
electricity usage at the Agency and greater potential for reductions. IEUA also
received funding from the Department of Energy (DOE} and the Natural Resources
Conservation Service to complete renewable generation projects in the past. The
most significant source of grant funding has historically come from the California
Energy Commission, which has provided nearly $20 million to fund various energy
projects across Agency facilities over the past 12 years.

NEW PROJECT BARRIERS

In its experience installing and evaluating energy projects, IEUA has observed
several barriers that can detrimentally affect project feasibility. Identifying these
difficulties and offering solutions is imperative to fostering sustainable growth and
a key component of this EMP.

Grid Interconnection

Generating facilities in SCE's service area are required to obtain an interconnection
agreement under SCE's Rule 21 tariff. All of IEUA’s renewable energy installations
have interconnection agreements, each achieved with varying levels of difficulty
depending on the level of project complexity.

The 3.5 MW of solar arrays were granted interconnection with SCE in 2008.
Interconnection of the 1 MW wind turbine was approved in 2010. The installations
were not complex, so the interconnection agreements were cobtained quickly and
without difficulty. Because the nameplate capacities were designed to use 100
percent of the generated electricity on site, the interconnection agreements did not
contain export provisions, which simplified the process.

RP-1’s fuel cell installation proved to be a more complex interconnection process
than previous agreements. The combined nameplate capacities of the fuel cell and
solar array resulted in potential export during times of peak generation. In
December 2012, IEUA submitted an interconnection application for the fuel cell
and solar installations that would compensate IEUA for any electricity exported.
SCE’s NEM program allows for export from solar electrical generating facilities
with capacities below 1 MW. However, SCE’s fuel cell NEM schedule contains the

108



same 1 MW limit, which means that IEUA cannot export electricity from the fuel
cell installation.

The combination of two renewable energy installations at the same facility with
opposing export capabilities presented difficulties in the interconnection process.
In April 2014, following extensive discussions with SCE staff, IEUA executed a
multiple tariff interconnection agreement that would allow IEUA to export a
maximum of 3.5 MW; however, only the portion generated by the solar facility
would be eligible for compensation. Tracking the electricity from the renewable
installations would be achieved through Net Generation Output Meters (NGOMs).

IEUA evaluated the proposed NGOM project and determined that installing the
meters would be cost prohibitive. Considering RP-1's load and renewable
generation capacity, the amount of electricity exported is expected to be minimal
and sporadic. As of April 2015, IEUA was in discussions with SCE to allow for
export from RP-1 without compensation, while maintaining the ability to install
NGOMs in the future if the project is later deemed to be cost effective.

IEUA also encountered difficulties obtaining an interconnection agreement at RP-5
that would allow for export from the REEP ICEs. [EUA initially applied for an
interconnection agreement for the 1CEs in 2006 under SCE’s biogas NEM program,
but the agreement was never finalized because the ICEs were never commissioned.
As a result, IEUA was required to submit a new application for interconnection
under SCE’s RES-BCT program, which would allow for exported electricity to be
compensated as bill credits on IEUA’s other SCE accounts. IEUA submitted the RES-
BCT application in June 2013 and executed the interconnection agreement in May
2014. The REEP ICEs were commissioned in January 2015 and first exported to the
grid the following month.

Based on these experiences, IEUA considers the process of obtaining
interconnection agreements with SCE to be unfavorable toward new renewable
projects. When progress stalled on both RP-1's NEM and RP-5’s RES-BCT
agreements, IEUA held conference calls with SCE staff twice per week to ensure
that information was processed as quickly as possible and that the application
evaluation continued in a timely manner. The recommendaticns and requirements
provided by SCE to comply with interconnection standards were costly, and in the
case of RP-1, were considered cost prohibitive. For a public agency attempting to
expand renewable generation with a limited project budget, the interconnection
process contains significant expenditures, both in capital outlay and staff time.

109



In both experiences at RP-1 and RP-5, the interconnection process was
complicated because one renewable installation exceeded the 1 MW limit
established in the NEM tariff. Increasing this limit to allow for larger renewable
installations to be considered in the NEM program could reduce the time and costs
involved in obtaining interconnection agreements. Furthermore, IEUA noticed a
marked improvement in progress once regular conference calls were scheduled to
maintain communication with SCE staff. Although this contributed to the
considerable staff time devoted to the interconnection process, the conference
calls reduced the overall duration of the application evaluation. Establishing
frequent communication with SCE staff during the entirety of the evaluation
process will be considered an essential component of any future interconnection
agreement.

IEUA is currently working with BAC and CASA to open a dialogue with the CPUC
regarding interconnection concerns. By communicating past difficulties to the
CPUC, the IEUA is attempting to help identify straining areas of the interconnection
process and hopefully foster discussion on potential paths to improvement.

Renewable Energy Economics

Consistent with IEUA’s Business Goals, projects that improve sustainability during
peak periods will only be pursued if they are determined to be cost effective after
thorough analysis and evaluation. Most of the renewable installations at IEUA’s
facilities were designed to avoid exporting electricity when facility demand is
lowest. Although inadvertent export is allowed under SCE’s Rule 21 and IEUA is
compensated for electricity exported at RP-2 and RP-5, the economics of exporting
electricity to the grid are not favorable to IEUA. [EUA’s average costs of electricity,
on a $/kWh basis, in FY 13/14 are shown on Figure 31. For comparison, SCE’s
average compensation rate for exported electricity from NEM customers is shown
in red on the same figure.

The figure shows that current renewable installations are cost effective because
they supplement imported electricity at a lower rate. Although the average cost of
solar was $0.001 higher per kWh in FY 13/14, the fact that solar panels generate
power during SCE’s peak periods means that the solar installations are cost
effective on a TOU basis since they supplement imported electricity that would
otherwise carry high demand charges.

110



FIGURE 31. FY 13/14 AVERAGE ELECTRICITY COST BY SOURCE

$0.140 $0.127 $0.128

$0.125
$0.120 -
Z 0200 - $0.087
§ $0.080
g $0.080 -
- E—
% 50060 1 50_047
g —
“ s0.040 -
$0.020 -
$ —
Imported Solar Fue Cell Wind Exported
Electricity Turbine Electricity

Because the export compensation rate is anywhere from $0.033-0.081 lower per
kWh than IEUA’s electricity procurement rate (based on FY 13/14 data), IEUA
cannot recover the procurement costs of exported electricity through
compensation alone. Compensation rates for NEM customers are calculated using a
market-based mechanism derived from hourly day-ahead electricity pricing,
similar to the mechanism used by ESPs that provide electricity to IEUA through the
Direct Access program. The rate reflects the costs that SCE aveids in procuring
power during the time that it is produced by the generating facility. It is unlikely
that SCE will substantially increase the compensation rate to accommodate
facilities desiring more robust renewable portfelios with the ability to regularly
export. As such, revised economic models must focus efforts elsewhere.

An alternative solution would rely on modifications to the CEC’s RPS, which
mandates that all electric service suppliers provide at least 33 percent of their
energy from renewable sources by 2020. These suppliers can achieve the
mandated limits by purchasing RECs that satisfy one of three content categories,
often referred to as buckets. Because IEUA uses the renewable energy it generates
on site, any RECs generated fall into Bucket 3, which carries the lowest value on
the trading market.

111



IEUA’s experience in pursuing RECs for its renewable installations found that the
cost of obtaining the certificates often negated the potential profits of any sale.
However, the California assembly, with assistance from CASA, is pursuing
legislation that would allow for renewable installations at wastewater facilities to
be eligible for Bucket 1 status as part of Assembly Bill 1144. This designation could
drastically improve renewable project economics. IEUA is in support of AB 1144
and will track its progress closely.

In addition to export compensation, project economics also depend heavily on the
capital expense required for installation, Although IEUA was able to avoid capital
expenditures for the scolar, wind, and fuel cell installations by entering into PPAs,
the cost of installation was factored into the electricity procurement rate for each
agreement. The procurement rate was also affected by potential government
incentives, grant subsidizations, and for the wind and fuel cell installations,
transfer of RECs to the PPA provider.

Whether IEUA pursues PPAs or outright purchase, the cost of installing renewable
technologies greatly affects the project feasibility. In the past, IEUA evaluated
several technologies for implementation that were determined to be cost
prohibitive, including gas storage, energy starage, fuel cells, biogas conversion to
compressed natural gas, small hydropower, geothermal, and biogas conditioning
to inject into the natural gas pipeline. IEUA’s resources allow for a wide array of
energy projects, many of which are simply too expensive to implement at present.
However, with additional government incentives or further subsidization
opportunities, some of these technelogies may be considered cost effective if the
capital required is sufficiently reduced.

Furthermore, greater incentive and subsidization opportunities could result in
more applications of new technology across the industry. The renewable resources
utilized at IEUA are not unique to its facilities. With wider application of new
technologies leading to greater market saturation, projects that were once cost
prohibitive could now be considered cost effective,

Energy Forecasiing

IEUA’s BCEs rely on energy forecasts to determine potential savings over the life of
the project being evaluated. IEUA uses the historical rates published by SCE to
estimate average rate increases moving forward. Historically, SCE's rates for
commercial customers have increased by an average of six percent per year, which

112



includes the rate of inflation. To remain conservative, IEUA uses annual utility
increases of four and six percent when evaluating new projects, which provides a
range of potential savings.

The California Independent System Operator (CAISO) operates the bulk of the
state’s wholesale energy market. CAISO’s operation of the power grid allows
insight and open access into the energy industry. As part of its activities, CAISO
tracks the average net load for the state each day. In 2013, CAISO identified that
California’s solar installations have had a combined effect on the net load that
could significantly influence the energy needs of the state in years to come.

Figure 32, often referred to as the “duck curve,” shows CAISO’s actual net loads for
March 31 in 2012 and 2013, along with projections each year until 20203. Between
the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.,, the figure shows slight energy increases that
closely track the previous year. Between the hours of 7:00 am. and 7:00 p.m,, or
during daylight hours, the demand on the grid declines sharply each year. Figure
32 estimates that mid-day grid demand in 2020 could be as much as 9,000 MW
less than the actual demand in 2012. The reason for the drop in demand is the
widespread installation of solar energy systems across the state, which will further
reduce grid demand during daylight hours if solar installation trends continue.

FIGURE 32. CA’S NET LOAD PROJECTIONS THROUGH 2020 (DUCK CURVE)
Net load - March 31

28,000
26,000 i
24,003 !
{
22000 | -
I : 2012
20050 ¢ B ety g e e b
% i g S e ._,.:_'.:\“I\ — - TE)CH_JG[I_- o
% 16,000 E N 2073 factual]
L - L2014 -
. S ~13,000 MW
i 1 . ’
14,000 § B . [} A "m'thEE"hoUl‘S"
| 201¢
12000 / 020
| overgeneration
10000 B |
; risi
&
T
0 —r——————— e ———————————————————————————
12am 3am Gam Som 12pm 3pm dpm Ppm
Howr

3Source: “What the Duck Curve Tells us about Manoging a Green Grid,” CAISO, 2013 .
113



This new load profile carries significant concern for the state’s energy generators.
Between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. in 2020, grid demand is expected to
increase by 80 percent over the course of three hours. The problems presented by
this curve will require creative solutions by energy generators, and will involve
employment of energy storage in large quantities. Nevertheless, the scope of this
concern extends beyond IEUA’s influence.

However, the Agency could be impacted by the resulting change in tariffs that
utilities can implement in response to the duck curve. New projects are evaluated
under the assumption that tariffs structures will be similar over the next 20 years.
Certain potential projects, such as solar installations, rely on avoiding or reducing
demand charges from the electrical utility to achieve an economic benefit, If the
peak period is shifting from mid-day to late evening to match the expecting net
load peak, project economics could be greatly affected. Other projects that increase
efficiency or can be programmed to adjust to varying peak periods may not be
affected by potential modifications to SCE’s tariffs. IEUA will continue to monitor
discussion of the duck curve, as well as SCE’s plan to respond to the changing net
load.

114



Management Practices

In addition to tracking energy usage and evaluating potential projects, IEUA's EMP
includes several measures that are applied throughout the year to optimize
resources and better understand the Agency portfolio.

PROCUREMENT

With the exception of RP-4 and RP-5, IEUA has the option of procuring electricity
through [OUs or separate ESPs. Natural gas is procured through an ESP for IEUA's
larger usage needs (core accounts), as well as its smaller accounts (non-core). IEUA
currently purchases electricity through unbundled service, or DA, at three of its five
largest accounts, and bundled service at the remaining two and all smaller

115



accounts (standalone RW and GWR facilities). The Agency has realized
considerable savings during the summer months utilizing direct access {DA)
agreement.

The pricing structure for electricity generated from IEUA’s renewable installations
varies between each agreement. The PPA rates are structured similarly, with fixed
rates and annual escalators that were negotiated to produce long-term financial
benefits for the Agency. Considering the large historical variation in grid pricing
from year to year, establishing a fixed energy pricing forecast for much of the
Agency’s demand is a valuable planning tool for energy management.

Prospective cost savings depend on the negotiated electricity purchase price of
each PPA, anticipated rate increases from the electrical grid, and expected power
generation from the installations. The negotiated purchase pricing (Figure 33), on
a $/kWh basis, generally compares favorably to grid purchase pricing.

FIGURE 23. PPA RATE COMPARISON TO GRID FORECASTS

0.40
0.35 J/
Grid Price Forecast

0.30 ___{6% Annual Escalation)
E 4
E 0.25 —
bry .
— Grid Price Forecast

— 2

s 0.20 {4% Annual Escalation) - M e
E e
E
2
=

o o

5 O

i
?
""-.

0.05

0.00
2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031

s |CE Solar Wind - «Fuel Cell === Purchased from Grid

116



Current PPA purchase rates are competitive with the grid purchase rates, but the
long-term benefits become apparent when comparing the annual escalating scales
between the two costs. Based on energy industry forecasts, grid electricity costs
are expected to increase between four and six percent, on average, over the next
20 years. Since each PPA’s annual escalation rate is below four percent, the Agency
anticipates that all PPA installations will realize annual savings within the next two
to three years. The amount of savings achieved can vary widely, as shown on
Figure 34.

FIGURE 34. CUMULATIVE SAVINGS ESTIMATE FROM RENEWABLES

$30,000,000 y
/.f
$25,000,000 - —
Grid Price Forecast /
6% Annual Escalation
& $20,000,000 (6% Annue ) N
7]
- i
= ,f’
E $15,000,000 7
o /
w
> 4 4
g $10,000,000 v i i
= Grid Price Forecast _;?// o =3
= {49 Annual Escalation) 5/ &
= 55,000,000 7
U '_,.’r {,/;9
/// __';) >
So -—Lr—m-——-_?_.-ﬁ-ﬁ:;r,-#{ et
-55,000,000 L LN LR N N HOU R I RN B HE SN B T T

2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031

Each agreement also contains the option of purchasing the equipment rather than
continue as a PPA customer. IEUA is continually evaluating this opportunity, as well
as imported energy procurement options, annually to determine the most cost
effective solution in both the short and long term.

INCREASED MONITORING

With the advent of sub-metering at each facility, IEUA will have the capability of
tracking electricity usage by process. As of April 2015, the Agency’s sub-meter

117



equipment was still undergoing modifications to reliably provide electrical usage
data. Once the installation is complete, IEUA will be able to identify the energy
intensity of each treatment process. As aforementioned, the sub-meters will be
used to quantify energy usage for each process and identify potential load
reductions that can be incorporated in the DR program,

Several resources have made strides in recent years in establishing energy metrics
for wastewater treatment processes. The Agency can use these resources to
compare the sub-meter data and gauge potential areas for improvement. Rather
than targeting processes that are simply energy-intensive, efficiency projects
should focus on processes that use more energy than is considered necessary or
standard within the industry.

Moreover, tracking energy usage from each process will benefit [EUA's Operations
and Maintenance staff, as sudden variations in energy usage can signal the need for
repair or replacement. To the extent allowed by currently available data,
performance management tools (i.e, Key Performance Indicators (KPI} and Unit
Production Costs (UPC)} are being used to menitor energy use and energy
generation at the facilities. These tools are important components of an effective
energy management program. As more data on energy use become available
through sub-metering, the KPI and UPC tools will be expanded to take full
advantage of the information collected from the meters. IEUA staff will be tasked
with incorporating the process energy usage into regular Operations and
Maintenance staff responsibilities.

EDUCATION

In addition to tracking data and identifying programs, the Agency must educate its
employees on their role in improving energy management. Raising awareness of
energy usage and cost impacts can empower staff to conserve and even
recommend process changes that might otherwise be overlooked by an auditor
unfamiliar with process details.

IEUA’s external affairs staff produces a monthly newsletter that is distributed to all
employees at the Agency. Beginning in May 2015, the monthly newsletter will
include a regular update focusing on energy management, conservation
opportunities, or education. Additionally, [EUA Operations and Maintenance
employees will be given annual training that explains IEUA’s energy procurement
strategy, cost impacts, and how they can help reduce energy usage.

118



NEW PROJECT SOLICITATION

IEUA has the ability to include specific standards or performance objectives in
project scopes whenever issuing RFPs. Beginning in FY 15/16, RFPs issued by IEUA
will require vendors to include high-efficiency equipment in any project, as
warranted. New project evaluations will also consider the impact on energy
consumption and management. Proposals that improve energy management will
be prioritized over similar proposals that are neutral or adverse to energy
management.

AUDITING

Along with sub-metering information data, an energy audit can help identify
efficiency opportunities within the treatment plants. Agency staff regularly audits
equipment through the Asset Management Plan to determine if processes can be
optimized through equipment retrofit/replacement or operational adjustments.
IEUA will utilize The Energy Network to conduct comprehensive energy audits of
each of the treatment plants by the end of FY 15/16.

Furthermore, the Energy Management Plan, updated every two years, will serve as
an annual analysis of energy usage with the goal of targeting energy intensive
processes and uncovering potential conservation opportunities.

119



Appendix A

IEUA Business Goals



v
+
v

NY1ld LNIWIDYNYIN ADYINIT STO0Z YNl




IEUA Business Goals

October 2013




Business Goal Development

PURPOSE: It is critical that IEUA Business Goals align with the Agency’s Mission, Vision & Values which
are defined by the needs of ocur Stakeholders and the value provided to the Public. The Business Goal
Development process includes a review of existing Agency-wide policy goals and their refinement based
on current and future needs. It is also critical in setting the framework for the development of the IEUA
Strategic Plan that will shape and guide the Agency’s fundamental decisions and actions over the next
several years.

BACKGROUND: Over the last several years, the Agency-wide policy goals, which have guided the
Agency's decisions and actions in executing its mission and attaining its vision, have been categorized
into nine major thematic areas: Conservation & Water Quality, Technological Innovation, Rate
Stabilization and Cost Effectiveness, Operational and Maintenance Efficiency, Strategic Planning and
Capital Implementation, Waste Management and Resource Utilization, Interagency Relationships and
Community Partnerships, Fiscal Accountability and Regulatory Compliance, and Staff Training,
Development and Well Being.

These Agency-wide policy goals guide the development of the capital improvement program,
operational budget, and organizational goals and objectives each budget cycle. As a way to further
define the Agency’s levels of service (LOS), several workshops were held with the IEUA Board of
Directors in 2011. However, the LOS developed as part of these workshops were primarily focused on
the Agency’s operational functions. In early 2013 staff recommended the LOS be expanded into more
broad based IEUA Business Goals to also include the following topics: water reliability, fiscal
accountability and employee wellbeing. It was also determined that the development of the IEUA
Business Goals should include input from Stakeholders including: IEUA Board of Directors, IEUA staff,
Technical Committee members and Policy Committee members.

" IEUA Business Goals |




BUSINESS GOALS FUNCTION: For any organization to remain relevant and effective, its ability to
adapt-and prepare for change is essential. As illustrated below, the IEUA Business Goals must be must

be continually evaluated as part of the planning process to ensure that they meet the current and future

needs of the Region.

Agency Mission & Values

Fiscal Reszonsibility
Workplace Environment
Business Fractices

Water Relighiliny
Wastewater Management

Iy‘ Business Goals (LOS)_ a

R

F
t" l Erwirgnmental Stewardshin
{

i

! Strategic Plan
| l

|

1

L

‘\

- Planning Elements

N T A T A A

Facility WR Sewsr Ten-Year Financial Policies & Goals &
Master Mester System Ning, Capital Flan Frocedures Objectives
Pl Flan Pluin Plan

I/EUA Business Goals




BUSINESS GOALS STRUCTURE: The IEUA Business Goals were categorized into six main areas: Fiscal
Responsibility, Workplace Environment, Business Practices, Water Reliability, Wastewater Management
and Environmental Stewardship. Within each Business Goal {i.e. Water Reliability), several Objectives
were established to support the Business Goal (i.e. beneficial use of recycled water, etc.). For each
Objective, a Commitment was developed to define the level of service that IEUA will provide (i.e.
develop recycled water infrastructure to reuse 50,000 AFY). The structure of the Business Goals is
shown in the following figure:

Fiscal

Funifing &
Apiremriation

= Lommitment

Workplace
| Environment §

M=z, Vo,

& Valiees

=Commitment

Siatl-Salety

sLoammBtimnant

Business
Practices

= Ciarry o (1mpe il

Water
Reliability

= Lammitmant

i Weoyried Waker

s Lommirmeant

B

=Lommliment

Wastewater
Management

C=p=tity

s Camamiifrmpds

IEUA Business Goals

L

Stewardship

Sunced e o
Palicy

o Lot

 Lomimiitmaml

{rerrhEr Al

StEwardsnp

s C e meid

Environmentak:

IEUA Business Goals




DOCUMENT STRUCTURE: Included within this narrative is one page for each Business Goal — which
outlines the Business Goal intent, each Objective and the corresponding recommended Commitment.
Background on each Objective/Commitment is included within the Appendix.

— - D S S e G M R

:-"- BusinessGoal: Fiscal Respansihility :
. . 1
: VEUR welil cMo ﬂ‘:tﬂgmcfr_ Racol basith theough organuﬂ_w' eficiarcy, i Business Goal
i adeption of bajaread muitipaar budgeis ord rates irat mast Jiil coat-of-sary!ce ]
| lergels, molntair a digh qualty coedit rating ond sresncve antabilibed fund boiares :
L casarvas lo e¥ectvely adaress ihest term ond long tarm esoremlc varlakiitty. i
' ---------------------------------------
: Key Objective

flpw of orerating ravends
o gl ozeratianal evsetres cagitel renlazesent end Selt fenvice gose in
ligmeure That SErn€ TeteE RO CRACges FUatan the LgEnovs

Commitment Level

eeele of ceruige

I Background Information Location

SCHEDULE: The development, review and approval of Business Goals entails a sequence as indicated in
the schedule below:

¢ |EUA Staff Workshop 1

IEUA Staff Workshop I

IEUA Board Workshop |

Water Managers'/Technical Committee Workshop

IEUA Board Workshop |l

Water Managers'/Technical Committee Workshop |l

Joint IEUA Board/Policy Member Workshop

IEUA Board Approval

CEEEREE

Following the completion of this process, the adopted Business Goals will be used as the basis for
the development of several planning documents, including the Strategic Plan, Integrated Water
Resources Plan, Facilities Master Plan Update and the Asset Management Plan.

IEUA Business Gools




DEFINITIONS: The following list is provided to define key terms utilized in the Business Goals
Narrative.

Board of Directors - Five elected officials providing the governance of Inland Empire Utilities
Agency and representing the following Divisions:

s Division 1: Terry Catlin

¢ Division 2: Gene Koopman

o Division 3: Steve Elie

¢ Division 4: Vacant

e Division 5: Michael Camacho

Chino Groundwater Basin - 5,000,000 AF of groundwater storage encompassing
approximately 235 square miles of the upper Santa Ana River Watershed within San
Bernardino, Riverside and Los Angeles Counties. A substantial portion of the Chino
Groundwater Basin overlaps with the IEUA Service Area.

IEUA Service Area - 242 square miles located in the southwest corner of San Bernardino
County incorporating: the City of Chino, the City of Chino Hills, the City of Fontana, the City of
Montclair, the City of Ontario, the City of Upland and unincorporated areas of San Bernardino
County.

Imported Water - A supplemental water source to local water supplies generally purchased
through the State Water Project.

Member Agencies - Cities, agencies and districts that contract with IEUA for regional
wastewater services and Imported Water deliveries (* denotes member agencies who also are
signatories to the Regional Sewage Contract):

e (City of Chino*

s City of Chino Hills*

e Cucamonga Valley Water District*

¢ City of Fontana*

« Fontana Water Company

s  City of Montclair*

e Monte Vista Water District

= City of Ontario*

¢ San Antonio Water Company

e City of Upland*

IEUA Business Goals




Policy Committee - A committee comprised of policy members from Regional Sewage Contract
member agencies and IEUA.

Public - The approximately 850,000 residents within the IEUA Service Area who receive the
benefits of the services provided by the Member Agencies and IEUA.

Region ~ The geographical location where IEUA maintains a sphere of influence which is
broader than the IEUA Service Area.

Regional Water Agencies - Agencies and districts having water interests within the Region
but are not Member Agencies. These include but are not limited to:

e Chino Basin Watermaster

e Jurupa Community Services District

e Los Angeles County Sanitation District

e  Metropolitan Water District

¢ QOrange County Sanitation District

e Orange County Water District

® San Bernardino Flood Control and Water Conservation District

e 5Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority

¢ Western Municipal Water District

Stakeholders - A general term to define all interested parties including: Board of Directors,
Policy Committee, Technical Committee, Member Agencies and Regional Water Agencies.

Supplemental Water - An additional water supply originating from outside the IEUA Service
Area that may offset the demand for Imported Water - may include outside groundwater,
recycled water, etc.

Technical Committee -~ A committee comprised of public works/water managers from the
Member Agencies and IEUA.

IEUA Business Gools




A. Business Goal: Fiscal Responsibility

IEUA will safequard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational efficiency, adoption
of balanced multiyear budgets and rates that meet full cost-of-service targets, maintain a
high quality credit rating and preserve established fund balance reserves to effectively
address short term and long term economic variobility. Furthermore, IEUA will provide
open and transparent communication to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal
policies of the Agency.

1. Funding & Appropriation [Agency Management, Financial Planning, Accounting & Fiscal Management]
Objective: |EUA will appropriately fund operational, maintenance and capital investment costs.

Commitment: |IEUA will adopt service rates and fees that fully support the costs of service
and provide a reliable and steady flow of operating revenue to support all operational
expenses, capital replacement and debt service costs. In addition, IEUA will ensure that
service rates and fees support the Agency's goal to sustain high quality Commitment Levels.

Reference Material: Appendix A.1

2. Budpget Planning [Agency Management, Financial Planning, & Accounting & Fiscal Management]
Objective: |EUA will accurately forecast future operational, repair & replacement, capital
improvement and debt service costs as needed for the creation of multiyear budgets and rate
resolutions that create fiscal stabilization for IEUA and the Member Agencies.

Commitment: IEUA wili provide multiyear forecasts for operational, repair & replacement,
capital investment and debt service costs to support the adoption of multivear budgets and
rates enhancing dependability and stability.

Reference Material: Appendix A.2

3. Reserves [Financial Planning, Accounting & Fiscal Management]
Objective: IEUA will preserve fund reserves that sustain the Agency’s long term fiscal health, high
quality credit rating and ensure its ability to effectively address economic variability.

Commitment: 1EUA will adopt financial policies to establish and preserve fund reserves
above legally or contractually mandated levels to maintain Commitment Levels. In addition,
IEUA will support short and long term funding requirements and sustain the Agency’s long
term fiscal health and high guality credit rating to reduce future borrowing costs.

Reference Material: Appendix A.3

4. Creditworthiness [Financial Planning, Accounting & Fiscal Management]
Objective: |[EUA will sustain a high quality credit rating and debt service coverage ratio to safeguard
the Agency’s fiscal health and reduce future borrowing costs.

Commitment: IEUA will reinstate the Agency’s credit rating to AAA by FY 17/18 to reduce
borrowing costs anticipated for the expansion and improvement of existing facilities to meet
future growth in the Agency’s service area.

Reference Material: Appendix A.4

IEUA Business Goals




B.

Business Goal: Workplace Environment

IEUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,
retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s Mission,
Vision and Values.

Mission, Vision & Values
Objective: IEUA will uphold Business Goals, Objectives and Commitment Levels that support
and advance the Agency’s Mission, Vision and Values.

Commitment: IEUA will maintain the highest standard of ethical conduct from all
Agency staff by promoting values of prudent leadership, integrity, collaboration, open
communication, respect, accountability, high quality, passion and efficiency to support
the Agency’s Mission, Vision and Values.

Reference Material: Appendix B.1

Employer of Choice [Human Resources, & Agency Management]
Objective: |IEUA will be an Employer of Choice.

Commitment: 1EUA will provide a work environment that will attract and retain highly
skilled, motivated, professional and committed employees.

Reference Material: Apperidix B.2
Training

Objective: |EUA will provide employees with state-of-the-art skills and knowledge to meet
current and anticipated Agency needs.

Commitment: IEUA will facilitate and provide opportunities for staff to further their
personal/professional development in support of maintaining a highly skilled workforce.
Reference Material: AppendixB.3

Staff Safety [Safety, Human Resources, & Agency Management]
Objective: IEUA will promote and ensure a safe and healthy work environment to protect

employees and Stakeholders.

Commitment: IEUA will have no more than 1 day of lost time due to work related iliness
or injury per 1,000 days worked.

Reference Material: Appendix B.4

IEUA Business Goals | Pages |




€. Business Goal: Business Practices

IEUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally
sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

1. Efficiency & Effectiveness [All Departments]
Objective IEUA will promote standards of efficiency and effectiveness in all Agency business

practices and processes.

Commitment: \EUA will integrate Lean techniques to evaluate its current business
practices and processes and identify ways to improve the quality, cost and value of the
services the Agency provides to the Member Agencies and the Public.

Reference Material: Appendix C.1

2. Customer Service [All Departments]
Objective: IEUA will provide excellent customer service that is cost effective, efficient,

innovative and reliable.

Commitment: |\EUA will respond to and meet the Member Agencies expectation for
enhanced value added services. IEUA will solicit Stakeholder feedback on performance
and goal alignment on an annual basis.

Reference Material: Appendix C.2

3. Regional Leadership and Community Relations [Agency Management, Planning, & Engineering]
Objective: |EUA will cultivate a positive and transparent relationship with its Stakeholders to
enhance quality of life, preserve our heritage and protect the environment.

Commitment: IEUA will partner with its Stakeholders on common issues to create and
implement integrated and innovative solutions, minimize duplication of efforts and
support education and outreach to the Public. Furthermore, IEUA will incorporate
Member Agencies and Regional Water Agencies into various IEUA related projects and
programs to ensure that a transparent and broader regional representation is achieved.

Reference Material: Appendix C.3
4, Policy Leadership [Agency Management, Planning, & Engineering]

Objective: IEUA will effectively advocate, campaign and guide the development of policies and
legislation that benefit the Region |EUA serves.

Commitment: 1EUA will promote a collaborative approach for the development of
positions on policies, legislation and regulations that impact Agency policy objectives.

Reference Material: Appendix C.4

1EUA Eu_s_'l'm:n:_- Goals




D. Business Goal: Water Reliability

IEUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated woter
resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable, efficient and
sustainable water use along with economic growth within the IEUA Service Area.

1. Water Use Efficiency & Education [Planning, Engineering, & Public Information]
Objective: IEUA will promote education and water use efficiency to enhance water supplies
within the Region and exceed State goals for reductions in per capita water use within the IEUA
Service Area.

Commitment: |[EUA will promote to reduce water use in the IEUA Service Area to less
than 200 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) by 2018.

Reference Material: Appendix D.1

2. New Water Supplies ;Planning & Engineering]
Objective: |IEUA will support the Member Agencies and Regional Water Agencies with the
development of reliable, drought-proof and diverse local water resources and Supplemental
Water supplies in order to reduce dependence on Imported Water supplies.

Commitment: IEUA will promote reducing demand for Imported Water during dry and
normal years and storing Imported Water into the Chino Groundwater Basin during wet
years. In addition, IEUA will support maximizing the beneficial use of existing water
infrastructure, while meeting future increased demands through investment in local
water resources, Supplemental Water supplies and conservation efforts.

Reference Material: Appendix D.2

3. Recycled Water ([Planning, Engineering, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: |EUA will support maximizing beneficial reuse of recycled water to enhance reliability
and reduce dependence on Imported Water.

Commitment: IEUA will complete the development of recycled water infrastructure and
will support the Member Agencies in achieving reuse of 50,000 AFY by 2025,

Reference Material: Appendix D.3

4. Groundwater Recharge
Objective: IEUA will maximize all sources of groundwater recharge.

Commitment: IEUA will support the recharge of all available stormwater and maximize
the recharge of recycled water within the Chino Groundwater Basin. Furthermore, IEUA
will pursue the purchase and storage of cost-effective Supplemental Water supplies.

Reference Material: AppendixD.4

IEUA Business Goals




E. Business Goal: Wastewater Management

IEUA systems wiil be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that when
expansion planning is triggered, designs/construction can be completed to meet
regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally responsible and cost
effective manner.

1. Capacity [Planning, Engineering, & Construction Management]
Objective: IEUA will maintain capacity within systems and facilities to meet essential service
demands and to protect public health and environment.

Commitment: IEUA will ensure that systems are managed and constructed so that 90%
of capacity is never exceeded.

Reference Material: Appendix E.1

2. On-Time Construction [Engineering, & Construction Management]
Objective: IEUA will ensure capital projects are designed and implemented in a timely and
economically responsible manner.

Commitment: IEUA will design and construct facilities through efficient project
management to ensure that 80% of projects are completed on schedule and 90% of
projects are on budget.

Reference Material: Appendix E.2

3. Biosolids Management [Operations & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will manage all Agency produced biosolids in a compliant, fiscally prudent and

environmentally sustainable manner.

Commitment: |EUA will ensure that 95% of the Inland Regional Compost Facllity’s
capacity is utilized, all biosolids produced by IEUA are treated at IERCF, Agency solids
generation is minimized through efficient dewatering operations and all compost is
marketed for beneficial use.

Reference Material: Appendix E.3

4. Energy Management [Pianning, Engineering, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will optimize facility energy use and effectively manage renewable resources to
achieve peak power independence, contain future energy costs, achieve statewide renewable
energy, distributed generation and greenhouse gas reduction goals, and provide for future rate
stabilization.

Commitment: IEUA will achieve peak power independence by 2020 through the
implementation of renewable projects, energy management agreements and
operational efficiencies.

Reference Material: Appendix E.4

IEUA Business Goals




F. Business Goal: Environmental Stewardship

IEUA is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment through
conservation and sustainable practices.

1. Regulatory Compliance [Compiiance, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will comply with all federal, state and local laws at each Agency facility.

Commitment: IEUA will have no more than 2 notices of violation annually from the
State Water Resources Control Board, Air Quality Management District, or Non-
Reclaimable Waste System for all Agency owned and operated facilities.

Reference Material: Appendix F.1

2. Good Neighbor Policy
Objective: |IEUA will control odors at all Agency facilities for the purpose of improving the
environment and being a good neighbor to the local community.

Commitment: IEUA will perform a quarterly odor monitoring assessment to develop
actual and acceptable baseline odor thresholds. Acceptable baseline threshelds will be
used to measure treatment plant performance and drive necessary capital
improvements.

Reference Material: Appendix F.2

3. Response & Complaint Mitigation
Objective: IEUA will investigate and appropriately respond in a timely manner to any
environmental issue or complaint received at any Agency Facility.

Commitment: IEUA will immediately respond to any event that threatens public health
and safety and will respond within 5 working days to any non-emergency complaint or
suggestion,

Reference Material: Appendix F.3
4. Environmental Responsibility [Agency Management, Planning, & Engineering]

Objective: |EUA will strive to implement actions that enhance or promote environmental
sustainability and the preservation of the region’s heritage.

Commitment: IEUA will consider and assess environmental sustainability, public use
and heritage preservation options for all of its programs and projects.

Reference Material: Appendix F.4

IEUA Business Goals




Appendix

Reference Materials

. Fiscal Responsibility

A.1 - Funding & Appropriation
A.2 - Budget Planning

A.3 - Reserves

A4 - Creditworthiness

. Workplace Environment
B.1 - Mission, Vision & Values
B.2 - Employer of Choice

B.3 - Training

B.4 - Staff Safety

. Business Practices

C.1 - Efficiency & Effectiveness

C.2 - Customer Service

C.3 - Regional Leadership & Community Relations
C.4 - Policy Leadership

. Water Reliability

D.1 - Water Use Efficiency & Education
D.2 - New Water Supplies

D.3 - Recycled Water

D.4 - Groundwater Recharge

. Wastewater Management
E.1 - Capacity

E.2 - On-Time Construction
E.3 - Biosolids Management
E.4 - Energy Management

. Environmental Stewardship

F.1 - Regulatory Compliance

F.2 - Good Neighbor Policy

F.3 - Response & Complaint Mitigation
F.4 - Environmental Responsibility



A

endix A.1

Business Goal: /EUA will safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational efficiency,

adoption of balanced multiyear budgets and rates that meet full cost-of-service
targets, maintain a high quality credit rating and preserve established fund
balance reserves to effectively address short term and long term economic
varighility. Furthermore, IEUA will provide open and transparent communication
to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal policies of the Agency.

Objective: [EUA will appropriately fund operational, maintenance and capital investment

costs.

Commitment: /EUA will adopt service rates and fees that fully support the costs of service and

provide a reliable and steady flow of operating revenue to support all operational
expenses, capital replacement and debt service costs. In addition, IEUA will ensure
that service rates and fees support the Agency’s goal to sustain high quality
Commitment Levels,

Commitment Level Background

Historically, the Agency’s operating revenues {net of property tax supplement) have
been lower than operating expenses (i.e., services provided by the Agency do not
generate revenues needed to pay for total cost of operations), resulting in an operating
structural deficit. The operating structural deficit has been supported by a combination
of property tax receipts and fund reserves.

The allocation of property tax receipts and fund reserves to support operating activities
reduced the amount of property taxes available to support capital investment, and over
time, diminished the Agency’s fund reserve balances.

Given the uncertainty of property taxes, it is essential for the Agency to reduce its
reliance on this funding source to support recurring expenditures (O&M and debt
service costs) over time.

In 2013, IEUA will release the first Asset Management Plan, which will provide
management strategies and funding requirements to repair and replace aging
equipment at each of the treatment facilities based on condition assessments. Funding
of R&R is essential to ensuring facilities are maintained to support the Agency's
Commitment Levels.

{IEUA is committed to ultimately having rates that fully support recurring costs, including
O&M,R&R, and debt service costs. Achieving this goal will allow the Agency to fully
allocate property tax receipts to support capital investment, including future expansion
of existing facilities, and reduce future borrowing costs.

Fiscal Year 2013/14 is the second year of a three-year rate resolution adopted by the
Agency’s Board of Directors in February 2012 for the Regional Wastewater and Recycled
Water programs. The multi-year rate increases begin to address the net operating
structural deficit resulting from rates not fully recovering program costs.



A

ix A2

Business Goal: /EUA will safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational

efficiency, adoption of balanced multiyear budgets and rates that meet full
cost-of-service targets, maintain a high quality credit rating and preserve
established fund balance reserves to effectively address short term and long
term economic variability. Furthermore, IEUA will provide open and
transparent communication to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal
policies of the Agency.

Objective: IEUA will accurately forecast future operational, repair & replacement, capital

improvement and debt service costs as needed for the creation of multiyear
budgets and rate resolutions that create fiscal stabilization for IEUA and the
Member Agencies.

Commitment: /EUA will provide multiyear forecasts for operational, repair & replacement,

capital investment and debt service costs to support the adoption of multiyear
budgets and rates enhancing dependability and stability.

Commitment Level Background

In addition to the annual adoption of the Operating Budget and TYCIP, the Agency also
prepares a Long Range Plan of Finance (LRPF).

The LRPF aligns the Agency’s financial capacity with long-term service objectives. The
LRPF uses forecasts to provide insight into the Agency’s future financial capacity so that
Agency strategies can achieve long term sustainability of financial and service
objectives. It provides the most cost-effective funding strategy to support the
operations and capital requirements in line with established policies and goals.

Based upon the LRPF and other financial documents, the Agency is committed to
adopting multiyear budgets and rates to facilitate the integration of the financial and
strategic planning.

Adoption of multiyear budgets and rates will provide a more strategic approach to
resource allocation, as well as streamline the Agency’s rate increase process and provide
long term stability.



Appendix A.3

Business Goal: [£UA will safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational efficiency,
adoption of balanced multiyear budgets and rates that meet fulf cost-of-service
targets, maintain a high quality credit rating and preserve established fund
balance reserves to effectively address short term and long term economic
variability. Furthermore, IEUA will provide open and transparent communication
to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal policies of the Agency.

Objective: IEUA will preserve fund reserves that sustain the Agency’s long term fiscal health, high
quality credit rating and ensure its ability to effectively address economic variability.

Commitment: /EUA will adopt financial policies to establish and preserve fund reserves above legally or
contractually mandated levels to maintain Commitment Levels. In addition, IEUA will
support short and long term funding requirements and sustain the Agency’s long term
fiscal health and high quality credit rating to reduce future borrowing costs.

Commitment Level Background

» Fund balance is a measure of the net worth (total assets minus total liabilities) of an
organization and is a strong indicator of its financial health. In addition to consolidated fund
balance at the Agency-wide level, IEUA also maintains fund balances at the individual
program level.

e The fund balance reserves are designated for specific purposes, and include four month
operating contingency and debt service as prescribed by the current bond covenants, capital
construction, improvement and replacement, rate stabilization, self-insured workers’
compensation and liability insurance, retiree medical benefits, and other short term and
long term requirements.

s The figure below compares the Agency’s actual and projected total fund balance to the
“targeted” amount from FYs 2009/10 through 2016/17. Targeted fund balance as defined in
the Agency’s 2012 LRPF is the sum of 50 percent of operating revenues, and total fund
balance reserves designated to support debt service costs.

-
g

100

Millions

o i | - l
360 | —_ — I
540
520
50

201041 0u1/12 2012/13 2013/19 201415 2015/ 201617 2017118
0 & M Reserves Debt Reserves Capital Reserves Targeted

* Anupdate of the Agency’s financial policies adopted in 2005 is planned in 2013 as part of
the implementation of a long range financial model. A key objective will be to align reserves
and thresholds to meet the Agency’s short term and long term needs and develop a funding
strategy.



A ix A4

Fiscal Responsibility - Creditworthiness

Business Goal: /EUA will sofeguard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational efficiency,
adoption of balanced multiyear budgets and rates that meet full cost-of-service
targets, maintain a high quality credit rating and preserve established fund
balance reserves to effectively address short term and long term econornic
variabifity. Furthermore, IEUA will provide open and transparent communication
to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal policies of the Agency.

Objective: IEUA will sustain a high quality credit rating and debt service coverage ratio to
safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health ond reduce future borrowing costs.

Commitment: /EUA will reinstate the Agency’s credit rating to AAA by FY 17/18 to reduce borrowing
costs anticipated for the expansion and improvement of existing facilities to meet
future growth in the Agency’s service area.

Commitment Level Background

s As part of the 2012 multi-year rate increase, [EUA established minimum debt coverage
ratio targets for the upcoming fiscal years. The following table shows the DCR targets,
the actual DCR’s and forecasted DCR’s (F):

Fraliaz FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16
DR —— vl Proleced | Forecasts
_ Target | _ 1.43x | 1.50x i 1.70x | —
| Actual/Forecast | 169 1.92x I Y ' 2.01x _ 218x

¢ The FY 2011/12 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) reported an Agency DCR
of 1.69x and the following credit ratings: AA- (S&P), Aa2 {(Moody’s), and AA- (Fitch).

¢ The adopted FY 2014-2023 Ten Year Capital Improvement (TYCIP) includes expansion of
the Agency’s southern service area facilities in FY 2018/19 where most of the future
population growth is anticipated. This expansion is projected to be financed with new
debt. Improvement of the Agency’s long term credit rating to AAA and DCR to 2.70x
(DCR is the ratio of net revenue available to meet debt service costs}. In the current
market, the differential cost of borrowing between AA and AAA is about 20 basis points.
On a $40 million bond issue, this equates to a borrowing-cost-savings of over $2.4
million over a 30 year term.

s Lower borrowing costs equate to lower fees.



Appendix B.1
Workplace Environment - Mission, Vision & Values
Business Goal: /EUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,
retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s
Mission, Vision and Values.
Objective: {EUA will uphold Business Goals, Objectives and Commitment Levels that
support and advance the Agency’s Mission, Vision and Values.
Commitment: /EUA will maintain the highest standard of ethical conduct from all Agency staff by
promoting values of prudent leadership, integrity, collaboration, open communication,

respect, accountability, high quality, passion and efficiency to support the Agency’s
Mission and Vision.

Commitment Level Background

Mission Statement: The mission of the Agency is to supply Imported and recycled water;
collect, treat, and dispose of wastewater; and provide other utility-related (renewable electrical
energy, compost} services to the communities It serves. The Agency strives to provide these
services In a regionally planned, managed, and cost-effective manner.

Vision: The Inland Empire Utilities Agency will strive to enhance the quality
of life in the Inland Empire by providing optimum water resources
management for the area’s customers while promoting conservation and
environmental protection.

Values: The success of the Agency depends on
teamwork, mutual trust and respect, and commitrnent
to the highest standards of quality, responsibility,
accountability, and dedication.

_? 7 ; -
’5 Fiscal : | Workplace
“:Responsibility{: | Environment

Water Wastewater
Reliability Management

Business
Practices

P

i

* Management will ensure that principles, policies and practices support the Business
Geals, Mission, Vision and Values of the Agency.



Appendix B.2

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,

retaining and developing o highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s
Mission, Vision and Values.

Objective: IEUA will be an Employer of Choice.
Commitment: /EUA will provide a work environment that will attract and retain highly skilled,

motivated, professional and committed employees.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA will recruit, retain, and promote a diverse and qualified workforce committed to
the Agency’s Mission, Vision and Values. This will be achieved by utilizing modern
recruitment practices that provide flexible and responsive recruiting solutions to assist
with filling positions in a timely and effective manner.

IEUA will encourage and maintain a highly motivated and trained staff by designing,
implementing, and supporting a learning environment which encourages growth and
development of Agency staff.

IEUA will strive to align project/work tasks with the skills of its employees to create a
rewarding and successful work environment.

IEUA will create a culture that recognizes a dedicated staff and attracts qualified
individuals through the use of creative communication methods and continued
education of available employee benefits to increase knowledge of these programs and
services. In addition, IEUA will update the Agency’s various award recognition programs
to reflect the Agency’s cost containment strategies.

IEUA will reduce stress from work-life imbalance by promoting partnerships, cross
training, shared responsibilities, and a culture of teamwork to allow any and all
employees recuperative time away from work activities.

IEUA will inspire trust and confidence in Management by: clearly defining the Agency’s
Mission/Vision/Values, by creating Business Goals that support the
Mission/Vision/Values, outlining a Strategic Plan to achieve those goals, communicating
how the Agency is accomplishing these goals, and effectively linking these goals to each
employee objectives and performance.



ndi

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,
retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s
Mission, Vision and Values.

Objective: IEUA will provide employees with state-of-the-art skills and knowledge to
meet current and anticipated Agency needs.

Commitment: [EUA will facilitate and provide opportunities for staff to further their
personal/professional development in support of maintaining a highly skilied
workforce.

Commitment Level Background

e All Agency employees have access to online training:
¢ Leadership, Team Building, and Mentoring Skills Training
+ Microsoft Office Training
¢ OSHA Required Safety Trainings
Employees are provided with login information, which allows the employee to perform
trainings at the most optimum time to fit their daily schedule.

» Selected Agency employees have the ability to attend onsite classroom trainings. The
following onsite classroom trainings are going to be provided for Fiscal Year 2013/2014:

“7 Habits of Highly Effective People”, (4) specialized onsite workshops, {12) 4-hour
Microsoft Office trainings and policies and procedures training.

* Three types of offsite training are going to be provided for Fiscal Year 2013/2014:

4 Southern California Local Government Supervisory Program — This is a 3 day
training course to provide skills for new supervisors,

+ Southern California Local Government Leadership Academy — This is a 7 day
training program for Managers provided by current or retired City Managers.

¢ Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Training — Legal Counsel provides workshops to
Managers, Supervisors, and aspiring Supervisors on relational issues.

s IEUA also provides tuition reimbursement up to $2,500 per year for employee educational
expenses that increase their job knowledge and skills. Additionally, certification and degree
incentives are awarded to employees who earn Associates, Bachelor’s and Master’s Degree, and
specific program certification.

o Each Agency Department has training budgets to perform trainings on specialized skili sets for
their employees.



Appendix B.4

Workplace Environment - Staff Safety

Business Goal: IEUA is commitied to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,
retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s
Mission, Vision and Values.

Objective: IEUA wiil promote and ensure a safe and healthy work environment to protect
employees and Stakeholders.

Commitment: [EUA will have no more than 1 day of lost time due to work related illness or injury per
1,000 days worked.

Commitment Level Background
# |EUA will sustain a clean, safe, and healthy working environment for all Agency
employees at all facilities. This will be achieved by:
¢ Administering and monitoring required safety and regulatory trainings;
¢ Conducting annual intra-department safety audits; and
4 Conducting annual emergency response drills, such as HAZWOPER training, fire
drills, and earthguake drills

e JEUA has maintained an outstanding employee workplace injury record. For Fiscal Year
2012/2013 the Agency had no lost time due to work related illness or injury. Most employee
workplace injury events that occur at IEUA are typically due to cuts, scrapes, and bruises. Rarely
does a workplace injury incident result in lost time.

e Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) categorizes work related ilinesses or
injuries by: recordable cases (a case that resulted in medical treatment beyond 1** aid, loss of
consciousness, or a significant injury diagnosed by a physician), transfers or restrictions (a case
that resulted in an employee not being able to perform their job duties; however, their job
duties were modified to meet the requirement of the illness or injury), lost time (a case that
resulted in an employee not being able to work for one day after the date of injury), and death.
For 2010 through 2012, IEUA had the following work injury statistics:

By Case
[ | _ 1 e Transfers or
‘Calendar Year | Recordable Cases Restrictions:
2010 9 6 1 0
2011 12 6 1 (1]
2012 13 12 0 0
By Days

2010 81 180
2011 235 56

2012 390



Appendix C.1

Business Goal: IEUA is committed to applying ethicol, fiscally responsible and environmentally

sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

Objective: IEUA will promote standards of efficiency and effectiveness in all Agency

business practices and processes.

Commitment: /EUA will integrate Lean techniques to evaluate current business practices and

processes and identify ways to improve the quality, cost and value of the services the
Agency provides to the Member Agencies and the Public.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA is committed to providing its Stakeholders with high quality service in a cost
effective, regionally planned manner. Continued assessment and improvement of our
business processes and practices is essential to ensure optimization of efficiency and
effectiveness.

Lean was originally developed to reduce waste in manufacturing and evolved from Total
Quality Management (TQM); the manufacturing practices of the Toyota Motor
Corporation. However, rather than focusing on mass production, Lean focus on the
elimination of waste while providing the same, or enhanced, value to the customer.
Application of Lean technigues will help define key performance indicators (KPls) to
more effectively measure, monitor, and realign processes to meet the Agency’s business
goals and objectives.

In April 2013, the second phase of the Agency’s Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP)
business system, first implemented in 2007, went live to streamline the recording,
tracking and reporting of employee and payroll data. This enhancement helps support
the Agency's efficiency and effectiveness initiative by eliminating redundant systems,
enhancing data integrity, and supporiing more transparent and timely reporting.

The Agency’s ERP system and integrated format also helps support the transition from a
reactive to a condition based monitoring (CBM} maintenance philosophy strategy; a key
initiative of the Agency. Under CBM, the 45 percent of resources currently allocated to
reactive maintenance {unplanned or emergency repairs) will shift to support a
predictive strategy denoted by improved planning and scheduling and more effective
diagnosis of equipment functionality.

The same integrated approach is being applied to the Agency’s existing Supervisory
Control & Data Acquisition {SCADA) System network which is currently comprised of a
wide variety of equipment and applications located throughout the various facilities.
Significant effort went into documenting the current state and analyzing the Agency’s
SCADA systems resulting in the 2012 Board adoption of the Recycled Water,
Groundwater Recharge and Facilities SCADA Master Plans.



Appendix C.2

Business Goal: [EUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally
sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

Objective: IEUA will provide excellent customer service that is cost effective, efficient,
innovative and reliable.

Commitment: /EUA will respond to and meet the Member Agencies expectation for enhanced value
added services. IEUA will solicit Stakeholder feedback on performance and goal
alignment on an annual basis.

Commitment Level Background
o IEUA is committed to providing excellent customer service by:
4+ Providing the primary services of the Agency —water management, wastewater
management, biosolids management, and other resources management
disciplines.
+ Ensuring that these services are offered in an effective, sustainable and cost
efficient method.
+ Providing clear and direct responses to customer suggestions, inquiries, and
complaints.
+ Maintaining open sources of communication to ensure stakeholder’s interests
are discussed and opportunities are pursued.
e |EUA will optimize customer service by ensuring alignment and management of core
procurement business functions, roles and responsibilities.
e Media relations will continue to be cultivated and press releases will remain a major effort along
with the Agency internal and external newsletter and updates.
e Social networking and website maintenance will remain a top priority for Agency outreach and
communication initiatives.
e IEUA will collahorate with all Stakeholders to ensure open communication and discussion of
issues and policies that affect the IEUA Service Area, {i.e. topics such as imported water rates
and deliveries, development and availability of local water supplies.)



Appendix C.3

Business Practices - Regional Leadership & Community Relations

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally
sustainable principles to olf aspects of business and organizational conduct.

Objective: IEUA will cultivate a positive and transparent relationship with its Stakeholders
to enhance quality of life, preserve our heritage and protect the environment.

Commitment: [EUA will partner with its Stakeholders on common issues to create and implement
integrated and innovative solutions, minimize duplication of efforts and support
education and outreach to the Public. Furthermore, IEUA will incorporate Member
Agencies and Regional Water Agencies into various IEUA related projects and
programs to ensure that a transparent and broader regional representation is
achieved.

Commitment Level Background

¢ [EUA will promote and sustain effective communication between the Agency and its
Stakeholders through use of various methods, including frequent meetings/workshops,
newsletters and electronic media.

s Incorporating the Agency’s branding initiatives, staff will create a recognizable standard
to educate the public about water recycling, water conservation and capital
infrastructure/replacement investments.

» [EUA is committed to taking actions that consider the cost, quality and value of service
for communities we serve.

* The Agency strives to foster open, positive and collaborative refationships with all
Stakeholders to meet the water needs of the Region now and in the future.

MWD

Sewage Contracting Imported Water
Agencles

Wastewater

Water Retail
Agéncles

ey Lonservation

Rzt o Watgr

Energy

SAWPA Salinity Management

Groundwater Recharge

AWatermaster
2 Crganics Recycling




A

endix C.4

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally

sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

Objective: IEUA will effectively advocate, campaign and guide the development of

policies and legislation that directly benefit the Region IEUA serves.

Commitment: JEUA will promote a collaborative approach for the development of positions on

policies, legislation and regulations that impact Agency policy objectives.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA will provide leadership on legislative solutions and regulatory standards for water
reliability, water quality, energy management, wastewater collection, treatment and
reuse, organics management, and stormwater and watershed management.

IEUA will continue to effectively seek State and Federal grant funding for Agency and
regional projects that achieve IEUA’s policy objectives; {(e.g. the Recharge Master Plan,
Renewable Energy, the Optimum Basin Management Plan, and the Recycled Water
Program}.

iEUA will actively research, monitor, review, and adopt positions on federal and state
legislation that benefit the IEUA's and the Member Agencies policy objectives. This
information will be shared and discussed with all Stakeholders.

IEVUA will support the development of public affairs, public awareness, community
education and outreach, media relations and legislative programs on issues that address
the policy objectives of IEUA. Open communication and collaboration among the
Agency and its Stakeholders is of prime importance.

IEUA will work with Member Agencies to formulate methods and approaches for addressing
community and agency concerns and ensure that concerns, needs, and requests are responded

to in a timely manner.

IEUA will actively review and provide recommendations on procedures and processes to
improve the efficiency, cost effectiveness, customer responsiveness, quality and environmental

sustainability of Agency programs and projects.

IEUA will coordinate intergovernmental activities with Stakeholders, industry associations, and
regulatory agencies and will appear before local and state bodies on public affairs and other

matters.

IEUA will comply with the Brown Act requirements, and other laws pertaining to special districts.

IEUA will navigate and implement the regulatory changes as a result of pension reform.



Appendix D.1

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated

water resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable,
efficient and sustainable water use along with economic growth within the
IEUA Service Areq.

Cbjective: IEUA will promote education and water use efficiency to enhance water

supplies within the Region and exceed State goals for reductions in per capita
water use within the IEUA Service Areq.

Commitment; JEUA will promote to reduce water use in the IEUA Service Area to less than 200

gallons per capita per day [gped) by 2018,

Commitment Level Background

The Water Conservation Act of 2009 (SBX 7-7) requires urban retail water suppliers to
continue demand management measures to reduce water use, as measured by gpcd, by
10% by December 31, 2015 and by 20% by December 31, 2020 to maintain eligibility to
receive state water management grants and loans.

The baseline water use for the region from 1999 - 2008 was calculated to be 251 gpcd.
The reduced water use targets can be achieved through: water use efficiency (WUE)
active programs, WUE passive policy initiatives, and recycled water use. The current
goal of the Urban Water Management Plan and the Water Use Efficiency Business Plan
is to achieve the 20 x 2020 per capita water use reduction in the following manner:

2015 Reduction 2020 Reduction
Projected Reduction from WUE Activities 5 gpcd 13 gpcd
Projected Reduction from Recycled Water Use 38 gpcd 45 gpcd
TOTAL Projected Reduction 43 gpcd 58 gped
10 Year Baseline 251 gped
Target 226 gpcd 201 gpcd
Projected Achievement 208 gpcd 193 gped

Additional per capita water use reductions can be achieved within the IEUA Service
Area. IEUA’s policy goal is to strive to achieve the 20 by 2020 reduction through
conservation measures alone. IEUA will collaborate with all Member Agencies to review
and update the Water Use Efficiency Business Plan to achieve this goal and will support
the reduction of water use below 200 gpcd by 2018.

IEUA will continue to expand regional water efficiency educational, outreach and rebate
programs.



A

endix D.2

Business Goak: /EUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated

water resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable,
efficient and sustainable water use along with economic growth within the
IEUA Service Area.

Objective: IEUA will support the Member Agencies and Regional Water Agencies with the

development of reliable, drought-proof and diverse local water resources and
Supplemental Water supplies in order to reduce dependence on Imported
Water supplies.

Commitment: [EUA will promote reducing demand for imported Water during dry and normal years

and storing Imported Water into the Chino Groundwater Basin during wet years. In
addition, IEUA will support maximizing the beneficial use of existing water
infrastructure, while meeting future increased demands through investment in local
water resources, Supplemental Water supplies and conservation efforts.

Commitment Level Background

L]

As part of the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP), IEUA has set a goal to
maximize use of local water supplies and minimize the need for Imported Water,
especially during dry years and other emergency shortages from Metropolitan Water
District (MWD),

Unless additional water reductions are achieved or new local water supplies are
developed, current projections show that regionally an additional 10,000 AFY of costly
Imported Water will be required by year 2025.

It is understood that future Imported Water reliability will be lower and costs will be
higher. Over the next ten years, it is estimated that the IEUA/Member Agencies will
purchase $600 million in Imported Water. A 10,000 AFY water supply shift from
Imported Water would reduce MWD purchases by approximately $100 million over the
same ten year period.

IEUA is in the process of preparing an Integrated Resources Plan (IRP), which will
provide an achievable long-term strategy to meet current and future water needs. The
IRP will evaluate existing water supplies and demands, forecast future water supplies
and demands, and evaluate additional water efficiency and alternative sources of new
water supply that will reduce future reliance on Imported Water.



Appendix D.3

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated

Objective:

water resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable,
efficient and sustainable water use along with economic growth within the
IEUA Service Areaq.

IEUA will support maximizing beneficial reuse of recycled water to enhance
reliability and reduce dependence on Imported Water,

Commitment: /EUA will complete the develdpment of recycled water infrastructure and will support

the Member Agencies in achieving reuse of 50,000 AFY by 2025,

Commitment Level Background

e IEUA has a current wastewater flow of approximately 60,000 AFY. Based upon
wastewater forecasts and potential future interconnections, IEUA is targeting a reliable
recycled water supply of 50,000 AFY for direct use and groundwater recharge by 2025.

» As outlined in the Recycled Water Business Plan, IEUA is in the process of expanding
recycled water infrastructure to meet the 50,000 AFY delivery target. IEUA will release
the Recycled Water Plan Update in 2014,

¢ In addition, the IRP will have specific focus on the development of additional direct
recycled water connections and a specific emphasis on recycled water interties and
enhanced groundwater recharge capabilities.

Recycld Weter Moo fi“f ot
Cepital Projects S— 1 e BT F*}
Jun 203 i ) S .
! .= =" 4. rt'r -.A."‘l-.:— _g.;._..‘.!
- Lt .
TR s LR g X . i i 4 -I;-
¥ e L i g 1 I PR
EENE e T e ol - b
Tomp Staton and Ressrvoinm e - xA
= ene }'L S I:'!h I 'a,] R
i - T . TN L b Jout
L f’ [ b : s ‘-
= opwang s = o ]
& - d
2 o 3 i — =
Praect 41 viea Lagona Thy l’ & =i ""‘-I"'J —
—_.;lr S =}
— e
—cpry

e y S e

11
g

e

e Estimated Fiscal Year 2012/2013 recycled water delivery for direct use and groundwater
recharge is 31,500 AFY. Increasing recycled water deliveries to 50,000 AFY is key to
meeting the other three Objectives/Commitment Levels (Water Use Efficiency &
Education, New Water Supplies, and Groundwater Recharge) for the Water Reliability
Business Goal.



Appendix D.4

Business Goal: /FUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated
water resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable,
efficient and sustaginable water use along with economic growth within the
IEUA Service Area.

Objective: IEUA will maximize all sources of groundwater recharge.

Commitment: JEUA will support the recharge of all available stormwater and maximize the recharge
of recycled water within the Chino Groundwater Basin. Furthermore, IEUA wilf pursue
the option to purchase and store cost-effective surplus imported Water supplies.

Commitment Level Background

e Groundwater currently comprises about 60% of the water supply needed to meet urban
water demand for the region.

e The Chino Groundwater Basin contains approximately 5 million AF of water storage with
an additional 1 million AF in unused storage capacity. The current safe-yield of the Basin
is 145,000 AFY and declining. Historically, discounted Imported Water has been
available and utilized to recharge the Basin when pumping has exceeded the safe-yield.
The MWD discounted replenishment water was discontinued in 2012, changing the
economic impacts of over-production of groundwater.

e The Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Program developed new sources of
replenishment water: local stormwater and recycled water.

e |EUA has been shifting the need to buy Imported Water to meet replenishment needs,
to the cost-effective use of stormwater and recycled water.

50000

s
g

B
B

2
£

mported, Storm. sd Recycied Wister Recharge [AFY)

£

s |EUA will continue to partner with CBWM to maximize the recharge of all available
stormwater and recycled water and will only recharge imported water proactively when
economically viable or as necessary to meet replenishment requirements.



Appendix E.1

Wastewater Management - Capacity
Business Goal: /EUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that

when expansion planning is triggered, designs/construction can be completed
to meet regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentatly
responsible and cost effective manner.

Objective: IEUA will maintain capacity within systems and facilities to meet essential

Commitment:

service demands and to protect public health and environment.

never exceeded.

Commitment Level Background

Economic development of the region is dependent upon well planned public works
infrastructure in place prior to land development. Wastewater collection and treatment
are critical components of this infrastructure.

I[EUA has and will continue to utilize operational flexibilities provided through flow
diversion and bypass systems to maximize beneficial use and capacity of the integrated
collection system, wastewater treatment system, recycled water system, and organics
management system.

For Fiscal Year 2012/2013, ali four IEUA Wastewater Recycling Facilities have a Percent
Capacity Utilization between 60% - 70%. The Ten-Year Percent Capacity Utilization
projection shows slight increases for RP-1, RP-4, and CCWRF; however; RP-5 has a
substantial increase to 95%:

FY2012/13 FYanz ;
Actual® Projection
1 Trniheil T m; I Hes ek, | '-n-'mu' I
ocydhmg i Ment | Mated | Capactty | tobor
o floe | Copasity | EnWatiog) | Pl | Uigiskidiy
RP-1 277 440 634 304 440 69%
RP-4 98 140 70% 108 14.0 77%
CCWRF 74 114 65% 80 1114 T0%
RP-5 105 163% 64% 15.5 163 95%
IEUA Total 55.3 857 65% 64.7 85.7 76%

For Fiscal year 2013/2014, IEUA will be updating the Facilities Master Plan, which will
considered future growth patterns, alternatives for expansion of the Wastewater
Recycling Facilities, and impacts to the Recycled Water and Organics Management
systems.

IEUA will ensure that all planning, design, construction, and start-up activities for
treatment system expansions are scheduled and completed before the 90% Percent
Capacity Utilization is reached.

IEUA will ensure that systems are managed and constructed so that 90% of capacity is



Appendix E.2

Business Goal: I[FUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that
when expansion planning is triggered, designs/construction can be completed
to meet regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally
responsible, and cost effective manner.

Objective: IEUA will ensure capital praojects are designed and implemented in a timely
and economically responsible manner.

Commitment: /EUA will design and construct facilities through efficient project management to
ensure that 80% of projects are completed on schedule and 90% of profects are on
budget.

Commitment Level Background

e [EUA is committed to ensuring that projects are completed: on-time to obtain the
beneficial use of required equipment as required by Operations, Maintenance, and
Compliance, and on budget to contain costs and accurately project Agency future
expenditures.

= Constructability reviews, which will include technical input from Construction,
Operations, Maintenance, and DCS staff, will be included as a standard design element
with the goal of reducing the number of change orders experienced during construction.

s  Construction Management staff have received schedule training to allow for detailed
reviews of contractor construction schedules. Staff will effectively analyze contractor
schedules to highlight deficiencies in critical paths that may result in extended project
schedules.

= At the completion of a project pre-design report (PDR}, budgets will be created with
well-defined scopes of work that include all project costs: design/construction
consultants, construction contract award, and all Agency labor costs (Engineering,
Construction Management, Operations, Maintenance, DCS, Finance, and Accounting).

= A project will be deemed on budget if all design, construction, and start-up activities are
completed and expenditures on the project are between 90-100% of the project budget.

® Schedules for duration of design and construction/start-up will be created at the time
the project budget is created (completion of the PDR).

» The Engineering schedule metric will be based upon the project design kickoff meeting
and the Award of Construction Contract. The Engineering activities will be deemed on
schedule if the duration between the Award of Construction Contract and design kickoff
meeting is +/- 10% of the initial estimate.

e The Construction Management schedule metric will start at the preconstruction
meeting and conclude with the Operations acceptance of the project. The Construction
activities will be deemed on schedule if the duration between the project acceptance
and preconstruction meeting is +/- 10% of the initial estimate.



Appendix E.3

Business Goal: /EUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that

when expansion planning is triggered, designs/construction can be completed
to meet regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally
responsible, and cost effective manner.

Objective: IEUA will manage all Agency produced biosolids in a compliant, fiscally

prudent and environmentally sustainable manner.

Commitment: [EUA will ensure that 95% of the inland Regicnal Compast Facility’s capacity is utilized,

all biosolids produced by IEUA are treated at IERCF, Agency solids generation is
minimized through efficient dewatering operations, and all compost is marketed for
beneficial use.

Commitment Level Background

In 2001, the Chino Basin Organics Management Business Plan set a goal for the region to
divert organic solids from landfills and to consume locally generated recycled organic
material. Under a Joint Powers Agreement, IEUA in partnership with Los Angeles
County Sanitation District constructed the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility
{IERCF) to meet this goal.

IERCF has an operating capacity of approximately 400 wet tons per day for wastewater
biosolids. IEUA’s owned portion of this operating capacity is equivalent to 50% or
approximately 200 wet tons per day of biosolids material. IEUA currently generates
approximately 190 wet tons per day of biosolids.

IEUA’s goal is to send all biosolids generated at its wastewater facilities to IERCF;
however, IERCF requires one shutdown day per month to perform preventative
maintenance on operating equipment. On maintenance days, IEUA will utilize the use of
storage at RP-1 and RP-2, while maintaining contracts with third party composting
facilities as a contingency.

IEUA supports reducing solids generation at its wastewater facilities. Currently, start-up
activities for the new RP-1 Centrifuge Dewatering Building are commencing and full
operation should be achieved by the end of 2013. The new centrifuges will increase the
biosolids total solids percentage from the current 16% up to 24%. This will decrease the
IEUA biosolids generation by approximately 50 wet tons per day, resulting in excess
IEVA capacity at IERCF.

All biosolids and wood amendment sent to IERCF are processed and treated to produce
a Class A exceptional quality compost. [ERCF compost, which is created and marketed
as SoilPro Premium Compost, is beneficially used by contracting agencies and sold as a
soil conditioner that improves water retention, resulting in better plant growth and
reduces water requirements.



Appendix E 4

Business Goal: /FUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that

when expansion planning is triggered, designs/construction can be completed
to meet regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally
responsible, and cost effective manner.

Objective: IEUA will optimize facility energy use and effectively manage renewable

resources to achieve peak power independence, contain future energy costs,
achieve statewide renewable energy, distributed generation and greenhouse
gas reduction goals, and provide for future rate stabilization.

Commitment: [EUA will achieve peak power independence by 2020 through the implementation of

renewable projects, energy management agreements and operational efficiencies.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA facilities currently use approximately 75,000 MWh of electricity annually at an
annual cost of approximately $9,000,000. This is 26% of the non-labor Operations and
Maintenance budget and the highest, non-labor cost of the Agency.

The region’s population is forecasted to increase by 50% by 2030, which will further
increase demand and cost for electricity. Electricity prices are volatile; however,
historically, the average annual increase has been between 4% - 6%.

IEUA has created a preliminary Energy Management Plan to reach energy independence
from the grid during peak energy use/pricing period {(noon — 6:00 PM) by 2020 through
increased energy efficiency, increased on-site energy generation, a diversified energy
portfolio and energy demand response.

Through Power Purchase Agreements (PPA’s), IEUA has expanded its renewable energy
portfolio to include 3.5 MW of solar, 1.0 MW of wind, and 2.8 MW of biogas fuel cell
production.

IEUA will develop an updated energy management plan that will focus on integrating
energy efficiency, demand response, and renewable energy generation programs to
contain future energy costs and contribute to achieving statewide renewable energy
and greenhouse gas reduction goals.



Appendix F.1

Environmental Stewardship - Regulatory Compliance
Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment
through conservation and sustainable practices.
Objective: IEUA will comply with all federal, state and local laws at each Agency facility.
Commitment: /EUA will have no more than 2 notices of violation annually from the State Water
Resources Control Board, Air Quality Management District, or Non-Reclaimable Waste
System for all Agency owned and operated facilities.

Commitment Level Background

» |EUA has set Key Performance Indicators (KPi} at each Agency facility to monitor
compliance with all regulations stipulated in the NPDES, AQMD, and NRWS permits.

*  When compliance KPI's are exceeded, incident reports are created to outline the facts
and causes of any nencompliant event. The incident reports are reviewed and
corrective action is taken to prevent future KPl noncompliance.

* Itis up to the discretion of AQMD to issue NOV’s; however, in general a NOV is issued
for: operation of equipment without a valid permit to operate, excessive exceedance of
a permit stipulated emissions requirement, or operations resulting in a nuisance to the
public.

e For Calendar Year 2012, [EUA had the following AQMD notices of violation:

Ammonia Tank Level
9/5/12 Exceedance (greater NOV issued {item resolved)
than permitted capacity)
Unpermitted Pilot Unit
Installation

* SWRCB defines violations as “serious” and “non-serious” and each type of violation may
be subject to a minimum liability penalty (MMP). in addition, sewage spills, including
large recycled water spills, are subject to administrative civil liability penalties (ACL). Any
MMP or ACL would be considered a notice of violation. For Calendar Year 2012, IEVUA
had the following SWRCB incidents; however, no incidents were deemed serious:

9/5/12 NOV issued (item appealed)

Date Incident ‘Comments
1/10/12 Turner Basin RW
Release
SB Lift Station Sewer Spill was contained and cleaned before
4,/ 3/12 Overflow reaching surface water
4/12/12 CalPoly Pomona RW
Release
5/8/12 Philadelphia NRW Splll was contained and cleaned before
Sewer Overflow reaching surface water
CCWRF 7-d Median Investigation identified 1ssue as sample

12/19/12 Coliform contamination



Appendi

Environmental Stewardship - Good Neighbor Policy

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment
through conservation and sustainable practices.

Objective: IEUA will control odors at alf Agency facilities for the purpose of improving the
environment and being a good neighbor to the local community.

Commitment: /EUA will perform a quarterly odor monitoring assessment to develop actual
and acceptable baseline odor thresholds. Acceptable baseline thresholds will
be used to measure treatment plant performance and drive necessary capital
improvements.

Commitment Level Background

+ |EUA facilities and processes have the potential to produce odors.

s Each facility is operated under AQMD permits that include odor control requirements.

» AQMD has a rule that prohibits odor impacts to the community,

¢ Substantial funding has been made into odor control technologies at Agency Facilities.

o |EUA routinely performs odor circuits around each facility to measure for hydrogen
sulfide. Hydrogen sulfide has an odor described as smelling similar to rotten eggs and is
generally used as a surrogate for wastewater odor presence.

* IEUA will review extending similar odor circuits to all Agency Facilities and will review expanding
measurements to include ammonia {pungent smell) and mercaptans (rotten cabbage smell).

o In addition, IEUA will perform a quarterly odor profile analysis at each of the treatment facilities.
An odor profile analysis is completed by inviting participants from Member Agencies and IEUA
staff to survey facility odors and grade them by intensity (week to strong) and characteristic
{rotten eggs, fishy, rotten cabbage, etc.). See following diagram for example sample locations.

Regional PlantNo. 1 Regional Plant No. &

s Based upon the odor circuits and odor profile analysis, odor baselines will be created and
thresholds will be set for each facility. An odor control plan will be created to determine any
capital expenditures required to meet the established thresholds. Based upon the required
capital expenditures, the odor thresholds may be adjusted to provide the most efficient odor

control strategy.



A

n

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment

through conservation and sustainable practices.

Objective: IEUA will investigate and appropriately respond in a timely manner to any

environmental issue or complaint received at any Agency Facility.

Commitment: /EUA will inmediately respond to any event that threatens public health and

safety and will respond within 5 working days to any nonemergency complaint
or suggestion.

Commitment Level Background

Generally, all Agency facilities have Operations & Maintenance staff onsite 10 hours per
day, 7 days a week to respond to any compliance or public health & safety events.
During hours when facilities are unmanned, Operations & Maintenance staff are on-call
and receive alarm notifications for any compliance or public health and safety event.
For Calendar Year 2012, IEUA had 17 onsite compliance related incidents, 2 emergency
response events due to recycled water releases, and 2 response events to sanitary
sewer overflows. Each event was responded to immediately.

For Calendar Year 2012, IEUA received 4 odor complaints from members of the Public.
Each complaint was thoroughly investigated by Agency staff and incident reports were
created. Most complaints cannot be substantiated; however, the Agency has modified
operations in an attempt to reduce the potential of creating odors.



Appendix F.4

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment

through conservation and sustainable practices.

Objective: IEUA will strive to implement actions that enhance or promote environmental

sustainability and the preservation of region’s heritage.

Commitment: |EUA will consider and assess environmental sustainability, public use and

heritage preservation options for all of its programs and projects.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA constructed a new headquarters building and committed to design standards that ensured
prudent use of natural resources and proactive conservation measures. This project has enabled
the Agency to achieve recognition and leadership in support of building a sustainable
environment. This recognition was presented to the Agency through the U.S. Green Building
Council’s Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED™) program earning the
“Platinum” level rating by meeting specific requirements. IEUA will take actions to sustain the
Platinum LEED status of its facilities.

In 2007, IEUA opened the Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park, one portion of the
overall efforts being taken in the watershed under the Chino Creek Integrated Plan (CCIP). The
general function of the CCIP is to focus planning attention on the lower Chino Creek area of the
Prado Basin in a process of preserving and restoring the Prado Basin, maximizing value to the
community, improving water-quality and flood control, and providing habitat restoration,
recreation, water conservation and public education. The park is open to the public during
daytime hours and consists of: 22,000 various drought tolerant plants, 1.7 miles of nature trails,
22 acres of habitat, and 6 ponds.

The 1630 West Recycled Water Pump Station was constructed at Vineyard Park in Ontario. As
part of the project, new park bathroom facilities were constructed and improvements of the
parking lot, electrical, and irrigation systems were completed providing benefit to the local
residents.

IEUA will expand its environmental and education programs including: annual Earth Day
activities, Garden in Every School and Inland Empire Garden Friendly. IEUA will collaborate with
all Stakeholders {including Cal State San Bernardino Water Resource Institute and Home Depot)
on the Inland Empire Garden Friendly program to promote sustainable environmental principles
and incorporate the history and tradition of the Region.

IEUA completed construction of the wetlands mitigation area in Basin 2 of the RP-3 Recharge
Facility in July 2004. Basins 1, 3 and 4 are used actively for groundwater recharge, while most of
Basin 2 is occupied by the mitigation wetlands. The vegetation was planted and the irrigation
system installed in May 2005.



Appendix B

Carbon Management Plan



L 4
i
.

NVId LINIWIDVYNYVIN ADUHINI STOZ YN




CARBON MANAGEMENT PLAN
INTRODUCTION

IEUA’s Business Goals discuss the need for effective energy management in order to meet
California’s Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reduction goals. This Carbon Management Plan intends to
provide a baseline for future reduction goals and introduce specific carbon management efforts that
will be further developed and expanded upon in successive plans. Effective carbon management is
instrumental in sustainably and efficiently treating wastewater and providing recycled water for
the Chino Basin.

GHG REPORTING

IEUA became a member of The Climate Registry (TCR) in 2013. TCR membership is voluntary, and
requires an annual inventory of GHG emissions. IEUA’s 2013 GHG emissions were reported, but not
verified by an independent third party. IEUA has committed to pursue verification for the 2014
reported GHG emissions.

Figure 1 shows the breakdown of IEUA’s 2013 GHG emissions by source. A more detailed
categorization is shown in Table 1. GHG emissions reported through TCR are divided into Scope 1
(direct emissions} and Scope 2 (indirect) emissions. Approximately 21 percent of IEUA's GHG
emissions are emitted directly from fossil fuel combustion at IEUA facilities (Scope 1). The
remainder of the inventory is made up of indirect electricity purchases, emissions from mobile
combustion related to biosolids hauling, or emissions from biogenic sources (Scope 2).

FIGURE 1. [EUA’S 2013 GHG EMISSIONS BY SOURCE

1.3%_/

# Mobile Combustion  # Stationary Combustion {Fossil Fuels}] = Biogas Combustion  # Purchased Electricity



o MY, 48pun papnjoul a4o SHMI PUp ‘S-dy B-dy "T-dd 10 Burdiund 123pm papafda. 10f pasn QioL123]3 Wo4f SUOISSIULR B 230N

90S‘cs | 0I£9Z ELTL r 444 4 24 89891 or L6Z £€ 66 SEL9 ol

uonels

€2 A 0 - - €T - - - - | uoneuLoppag

ver| vt 0 ¥zl - - - . - - - aul[ney]

sprjosolg

L0E ] LOE - - - 01 L6Z - - - SOPIYIA 3994

F0E t0E 0 - - F0E - - - - - qdmd

6SS'E 6SS'E 0 - - 655 - - - - - M

SLL SLL 0 - - SLL - - - - - S

¥S1 6151 9z - - 61S'T - - - £Z £ TIMDD

0LEE | TL9T L69 - LOE . 89 - - - 6 889 OH/S-dd

160 8697 Z6¢ - SLY'T ¥eZ - - - 12 ZLE Z-dd

L¥0'S £€0'S T - - £E0'S - - - ¥1 T J104941/%-dd

79¢'ST 5796 LEL'S - 6559 990 - - £€ g€ 1.9°S T-dd
lesara) uonsnquuoe) | £L9ag s3I | aurjosen 0d7T | 19831d 59

smofssjug | feiol | [esol | Ronsnquio) " seSorg | paseypung . . o EnEN a.umos
nyn 10l | z adooas | 1 adoos I[IqON UOPISNqUIo) [Iqel | uonshquo) Areuonels

{(suorssyjug paapuj) z 2doog

suoissiury Paaq) 1 adoag

ALITIOVA ANV 3d02S A8 SNOISSIWA DHD ETO0Z S,VNII'T T14V.L




CARBON NEUTRALITY BY 2030

In recent years, IEUA has worked to develop a diverse portfolio of renewable energy technologies.
Since 2008, 3.5 MW of solar panels, a 1 MW wind turbine, and a 2.8 MW biogas fuel cell have been
installed at IEUA facilities, which adds to a 580 kW biogas engine that has been in operation since
1990. In 2010, IEUA entered into a public-private partnership to operate a food waste digestion
process designed to provide renewable fuel for two 1.5 MW biogas engines at IEUA's RP-5 facility.
These biogas engines began to generate power in early 2015.

As shown in Figure 1, electricity purchases account for half of IEUA’s GHG emission profile. Through
renewable resource optimization and expansion, IEUA aims to procure 100 percent of its electricity
through carbon neutral sources by 2030. In Fiscal Year 2013/2014, 36 percent of electricity
purchases were procured from carbon neutral sources (Figure 2). It should be noted that only
biogas used in the fuel cell was considered to be carbon neutral. Natural gas usage in the fuel cell
was separately included in the 64 percent of procurement from non-carbon neutral sources.

FIGURE 2.IEUA FY 13/14 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT SOURCES

#Imported (Non-RPS)  Imported (RPS) = Solar © Wind ® Biogas (Fuel Cell and ICE}) m Fuel Cell (NG}

Achieving a goal of 100 percent carbon neutrality will require significant planning and engineering
effort. Biogas optimization, increased plant efficiencies, and new renewable projects will all be
pursued to work toward the 2030 goal. IEUA used information from the Wastewater Facilities
Master Plan (WFMP) to project electrical needs over the next 20 years based on the anticipated
increase in influent flows. IEUA also used the following assumptions to estimate the contribution of
renewable resources toward meeting the 2030 electrical needs.

» Food Waste Digestion Operations - [EUA estimates that the cogeneration engines powered
by the food waste digestion process will generate at 90 percent capacity by 2030.



¢ Microturbine Installation - IEUA is currently evaluating the installation of a microturbine
that would operate on biogas and serve as a replacement of the 580 kW engine at RP-2.

e Fuel Cell Operations - [EUA assumes that the fuel cell at RP-1 will maintain operation on a
75/25 mixture of biogas and natural gas, respectively. Equipment degradation rates
specified by the manufacturer are included in the projection.

e Solar Installations — IEUA is currently evaluating the installation of an additional 1 MW of
solar generation, which was incorporated into the projection. Generation capabilities of the
solar were estimated to decrease at a rate of one percent per year, consistent with
manufacturer specifications.

» Increased RPS - Based on current legislation, IEUA anticipates that by 2030, 50 percent of
electricity procured through import will come from renewable sources.

e Increased Energy Efficiency — Based on preliminary energy audit results, implementing
energy efficiency measures at IEUA facilities is expected to reduce energy usage by 15
percent on average.

Using these assumptions and the projections from the WFMP, IEUA has estimated that 81 percent
of its electricity needs in 2030 will be generated from renewable resources (Figure 3).

FIGURE 3. PROJECTED 2030 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT SOURCES
0.5%

® Imported (Non-RPS)  Imported (RP$) © Solar = Wind & Biogas (Fuel Cell, MT, & ICE} ® Fuel Cell (NG)

To better understand where the carbon neutral electricity will be coming from, Figure 4 breaks
down the anticipated generation from carbon neutral sources in the 2030 projections. These
estimates account for projected demand increases from the WFMP, as well as expected efficiency
upgrades. Existing renewable resources (3.5 MW of solar, 1 MW wind turbine, 2.8 MW fue] cell, and
580 kW engine) are not included in either column.



FIGURE 4. PROJECTED 2030 CARBON NEUTRAL RESOURCES

80,000
70,000 | 5—
Demand Reduction from Anticipated Energy
Projected Demand ! Efficiency Upgrades
Increase <
60,000 { i
-— 600 kW Microturbine

£ —+—— Additional 1 MW of solar at RP-4/1ERCF
E 50,000 | S—
— i
% ~—i—— Additional RPS import - CPUC regulations
a2 | anticipated to require 50% of grid electricity
> 40,000 -—+ . .. tocome from renewable sources
g ]
g ;'T— REEP Engines - estimated at 90% capacity
7]

30,000
%
W

20,000

10,000

FY 13/14 2030 Projected

Future planning efforts will be focused on tracking the performance of renewable installations,
researching new opportunities to increase the procurement of electricity from carbon neutral

sources, and identifying potential avenues of bridging the gap between the current level of carbon
neutrality and the 2030 goal.

GHG MANAGEMENT

In addition to achieving carbon neutrality, IEUA will evaluate and implement measures to improve
GHG management. Beginning in FY 15/16, GHG reductions will be considered favorably in the
selection criteria for proposals received for new engineering projects.

The Carbon Management Plan will also be revised in parallel with IEUA’s Energy Management Plan
to ensure continuous evaluation and improvement toward GHG goals. Future planning efforts will
enlist the assistance of third party consultants to generate a more robust management plan that
evaluates potential GHG monitoring and reduction measures such as the carbon neutrality of fleet

vehicles, tracking GHG impacts in various water supplies, and expansion of IEUA’s GHG inventory to
include Scope 3 emissions.



NV1d LNIINFOYNYIN ADHINI STO0Z vNn3l




Appendix C

Organics Diversion



e ™

e,

NV1d LNIANIDVYNVYIA ADHINT STOC vN3l




ORGANICS DIVERSION
INTRODUCTION

California has adopted several policies to reduce the short-lived climate pollutants (SLCP) and
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions by 2030, like the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006
(AB 32), and the mandatory commercial organics recycling law (AB 1826) in 2014. AB 1826 requires
business to recycle organic waste by April 1, 2016, based on the amount of waste generated per week,
and expects local governments to adopt and implement a mandatory commercial organic waste
recycling program by January 1, 2016. Since composting and anaerobic digestion are acceptable
alternatives to organics landfill disposal, Agency’s facilities and staff know-how may represent a
valuable resource to IEUA’s Member Agencies required to comply with AB 1826.

FEASIBILITY STUDY

The Agency’s “Organics Diversion” initiative was introduced in support of IEUA’s Member Agencies
and local businesses, in complying with the State’s organics diversion requirements. As result, staff

is conducting a feasibility study in the Agency’s service area, to evaluate the amount and the current
processing and disposal practices of:

e fat, oil and grease (FOG)
¢ domestic and commercial food waste
» high strength industrial waste.

A critical element of the feasibility study is the digester gas production estimate associated with the
amount and type of organic waste available in the Agency’s service area, and the development of a
business case evaluation related to co-digestion and digester gas utilization facilities. Potential
beneficial use of the biogas generated is:

» electricity generation (internal combustion engine, microturbine, fuel cell)
* conversion to natural gas pipeline quality (pipeline injection and/or vehicle fuel)

Because of the significant energy value associated with food waste, the implementation of an organics
diversion program and food waste co-digestion will be essential in supporting the Agency long term
goals of peak power independence and carbon neutrality.

PROJECT BARRIERS

Social, political, economic and regulatory barriers can adversely affect the implementation of the
Organics Diversion initiative at [IEUA. Community support is essential to ensure proper disposal and
prevent food waste contamination; as well the full support of the Member Agencies directly
responsible for providing waste management, or contracting the waste collection and disposal to a
third party. Lack of funding, slow return on investments, uncertain revenue stream and incentives
may be too risky for the Agency; and, delaying the implementation and enforcement of organic
recycling laws may limit the amount of waste available for co-digestion, preventing the development
of a competitive organic waste market, with tipping fees comparable to other disposal options.



www.ieua.org



RECEIVE AND
FILE

SF



Buiuueld jo Jaeuep Aindag
leqdwe) Apuy

LORLSIA HALVM TVLIDINNW V

uaby saninn aldw3 pupjuj ’V

0L0T UYdJBAl
1epdn [enuuy-1was
1931ep\ paJ2AoaYy




9L0¢ YoJew
SPIJULLILLIGT _mco_mwm LORUSIG YALYM TVIINOW ¥

A3UBDY eI axdur3 pupjuf ’U

dn-1e3s AAY ulseg zapaQg SMO||Y
SJD0TOo1SP b %
fpede) AuaAllaq €44 paseanu| =

2191dwo)
€dY 03 UOISUDIXT DIADUIAA *

duljadid 3|j1Adulm -33loid MY




910t yolew
S921HWWIO) [euoIZaYy SORILSIC EVM TVIDINAW ¥

Mouaby saapan sadii3 puojul ’d

Aibede>
MY AdY 000°9-000‘V "xouddy =«

UOIIDNJIISUOD dedA L
pJemy R pig 910z Anf/aunf s«
gLoc Auenuqoa4 ugisap %59

suiseg € 1addn 03 auijadid
Q uonels duing S auieAssS ues

dUIeADS ues -323loid MY



9102 DB
S22)UWLWOY [euolZay

0107 [|B4 :uoiR|dwod pajewnysy  «
sy09{oud uoidalodd 281nS J 0€9L pue AL 0€9L

007‘L- 009 Q107 Jaquuiada( ugisag auladid apISISAIY/pIPNT OlBUQ JO AXD

001 Q10T Jaquada( ugdisaq aid UOISU3IXT MY auljaseq

000°L Q10T JoquIad3( ugisaQg a4d |edo3eT eden

Apnqeley gL0T Jaquiadag ugisag aid aulpedid [[eANO [2)|eied i-dY

Ainqenay Q10T J2qUIadaQg ugiseq a.d uone[[eISU| AJeA SulURISNS S1NSSAd

Apqensy QL0T Jaquiada( uSisaq a.d yoauayo0g auladid MY S-dY

Kjigerey QLOT JaquuUada( ugisaq a4d sopeaddn sd gSLL 1-dY

0009 - 000‘V £107 Jowwing ugisa( sjusWA0LdWL] Ulseg SUIBASS UBS
AdY 21eq

Ev:wm auvw_o._n_ uonajdwod pajeuw}sl e sweN 3afoid

9LOT JOWWNS Ul pJemy Sulpuad
uonewlol| YOI [euolppe paisanbal pieog 23e31S

s1o9loud uedn | doud

R ey
-t O ]

mwuw._o._n_ Y




oLOT Yole
S@31LILI0)) JeuoiZay

-

LOTULSIO SV IVAIDINNW Y
Aouaby sapjin a4dw3 pujuy

000°‘GE  ozb'€E  TST'RE  61E‘TE 0616t btgo'br S9r'€t  Sho‘gr  £6F‘EL 6zo‘Er |10l Q
[66°C obgoL €651 6/F‘oL bEo'ey gro‘s goTl bgo‘c obErc  186T ympH
Soz'tt 09S%‘ct 6%9tz obgiz 9SS‘or 9%9‘gl  /So‘gl  19g‘eL  €GL9L gkofol aaig e

OLfSLAL SHPL AL PI-€ELAL ELTEAL TLLAL LI-OLAS -mmw“_ -wm%r._ -NMMH_ -wwﬂn_

. 0
000G
o00‘olL

0 00051
000‘0T

000t

1994-200Y

000°0E

000‘GE

coo‘ol

000‘SY

(S10T Jaquiddaq ysnoays)

puewaq MY S/PAS




9L0T YdJew
SooJILULLOD _mco_wwm ADMEASIO H3LVAL TVAIDINAIW ¥

uaby sapynn 2jdui3 puojuf ,U

L66%S :;pagieyday Junowly [B3oL
G09 -Uuoned0||v 5,asOr
T6E‘S 001 |eyoL
LE€S o] puejdn
691l (44 ouejuQ
ote Qb Jleppjuow
[£0% 61 BURIUOA
QSE‘L QT AMAD
og¥ < SIIH oulyd
0LS S0l oulyd

91/Sk A4
(3994-2.10y)
uoljedo||y a8.1eyday

(%)

2ieys ejey o.id

G107 J2quiadaq ysnoayl
SUoneEd0[|Y 4MD MH




RECEIVE AND
FILE

5G



910z Aenuep LOINLSIA HALVM TVIIDINOW ¥

A>uaby sapijin a41dwi3 puojuj ’r

Apnis Ajljiqisea
UOISIBAI( solueblp




. 1DI4LSIA YALVAA TVJIDINNW ¥

fouaby samhn andus3 pubjuy fd

sjuejn|jod a1ewWliD PSAI|FHOYS [EO1LID 8oNpaY .
selioe} splios syN3| 0} sjjipue| wouy soebio penq -

syjuswalinbal uoisIaAlp soiuebio
s 8)e1S 8yl yum Ajdwoo o} saiousby Jaquai Isissy -

I o ke
g =t i

9AI108[g0




IDMMASIA HAEVM TVAIDINNW V

A3uaby sanijin sitduig puojuj / U

(0102 |udy) seAneuls)je asn [eloyauaq seb ia)sabiq -

leisnpuil yibusus ybiH .
|eloJawiwion) .
olsewoq -

(0L0Z |udy) AeAins 8)sem poo -

(910Z Aeniga4) arepdn Juswssasse osealb a)Sep) -«

Apmis Ajljiqises




RECEIVE AND
FILE

5H



910z ‘g2 Em::m_; 1D1I1SIA HILVM TVAIDINOW V|

A>uaby sapijin aaidwi3 pubjuj /U

Apnmig Ajljigisea

SJ19SMN 211dag 0] 92IAI8S JaMaS



7 1D(H1S1Q YILVM TVAIDINNW ¥

A3uaby sanyiin aXdw3 puoul fv

siyausq Ajddns Jsjepn =
Aljigeljol adiAles Jamag =
sjjouaq Juswdo|sAsp |Boo

saljddns Jajempunoub Jo Juswasoueyuy

:Kg ealy 9o1A18S 8y} Jjsuaq ||Im siasn opjdas Bupames

R ot

e e,
= e

o e e

s)ljauag pue punoibyoeg joaloid



)

Ayurdue pebajusspenig _H_

£ , LONHISIA HTIVM TVIIDINAW ¥ -~

sdncip yooig Apnungoes ucuﬁ!.guwa.n Auaby sanyhn axdul3 puojuy
s sawes vz ] Q
weiondeg |
ugRdc BASS VNS s
SEez Haee D
SuIEd JuaLEeRy. (G
pusBen —

K DWdD il
ol |g

Ealy 99IAIeS

v w siesn ondeg
Slo jo nms_ Areulwiaid



1DIMLSIA HALYM TVAIDINAW ¥

Aouaby sanynn asndw3 puojuj / 0’

sjoedw| welboid Jejepn pejohosy YNl =
uoibay 0} sjijeusag OIUOU0dT *

s}ljeuaq pue S}s09 — Jajne) pue qiny =

S99] UOI}03UUOD JO uoljen|eAd Bulpnjout — S}S0) poleidossy
sisAjeuy uonosuuon) pue Ajloede)) Jamesg «

sjyeuaq Aljenb Jejempunols) =

Buipunj Juelb uo paseq Bupjuel — ssaUaAljoBlg 1S0D =

s}oaload jenpiAlpu] Jo} uonejuswajdwj Jo uejd

2d02g pue s|eox) 108loid




LD LSHD HALVA TVRIDINOW v

Loualy seijin 2T PLLEY /.d

‘91L0¢
loquieldag — uonajdwon Apnig Aljiqisea pajosfoid =

910Z/9/¥ - leroiddy/piemy pieog J0BIJUOD d4Y =

(9L/1/¢€ 0
YOaj) uonenobaN J1oefuUO)) B ‘SMBIAIBIU| ‘Uonen|eAT 44y =

9L0z/ce/e —9req buiso|p  +

9102/.¢/) — Buyeng |esodosd-a1d «

9102/./} — ddY JO JUSWSSILBARY =
T a|npayasg 100loid

aullawi] 108loig



RECEIVE AND
FILE

]



(\ Inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 3, 2016

To: Regional Committees

From: Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Subject: IEUA Storage Agreement
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Regional Committees to review.
BACKGROUND

The item was presented as an action item at the IEUA Board of Directors meeting on February 17,
2016.



A MUNICIFAL WATES DMTEICT

Date: February 17, 2016

To: The Honorsble Board of Directors

Through: Pﬂ:lm,LegmlntweAm demkugm'mCommilﬁee(.Z/M/M)
From:

Submiitted by:

Subject:

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1.  Approve the Water Storage Agreement between Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)
and Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) for the purchase of up to 5,000 acre-

feet of supplemental water;
2,  Approve the use of $2,700,000 of “one-time” incremental property taxes to fund the
purchase of supplemental water; and
3.  Authorize the General Mansager, subject to nom-substential changes, execute the
Agreement.
BACKGROUND

In response to the 2015 Governor’s Order, several IEUA member agencies have significantly
reduced their demands on imported water purchases through Metropolitan Water District (MWD).
These demands have resulted in ongoing operationsl challenges for the CVWD. As required
within the MWD Administeative Cods, CVWD must meintsin & minimum flow of 15 oubic-
feet/scoond (10% of totsl tarnout capacity) fo their water tregtment plent through the MWD turnout
at any time. Use below this level wifl be charged at 15 cubic-feet/second (take-or-pay).



Water Purchase and Storage Agreement

February 17, 2016
Page 2 of 2

Seversl planned [EUA water resource programs are contingent upon the development of Chino
Basin groundwater storage. IEUA has a pending storage application with the Chino Basin
‘Watermaster (CBWM); howeveg, if is anticipated that the processing of the application will take
at least a year to be formally considered and approved by CBWM. Storege of supplemental water
during wet years and use of stored water during dry years is an IEUA Business Gosl and &
fundemental strategy within the Integrated Water Resource Plan.

In late 2015, CVWD and IEUA developed an spproach that would help CVWD meet their
minimum flow needs and eneble [EUA to purchase and store water in the Chino Basin, This

approach is memorialized in the attached Water Storage Agreement (Agreement). Key provisions
of the Agreement are as follows:

s CVWD would purchase actual water needed through the MWD turnout

#. IBUA would purchase the additional increment of water needed for CVWD to meet the
minimve flow requirement

s An equivalent volume of Chino Basin groundweter will be stored by CVWD for IEUA for
all supplemental water purchases (in-licu groundwater storage)

». CVWD will carry JEUA’s water in storage until soch time that IEUA clects 1o sell or
transfer stored water

The approval of this Agreement would affect the purchase of up to 5,000 acre-feet of water, Based
on the 2016 MWD Untreated Tier-1 rate of $594/acre-foot, approximately $3,000,000 of water
could be purchased and stored under this Agreement. The purchase and subsequent resale of stored
water will be recorded in the Water Resources (WW) Fund.

This Agreoment meets the IRUA adopted Business Goal of Water Reliability by reducing demands
for imported water during dry and normal years and storing imported water info the Chino Basin
during wet years.

PRIOR

On June 17, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the use of “one-time™ receipts as a funding
source for the Supplemental Water Resource reserve.

IMPACT ON BUDGET
Upon epproval, water purchases will be supported by “one-time” iticremental property tax receipts
of $2,700,600 received in December 2015 us a result of the dissolution of redevelopment agencies.

All revenues associated with the future male of stored water will be used to make fiture
supplemental water purchases.

Attachment: 2016 Water Storage Agreement

3\Board-Rec\2016\16038 Water Parchase & Storsge Agreement 2-17-2016.docx



2016
WATER AGREEMENT

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
and
Cucamonga Valley Water District
This 2016 Water Agreemert (“Agreement”) Is made as of , 2018, by

and between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, ('IEUA"), and the

Cucamonga Valley Water District ("CVIWD"). IEUA and CVWD are hereinafter collectively
referred to as the Parties or individually as a Party.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, The Chinc Groundwater Basin (Chino Basin) is one of the largest subsurface

storage aquifers in Southem Callfornia and has the potential to store large volumes of water
for local use during dry periods.

WHEREAS, CVYWD has pumping rights and storage rights within the Chino Basin.

WHEREAS, IEUA has the desire and ability to purchase untreated imported water to
supplement local groundwater supply.

WHEREAS, IEUA contemplates delivering and etoring supplemental water in the Chino
Basin for the purpose of providing eddlitional local water suppiles during dry years.

WHEREAS, |IEUA desires o have a designated storage account within the Chino Basin; a
process that is scheduled to be worked through over the next year with the Chino Basin
Watermaster (Watermasber).

WHEREAS, During imes when water demands are very low, CVWD doee not regularly have

sufficlent demand on the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) service connection that meets
the minimum take-or-pay fiow requirement.

WHEREAS, [EUA would be willing to supplement CVWD's minimum take-or-pay MWD

service connection requiremant, If the addiional supplementst water supply could be crediied
fo IEUA through CVWD'e Chino Basin carryaver sliomge account.




NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hareto agree as follows:

SECTION 1: DELIVERY OF MWD TIER-1 WATER

A. Upon request by CVWD, or as otherwise coordinated batwsen the Parties, IEUA shail
at lts own coet purchess and dellver to a service connection &t one of CVWD'’s treatment
facilities, as designated by CVWD, the volume of MWD water requested by CVWD to meet
ts minimum service connection fiows from MWD and included within the CVWD Tier-1
aliocation. The Parties acknowledge and agree that CVWD ghall not be bilied for any such
deliveries; CVWD shall not be responsile for any and :all’ applicable charges for such
deliveries, including but not Emited to MWD RTS charges, and IEUA shall be responsible for
any charges. CVWD shall be responshie for all treatment . and disiribution costs incurred
after the MWD service connection pointto a CVWD treatment facliity.

B. In the event CVWD desires to have IEUA purchase and deliver MWD Tier-1 water to
a sefvice connection at one of CVWD's freatment facilities to meet its minimum service
connection flows in acoordance with Section 1(A) above, CVWD shall, in good faith, provide
IEUA & forecast of anticipated purctiases no later than 30-days prior to the start of actual
delivery. Any such water purchased.and delivered by IEUA at the request of CVWD shall be
counted towards the CVWD Tier-1 allocation. (limit is 28,388 for Fiscal Year 2015/16),

C. CVWD shall notify [EUA no later than 5-working daye following the end of the calendar
month (if deliveries have been made at the request of VWD) of actual delivery of water
through the MWD service connection that they wish to have appiled to thie agresment. The
reported volume of water will therefore be paki for by IEUA and removed from any imported
water biliing to CVWD. Lo

D. In'the event IEUA desires to purchase and deliver additional MWD Tier-1 water to a
service connaction at one of CVWD's treatment facilities that Is not covered by Section 1(A)
abova, and for which |IEUA deeires to receive a stored water cradit in accordance with Section
2 below, IEUA shall submit a written request to CVWD for any such proposed transaction no
later than 30-days prior to the proposed delivery, and any such proposed transaction shall
be subject to written approval by CVWD within its sole and complete discretion. Any such
water purchased and delivered by IEUA at the request of IEUA and approval of CVWD in
accordance with this Section 1(C) shall be counted towards the IEUA Tier-1 allocation. The
Parties acknowiedge and agres that CVWD shall not be biiled for any such dellveries and
that IEUA shall be responsible for any and alf applicable charges for such defiveries, including

but not firnited to MWD RTS charges, and that CVWD shall not be responsible for any
charges.

IEUA-CVWD Water Agreement Psgo 2 of 6



SECTION 2: STORED WATER CREDITS

A. Foliowing the purchase and delivery of any water In accordance with Section 1 of this
Agreement, CVWD shall account for an equivalent volume of Chino Basin groundwater to

IEVA within CVWD's exieting Excess Carryover Storage Account (“IEUA-credited stored
water”).

B. IEUA-credited stored water shall be subject fo losses normally assessed fo

Appropriative Pool storage accounts by Watermaster and any such losses shall be passed-
through to IEUA by CVWD. Ll

C. In the event that IEUA desires o transfer all.or.any portion of it iEUA-credlted storsd
water to another party, IEUA shell notify CVWD In writing of the requestsd fransfer no less
than 30-days prior to the proposed transfer being fited with Watermaster. Thereafter, CVWD
shall, In good faith, file the nacessary paperwork required by Watermaster within 30-days of
receiving a writtan request from IEUA; provided, however, that IEUA shall cooperats in
supplying CVWD with al necessary data and Information that may be needed to complals
the Waternaster paperwork, and provided further that CVWD shall have no responsibility,
iiablity, duty to defend, or any other obiigation In relalion to the iming, Watermaster

considerafion, potential thind-parly prolest,-or any othet factors affecting any proposed
transfer by IEUA.

D, CVWD shall proviis IEUA with a written summary of the IEUA-credited stored water
baiance (which shall Include, at a minimum, prior water balance, water added, losses applied,
transfers infout and new water balance) within 45-days of the end of each quarter (l.e., May
15 for January — March). o

E. Upon termination of this Agreement, CVWD shall notify IEUA of the balance of IEUA-
oradited stored water, which shall remain IEUA's asset. Subject to Watermaster approval,
[EUA may transfer the remalning sald beiance of IEUA-credited stored water to IEUA's
dedicated water storage accounit, request transfer of the wader to another party, or leave the
balance in CVWD's storage account for future transfer subject to the terms of this Agreement.
IEUA shall make good falth efforts to ensure that all IEUA-credited stored water s removed
from the CVWD storage mcoount within 120-months following the termination of this
Agreement. In the event any IEUA-oraditad stored water remains In the CVWD storage
account at the end of sald 120-month perlod, the Partles shall meet and confer In geod faith
to develop a mutuaily agreeable pian for the disposition of said water. If the Parties cannot

reach agresment through the meet and confer process, the Dispute Resolution provision of
this agreement shall be applied.

IEUA-CVWD Water Agreement

Page 3 of 6



SECTION 3: EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement shall be effective from the date of execution of this Agreement by both
Parties and shall terminate on June 30, 2017, unless a one-year extension is entered by
wrilten amendment to thie Agreement exacuted by both Parties.

SECTION 4: MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION

Each Parly agrees fo proiect, defend, indemnify and hold harmiess the other Party and its
officers, directors, agents, employees, voluntesrs, atitomeys, consultants, and subcontractors
from any and all liabliity, claims, judgments, coets and demands, induding demands arising
from injuries or death of peraons and damage to property, accurring as a result of its own or its
respective officars, directors, agents, employees, volunieers, attorneys, consultants, or
subcontractor'’s wrongful or negligent acts or omissions in performing or falling to perform this
Agreamsnt. Each Parly shall be responsble only to the extent of its negligence. Each Party
further agrees to investigate, handie, respond to, and provide defsnse for any such claims,
demands or suit required hereunder at its sole expense.

SECTION &: OBSERVING LAWS AND ORDINANCES

The Parties shall at all times observe and comply with all applicable laws, ondinances,
regulations, requirements, orders and decrees affecting their respective performance under this
Agreement, and a Parly’s failure to comply with applicable laws, ordinancaes, regulations,
requirements, orders or decrees may constitute a breach of this Agreament and entitle the non-
breaching Parly o remedies as proviied in this Agresment.

SECTION 6: DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The Parties shall seek to resolve any dispute concerning the Interpretation or Implementation
of this Agreement, including but not limited to an afleged breach of this Agreement, through
good falth negotiation, involving, as and when appropriate, the general manager or chief
exscutive officar of each of tha Parties. A Party alleging a breach of this Agreement or other
dispute arising under this Agresment shall send written notics with a reasonably detailed
description of the alleged breach or other dispute to the other Party. The Parly recelving the
notice of the alleged breach or other dispute shall have thirty (30) calendar days to cure any
such alleged breach or dispute to the satisfaction of the Parly alleging the breach or other
disputs. Any alleged breach or other dispute that remains unresolved shdy days (80) days
after the Inidal written nofice of alieged breach or other dispute ls dellvered shall be submitied
to a single arbltrator with substantial experience in the matter or matters in disputs, and
conducted in accordance with Judicial Arbitration and Mediafion Services (JAMS). The
JAMS arbitrator shall apply the JAMS rules of arbitration, which shall govem any arbitration.
If the Partiee cannot agree on a single arbitrator within ten (10) days of the written electicn
to submit the matter to arbitration, any Party may request JAMS to appoint a single, neutral
arbitrator. The Parties shall use their reasonable best efforts to have the arbitration
proceedinge concluded within ninety (60) business days of selection of the arbitrator.

IEUA-CVWD Water Agreement Pago 4 of 6



SECTION 7: NOTICE

Wiitten notices to be given to any Parly must be given by personal delivery or by registerad
or certified mail addressed and deliverad as set forth below. Other comespondence and
invoices may be sent by firat-class mail, addreased and deflvered as set forth balow:

Inland Empire Utiltiea Agency
8075 Kimball Avenue

Chino, CA 91708

Attention: Chris Barch

Cucamonga Valley Water District
10440 Ashford Street

Rancho Cucamonga, CA 81730
Attenticn: John Bosler

SECTION 8: TERMI FOR

In addifion to other rights set forth in this Agreement, each Party reserves and hae the right to
immadiately suspend, cancel or terminsie this Agreement at any #me upon thirty (30) daye
written nofice to the cther Party. In the event of such termination, the terminating Party shall
pay the other Parly any and all amounis owed for ali authorized costs or any obligations
hereunder up to the date of such termination. Any water remaining in a storage account at the

time of termination shall be disposed of in accordance with the provisions of Saction 2(E) of this
Agresment.

SECTION 9: REPRESENTATION OF AUTHORITY

Each Parly represents to the other that it has the authority to enter into this Agreement and
that the individual signing this Agreement on behalf of their respective Party has the authority
fo executs this Agreement and to bind their respective Party to the terms and conditions of
this Agreement,

SECTION 10: GOVERNING LAW

This Agreement shall ba governed by and constructed in accordance with the laws of the Stale
of California in the County of San Bernardino.

SECTION 11: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS
The Recliala set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement.

IEUA-CVWD Water Agreemnent

Page 5 of 6



SECTION 12:

This Agresment is intended by the Parties as a complete and exciusive statement of the
terms of their agresment and it supersades all prior agreements, written or oral, as to the
subject matter of this Agreement. This Agreement may be modified only upon the mutual

written agreement of the Parties hereto. No third party beneficlary Is intended or created by
the exacution of this Agreament.

SECTION 13: A FEES AND

in any proceeding to enforce of interpret the terms or provisions of this Agresment, the
prevaliing Party, in addition to costs, shall be entitied:to. recover lts reasonable attomeys'
fees. Ty

SECTION 14: COUNTERPARTS

This Agreement may be signed In counterparts, each of which shall consfitute an original,
and which taken together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. Verifiable facsimile

and electronk execution coples of this Agresment shall constitute original counterparts or
coples of this Agresment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed by

Ite respective duly authorized officers. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the in
accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY:  CUGAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT:

P. Joseph Grindstaff Martin E. Zvirbulis
General Manager General Manager/CEO
Dats: — Date:

[EUA-CVWD Water Agreement Page 6 of 6



RECEIVE AND
FILE

5]



LDIAISIA ¥3IVM TVdIDINAW V

AoudBy SaRljn 2110w puU] ’d

gL0z Aseniqs

suolneledald oulN |3 pue
abieyoay Jo1ep) paloAoay




1ea ) jeastd ou| skeg
s3g SEE WOE vz ez €z £81 st LALSIQ HALVM TYIIDINAW ¥

e e B e e e Kouaby SN siidus3 puojuj u
|
|
ﬁ y .
—_ . ™ H T M
— = - 000's =
— \I. i\ \\ X o009 m
— = t W oo’z 3@
.\\.\L\\ L e * - oo's m.
\l\.\ .. — ; ey r 000 F
= u,, : : i oooor &
o . 9T/STOZ Ao
T ; : STAT0Z Ad oo
- — : : m - won
e in\“‘\ : . PATOZM - | oot @ —\ON am:cmq‘
. : : . i : . o0yt
. e Aienugay Alenuer Jaguatag J3quIaAon 12G0130 saqwaydas sndny Anp c m : Ol— EH.
—H g1Loz Ainr
w
, 4
V J€ 000 .
HYS 0 A ST/ETAL —o—
| esnmesgamy OL/STAd - =g = _ L i \ o i
aBIEypaY My OL/STAL (Fm] . i
| aBieyion My ST/¥TAd == ; _
aflieyaay My VE/ELAI £ _
_ i | i

ab.ieyoay Ja)ep) pajoAoay




=gy

Ao cm _muo._.

aow 9'8 .moe G-dY
asw 9°LT  :(Z0o0) T-d¥
AoOW 9T :(T00) Y ied opeld

MMMHNIS_Q yoau)

=

ASW 0'TE :[el0L
doW 60T -JS1eM pajPAdsy

aswoo {amI)1etem psuoduw

DN T'0Z  :4ouny [es0]/uLiols

-

Y700 paDAIRQG US2Idd

d9W 20
asw 66
dow 80T
3

‘PRIBAIPQ _

:Alddns apy

uUaNpu|

~

/2

%1 0 :paJdaA)aq JusdIad

dOW S0 paJtsAlaq

aoW T'9 :Alddns my

asw z'9 uanju|
JUMID

%St "vw.bwz_wn_ JusoIad

ODOW S ¢r  .pedeAl[=qQ

aoW 64z :Alddns my

abn ¥'9Z Jusnjjul
T-d4

aon s's
QD 8L
avn 4’8

wmﬁm‘wmwkg.__mo FUERIEY

POISAI[SQ
:Alddns Ay
Iusnu|

%9E :patan||eQ sl

QSN £8T 7
Q5N LTS
asn 1°es

'PeIBAlleq

:Ajddns my
suenu|

SINVId TIV TYLOlL

s veL i

9T0Z AYVNNYI — NOLLNAIY1SIA H31YM A310A03d vN3i




IE8), B8] Q| sheq

sge e woE T ez €1z i 224 4] 16 s oe o IDIU1SIA IV IVAEINDW v

A3uiaby sayjiy) andii3 pupju; f.“

: M wave §
_ i OT/STOT A m ) m
et _ apmor— | | =
e — T 910z Aenuep
. 00002

aung Rew |udy yuew Auerugad Asenuer JRqUIBIBA  JSqWRAON 1290330 Laquiaydas wniny Ant —.‘_ m 3 O«— _(_H.

o GlLoz Ainp

=1 Je00G°Cl

STATOZAID [ ]
1 00§'E m.

oT/ST0Z A0

v/eor Al |
.

abieyoay Jajempunols) |ejo|




S LOMLSIO ¥ALYAR TWIEDINOW ¥

Kouabiy SR a9 PUOIY] fd

31BIDIP SIUDAD WWIO]S pue
Aypeded uiseq se anunuod suiseq 231eYd34 0] SOLIDAIIRP MY *

(000°005°¢$ Aja1pWitx0ddD St 9301 pa3PaJIUN L 4311 GAAW 3P 3N|DA)
1994-240e 006G Ajojewixoidde ainyded Jolem wiols [BIO]

9.4n1ded 191eM WI0]S DJRINSEI UM SIUDAD LWIOIS USAI[T =

(9102 ‘0} ‘984 ybnoiyy)

abieyoay pue ainyden o)A\ WI0IS




901t *6 AlBnIqa ¢ JTE/SMBLADS BSE I [SAS[ES5][:50111 @24n0s
‘ples 3y, ‘pauaddey 3,usey Sulyiswos Ji snoAssu 34 ||| ‘Aieniqa aje| ig,,
*ssaUISNq AXDL B SABMIE S] Jo1ABY3G S,0ulN |3 Bunaipad ‘ns

"ples JazZied [1id ., ‘UdJeA puE Azeniga4 ul moys 8iq ay3 uo 3nd sey oulN |3 ‘A|jedi0)stH,,
({4

L T
o o B =]
ar u L] L3 4 a £

910¢ Z-uosep 8661 UOpPIasSod/X3d0L

L

.‘I-

¢OUIN |3 S! 8I8YM




O
!
=
Z
LL]
L
O
| -
©
2




RECEIVE AND
FILE

5K



‘ W Inland Empire UtmtresAgency

- A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: March 3, 2016

To: Regional Technical Committee

From: Inland Empire Utilities Agency

Subject: Regional Contract Audit Notification and Process
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Regional Technical Committee to review.

BACKGROUND

Throughout 2015, the Internal Audit Department of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)
conducted a review to evaluate how each of the contracting agencies apply the Chino Basin
Regional Sewerage Contract (Regional Contract). The intent of the review was to determine
whether processes employed by the contracting agencies were in compliance with the Regional
Contract requirements. It was hoped that the process would identify opportunities to improve
procedures and make recommendations to consider as part of the Regional Contract renegotiations.

The final audit report was shared with the Regional Technical Committee in January 2016 and is
attached. In general, the findings indicate certain inconsistencies in the implementation of the
Regional Contract including several examples where connection fees were not charged to public
schools, public facilities, hospitals and industries. There were also variances in how different
contracting agencies interpreted the requirements of the Regional Contract.

Based on the sample of data evaluated, the findings of the audit strongly suggest that there is a
significant economic impact to the regional sewerage system as a result of uncollected connection
fees and service charges. The exact impact, however, cannot be determined until a physical fixture
count of the various facilities has been completed. It is [EUA’s intent to work closely with the
contracting agencies on a cooperative basis to better understand the true nature and extent of the
unpaid connection fees and service charges.

IEUA will continue to work with the Technical Committee to develop and implement an approach
of defining the extent of this impact. Section 20D of the Regional Contract provides that if there
is a disagreement or error in the computation of service charges for a contracting agency, IEUA
shall provide written notice of same to the Regional Technical Committee and request a
recommendation and report from the committee. Following validation efforts, IEUA will be
asking the Technical Committee to provide this recommendation and report for collection of any
unpaid connection fees or service charges.



Date: Decenber 16, 2015

To: The Honorsble Board of Directors
Through: Andit Conmmiittee (12409/15)
From: Teresa V. Velande

Munager of Internal Audit
Subject: Regional Contract Review Final Report
RECOMMENDATION

This is an information item for the Board of Directors (Board) %o review.
BACKGROUND

mmmofmnmmnmﬁwmmmmﬂmm)mmpm
a veview of the Agency’s Regional Sewage Service Contract (Regional Contract Review) as

with the seven regionel contracting agencies. The objectives of the Regional
Contract Review include:

¢ PFvaluate of how each of the seven contracting agencies apply the Regional Contract
provisions.
¢ Deitrmine whether processes are in compliance with fhe Regional Costract requirements.
+ Determine opportumities to improve processes and procedurce.
o Idenfify opporiunities and make recommendations for comsiderstion as part of the
mwmmmwkmﬁmmﬂmwnmwuf
Fiscal Responsibility, Wmmmmmmaimbymﬁﬁngind@m

ovaluations of the financial and operstional sctivities of IEUA's oontracting sgencies’
Mwmwmmwmmhw

RECOMMFENDATIONS AND FINDINGS

The final report presents recommendations in the form of potential new business modeis for the
Agenocy to consider implamenting:

o Best Practices — Actions/activities fhat could/should slready be occuming
« Minor Changes - Revisions to Exhibit J and the 1997 sewer billing formmla



Regional Contract Review Final Report
December 16, 2015
Page 2 of 4

Modcrate Changes — Oversight, information, and recourse

Major Changes — Develop a new way of doing business (centralize the collection of all
fees at IEUA)

Total iegionsal restructuring

The recommended business models address the findings noted consistently through the review:

Exhibit J of the Regional Contract should be revised and approved regularly. The review
identified over $160,000 in potential under-collections from just five businesses where
there was a difference in the itterpretation of the category type.

Contracting agencies do not generally coliect connection fees from public schools (K-12)
since schools are permitted by the State. The review found 16 public school campuses
with recent construction. In ten instances no copnection fees were paid. JA
conservatively estimates that at a miniommm, connection fees of approximately $230,000,
and possibly as much as $687,000, should have been collected.

The region’s main community college campus and one safellite campus did not pay
connection fees for mmiltiple new buildings, but the Fontana satellite campus paid
approximately $53,000, in connection fees for one new building. IA conservatively
estimates that at 8 minimwm, connection fees of approximately $55,000, for the satellite
campus and over $180,000, for the main campus should have been collected, and
possibly et least as much as $530,000, should have been collected.

The review found one hospital (Kaiser — Fontana) where no connection fees were
collected. Two other hospitals with recent cxpansion esch paid approximately
$1,400,000, in comnection fees. IA conservatively estimates that at a minimmum,
comnection fees of approximately $1,300,000, should have been collected, but the amount
coizld possibly be much higher.

No difference is defined in the Regional Contract between public service facilitics that
are oonsidered “publicly owned” vs. *publicly used” The review tested eight
govemmenta]l facilities that were charged connection fees at the commercial category rate
rather then the public service rate, resulting in potential under-collections of
approximately $64,000, for all buildings.

mwculaﬁmwoﬂmheetahoﬂdbesmndardizedatanmmmagmdesthhe

fixture types and counts are consistent with Exhibit J. The review found that at one
contracting agency the calculation worksheet is toissing 15 categories from Exhibit J, yet
mcludesthreecategorytypenthstmnotpaﬁofExhbitI This created a potential
exirapolated under-collection of approximately $80,000 in connection fees in just one
fiscal year.

G\Board-Rec\2015\1 5295 Boerd Letier-Final Repori-Regional Contract Review.doca



Regional Contract Review Final Report
December 16, 2015

Page 3 of 4

A contrecting ageacy gave an Indusiriel entity a credit of over $500K for connection fees,
with no documentation to support the credit.

There is & need for cleer guidance and detailed instructions for the assessment and
collection of connection fees for Indnstrial entities. In eveluating the comnection fees and
monthly sewerage charges collected among various industrial entities, there appears to be
no correletion or justification for some of the low rates currently paid.

The EDU defined in fhe Regional Contract as 270 gallons per day (GPD) is no longer
representative of modern water usage.

TEUA should require contracting agencies to itemize monthly sewerage amounts for non-
residential customers. Currently, the sgencies provide total EDUs each month and IRUA

issues an invoice for the self-reported amount without requiring additional support or
verification,

The 1997 Procedures for monthly sewer billing memorandum should be revised and
approved regularly, The review found contracting agencies where approximately 25
percent of accounts tested for monthly sewer fees had emrors, Errors/mistakes in monthly

sewer billing act like an annuity, growing exponentinally over time unless or until they are
corrected.

IA would like to extend our appreciation to all seven contracting agencies, the IEUA Planning
and Environmental Resources and Finanoe and Accounting Departments for their cooperation
and essistance during fhis review. JA appreciates the opportonity to perform this review and
stands ready to assist in any way possible as necessary and as requested.

To-date, 1A has submitted as information items the following reports:

Interim Audit Repoxt for the City of Ontario (September 2015)

“Draft” Interim Audit Report for the City of Ontario (Yane 2015)

Interim Audit Report for the City of Chino Hills (June 2015)

Tnterim Audit Report for the Cucamonga Valley Water District (March 2015)
Interim Audit Report for the City of Chino (Decermber 2014)

Interim Audit Report for the City of Fontana (December 2014)

Inderim Audit Report for the City of Montclair (September 2014)

Interim Audit Report for the City of Upland (September 2014)

Survey of Comparative Information of the Seven Contracting Agencies (September 2014)
Regional Contract Review — Review of the Ten Year Forecast (Yuns 2014)
Regional Contract Review — Survey of Comparable Agencies (Tune 2014)

ATTACHMENTS
The Regional Contract Review Final Repoet is sttached,

G:\Boand-Rec\2015\15295 Bognd Latter-Finel Report-Regional Contract Review.doox



Regional Contract Review Final Report
December 16, 2015
Page 4 of 4
RIOR CTION
On September 17, 2014, the Board approved the Fiscal Year 2014/15 Annuzl Audit Plan,
On December 18, 2013, the Boerd reconfirmed the approved Intemal Audit Department Charter.
IMPACT ON BUDGET
Theimpadmﬂlebudgetmybesigﬁﬁcmdepmdingmaddiﬁonﬂmuespmmﬁaﬂy

collected, investment income potentially eamed and the related staffing and other costs of
potentially implementing a now business model or aspects thereof.

G:\Board-Rec\2015\15295 Boand Letter-Final Report-Regional Contract Review.docx



iﬁ'" s Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Regional Contract Review

Final Report

The Regional Contract review is consistent
with the Agency’s Business Goals of Fiscal
Responsibility, Workplace Environment and
Business Practices by providing an
independent evaluation of the Regional
Contract and suggesting recommendations
for improvements.

Prepared by:
Internal Audit Department
October 7, 2015



Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE REPORT ..ottt s e en e st shas s b s ssas s s ans 1
Findings & ObServations ...t ns 1
ReCOMMENAALIONS ............ccoee et e e en e e sbsas e s sean 5
Current Business Model/Practice.............cccoerviiiricrvniiinnssm s e 6
Business Model 1: Minor Changes..............o et ssssssssrsss s 7
Business Model 2: Moderate Changes...............ocoonicncmsninessssss s 8
Business Model 3: Major CHanNges. ... nircrernnissenssssnsses s e e s e sesenesessssaessesssmesnes 9
Business Model 4: Total ReStrUCLURING.........corer v e sn e s some e e 10
MOVING FOTWAN. ...ttt ssas b bbb b s s e b b sn s s sa s m s s s e 10

ATTACHMENTS.......ceeeceeeerecreseseteseesecsessesass s sase e sas s sessosases s e seosaresasessaeecasebests hababamss s bR bbb s s bt nbns 11
Attachment 1 - Audit Risk MatriX ... e e srs e 11
Attachment 2 - Current Business Model/Process ..., 12
Attachment 3 - Results: Connection Fees (Commercial Businesses)...........ccccccvnicnnnne 13
Attachment 4 - Results: Connection Fees (Schools — K-12) ... 14
Attachment 5 - Results: Connection Fees (Community College).............ccccoconninnnnnnane. 15
Aftachment 6 - Results: Connection Fees (Hospitals)...........ccoooninicsicnicninninnnnnn, 16
Attachment 7 - Results: Connection Fees (Categorization Differences) ........................... 17
Attachment 8 - Results: Connection Fees (Commercial Fixture Unit Differences).......... 18
Attachment 9 - Results: Connection Fees (Industrial Businesses)............c.cconviniicnciene, 19
Attachment 10 - Resulits: Industrial (Connection and Monthly Sewer Fees)..................... 20
Attachment 11 - Results: Monthly Sewer FEes ... 21
Attachment 12 - Recommendations by Process ..., 23
Attachment 13 - Recommendations by Business Model...............coornernincinians 26
Attachment 14 - Background Financial Information...........ccceeivvninnninicnsicicinnns 27
Attachment 15 - Excerpts from Comparable Survey Report................ccconrvvevneernenecennnnen 28
Attachment 16 - Exhibit A ... e 32

Attachment 17 - Current and Prior Audit Reports Completed ... 39



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 1 of 39

EXECUTIVE REPORT

The objectives of the Regional Contract Review were to evaluate how each of the
Contracting Agencies apply the Chino Basin Regional Sewerage Service Contract
(Regional Contract) provisions, determine whether processes are in compliance with
Regional Contract requirements, identify opportunities to improve procedures and make
recommendations to consider as part of the Regional Contract renegotiation. The
review covered the period from July 1, 2012 through December 31, 2013 and where
possible considered events subsequent to that period. The audit included a review of
the seven Contracting Agencies: Cities of Chino, Chino Hills, Fontana, Montciair,
Ontario, Upland and the Cucamonga Valley Water District.

The Regional Contract is a 50-year contract that expires in 2022. This Executive Report
provides a summary of the findings identified and a description of potential new

Business Models with recommendations to address the findings and with suggestions
for potential next steps.

Findings & Observations

In conducting the review, Internal Audit (1A) judgmentally selected between 40 and 75
businesses and Public Service Facilities (PSF) from a variety of different sources at
each of the Contracting Agencies to test whether Connection Fees and Monthly Sewer
Fees were accurately calculated, assessed, collected, and reported to IEUA in
accordance with Regional Contract provisions. During this review, |IA completed ten
separate interim audit reports documenting the specifics of the observations, findings
and recommendations identified. Information about the observations and findings is
included in the attachments and summarized below:

» Exhibit J of the Regionai Contract should be revised and approved regularly to
include additional category types and provide users with clarification and detailed
definitions to ensure consistency in its application. The review found there are
many inconsistencies in the way Contracting Agencies interpret the category
types provided in Exhibit J of the Regional Contract. This creates differences in
interpretation and application among Contracting Agencies and differences in
Connection Fees assessed and coliected. This review identified over $160,000
in potential under-collections from just five entities where there was a difference
in the interpretation of the category type.

* The review found that Contracting Agencies do not generally collect Connection
Fees from public schools (K-12) because there is no established process in place
to identify and collect fees since schools are permitted by the State. The review
found 16 public school campuses with recent construction. In 10 cases no
Connection Fees were paid or collected. It is not possible to quantify the loss in
Connection Fees without performing a physical survey to physically count the
fiure units. Connection Fees ranged from $23,000 to over $270,000 per



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 2 of 39

campus for the other six campuses that paid fees. Therefore, at a minimum,
using the lowest estimate, the Contracting Agencies should have collected a very
conservative $230,000 in Connection Fees (10 campuses x $23k — lowest
estimate); however, based on the comparable information for the six schools that
did collect fees, $687,000 is a closer estimate of Connection Fees that should at
least have been collected.

¢ The review found that the region’s main community college campus and one
satellite campus, had not paid Connection Fees for multiple new buildings, but
the Fontana satellite campus paid approximately $53,000 in Connection Fees for
one new building. It is not possible to quantify the loss in Connection Fees
without performing a physical survey to physically count the fixture units. Internal
Audit attempted to perform a physical survey of the accessible areas of the three
buildings at the Chino Campus (not including science laboratories or the banquet
facility) and determined that Connection Fees would have exceeded $55,000. At
the main campus facility in Rancho Cucamonga, Internal Audit noted that ten
new buildings have been added since 2008. Internal Audit was not able to
perform a physical survey, however, using the conservative approach of
approximately $18,000 per building ($55k / 3) noted at the Chino Campus, at a
minimum $180,000 in Connection Fees should have been coliected (10
campuses x $18k); but the amount is possibly much higher, possibly $530,000 if
we use the comparable information for the one building where fees were
collected.

« As with most Public Service Facilities, the Contracting Agencies did not always
collect for hospital construction because hospitals are also permitted by the
State. The review found one hospital where no Connection Fees were collected.
Internal Audit calculated the minimum possible Connection Fees based on the
number of patient rooms (and not including cafeterias, surgical facilities, etc.). At
a minimum a very conservative estimate of $1,300,000 in Connection Fees
should have been collected. In comparison, two other hospitals in the Region
with recent expansions each paid approximately $1,400,000 in Connection Fees.

» The review noted differences in interpretation between Public Service Facilities
that are considered “publicly owned” and/or “publicly used.” There is no
difference defined in the current Regional Contract. The review tested eight
governmental facilities that were charged Connection Fees at the commercial
category rate rather than the public service rate, resulting in potential under-
collections of approximately $64,000 for all buildings.

« There is a need to standardize the calculation worksheet for all Contracting
Agencies to ensure the fixture types and counts are consistent with Exhibit J.
This would eliminate the inconsistencies and differences in fixture unit values
assigned by the Contracting Agencies, creating differences in the Connection
Fees assessed. The review found that in one agency, the Calculation Worksheet



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 3 of 39

is missing 15 categories from Exhibit J, yet includes three category types that are
not part of Exhibit J. This created a potential extrapolated under-collection of
approximately $80,000 in Connection Fees in only one fiscal year.

» The review also noted a questionable credit of approximately $560,000 given by
the Contracting Agency to Evolution Fresh, an Industrial entity located in Rancho
Cucamonga, with no documentation to support the credit.

» There is a need for clear guidance and detailed instructions for the assessment
and collection of Connection Fees for Industrial entities. During the review,
Contracting Agencies commented that they believe that new businesses find
Connection Fees for Industrial activites to be both confusing and high,
particularly the portion of the fee based on a wastewater analysis and that there
are trade-offs between this cost and the ongoing costs of alternatively connecting
to the NRWS lines. The review found differences in the interpretation and
application of the Regional Contract for both Connection Fees and Monthly
Sewer Fees for Industrial users, creating inconsistencies among customers that
may appear to be inequitable among the industrial customers.

« The 1997 Procedures for Monthly Sewer Billing memorandum should be revised
and approved regularly to include additional category types and provide users
with clarification and detailed definitions to ensure consistency in its application.
The review found a variety of errors in the Contracting Agencies’ billing systems
ranging from data entry input emors, to categorization errors from unclear
guidance in the 1997 document. The review found Contracting Agencies where
approximately 25% of accounts tested for Monthly Sewer Fees had errors. It is
difficult to extrapolate the error rate to total revenue because each error/mistake
can be unique and it is difficult to determine how long the error has existed. It is
important to note that errors/mistakes in Monthly Sewer Fees act like an annuity,
growing exponentially over time unless or until they are corrected.

» There is a need to reevaluate the EDU definition of 270 gallons per day (GPD)
set forth in the Regional Contract. Our survey of comparable agencies showed
that other similar agencies define their EDU equivalent between 235 and 310
GPD. Additionally, with water conservation efforts, more water efficient
appliances and increased urban density, water usage has declined since the
EDU was initially defined in the Regional Contract and 270 GPD is no longer
representative of modern water usage.

« |EUA should require the Contracting Agencies to itemize Monthly Sewer Fees
amounts for non-residential customers. Currently, the only information provided
to IEUA by each Contracting Agency is total EDUs. No additional information is
required. The review found that Contracting Agencies derive the total EDU
number in various ways: One Contracting Agency calculates the EDU number
based on the number of EDUs purchased by their customers. The other



Regional Confract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 4 of 39

Contracting Agencies calculate nonresidential EDUs from their water readings
according to the “draft’” 1997 billing memorandum, but some use differing
methods: one backs into the total number of EDUs by dividing revenue billed in
that month by the EDU rate, another reports EDUs only where monthly fees have
been collected (not accounting for those still outstanding) and another does not
report usage from their own governmental facilities.

The summary below shows findings related to uncoilected Connection Fees, both
minimum estimated fees and the fees based on comparable information:

SUMMARY OF UNCOLLECTED CONNECTION FEES
CONNECTION FEES (Minimum Potential)

CHINO
CHINO HILLS CVWD FONTANA MONTCLAIR ONTARIO  UPLAND
HOSPITAL - . $ - $ - $ 1,300,000 $ - § - %
COLLEGE 55,000 . 180,000 - . -
SCHOOLS 23,000 23,000 69,000 - 46,000 69,000 -
GOVT FACILITIES - - 32,448 8,942 - 22,977
OTHER 141,008 7.641 586,687 - (3,527) 16,550 5,246
MINIMUM $ 219006 S 30641 $ 535687 $ 1332448 § 50,965 § 85550 $ 28,223
TOTAL MINIMUM $ 2,582,520
CONNECTION FEES (Comparable Basis)
CHINO
CHINO HILLS CVWD FONTANA MONTCLAIR ONTARIO  UPLAND
HOSPITAL -4 - 8 - § - § 1,300,000 $ - % - %
COLLEGE 55,000 : 530,000 : - -
SCHOOL 43,000 43,000 153,000 . 236,000 212,000 -
GOVT FACILITIES - . - 32,448 8,492 - 22,977
OTHER 141,006 7,641 586,687 : (3.527) 16,550 5,246
COMPARABLE $ 230006 $ 50641 $ 1,269,687 $ 1,332448 $ 240965 $ 228,550 $ 28,223

TOTAL COMPARABLE $ 3,389,520

IEUA and the Contracting Agencies are trapped in a spiral where the Conlracting
Agencies are not charging enough of the Connection and Monthly Fees that the
Regional Contract requires leading to higher IEUA fees and an uneven playing field
from Contracting Agency to Contracting Agency and from Regional Business fo
Regional Business.

The renegotiation of the Regional Contract provides an opportunity for IEUA and the
seven Contracting Agencies to consider a new way of doing business, hence a new
business model for the Region. The following pages propose different business models
to consider as part of moving forward with renegotiating/famending the Regional
Contract and changing the way IEUA does business with the Contracting Agencies.



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 5 of 39

Recommendations

To address the findings identified by Internal Audit, prevent additional similar findings
and to ensure the requirements of the Regional Contract are implemented consistently
and equitably across all customers, Internal Audit developed a number of
recommendations while performing the individua! Regional Contract Reviews. These
audit findings and resulting recommendations came up consistently at multiple
Contracting Agencies (Attachments 3 through 11). Internal Audit has sorted the
recommendations to create several possible business models as IEUA looks fo the
future of the Regional Contract and changing the business approach. The following
pages provide additional details for each.

Each business model groups the audit recommendations by the magnitude of changes
necessary to the way business is conducted. The table below provides highlights of
each of the business models; additional details are also included in the Attachments:

¢ Connection Fees collected by Contracting Agencies

at Building Department/Payments Counter
» Connection Fees held by Contracting Agencies until “called” by IEUA
Current Business ¢ Schools, Hospitals construction administered by State with no process in
Model/Practice place to ensure Connection Fees are collected by Contracting Agencies

* Monthly Sewer Fees collected by Contracting Agencies and lump-sums
remitted to JEUA without any detail or support

»__Proposition 218 is the responsibility of each Contracting Agency

Business Model #1

» Frequent/Regular and consistent revisions and updates to Exhibit J for
Minor Changes Connection Fees and to the 1997 Monthly Sewerage Billing Formulas
memorandum

Business Model #2 | ® Additional oversight, information and recourse provisions as part of a
— revised Regional Contract

' o On-going Monitoring and Inspections by IEUA staff
egergs Chagess o Recourse rights incorporated into the Contract
o Right to audit and access to records incorporated in Contract

Business Model #3 | » Centralize Connection Fees and Monthly Sewer Fees Billing at IEUA
* Evaluate and implement Variable vs. Fixed Cost Billing Models
Major Changes » Utilize County Property Tax System to collect Monthly Sewer Fees
* Centralize Proposition 218 reporting of fee increases Region-wide
The Future IEUA has responsibility for and management of supply chain for all water

and sewer related activities for the entire region, both locally and regionally.




Regional Confract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 6 of 39

Current Business Model/Practice

The current Regional Contract business process/model is illustrated below and in
Attachment 2. The current process centralizes responsibility for direct contact with
customers with the individual Contracting Agencies, including the Proposition 218
notification of fee increases. IEUA’s contractual relationship is only with the Contracting
Agencies. Each individual Contracting Agency’s relationship is with the customers in
their service area. Theoretically, therefore, it is irrelevant to IEUA whether the individual
Contracting Agencies collect Connection Fees and Monthly Sewer Fees from their
individua! customers as long as the Contracting Agencies remit those fees to IEUA from
their own accounts. Unfortunately, the way the current contract is structured IEUA
generally does not have enough information to reconcile or dispute the information
provided by the Contracting Agencies and the Regional Contract does not include
provisions to obtain that information. Therefore, the recommendations and potential
next steps shown in each of the following Business Models consider ways for IEUA to
enhance its relationship with the individual Contracting Agencies.

Customer goes fo
the counter to . : Use their own
obtain permits for

new construction or count fixture units.

improvements, Select a Category Type

and Sewage Factor.
y Assess and Collect
A Connection Fees

If the customer does
not go to the
Contracting Agency’s
counter—asitisin
most cases with Public
Service Facilites
{Schools, College and
Hospitals), there is no
process in place to
pursue collection of
Connection Fees.

I[EUA bills
without
verification of
information
reported.

The Contracting Agency:

Calculation Worksheet to

The Contracting

Agency collects

and retains the
Connection Fees In
their CCRA account

>
|  The Contracting
Agency reports
Connection EDUs
to IEUA monthly
with minimal
supporting
information.

N

4

The Contracting Agency
establishes customer
sewer connection and
Utility Billing Account.

Each month, using their

own methodology, total
Volumetric EDUs with

no supporting
information are reported
to IEUA.



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 7 of 39

Business Model 1: Minor Changes

This Business Model includes only recommendations for Regional Contract
amendments and revisions that leave current business practices in place, but provide
more clarity and consistency to those practices across the region, to ensure all
Contracting Agencies apply the Contract consistently.

MINOR CHANGES TO BUSINESS MODEL

Summary:
e Regional Contract is updated, clarified and modemized, but is left largely
unchanged as to the way the Region conducts business.

» Centralized responsibility for direct contact with customers remains with the
individual Contracting Agencies.

e Contracting Agencies are responsible for the Proposition 218 notification of fee
| increases.
L

IEUA’s contractual relationship is only with the Contracting Agencies not the
customers.

Recommendations:

« Frequent/Regular and consistent approved revisions to Exhibit J

e Frequent/Regular and consistent approved revisions to Monthly Sewerage
Formula

Next Steps:
Regional Committees regularly provide:
e Revisions to Exhibit J and Monthly Sewerage Formulas for Board approval
¢ Standardization for Calculation Worksheet
e Guidelines for supporting documentation provided to IEUA for both EDU
Building Activity Reports and Monthly Sewer Fees Reports




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 8 of 39

Business Model 2: Moderate Changes

This Business Model includes recommendations for Regional Confract amendments
that enhance IEUA’s oversight over the way the region conducts business and provides
the tools that are needed for IEUA to take responsibility for inspection, reconciliation
and recourse.

MODERATE CHANGES TO BUSINESS MODEL

Summary:

¢ Regional Contract is updated, clarified and modernized.

e Assigns additional roles and responsibilities to IEUA staff to ensure additional
monitoring and oversight and regular inspections if necessary.

o IEUA staff would ensure the Regional Contract is administered consistently
throughout the region with a “level playing field” among the Contracting
Agencies and from one local business to another through-out the region.

e Centralized responsibility for direct contact with customers remains with the
individual Contracting Agencies.

e The Proposition 218 notifications remains with the Contracting Agency.

e TEUA’s contractual relationship is only with the Contracting Agencies.

Recommendations:

e Oversight, information & recourse over Connection Fees and Monthly
Sewerage billing

e Monitoring program to inspect facilities randomly and when discrepancies are
suspected and as necessary to ensure Fees are assessed accurately

« Inspection, verification and recourse rights in Regional Contract

e Right to audit, full cooperation and access to records and documents

Next Steps:
IEUA and Contracting Agencies renegotiate provisions of Regional Contract:

o Require some expertise in-house (IEUA staff)
¢ Monitoring and inspection program
Inspection, verification and recourse rights
|« Right to audit, cooperation and access to records
¢ Regional Committees establish contract for monthly sewerage billing to
eliminate invoicing process.




Regicnal Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 9 of 39

Business Model 3: Major Changes

This Business Model includes recommendations to create a new paradigm for
administering the business activities of the Regional Contract with IEUA taking over
responsibility for fee calculation methods and collections.

MAJOR CHANGES TO BUSINESS MODEL

Summary:

» IEUA assumes primary responsibility for implementing Contract requirements.
» IEUA takes over collecting Connection Fees and Monthly Sewer Fees.

» IEUA determines billing methodologies.

 IEUA is in direct contact with all sewer customers in the region.

» IEUA assumes responsibility for Proposition 218 process for the region.

Recommendations:

» Consider legal, political and financial impacts of governing by ordinance vs. the
Regional Contract.

* Resolve the under-collection findings noted through this audit process.
Centralize Connection Fees and Monthly Sewer Fees Billing at IEUA.

* Consider County Property Tax collection method for Monthly Sewer Fees
billing.

e Review and revise EDU formula.

e Evaluate methodologies/calculations:
o Variable Cost Models: Water consumption models — water usage, other
o Fixed Cost Models: EDUs purchased, dwelling or business size, other

Next Steps:
¢ Consider legal, political and financial impacts of:
o governing by ordinance vs. the Regional Contract
o revising EDU formula, and
o resolving audit findings noted in this report
 Evaluate methodology for billing Connection Fees and Monthly Sewer Fees:
o Fixed Cost: EDU, size/square feet or other
o Variable Cost: Water consumption or other
e Develop and implement business plan for centralization of Connection Fees and
Monthly Sewer Fees Billing.

» Consider alternatives to how collections are made for Public Service Facilities.
» Assume responsibility for the Proposition 218 process.




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 10 of 39

Business Model 4: Total Restructuring

The Regional Contract is a 50-year contract set to expire in 2022. In renegotiating the
Regiona! Contract, Intemal Audit recommends planning for the long-term future of the
region. The State of California recently provided the first possibility for radical change
and consolidation in the water industry by passing Senate Bill 88. Aithough this Bill is
limited in scope and intended primarily to ensure safe drinking water to disadvantaged
communities, it presents the possibility of consolidations to eliminate divisions among
government entities. As IEUA and the Contracting Agencies consider the best scenario
and business model possible for the future of the region, it is time to consider alternative
ways to manage water supplies and water/wastewater/sewer services.

J Total Restructuring

: IEUA takes full responsibility for managing the entire water and sewer related
 activities for the IEUA region:

s Manage, distribute & account for all local, Metropolitan and other potable and
recycled water.

e Manage, collect, treat and account for all wastewater.

o Construction & maintenance of all infrastructure and capital projects

Moving Forward

The renegotiation of the Regional Contract provides an opportunity to consider how the
different Business Models align with IEUA’s Strategic Plan in achieving the Agency’s
Mission, Vision, Values and Business Goals. Board direction is needed to move
forward:

1. Direct Staff to coordinate with legal counsel and the Contracting Agencies to
resolve the findings identified through this audit and collect fees as appropriate.

2. Direct Staff to begin Contract negotiations, consistent with Major Changes to
Business Model, including direct billing of Connection and Monthly Sewer Fees.

TV: ps/sn




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 11 of 39

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1 - Audit Risk Matrix

Based on the results of the Regional Contract Review, Internal Audit has developed an
Audit Risk Matrix. This is a diagram that identifies the major events or situations
that can resuit in IEUA not achieving the intent of the Regional Contract, ranked
by the likelihood and impact to the Agency. Greater risks are noted in red, while
moderate or minor risks are shown in yellow and green. Likelhood refers to the
possibility for error, mistake or deficiency. Impact, refers to the magnitude of the
potential error, mistake or deficiency in terms of financial losses.

This Risk Matrix highlights the areas IEUA should focus on and prioritize as part of re-
evaluating and renegotiating the Regionai Contract.

LIKELIHOOD
»>
oW MEDILN HIGH
Honthly Sewerage Fess
Escl - NotColiected from
Governmental Faciiities
s
E Tommercial Monthly Sewerage
% MEDIUM + Wiissing Accourts
— L] Rate errors
l...
oW Restientisl Connection Fees Connaction Fees
Wot coliacted i *  Hature Count Errors
|l
|




"BaJe 90IAI9S HBY} Ul SIBWO0ISNO
ay} yum si diysuonejas s Aouaby Bunoenuon
|[enpiaipul yoeg saouaby bunoenuon
ay) ypm £juo st diysuonjejal [enjoenuod Wy =
syN3| ‘sepusby fuornuo) [enpiAlpul 8y} Yypm A
SJSWIOISND YYM JOBU0I JoBlIp J0j AYljiqisuodsal L i
$9Z|[e)uad J0e)uo) [euocifay Juaung ayt

LahAw

PR

T pERMnTE : ]
ol sa g aaBages B b v minan g .W.uwuﬂ..”l”.u. o il
et seoaliduigEnd

A T

: , (P A, D SRl e B TR b (L LN FE N

BRLLe: W) AL 4 ) AT ey pue ey
LT faa DL ITE S LU = SRS . Mo RNy e M bR P
ATy By (s CYEC R F ¥ T LN LI E T A i sk LY
o b b e i : A R Ll bl T | Bulbe e s

P

LU TR R R T

W b R # 30

womng Supunoasy fjusupedeq Sugg Agan ' .nll.....ﬂ..b?&....!.& e swpeceq Muppng
spodet § Funlg ANMUDOA ALEUOA I 5% Pogsedng 951 g SISHSRULOD . {PRIIRYIOD PUS PEEIHY SBBZ LOLDBIUDD
sseacig Sujnodey g Bupnegos U B R v
£294 HNWNIOA AIYILOAL 32 S804 USSBLUOT giﬁuﬂm!ﬁﬁd
Mmoihed 138107 jeuoiBan 4

$59001/|OPOy SSauIsng juaiing -  JUSWLIERY

8¢ Jo Z| obied

6L0Z ‘'8Z Jequeldes
Hodey Hpny |euld
MaIA8Y 19B)UOY) [euoiBay



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 13 of 39

Attachment 3 - Results: Connection Fees (Commercial Businesses)

For the commercial businesses selected for review, IA noted instances of varying
interpretation and application of Exhibit J of the Regional Sewerage Service Contract.
This created differences in categorization; therefore, differences in the Connection Fees
collected. For the five entities where there was a difference in the interpretation of the
category type, |A identified over $160,000 in potential under-collections, as follows:

Contracting | . oo aicq .| . Fees [ Aternative | Possible | Differencel -
Agency s ol | Collected | - Catégory - | -Fees ' | Shortags
Reslidential Community Center

. . Ili: Hospital, Health

Chino Food sty oo MotelHoteL Fast | g30,732 | SpawinPoolful | $123206 |  $92,474
il service restaurant

. N lil: Hespital, Health

Chino o oo oe MotelHotel Fast | g16,129 | Spawit Poolful | $64,661 $48,532
. service restaurant
Ontario :;OE:It:I’:;:-Omoe, Motel/Hotel, Fast $112,297 . ) }
Restaurant
Montclair . ; lll: Hospital, Heaith
(Dragon 99 Fong ot oo MotebHotel, Fast | g4 308 | Spawith Pool,ful |  $5,243 $3,935
Restaurant) T . service restaurant
Veterinary Hospitals/Facilities

Ching Hills . I INl: Hospital, Health
(Pets N Vet Animal | fong ats o oeHotel Fast | g9 539 | Spawith Pool,ful | $10,180 $7,641
Hospital) P service restaurant
Upland . . Ili: Hospital, Health
(Caremore Medical | o g oo Motelotel, Fast | g4 744 | spawithPool,full |  $6,990 $5,246
Enterprises) T sarvice restaurant




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 14 of 39

Attachment 4 - Results: Connection Fees (Schools — K-12})

According to the requirements of Exhibit J of the Regional Contract, any Public Service
Facilities that have new construction or expansions are required to pay Connection
Fees. The review found that Contracting Agencies do not have a process in place to
identify and collect from schools because these are permitted through the State. 1A
identified 16 school sites that had construction and 10 did not pay Connection Fees. It
is not possible to quantify the loss in Connection Fees without performing a physicat
survey to physically count the fixture units. Using the lowest amount that was collected,
IA conservatively estimates that at a minimum $230,000 in Connection Fees should
have been collected (10 x $23,000); however, using the comparable information for
those six schools that did pay fees, it is likely that fees approximated at least $687,000.

_ - = L - .-, | Gonnection Possible Possible
Contracting Agency - School Name - . Type of Construction - - Year ' Fees “conservative” “comparable”
: ) Collected Estimate fees Estimate Fees
. . Howard Cattle New classroom wing with
City of Chino Elementary School restTOOMS Summer 2012 0 $23,000 $43,000
. . . Chino Hilis High Pool, Showers, and Within the last
City of Chino Hills School Botenroe he 3 years 0 $23,000 $43,000
Los Amigos New 14 classroom
CVWD Elementary School building 2013 0| $23,000 $67,000
Bear Gulch New 14 classroom and
CvwD Elementary School bathroom building 2010 $66,957 Collected Collected
. Classroom wing/building,
CVWD Alta Loma High | ymnasium Expansion, & | . — $42,792 | Collected | Collected
—— Athletic Field Complex GRSiECton
. : Classroom wing/building,
CVWD Etlwgnrc]i o 'I-“gh Food Service Building & c U?dirt, 0 $23,000 $43,000
e Athletic Field Complex e
Rancho New Auditorium Building Under
et _ Cucamonga H.S | & Athletic Field Complex | Construction 0 $23,000 943,000
City of Fontana Jurupa Hills H.S New High School 2009 $272,182 | Collected Collected
City of Fontana Citrus High School New High School 2009 $149,228 | Collected Collected
. . Howard Multipurpose room with
City of Montclair | . entary School Kitchen 2011 $102,338 | Collected Collected
. . Moreno Multipurpose room with
City of Montclair Elementary School phenet . 2013 $0 $23,000 $102,000
. . Montclair High New 32 Classroom
City of Montclair School building 2012 $0 $23,000 $134,000
; Multipurpose room with
. . Richard Haynes .
City of Ontario Elementary School restrooms, warming Summer 2012 $0 $23,000 $102,000
kitchen, etc.
. 13 classroom modular
City of Ontario = facilty with multiple | Summer 2013 $0 | $23,000 $67,000
e 00 restrooms, warming, etc.
ST New classroom building,
. . Ontario High Under
City of Ontario School re:::i?;nn?, ;c:)cgg:all construction $0 $23,000 $43,000
City of Upland Upland H.S New Gymnasium 2013 $22,506 Collected Collected
Estimated Connection Fees: Conservative vs. Comparable $230,000 $643,000




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 15 of 39

Attachment 5 - Results: Connection Fees (Community College)

Exhibit J of the Regional Contract requires that Connection Fees be assessed to any
Public Service Facilities that have new construction or expansions. Chaffey College, a
two-year public Community College, has three campuses located within IEUA's service
area. Based on 1A's review, there were construction projects that resulted in new
buildings and facilies being added at each of the campuses. Of the three with
construction, only one Contracting Agency assessed and collected Connection Fees. It
is not possible to quantify the loss in Connection Fees without performing a physical
survey to physically count the fixture units. IA attempted to perform a physical survey of
the accessible areas of the three buildings at the Chino Campus (not including science
laboratories or the banquet facility) and determined that Connection Fees would have
exceeded $55,000. At the main campus facility in Rancho Cucamonga, IA noted that
ten new buildings have been added since 2008. A was not able to perform a physical
survey, however, using the approximately $18,000 per building ($55k / 3) at the Chino
Campus, IA conservatively estimates that at a minimum $180,000 in Connection Fees
should have been collected (10 x $18,000), but it is likely that it is much higher.

Minimum _ .
Contracting Locati PIY o Estimated (:orln:nectlon
Agency gcaton nee Connection g
' Operation F Collected
ees o
CVWD Rangcho Cucamonga ~ Main Campus V;g::s Unable to $0
{10 buildings) estimate
2007
Chino ~ Satellite/Off-site Campus
City of Chino | (3 Buildings: Main Instructional, Heaith 2008 $ 55,000 $0
Sciences, and Community Genter )
City of Fontana ~ Satellite/Off-site Campus
F yt (1 Building: Academic Center, two-story 2011 N/A $ 52,845
ohiana and approximately 30,000 square feet)

N

Cha

‘ i ||1|. 4 5




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 16 of 39

Attachment 6 - Results: Connection Fees (Hospitals

IA identified the large scale hospitals and medical facilities that had new construction or
expansions and reside within IEUA’s service area. Connection Fees were collected for
two of the three hospitals. For the City of Fontana Kaiser Hospital expansion, IA
calculated the minimum possible Connection Fees based on the number of patient
rooms (and not including cafeterias, surgical facilities, etc.). 1A conservatively estimates
that at a minimum $1,300,000 in Connection Fees should have been collected, but it is
likely that it is much higher.

Connection Fees

Contracting Agency Hospital Year Fees Collected collected
) San Antonio Community
City of Upland Hospital — Addition 2011 $1,370,197
City of Ontario Ka'seN’eTg;ﬂfyme - 2012 $1,400,106
Kaiser Permanente — N/A
City of Fontana Hospital and Inpatient (Replacement Hospital $0
Tower Opened: 2013)

SAN ANTONIO 4 KAISER PERMANENTE,
@ COMMUNITY HOSPITAL - M‘l S




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 17 of 39

Attachment 7 - Results: Connection Fees (Categorization Differences)

IA identified the following govemmental entities classified as commercial rather than
public by Contfracting Agencies. In some cases the rationale was used that although
the buildings are publicly owned they are not publicly used, but rather offices and
administrative spaces. The varying interpretations create differences in categorization
and Connection Fees collected from Public Service Facilities:

 Agency - | Deseription .| Category Used | Goepted | ' "Gategory . | F
- I: Retail, Office,
Fontana gg[agﬁiz?:m)ty MotelHotel, | $46,343 |Vi: Public Faciity | $65.756 | $19,413
9 Fast Food, etc.
Caltrans Facility I: Retail, Office,
Fontana (Independent Motel/Hotel, § 14,178 |VI: Public Facility $ 20,117 $ 5,939
Assurance Building) | Fast Food, efc.
I: Retail, Office, _
Fontana Police Department Motel/Hotel, $ 14,183 |VI: Public Facility $ 21,018 $ 6,835
Fast Food, efc.
I: Retail, Office,
Fontana Police Department Motel/Hotel, $ 622 VI: Public Facility $ 883 $ 261
Fast Food, etc,
, I: Retail, Office,
Montclair | Gommunity Center Motel/Hotel, $18,962 |VI: Public Facility | $ 26,906 $7,944
{Bathrooms)
Fast Food, etc.
I: Retail, Office,
Montclair Splash Pad Motel/Hotel, $ 1,308 |VI: Public Facility $ 1,858 $ 548
Fast Food, etc.
I: Retail, Office,
Upland Animal Shelter Motel/Hotel, $ 36,761 |VI: Public Facility $52,108 $ 15,347
Fast Food, etc.
I: Retaii, Office,
Upland Fire Station Motel/Hotel, $ 18,277 |VI Public Facility $ 25,907 $7.630
Fast Food, etc.
TOTALS FOR ITEMS TESTED $ 150,634 $ 214,551 $63,917

For each instance above, Connection Fees were collected and at the time of
assessment, they were classified as a Commercial Category | according to Exhibit J;
however, they could have been classified as Category VI Public Facility and this would
have resulted in greater Connection Fees collected.




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 18 of 39

Attachment 8 - Results: Connection Fees (Commercial Fixture Unit Differences

IA identified that the fixture unit values utilized by the Contracting Agency may not
always coincide with the descriptions and/or fixture unit values as outlined in Table 1 of
Exhibit J of the Regional Contract. This issue was noted at least at two Contracting
Agencies. The Connection Fees that have been over/under collected amounted to the
following:

Fixture Unit Value Differences

Fee per Audit | (Over)lUnder

Contracting Agency | . . Description Fees Collected Results Collected
Fixture Unit Value Differences:

Montclair 4 businesses identified with $187,865 $180,403 ($7,462)
different values
Fixture Unit Value Differences - .

Ontario |t M $88,006 $104,556 $16,550
different values

Additionally, the city of Ontaric Calculation Worksheet is missing 15 categories from
Exhibit J, yet includes three category types that are not part of Exhibit J. I|A
extrapolated the $16,550 under-collection above to determine an impact of
approximately $80,000 in Connection Fees in only one fiscal year,




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 19 of 39

Attachment 9 - Results: Connection Fees (Industrial Businesses)

According to Exhibit J of the Regional Sewerage Service Contract, Industrial businesses
that engage in production, manufacturing or processing of material are required to pay
Connections Fees and those fees are assessed differently than Commercial businesses
enterprises. In addition to the Connection Fees calculated based on fixture units,
industrial entities pay a variable component based on a wastewater analysis that
includes: type of wastewater (domestic or non-domestic), sewage flow, Biochemical
Oxygen Demand (BOD), and Total Suspended Solids (TSS).

Existing Fixtures Units

For any commercial and industrial businesses that have expansions or additions, a
credit is given for any demolished existing fixtures that were already located within the
facility, and fees are only assessed on the net new fixture units added to the facility.
This provision applies for all enterprises, regardless whether commercial or industrial.

IA noted that Contracting Agencies usually have supporting documentation to validate
that there are existing fixtures and a credit should be applied. Evolution Fresh, an
Industrial Entity in IEUA’s service area received a credit for existing fixture units;
however the Contracting Agency could provide no supporting documentation to validate
that the credit was appropriately applied:

Unsupported Credit for _Existing Fixture Units

Contracting T - SRR . Cotlaniad | FO8 por Audif] (OverjfUnder

__Agengy | Description Fiees Collectad | " “poguits | Collected
Evolution Fresh —

CVWD Jioe Mandfasturer $561,643 $1,148,510 ($586,687)

Industrial Fees

During the Regional Contract Review, IA received feedback from the Contracting
Agencies regarding Connection fees for industrial Users. They included the following:

» Cost of Industrial Connection fees “deter businesses” from coming to the region

« Cost and proximity of the NRWS lines can impact costs to a business about
deciding where to connect.

* Connection Fees based on BOD and TSS are not related to Fixture Units and
guidance about transferability is unclear, and IEUA does not verify BOD and TSS
reports.

« Value of Capacity Rights is unclear if an SIU is declassified.



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015

Page 20 of 39

Attachment 10 - Results: Industrial (Connection and Monthly Sewer Fees)

City of Ontario evaluation of Connection Fees and Sewer Fees:

. . Connection Fees | Monthly Billing April .
Business Description Noted Example 2014 Ontario Comment
. " Fixed EDU determined by
Niagara Water Commercial from April 2014: permit, measurement and
Bomign @ bottling 3/2006 to 6/2013: | Fixed 66 EDUs | $883.74 inspection.
g company $33,331 rate If use the NRW, then usually
use a fixed factor.
Newlndy | Papaboard | Inexistencefor | LBV a1EDus | s6233 Same as above.
Ontario llc(a) Mill extended period rate
. : No April 2014
Greif Packaging I ?Or billing for water $0.00 Part of a master meter.
supply extended period 5
Liquid waste 113 : April 2014: 2
7 (r.lh " Per building permit | meters: one with Use landscape factor (55%).
Tnd uSE’ll s ssltms fixtures established | 5 HCF @ .0401 $2.68 Recently converted to recycled
usines ySiems in 2001 Factor & other water.
supplier with 0.
) June 2013: ) .
Flavoring Domestic April 2014: 88 Monthly based on 68% flow to
Jogue, Inc. Syrups & Industrial- $10.313 HCF @ .0202 $23.80 sewer, 2,100 BOD and 31 TSS
Concentrates ustn_ - $10, Factor per lab data.
Industrial-$63,884
March 2007:
mamufacturer | 39,967 (originally . Monthly based on lab data
April 2014: 221 .
Wing Hing of Chinese purchased by HCF @ 0087 $25.74 showing BOD=530mg/l,
Foods foods & Haliburton) April F act(;r ’ TSS=50mg/1 and water to
noodles 2013: Industrial waste factor of 8.25%.
$31,518
Commercial and
Menufacturer | Domestic industrial | April 2014; e
Haliburton of soups & purchased from Fixed 186 EDU | $2,490.54 d etii')r‘r?j(::l::ldil':) s;h;]airﬁgUb‘:’E;
sauces 2011 — 2013 rate yone
$69,043
April 2014: 2,651
. HCF @ .5902 X
Muscwer | Commeroial | ™ el ssmer s
Tropicale | of fresh fruit | conmections flom | (August2014: | $209502 | "5 R Ol aps i
Foods & ice cream 2007 -2010: 3,984 HCF @ 6 new pr tment activities and
Lo $6,177 0411 factor “SOPs” regarding discharge
reducing bill to -
$2,356.25)
Mamufacturer | 2014: Domestic | May 201_31 glISt $88.78
American of chicken industrial and ;i' E?Fb;t 2 ﬂif:;/ (May — New industrial not in
Jerky based pet industrial: commercial 1st 'month production yet.
treats. $168,070.72 factor of 0729 available)




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 21 of 39

Attachment 11 - Results: Monthly Sewer Fees

The Contracting Agencies assess and collect recurring fees from users (residential,
commercial and industrial) that discharge into the IEUA’s Regional Sewage System.
The methodology used for assessing the Monthly Sewer Fees is based on a
memorandum, which outlines the monthly/bi-monthly billing processes.

IA tested all items sampled to determine whether sewer billing is occurring and to
ensure the appropriate business categories and rates are applied for the Monthly Sewer

Fees.

Based on |A's review, the following was noted:

1997 Memorandum entitled “Procedures for Establishing a Regional Sewer
Billing Formula™ was adopted by Regional Technical Committee. No evidence of
IEUA’s Board approval.

Categories are inconsistent with those used in Exhibit J for Connection Fees.
No guidance for “Master Meters”.

No minimum billing threshold established for commercial businesses (minimum 1
EDU).

Billing classification differences that can result in under collected Monthly Sewer
Fees paid to IEUA,

Sampled Commercial businesses could not always be identified in the Utility
Billing System .

One Contracting Agency's EDUs for their own facilities were not included in the
monthly EDUs reported to IEUA.

One Contracting Agency relies on flow information provided by another agency
and completeness of the information is questionable.

Monthly Sewer Fees can be collected through the County’s Property Tax Roll.
One Contracting Agency uses this approach for residential properties.

Monthly Sewer Fees can be assessed and collected based on Connection EDUs,
rather than water consumption. One Contracting Agency uses this approach.

EDUs reported to IEUA are generally based on the Monthly Sewer Fees billed.
One Contracting Agency reports EDUs based on fees collected.



(zz1'6$)

{aeek | Ajuo pue sway g1 Aluo) swey ajdwieg jo UOPDIa|as B 10} PIYDIB||07) JBPUN) SO 9DIAISG JOMIS JO JUNOWY [EJ0L

(g8v $) 00°L¥L$ v2'99% Y9500 JEIIOLILICO ey sienid Apog | puerdn
. : . 16000
(6£118) 00°€52$ 1 '€9% OE0°0 fRIBILION poSN 1Be @di0yd | pueidn
(661'19) 00°052¢ 11'05$ L0600 [EI0IWLIOD e jeqes yssoi0 | pueidn
_ . : 9290 0/¥90°0 wa)sAs Bugiq
(680'2$) 00'5.€$ 00'0$ ‘ysep Je0/[BI0isWWos | O} paisius JoN WAV O0uY puejdn
(016 ¢) SL68L % S6'cLL $ ”Mw%_rm uﬁmgmw%muc:m._ Aioxeg soyoewey | ouRuQ
1Zh$ 18611 $ 16'SZL S | 1290 iEleQ/0000 “_m_mw%cmcmoo Buiping feoipe/eolyo | oueuQ
(g6€ 9) 90201 § 8w $ e ooy | SWOH BN [BlUBUOD | OpeIQ
{9z $) 6L29% Z68er $ leaysr oueluQ
(589 %) §/'681$ 69218 apspenbiy | oueug
(cze'l $) 66'99€ $ 69'905Z $ sjen/fieNeg aid ewoH oleO
{08 $) ZLee s 0991 ¢ BZZId G )58 oleIgD
(Lot 9) 06°2Z $ 156l $ ZroL0 62200 B2Z1d §,83IN UIEjuUnop oulyn
juelne}se jetdJawuwio
(08 $) £e1Z $ covl $ “ o _ . Aemans oulgo
(982 $) GL'8L$ 88PG $ $,pleuool oulyo
(b2 §) 6,65 $ aLer$ asnoH Buidwng s,y oulyn
{gsL $) rAVgR A S0'8Z$ 29400 niqeue) oulyo
TEQUOM Z - : Sl T | . ey o 25 Al B s : .
Tl <q~m_ SG_E.._%:“: . L_”M:ﬂ%n”w_“_ : u...._ME( pelig | - na_:«.n_w_u.__mhnﬁ_hco@. N R _.a._....m.".< s Heaupeng - - KouaBy
pue (pajoajjoo-sopun) . : 2| - Aemoy _ 1o ampoeg Buipg O ugoeguon
jJunowy pajeuisa Jamag pajewpes | . - | pmoussopoed Bupg . | v T S TENLY & _
PONURUOD - S99 9JIAI9S JI9MaS - | | JUSWIENY
BE Jo ZZ obed

G102 ‘8¢ tequsidag
Hoday ypny [eulq
NAIARY 1IeNUCY) JeucibBay



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 23 of 39

Attachment 12 - Recommendations by Process

REGIONAL CONTRACT REVIEW
CONNECTION FEES
RECOMMENDATIONS

OVERALL RECOMMENDATIONS

Consider legal, political and financial impacts of governing by ordinance vs. Mai

contract ajor

Review and revise EDU formula Major

Resolve identified differences of over/under coliected amounts of Connection

Fees and identified differences of over/under collected amounts of unreported Maijor

monthly sewerage fees

CONNECTION FEES RECOMMENDATIONS
1 Centralize the permitting process OR 1IEUA provides final sign-off and Major
’ plumbing permit approval for all nonresidential entities

2. IEUA should establish monitoring program to inspect random facilities | Moderate
and those where there is a suspected discrepancy

3. Contract should include IEUA inspection, verification and recourse Moderate
rights for under-collected/under-reported Connection Fees

4. Contract should include IEUA right to audit, full cooperation and Moderate
access fo records and documenis upon request

o IEVA should require copies of calculation worksheets for all
nonresidential customers along with the monthly Building Activity Moderate
Reports.

6. Two tier connection fees process that distinguishes between common
features and unique features (ie., a toilet always costs the same Minor
regardless of type of business)

7. Update Exhibit J regularly to include new/evolving business types Minor

8. Update & clarify Fixture Unit descriptions of Exhibit J regularly Minor

9.  Standardize calculation worksheet to ensure it is consistent with Minor
Exhibit J and consistent region-wide

10. IEUA should require copies of calculation worksheets for all Minor
nonresidential customers along with the monthly Building Activity
Reporis.

11.  Regular workshops, meetings, plant tours, etc. with staff in Building, Other
Plan Check and Utility Billing/Financial Departments

12.  IEUA develop fixture count expertise and provide regular/ongoing Other
training for Contracting Agencies - Building Departments

13. Contracting Agency internal review of Connection Fees as part of Other

preparing the Building Activity Report.




Regional Confract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 24 of 39

Attachment 12 - continued
Recommendations by Process

REGIONAL CONTRACT REVIEW
MONTHLY SEWER SERVICE FEES

RECOMMENDATIONS
OVERALL RECOMMENDATIONS

Consider legal, political and financial impacts of governing by ordinance vs. Mai
ajor

contract

Review and revise EDU formula Major

Resolve identified differences of over/under collected amounts of Connection

Fees and identified differences of over/under collected amounts of unreported Major

monthly sewerage fees

MONTHLY SEWERAGE BILLING RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Collect monthly sewerage fees for the entire region through County’s
property tax roll.

2. Evaluate methodology used for billing monthly sewerage fees
(residential and commercial) and consider alternatives by water
consumption, EDUs purchased or other methodology

3. Standardize monthly report fo provide [EUA automated, itemized
listings of non-residential monthly sewerage charges

4. Establish contract for monthly sewerage payments from Contracting
Agencies rather than IEUA issuing monthly invoices

5. |IEUA exercise inspection, verification and recourse rights for under-
collected/under-reported monthly sewerage fees

6. Contract should include IEUA right o audit, full cooperation and access
fo records and documents upon request

7. Update 1997 billing memorandum regularly for new business types to
provide detailed definitions and descriptions

8. Create a correlation between monthly sewerage fees and Connection
Fees

9. Add billing guidance for locations with multiple types of businesses
serviced by a master meter

10. Bill commercial businesses at least a minimum of one EDU per month

Maijor

Major

Moderate
Moderate
Moderate
Moderate
Minor
Minor
Minor

Minor




Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 25 of 39

Attachment 12 - continued
Recommendations by Process

REGIONAL CONTRACT REVIEW
PUBLIC SERVICE FACILITIES
RECOMMENDATIONS

OVERALL RECOMMENDATIONS

Consider legal, political and financial impacts of governing by ordinance vs. Maior
confract J
Review and revise EDU formula Major
Resolve identified differences of over/under collected amounts of Connection
Fees and identified differences of over/under collected amounts of unreported Maijor
monthly sewerage fees
PUBLIC SERVICE FACILITY RECOMMENDATIONS
Consider legal, political and financial impacts of excluding Public Service Maior
Facilities from Connection Fees and monthly sewerage charges. }
2 Consider legal, political and financial impacts of IEUA assuming
responsibility for Connection Fees calculations, collections and CCRA Maior
accounts ]
3 Contract should include IEUA inspection, verification and recourse rights
for under-collected/under-reported Connection Fees Moderate
4 Contract should include IEUA right to audit, full cooperation and access to
records and documents upon request Moderate
5 Address difference between “Publicly Owned” vs. “Publicly Used” Minor
Consider cross-departmental approach to the development review PSF

process as a regional modei




'48d pasn Aplland, SA paumQ Al2qnd, Usamiaq aduaIsyip SsaIppy
AlQuony Yiuow Jed (113 SuUO JO WNWIUiW € JSe3| Je sassaulsng [elaiawwos |ig
Ajyuopy Jajeuu Ja)sew e Aq padlaies sessauisng jo sadA) ajdijnw yym suoleao| Joj esuepinb Buljlq ppy
Aoy $994 UOI}02UU0Y) pue s88) abieiamas Ajyjuow Ussmjaq UOHE|S1100 B ajeal)
Alyiuow suondussep pue suoniuyap pajiejep apiacid o} sadAy ssauisng mau Joj Aueinias wnpuelowsw BuUlg 661 lepdn

SUOIJOBUUOY spim-uo|fal Jua)SISUCD PUB [ HQIYXT UM JUSISISUOD S| J| BINSUS 0) JOBYSRIOM UoleINd|ed szipiepuelS

SUOI}AUUOT) Aenbal ¢ uqiyx3 Jo suonduoasap Jun ainmxi4 Auelo g ajepdn

SUOI}O2UUOD sodA) ssauisnqg Buiajoasmau apnjoul o) AJeinbal r uqiyx3 sjepdn

(ssauisnq jo adAy jo ssapiebal awes ay)

SUOIIDBUUOTS | 51500 sAem|e }o]io) B “"al) sainjea) anbjun pue seinjes) UoLUWOI Usamiaq saysinbulsip Jey} ssoo0.1d $a3§ UOHOBULOD Jal} OM |
THAA0N SSIANISNE OL SFONVHD HONIW

AJLIUOIN 1senbal uodn SIUSWNOOP PUR SPICTad 01 $Sa02. pue uonelsdood j|n ‘ipne 0} IYbil wN Il 2pnjout pINoUS 10enuo)

Ajyuiony sou) abeiomas AjucLl patlodal-1apun/palos)joo-Japun 10§ sjybl 8SiN0231 PUE UOHEILIBA ‘'UonDadsw asiolaxs YN 3|

AUIuoly sasioAu ALuow Buinsst w3l uey; Jaujes saiouaBy Bugoenuo) woy sjuswiied sbeiames AjYIUoLL 10} 10BIIUOD USlideis]

Auuopy sebieyo abriemas Ajyluow [BiUapISaI-UOL Jo sBuns) paziWsy 'pejewioine YN 3| splacid 0) Lodal AjLyluow SZIpIRPURIS

SUONDBUUOY Wy AYIuow 2y yum Buoie sIsucisno [BIUSPISBIUCU (|2 JO} SIS8YS)I0M U0HRIND}ED jo s8idod alnbal pinoys Y3t

SUOHOAUUOD 1senbas uodn SIUSLINDOP PUB SPICDAY 01 §88%08 U uoneisdood jni ‘tpne of 1Bu NIl spnjoul pInoyYs JoeiuoY

SLODBUUCT $99 4 peuodai-lepunypeos|jos-lapun 10f Sjybil 951n008) pue uoBRLIBA ‘LodadsUl YNF| SpNnioul PINOYS 10_IUCY)

SLIOLIBUUON Kougdelssip pajoadshs & Si aloy) aisym 9SO} PUE Saiji|ioe) Wwaopuel oadsuy o) weboid Bupiojuow ysigeise pinoys yn3!
TIECON SSINISNE OL SEDNVHD SLVHIACON

‘sabieyd obelamas

48d AJyluow pue s984 UOIOBUUOD WOJ) SANIIDES 8IS 2llqnd Buipnioxa jo sjoedw [ejoueuy pue [eanijod ‘|ebs) Jepisuo)

ABojopoyjatl 1ayjo 1o paseyaind snQ3 ‘uondwinsuod Jajem

Agiuoy Aq saAjeula)je JapISUDD PUE (|B1DI8WILICS pue |eljuapisal) sea) abelamas Alyjuow Bulq 1oy pesn ABojopoyiaws sjenjeag

Ayuop 1104 xe} Apedoad s Aluno) ybnoayy uoibal asue ayy Jo) saa) abelames Ajyjuow 1o3j10D

suonoduUo) | saliuS JeuapisaIuou |[e 1oy [eacidde juuad Buiqwnid pue yo-ubis |euy apiacid yN 3| YO ssevoid Buuiad ay; szyenua)

v sos) sbesamas Alyuow papodalun pue $884 UOIOSUUOY) JO SIUNOLWE P8)os||0d JOPUN/IBAD JO SBJUSIDYIP Paijuspl BAj0SDY

Y B|NWIC) N3 SSIA31 PUB MaIADY

v 10B4U0D "SA 8oueUIpIo Aq Buiuiaaob Jo sjoedwi [eroueuy pue jeatjijod ‘jebe) Japisuo)

13AON SSANISNE OL SAONVHO HOrvin

[OPOI SSoujsng Aq SUOQEpPUALLIWIODeY - §] JUSWYOoeRy

6€ 0 9Z abed

61L0Z '8Z Jequaldeg
Hodey ipny |eutd
MBIASY JoBIUOD |euciBay




Regional Contract Review

Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 27 of 39

Attachmenti 14 - Background Financial Information

IEUA’s Board-Approved Rates

Fiscal Year
Rate 2014/15 | 2013/14 | 2012/13 | 2011/12
Connection Fee $5,107 | $5,007 | $4,909 | $4,766
Sewer Service Fee | $14.39 | $13.39 | $12.39 | $11.14

Connection Fees collected by Contracting and Deposits Held in CCRA @ account

CCRA @ Balance | Connection Fees
CoRtracting L0 L BE, FY2014/15 | FY201314 | FY2012/13
Agency 2015
Chino $ 11,588,008 $ 4968822 | $ 2,620202] $ 5,170,311
Chino Hills 2,994,978 587,139 1,985,132 207,452
CVWD 7,155,091 860,230 1,901,701 4,054,981
Fontana 6,756,345 2,527,708 830,226 1,675,004
Montclair 2,641,382 300,819 262,500 2,066,303
Ontario 8,759,593 4,824,272 1,674,395 770,709
Upland 2,493,009 1,001,277 514,478 600,987
TOTAL $ 42,839,396 $ 15,070,267 | § 9,788,634 | § 14,545,747
(1) = from the Building Activity Reports.
Sewer Service Fees and EDU’s Reported By Contracting Agency
. Fiscal Year
Eoniacting 2014/15 2013/14 2012/13
AZERCY T rnTrs Fees EDU’s Tees EDU’s Fees

Chino 344,326 | $4,954,854 | 343,012 | $ 4,592,930 | 338269 | $4,191,152
Chino Hills | 290,117 | 4,174,785 | 290,726 3,892,815 | 288,891 | 3,579,355
CVWD 819,522 | 11,792,929 | 768,353 | 10,288,244 | 769,392 | 9,532,767
Fontana 626,168 | 9,010,561 | 612,143 8,196,601 | 605,834 | 7,506,286
Montelair 145,037 | 2,087,075 | 147,955 1,081,117 | 144,005 1,785,337
Ontario 705,341 | 10,149,854 | 711,899 | 9,532,321 | 707,904 | 8,770,935
Upland 324329 | 4,667,000 | 3207752 | 4,294,863 | 320,624 | 3,972,526
TOTAL | 3,254,840 | $46,837,148 | 3,194,840 | $42,778,891 | 3,175,009 | $39,338,358

Percentage of IEUA’s Regional Wastewater Program to Total Revenue:

FY 2014/15 | FY 2013/14 FY 2012/13
Total of Connection and Sewer Service Fees: 561,907,415 | $52,567,525 | $53.884,105
Total Revenues, including Grants and Subsidies: | $145,819,497 | $124,841,232 | $134,287,194
Percentage to Total Agency Revenue: 46% 42% 40%




(queiq ys| Ajfeuoyuaju) sbed)

BE Jo gz abey

$10¢ ‘g Jequeydag
Hoday] Jipny |euid
MoIABY JeqUOY [BucBay



'3BIUBWIWIOS BDIAIDS
uaym 1o fouednsoo uodn

‘siseq
Aguow e Uo (Brgsnpu; pue

"JaIIN0o 634 Uofvaulod
SJ081( aAp 18 S)s-uo
10 ||BWw AQ 323} UCRIBUUDD
10} Aed ued spueaydde
[eujsnpu| pue ‘feuogmysuy

“uawhed ayj spiooed
Waugredaq] sedAlas [BUI]
pue ‘(Uoisipgns [eguapisey

saa) oy} shed jued)dde B . 3 : pue erarswiwion)} Apaup sj93]10D $88.4 40 UD o
Uy "SpuUnj 294 UORDBULOI sﬁﬁ.ﬁ; M_Um hﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ_ﬂwﬂhﬂv e Emmmh.::w_.ozaﬁw HM.Q Isel mumuuu_.__ 81994109 Mawpedaq Kouaby Bupoenuon 44 o3l
atg sploy amn= : . uipling ojusweldeg
1901100 J9HI8I HBIICD SAAUBY JGUION | 00 D o - | 40 A1UnGO J0 NS S oM UL
BjEP OU} 12 AQUGA 1M SOV 01100 LS
$179]190 1313810
"0} O JUN 8B L Jjun Woalpag
na3 € s [epuepsey fgwed suls nun Buglamgq asi naai [equopizay Awe -sjbulg
Hun sad $100IPa] JO JBQUWNN } s awoy Auwe} ejbuis suQ 8994 UONIBUUOS) SINSESHY JO JIUN
; ‘053 ue jo ybusl]s ojsem
pepalie Bjep nwﬂ&m_ﬂ.u P Il Mﬁa_ﬂﬁwﬁw pive sad (jenuepisay Apuai-eifuls e us pased)
Jod ke _u_m_m_ B SaM [apOW 2u} PUT ESN PUB| \PES Kep-1ad-sunyied 09z L LS . hwﬂm_w._a - ajes Mo
pied-suoyeB 5g2 | 4o Bﬂmﬂu %Hmnﬁ_ﬂwm m.m_m_ ‘eloN as3 Jad Aep-iad-suoyes 018 P 1=h 0Lz ployesnoy opsawop abeieay
000'21L uojw §°Z UOIjILI §°G UOUILL G | 000°0s8 :pamies Uojendod
sefiw alenbs GG saqiw aienbs 6L sajlw suenbs 008 sejlw alenbs g2¢ sajlw ajenbs ZpZ ‘eele sonIeS
"RAUNnoD apisianty
uj seale pajeiodioouun SEaly INUIABY 2 ouaUERDES 1510
) PUE “JEWOPIA —JolISK] PalEpIoSUss | sojebuy SOTJ0 | oo 10 1o pue ‘ojusweeg | FTEM Asyep eGuouredny
i . ¥ i : A9 sy jo fHuolew Buipnjoxa o . pue ‘puejdn ‘opeuY :pantas sapaysenusbe Jaguap
Ejnoawa | ow_.__owﬂ (funoo mm_..EOtw “Aunos aup Uy AlojLa) 40 A0 ‘wosjod jo A1) ‘PIRSIA ‘Jjejojuoyy EUEuO]
UES ‘Stad ‘ejaluniy ‘Asfjea | UOJj0ag [esjua)) pue WBYHON S ¥ 1OMBS EQJY OJUSWUEIDES o .
OUBIOW ‘S8jjuBy 1OWRH pejelodiosuiun pue sagw gL SIIIH oWy ‘ouwyn
8 SjolIS|p [epads pajejas pue sPUIsIp » -panies sapa
seale pejeicdiodujun ‘S8 £Z |eleads wapuadapul £2 £ /sapuabie Jjo Jequiny
amwa ] asoo | asov _ i _asous [ vn3l | |
Aoaing ajqeiedwod [eusdix sy - MIJASY JoB1JUOD leucibiay :poday JIpny [BWsiU] oy} woly sdsaoxy
Sl jusuiyoeyy
6¢€ Jo 8Z abed

g10zZ ‘gz Jequisidag
Hoday ypny |eu)d
Maingy Joeljuoy) [euoiBay



pua ay) Buwolio; yeem pig

abueiO ay) Aq Jeak yoes

ale swos Ing ‘AlLpuow

uy "Yjuotu ayj Jo 8sod

0} 523} pajoal|od SU} sPwal
PUB J2mas Jay s|g Aouabe
Jaquiaw ay) 'wajsis Jemes
S,QAMIAT ©) pRIdauLIoD

0S|E 8JE pUB J3jem ajqejod
Jo} Buiyq ayy apiaoid
$e[ouebe Jequiow )|

'siseq Ajyuow

B UD SI3W0ISNI asay)

0} paj|iq OS[e alE S63) JamIs
‘asn Jolem a|qelod 10) slasn
[eLISNpul pue ‘|eIoJsWuwoD
‘lepuepises S CAMRE i

paoioaut ale Juuad afleyos)p
e alsinbau oym sebieyasig
SISBAA [BLISTIPY] (910N

“1eosed yoea Jof i
xe} Apedoid ay) uo Ajenuue
PS)os|jo9 ale [euysnpul pue

TejaiaIwe?) Tejuepisey
10} S93) SOIAISS JIBMOS 9Y |

ale sebfieyoing Jajema)sepn
aUt 515N |eLSNPUf 104

“1esk Jod aom)

Ajensn ‘juawied jo ydieoal
uodn juswpedsp Guunoosay
S,J2U1SIq 9Y) 0} JuswAed
sapinosd AWNoD ay | “walsAs
Bujig xe | Apadoid Awnon
s3jabuy s07 ay} yBnauyy
pajoalien ate (fellewwos)
pue [enuapisay) sebieyo
asines ay) jo Ajuofepy

$19sn jelisnpul au sjiq

pue safileys ay) saujuualop
puE Josn YIED WOoL peo)|

PUE MO B4} SIONUCLU LONIAS
[0JUOD 824N0G I)SEAA S,JoL1SIT
au) ‘slash [eLnsnpuy Jo4

safleys oy Jo Buyosyeo

pue Buijiq sy Jo} Sjqisuadsay
8| Jey) wawpedap Guiyq

e sey Aouabe Jaquew yoeg
Je[I3WI0D pUR [ERUap|Say

:Aouebe Bugosenuoa yoes
Aq sapea $69) ey 10}
Buing *ssesn ferpsnpy)
pue pRiaBUILos
‘lenuapisoy woyy
Aposaip see) ey} £393)|02
Aouabe Bupoessuos yoeg

1o puz 8yi ulypm sejouefie 1oy Xe) Auadald pansag “waysAs Bulg apew s| juswied - ssjouabe 8y} Jeye sAep gl }suy
laguew Jno Aq pajyual ay) uo pasejd ase segy | XL Apadoid Ajuno) sappbuy Bupnquuos ay) uo spuadaq ay} Buunp uoneuuojuy | S99 DNISG 19MBS JO BDUENILLISY
ale  (s99}  UOHOAUUOD | aoinias somas [euaiBey ggoo | 501 @t ubnoiy) pajoapes ale na3 oy} apiaoad
-uou} sag) lameg sableys sanieg jenueplsey se1aueby Bugoenuon
"@0UBLPIO) BU) Ul paqUasap
siseq Ayuow e uo QA3 Asjesedas se Apapenb pajoajjoo -KjBujpioo0E

£884 SOMUSS JOMaG JO L)oo

'§89) UoRDaULIcd pue
afiueyauns [ewysnpur Aed oy
aaey pihom Ayed juauqess |
ISJBAA 10 JUB) $3MO04

A1 e ng Jdwexs (e ale

'sBuip|ing aoiuas agnd Jeao)
jeul ‘syred ‘sjooyss ‘sBujppng

_"apew uasaq eAeY JBy)}
sjusweaocsdwil Jo Ajjon}

-Asuabe Jaguaw o > |00  se yons ‘solobejes [ meu e o eleme sawoneq
S8A ay] Aq paloaloa 1 99} ay ] e _mM%um_bn%._:M“M“M_w_.__“oo [BIDJOWIIOD |BJBASE QJB UBY| foueBe Bunaenuoa d4S5d Wo4 S99} Jo LoRdFI0]
Ao spooups .a.o:mc__u.ho_u,m ‘Wey} JNoge SMoWY JOLSIC a4} oy3 ueym pajoaljod
SuBwaINka) Uo)duRXa 5w 3 way) afleys o} 51 UM ay) ale saed LUOIBUUDD
sk Guo| se soa4 uonoaulen)
wol) ydwaxs ase Lay |
| amw3 asd0 _ asovi asous vn3l

PanupUOD - G| JUSWIYSERY

BE Jo 0f obed

$10T ‘gz ;equejdes
Hoday ypny |euid
Mmamey pequon |eumbay




“SHoge uoljaejjod
pue Bupoed) o) enp Jaybiy
aue sabileyds aanensiuIwpy

‘ejegqal

€ 10} uondwinsuos [enoe

JISL) Jwgns 0} SI9Wo)sND
[equapises-uou Joy weiboud

e aaey aps uondwinsuod
JS)EMm [BMOE Jou pue sabelaae
uodn paseq aiB $29} 1IN0

*SUJI2oUeD esou psyblemine
sfemje say sobeione
|Bucjjeu mo|aq ||em sajed
Buiuieyuiew pue xej Apodoid
iy} 0} pappe 934 je|) & Gulrey
Jo Apoyduns 2yl "sJeso] pue
SIaUUM JUdIRYuL S1E SaL)
pue afiesn |empe UBY) Joyel
sBulpeo| pawngge sasn
welboud ebieys eanas oy

‘saouabe
Bugnquyuod pue yels sjolgsiq
usomlaq uofeypucdal annbad
ey} sabuajsisucou  Bumpqg
aJe a1al] "paJsap si salobejes
s59] yum ampnns sedus e
pue seuoBajes ¢ sey anpnns
Buipg Jasn [eplsllWos ayl

sabejurapesiq
— aumonns welboid

*SU0{8|00
JSA0 |ONU0D pue Alepysuaq
o} wawdedsq paaq

"SUORIB}0D

uo Jo SIBWeISnD o Bupioaul
aun Jeis puads 0] aaey jou
op 3pA "AS3UOLL pUB SW|} SBAES
weiboid sy ‘g xe} Agedoad

‘aAljoaya 1509 AUsA §| saxe)
Auadoud yBnosy siawolsnd
@say) Jo ysow jo Bunnd

8yl "2eds JO SSIWoL0I9
pooB pue sasuedxe paieys
ypm abue) 1 {(eseq Jewajsno

‘uaBonu

Iyepf (5103 pue uabolped

©} PayLI| S5O0 LJm aINjonns

e Jdope Jey; sapiin may) sl

J0 aUO si UES |euoifisy 9IjARS
JO 1502 UO PASEQ] Sf JUMINHS
89) puw aje. 8y "aInons

gsobejueApy — aunonuls welboid

-] nbe pue sjqBUEISNS
au} uo 93 1o Bupeld Ag | 40 %08 INOGE SB(PUEY YOIUM) e mwu_ i &He
e peidope 1014810 9U} 12U
aIMSNYS 88} PUE 8)e) MaU 2y |
TRWHE|s 1SNBhY

alj) uo paseq Apauenb Koueliy et

‘paugipiodde Junowe ay) uodn aue sabueyo peysnpu| ews 0} G} S910AL] ) Wo

peseq ea} e sabieyo eowo sARp g enp 3] JuswAed

sajjonuon/Ioupny ey | Jeek | “wajshs Bujg xe) Apedoly Kiea § o___>m.maw_ toJ} snusae *$|SBq IHJON[OA

[eosy; ey} InoyBnosy g0 funoy sejebuy so sy) ay} inq ‘Ajlenuue jusuked na3 ue uo Asuabe

o} pauoniodde aie pue 2owo | yBnouy) psjoagoo ese sabiseys sayew ‘fousfie Gupoenuod funoenuoa yaes jjiq

“Yluow ay, jo s ajjoquopaoypny AUNos MBS I[E)IIOWUCD B "9fiAas0y Jo A0 “Ajyiuownq 0} pajeiaued st 3310AU|
aMin3 | asdo _ _asov1 | asoys LE]

PanNuRuOD - G| JUSLDENY

B¢ 10 1€ obed

$1L0Z ‘8¢ Jequdydes
podey ypny [eu|4
MBIADY JoBNUON [BUOIBaY




(yueiq yo| Ajfeuonusiu; oBed)
spoday Wsiu] yum papiaosd Suopepuswwoey

Vv HQIux3 - 9] JuslliyIeny

B¢ Jo z¢ obed

SLOZ '8Z Jequisideg
Hodey ypny |euiy
MGy JoenuoD) [euoiBay



SN adnjx} esn-awes pue odA}-swes

J0 Walysay oyl W ASUSIEISUCD SIEAD PINCA SIL 319 “juIS BUIYSEM Jo JousBmysIp juBINEjSSl B ‘Uisp

x x x % B o x doys JouoIng ‘LIRIp gny B4y B 68 4ONS ‘e ojoeds B o3 enbiun am jEY SAINEEY OSOL] pUB MYUIS pus
£)9p0} WOONERA S8 Yons AJIoE) [BIUaLILLI0D AUR Jo Med efe JBy) SeumBo) UOWWOD udamiag saysnBugsp

1oy ¢ napa jo ped s Se3) uogoeuuco Bummueiep Jo seecuid Je oMl B JOpEUCD pnoys VN3l e
1sonbas uodn SJUAMNIOP PUE SpPJoIBI

e e e x 2 x x o} ssecoe pue uopesadoco jiny ‘Yphe 0) IYBU VNI epnpw o pejepdn aq pnoys jseRued [euciiod | ¥
*Saa} LORIeuLIoD palcdBI-ISpun Jojpue paao-1opun sey Asuely Bugoenuo)
x x x % x p's L)) £ SaA3ifeq VYl USYM SEY VN3] 83IN0OA 9y} PUE $56) UORIAULOD 10} SIBU UORESHLIGA pue LogoadsLl

syn31 Buuebay jpeyu0D jeuciBay ew o) sbenbuel ppe pinoys sepusly BugoeAue) eyl pue VN3 €
‘wesBold [puoiBay sy jo Aubejur oy aunsua pue peydde =1 peiuUC) [BuciBay ayl
x U x - wu - 4O JUSIU) BLY eUNBUS 0} JepIa Ul AauedeIosip pe1oedsns B SI elely) SJeLM S8O0L) 10 SenINoE) WopuBl Jaadsul
% o) weiBosd Bugopuow BuioB-ue U YsSIKE}Se pue ‘SENMIIE] jO uUORIadsY| 9 LONMIT oRIUCD |euoiBay
Jopun papiaosd QuUoyne Siyy e8IeXS 0) pea) el 6xe) pinoys ednoub juswjeseld pue Bujuusld vnal 2
PoIIa)j0n pUE PossassE eUr S08f LIOKOBLUD (58400 03 puidde usaq oARy Jojoe) afiemes
pue edA} AioBajes ejeudodde 2u) pue RIS Bu Jo UoRejesdiol U3 UM saelBe VY BInsue gk de)s
% % x x x jenoudde papps siy] waysAs [euciBal 8Up 0} UOISULOD @ BUMONE pus Ajus [enuapIsaIusU & 0) puwed
X x & Buinssl Kouaby Bunoraquos ey} o) Joud [eaoidde pue yo-ubis |euy spiroid oagBluesaidal Y] UL
1ey) wawannbes B Buysygess ‘sseaud dosys uejd pue Bugyuuad auy jo jred se 1o sseooid Bumpuisd
. : ; ; . JOJRMAISEM DU 99 LORIDULOD GUf BURTHRILED JBpISUCD pinoys sepuely Bupdenuod ew pue YNzl b
sos'szz'ss | zei'ses’ss | i0L'06's | 20z'0ce’ss | eez0eRs | oogzsEs | e9v'soss | 402/8407_ 334 Pue SNOLLYGNIWWOOIR S33:4 NOLLITNNOD |

SeNEISHU BNULC) PUB SJ0LI8 UCHBOLNTS 2 [om s YN Ag pepiacid seolues
% % x 5 x % auy 4o} pied jou sa8) pue YN3| o) pajoday 10U BIB jElY Sessewisng peyuepl v senueby Gugoeguod |
x Ly diysuoner Bunom ysiqeElSaEUIULISIOR PUE SMainay Penue) JBuciBay oyl BIMp paisncdsip s34)

801A9S PeLOdBIIN PUR 8994 UOOSULKD) JO SIUNDLIE PID3|Ied JOpLN/ a0 JO STIOUDYIP PIYAUIP IMOSDY
X X x X x % x Aep sad suojjed 0z JuaLND Woy) BJAULIO) (K] 9SIAGI pUB MeIASY =
X X x X x 3T x JOEQUOD 'SA SOUBLEPIO Ay Buiianob jo suoieoydui (epueul pue Bogiled ‘eba) Bpisuc) -
| SNOLLYGNINWODIY TIVHaND
[Toumug [ smpouys | GMAD | ouiyy | Buiuod |Jrepiuon | pusidn | SUOREPUeIIoseY [ Nl

Y Hqiux3
panuiuos - gl JusSIyIeRny

8¢ Jo g€ sbed

§L0Z ‘9z Jequeidag
podey JIpny [Buld
manay jeenuo [BuoiBay



Hve pejiodal i SUOHDBULIOD YL BT 6} 18 PIJOU Qe sanuedaudsip Jo suogsand Aue i Auely Binoeiuon
By} LM @Y} J0BJUOO 0] UOHEBUWLOLN AfES5809U 6L} BABY BNOM LEIS VNIl POZINN SUN0d NPy pue sadA)
pepiaxt Aiobeleo eyl jo uoleandde ey soj poddns pejuewnaop pue Aipqisia J)2a1B JeIs W) opiaosxd pom
X x x L EIIEED X sm1 popeyoo 294} LCHOBLUCS SU} PuR pelodel SLOKDOUUOD alf) J0) POdANS [EUHIPPE SpIATI PINOM
it T2eySHIoM UCHRINDIED SR0deN ANARSY DUIPENG ARBULOW JISY) UC PEPAIDUI SSUHUS [ERUSPISIIIOU KR 0}
; SIOYSHIOM HORBINIIED LONOBLLCD AU Jo 931400 epivud sepueby Bugoequey Jey aunbal pinoys YN | 6
JUSSISUI JOU aJE §188ySHIOM UCHENI(ED sabualy Bunoeguoes ay) ssnelaq
§iunos anixy 1o uogesidde Bukiea pejou y| Apuucjun pus ASualsSisUOD JO ¥OB| B Bungeam ‘si00)
umo ey dojeaep 0} peau yoea jou pinom sapualby Buoeyuol) jeyl 08 seey uojdeULsd el Bunndwoo

i yapg (r yawpa r yaa (r nauxz Ul aouejsisse apinoJd pINoM JSOYSHIOM UONEINI[ED pIZIpIBpUE)S v (YsEm JBD B UM UeWIUIL/UONR)S

SAORO} Mou SMmol[o} SMOIOLMOU | gpgii) seb e ‘siduexe 10)) uoljeoo| Swes By} 18 S3euisng JO odA) auo uByy elow 1 Sy} Usym seuoBeied

x =ﬁﬂu_.wﬁwu pousyon ﬁwﬂﬂv Jesys oM x x [BIDiaWC Jusleylp B pajenojes aq o} sssuisng B o sjusuodwos adynuw Joj MOIE ¢) ybnoue
UoljenoBo) uogs|nafes) sjgixey eq pinoys jasysyom ey] Sseaoid Junod aINIXY ey} o} ANULIOJUN puUB UCHEDLUEIS [euoiippe

A x » A% 2 opinosd pue [ NP W sedA) JuUn AUNX By} JOLIW PIAOYS JIYSHOM UDHEINO[ED POZIPIEPUENS Y

[ RaIxT J9BRU0Y |BUGIBaY OY) YilM JUSISISUOD SABMIE JOU St I PUE J38YS3I0M LONBINDIED Bnbiun umo s)
sey Acueby Buoequo) yove ‘Aaung 'SUCHE[NDJED 883 UOJOBUULD 3u W sawusly Bunoeiuoy 1sIsse
0 99y oM uageinojes pezipsepue)s & Buidojaaap 1apisuos pnoys seidusaly Bujjoenuod & pue yn3l | ‘¢
‘Uoe10cISI Ut SEOUBIDLID PHIESAB] MBIAGT S1){
SWEIUNGS OM) JO SUO 10 SieIsuad ssaode paddesipuey Joj wiseq ejesedes B sapmota 18U} Wejunc} Bupjuup
x x x - € JoylaUym pue surseq dow pue syuIs *si0jdenal “SHIBjUNO] LSeM 'SILI0IBAR] UBaMIeq seouasap Builjugp
- 2 X ‘ueip qny ® Jo uopedyiEseR ‘WEIP AJUBAISWS LR JO BHTIEU ey) BUILYSP SPMIOLY SaIdWEX T WGKPG
u papnjoul suofduosep eyl Ul Sampa Jo seousuepndde ‘seousydde jo sedf snouea sL JOJ UONBULICHY
angduosep pue LONEDSYUED (BuCHpPe epwoxd pue dopaep pinoys saualy Sueiuod ey pue YOI L
'S3oARS eAne)iqeyol apinaid JeLy) S3UIOE) PUB SARIUNLWWOD {BIJUBPISE) Jamau | sJajuad APunwiioo
‘sia)oys Jo sjepdsoy Jewue ‘(evnes obrioneq pue poo} 8y Joj 8oles ejge} sapinosd JURINEISAI SUl
1nq souBijue y] leau Js)siBal e je peoejd aie SIOpIO @IAUM) SJUBINE)SAI [BNSED-)SE} apnjpul sajdwexy
$98§ Y31 0 UORDS||09-JepUN [BUSlod BU) PUB SBESBUISNG JO LOKEIYISSEIISIW JO YSU SU) 6onpadl pjnom
x x BjU x & by x SIYL T BgIyxg ul sassauleng 10 UOHBIWSSEP 9} 0} suonduosep pue suohiuyep jeuoiippe Buguawnoop
Jppisuoa pinoys yNJ| ARUEISISUCD POYISSE I8 SISSAUISNY [BiJaWILUGD Jo sadh) e aunsus 0} aguepind
pue suopuysp ‘ebenbue] jeuociyppe spincid o} Auenbas pajepdn aq pinoys r Jgiyxg ebiewe sassauisng
Jo sadi; meu pue aAjoA3 0] enuiuod sassauisng uoiexdde pue uogelosdisiu Buikiea 1oy Wood (s S
esey) 14 ‘sadAy esouisng Auew 10) suogiuyep pojieiep sepiraid mou pue pejepdn Afueced Sem [ JjaIpa | 9

smHouws | AMAD | oulgdy | suwmuod [ aepiow | puwdn | SUOHEPUAUILLIODEY . [oN|

¥ uqiyx3
panupuos -g| JusWyoeny

8¢ jo #£ ofed

5102 '82 requeldeg
Woday upny [euly
MBIASY IorlUOY |euoiBay



o . (i o=} = (i osn)} = " voday Apanoy buippng ey Guuedesd |

Ve > #0 ped e see UORIBUUOD Joj ssed0xd meinel [ewsejul ue Bugdope Jepisuos pjnoys sepueby Sugdenuad |21

T WX ul peysqese sepoBaes o ey Jou ss0p Jo efibjun 81 adk) asoym sassaleng

% * a0 Ty [RICISWLICS Jo Juauneasy 2u) uo exepind 5,yn3)| Buieygo Buipyow 'uoiBes ou) ssake sseatud nod

X X X anpy yna) ey u Aousisisuco dojenep o} sawuaby Burpenuon jo suauiedsc) BupEng Su 18 Buel
 BujoBuo pue Jepfie) Buipiacid pue senbiuyds) JUN03 Ay By SsRRKixs Budojarap Jepisuca PINoys vl iy

‘sigeq A|2Wg B UO passalppe |

aig gSonssi JBI pue Joequos [euciBay ey jo uogedndde Juasisucd amsud 0 weiboly JeuciBey

au) pue sauaby Bugoejues I Waudg pNom Joriue) (eucibay ey jo uogedydde s} Jnoge enbojelp

BuioB-uo pue Juenbeiy 'saiusby Bunzenuo) Jeyio o] A|dde pinod jey; suonenys Jo suogsanb JejUNEoUY

few Aousy Sugoenuosn v B SucwE uOREI0qE||od pue uonesedoco J9JS0) pul 'SUORENYS jenpiAIPU

| pue sway sqeuopsenb Jeyjo ‘suoipuyep ‘Aidde o} sedd} AioBaieo noqe suonsenb ssmosip o} wnio)

2 apiaoud pinom sdoyssiom ey ‘wuBoud pue pegue? [Buciey ey jo uopesdde ey Jnoqe suchsenb

3B pUB SSNOEIP UED [JaM SE SJOLI0 JofpUE Bulg AN PUe ¥oayD ueld ‘Buippng se yons sjuelunedep

% % * x x x % ui yejs sewpuaby Buorquos aiaym enusAe UE se SaljAgoe Jeyuns pue suno) Jued ‘sSunesiu ‘'sdoysiiom

Jeindal alows Jo Apeuenb Buipjoy w peej ey Bupje) Jepisucd pinoys yngl ‘waiBas ey noybnoay

Auusopun pue Asusisisuod Joyeaud dojaaap o) Jepso ul ‘Buig AN pue yaeys ueld 'Buiping se yons

sjuewpedsp W yeis seusby Bugoenuos jsBuowe SISIXS [ BOUPE pue joequoD [EUoIbey oy ‘YN Jo

Buipue)siepun pue AJjiqeLBA JBeJ0 JBLR pejou | "esjjiwwcagns [ JIqIUx3 a4 pue padey Aigoy Buipjing

[eox2 pajepdn ay} 68 yons sBuiy Joy pepesu se Buiuies} pue sBunaaw soy-pe epjosd o} unfieq Apesuje
$8Y YNl ‘seaywwo) A3j0d jeuciBey pue [esjuyde | jeuciiioy auy Jo sBugssw Jenbes ey oy uogippe U] 'Ol

[ o_._n_.__mdﬂlﬁ_.mm oumys | GMAD | oulys | sujuoy | Jjepjuow | puedn | suopepusuuoley [ oN

v iqiyx3y
pPenujuo? -g| JUSWIYIENY

6¢ Jo g¢ afieg

5102 '8Z Jequedes
yodey ypny jeuld
MBIASY IoeiUC Jeuoibay



B/u

X

$2e'Tes’es

olEuD

X

SIRT68'SS | wpz'egz'ols | orETESNS

S{jIH ouly

e

dMAD

e

LT

auyo

B

eu

.1

{sunponas
[51:T)
peseq Naa)

Ve

{eamt
® HiG o)
Pash o 05y
Rusdord)

2
10996188

eunuog

e eu

B B/

10418608 | soayezys

Jjejojuop | puedn

amnsua o} acuepinb pue 'suogiuyep ‘ebentuw puoippe apiackd o Aueinba) peqepdn 6g PINOUS WNPURIOLWISL
668} oul obewe sasgsauisng Jo $adl) MGU DUR SAIOAR O] PANUUOD GARY S9530UISNG "WINpUBIDWSW
2681 8y} Jo uondope Su edulg  suondluosep pue BUOQIYSD pajlelep aiow eplaoud pus sadA) sseusndg
M3U JBpISUCS 0} winpueiowaw /g6l s Bugepdn sepisuco pinoys sspuaby BupdeguoD eyl pue YNI)
jeenbei uodn SJUSWNJOP PUE SPINAA)

0} $56998 pus uoneiedood Jry ‘ypne o) WEU vN3| apnpul 6} pajepdn aq poys JoeRUOY [BusiBay
$048} Yons poliodanopun Jojpue pajefios

~18pun sey fousby Bugienuon B 98ASHBq YNl USUM SBY YTl 98033 By} pue sea sbmiemes Apguow
0} se sjubu uvogeoyuea pue udioadsu syNI) Buipseba PRI pEuciBoy oy o sbenBusl ppe pinoys w3l
JeULBL Ajeils PUE JUBISHje SJ0W B Ul 838} Jomas ALUOW aAlsdal pinam ynJ)| ‘'ssesoosd

el Buuesuibuees Ag sAep gp 0} dn o} Juswdied Buideiep Agasay) Juewded siojeq yNZ| WOH SHI0AW UB
10} Jem Usy) pue uonewlol a3 epinold senuaby Bunoenuos Aqeseym yoeodde JUeLND SU1 UM S)SEIUOD
gyl ewy jo poued ejgeuosesd B LI Agoasp W) 0} SPUR OU) JWUEM pue uojeuuciul N3 eyl epacsd
pincd Asusby Bunsenuol Yyaes ‘sasioaul Lo Buiijes uey) Jeujed Juewded Awyuow Joj Joeiuco B Buysigejse Ag

| ‘see} lemes Ayuow oy Soueby Bugoanuon yore Bujojoaul Joj pesn $8a00.d JuBLIND By} SjENJBAS PINOYS YN[

$158Y Jeinfal 8 UO pajiutional PUE SRIBLLIOLE J0] PELUXBOSES PUE

pOMSIARI S PINCO Jey) Lofewiops apinald pinom siy]  sefiseyd ebriames Apuol |eRuepISe-Uci jo sBunsy
peziLe) pue pejewcine Suguacud pue Buzipiepusis iepsucc pyoys sepusly Bumpenuod By pue ynal
seoines Buiplaoid Jo JS00 8y} SIACTAI JELR UNjons ejel ajgelnka pue s|qeutejsns e Buiysiqelse w

191558 pinom Apmg sed pue sjey B ssecoid snp Jo Ued sy psjdope AjjsuLio) pue si0joaui(] J0 pUeog YNl aUk
0] pejussaid &q pjnoys ABojopojew Buliq 8y eunjongs ejel peseq Q3 Uey) Jeyel sujewnioa g ejebiseaw
0} senJadcud (equepisel Aq ebesn uosees Japipy Buiwuexe eq pinom ABojopoyisw Bulpq e Jo ped se
Japisuon o) Yaecudde Jeyiouy  pepiacid sedias ey yum paubie eq pinoys ASojopoytow Buljiq eyt Sjoym e
se uoiBal iy} o} papiacud sesies Jo sedh) ey) pue pefieydsip abeiemes Jo unowe pue edA] sy} uo Pedw) ue
aney A Yoy 'sBEsN Jejem Ul PeAsILDE Used aasl SamUBIaye Wnpueiowew Je6) & ul Aliojopoyeww Buijg
Bupsixe ay; jo ucldope oy aulg paseynd s 1o uondwnsuod Jejem Ag Jeyle ‘SeARBLISYE JSPISUOD pue
sea) abriames Appuow Bugyq Joj pesn ABojopoyiew Byl ajenjess pinoys ssoueby Bugornuod oyl pue wridl
"SAIUD JSLIO PUR (ELENPL EISILILGD UOIBUEIY O] JSUIDUM PUB UM Ul SABM 0} UaAB S UOGRIEDISUOS jQunt

Afleiu pengjsuen oq pnos sesedoud jequaeprsey  S98) 93ay) Bunceoo pue Bumq u seiduely Sunsenueg
AQ POSN SBAMUSA) SANSASLINLDE 94] onpal pue ss850ud UGG SIC B i [NEas pRod foi xey Auadasd
8y} ylnony sou; sbaismes Jo uoRIefios [jos xey Ausdaxd s Aunon el ybnouy uoibe: aijue ey Joj Afcanp
seg) obasemes Ayuow jo uoposjeo ey Bulysyqelss Jepeuod pnoys sanusby Guoenue] ey pue VN3l

¥LOZ/ELOZ :STIS PUP SNOLLYGNTHINOITY ENITHE SOVHAMIS ATHINON

SUOEpUALIWOIaY

v Hqiyx3

PaNUIUOD - g JusaIyDeNY

€ Jo 9¢ abeqd

§L0Z 'gz taquisidag
Hoeday kpny [eujs
MBADY Jorluo7) [euojBay



] ‘gouspisal Ajlue) eibuis e o) pafleyo unowe auy) ey
| es8] ABd pjnoys SSOUISNG OU JBY} S[BUOREI BY} JSPUN JUNOLE JBY JSE3] J8 N(IF BUO Jo WnuWWW & afijelyosip

x x x x
4 | 4 s JO SUINFUCT JOU Op JBY; SesseusNng [aRUswIcd Builg Jepisuco pinoys sepuely Buporiuesd eyl pue vnal 0L
1 B By wu Yu o ABojopoysew e 10 eiqeoldde 19eyBily ‘pepuelg Jeyjie "ISjeI Jegew Aq pednies sadA] Ssoutsng ojdinw
. | . M suonEo0] ) ealepin Bullliq [EUORIPPE JO) Paau 3yl JOPIsUD pinoys sapuaty Bugtequod o pus vNat 6

SIUBINE]Sa) BoIAIS-[INy 0) peBeyD sayel JoyBiy ey 16 $03) Jomas Ajyiuow fed

N ‘5994 UCHDOULOY JaMO| INSUI SJURINEJSEY pooj-1se; 'euajuey)  {Buiq aBeiemes Apguow Joj | AioBajeD

% % x % QJB YOIyM) 883N JBJILIIS PUB [IE18) ‘99ylo Y Padnoib BB SJURINEISA] POOj-8e) S99 UORDeULD] jo sesodind

X | x x 10} JGASMOH @IE: BLes oY) Je Aed pue sesodind Bujq efeiames Auow Joj g A0BGIED I pepn|aul Ljoq Bl

SjUBINE)SAU SSIAISE-[N) PUE SJUBINE]SS) POO)-ISE; ‘sldwexs Jo] oM} BU] UBSMEq UONBjAL0D B 8jBaIS O} paau
oL} UILLIGIEP PUB S99 LORDBULOY) PUB S92 Jemes AJUoW usamiag diyguoie|al ai) JBPISUCT pue ajenjeny | 8

Bogsalivny Huixem pud seds 300} ‘sucles ‘sioped sbessew ‘seds se

1one 9esseursiiy pejEje) Bds puR SIIUIR pue s(Ejidsoy jad pus BuBLBULSIEA ‘SUOTRSL| enotal jad ‘sdoys wd 58

Lons sasseuisng pajsted led spnjoul sojiuBaT  AHURSISUCS POYESBR B8 SEESEUISI [BIUBLILICD 4O sodh) |

[ Toumuo [ smpouys | GMAD | oujyo | sukjuod [Jerjuop | pusdn | SUOEPUSWILIOIEY i i [on|
¥V Haiyx3
PanujUoD -g| JUSIIYIERY
BE Jo ¢ ofed

510z '8z Jequsydes
Hoday }pny |eul{
MBINaY JoRILOD [euoiBay



) I HUX Yl S3LEPIGS0R L1 Y11F] S0t o50y) Blpriow “I38) UDRIMULOD 10 WGKISSSEsR W) U SUNINTE) PEAALL
Tusugmdap 8 ¢} seARRSAde) Aledop Bupyng pue SO JHGNG 0L PR S UOHONISUOD AGd MOU INGTE MOUY Of JRIY Bl Uayo
~He03D

(Ao
fouabe jeem w B SRMEMSSRNIN JBLLEdSD sl ‘Sbe DU SSE0OR GINSUE () UOGINKEUGD MEU o) pumbw 3 Nepes o2 oy Bunued aong g
‘A e JoN} Pt spRupedip sy pue SoNod pue 'TRoM J4Gnd Buppng Bumusld ) woy seageesauda supniou dnosd ey Juswdopnep
2 MaU MBRRI 0] Apeinlial S1as1 ey} SeRdap A0 [ ol dnoil GAENpUE U paLaG) BBY PURKHN J0 A0 BYL  MOE0) o} satouely
& Bugoequon ﬁiﬁ%-ﬂgﬁse%oﬁsgnﬁﬁggsg%gn |
‘pesn Ajojqnd pus
x vo__ssa_u__a:n%gvaﬁggvzugﬂsgnn—%ui:nu:ﬂ»ouﬂﬂ...&:oﬁ::e:_glbuutunu 5
UoneauBl Jepisucs o) esuepind pue suopuyep atfenBus) |suonippe epinaid o) Auembael pajepdn eq pinoys [ PaIpa  Uohedgdde
pue vogmasliaiy Bullies Joj Woo) s 1 eey) |RA sUORRILSP pojiwep sepivaxd mou pue pajepdn Apuedal sEm [ HqIpE
wanbay
UOdn SUGUIDOP PUN BAICDAM 0) STATCE PuE LOLISdOnD (N ‘NpBR of 1K VYT SPNOU ) Pepdi oq PINCYS enoD Buoley T
$89) ypns papodariepun Jofpue pejoegad
U x Bju =lapun suy fously Bumpmiuog e sensleq VN3] uByM 8BY YNJ| 9SINCOAs A1) PUB 508} JaMas ARJUOI PUB UORISUUGD Of Sk | ¢
SaR)Reg sonIes N 40§ sjBy UogeayLes pue uojoedsy s3] Supebel pajuoeg leudiBiey ey o ebenbus) ppe pinoys YN
SHRNDE] SIS N ) S$3004d BuMRILE] JHEMIIEEM DUS LNDODE YHDT LORISLLICD “UONBIED z
29 uaneauLe) el Buztenuas jo storduy epusUE pue ogjed ‘mial eyl Japisucs pinoys sepusly BupoRALOD AU PUB VOS]
safusyg afmavweg Auguop pue
$09- UORIAULIDG Woq Lol sjusuiuanol A0 pue stoovss vl ~ 3 didnd se yons sepusie [muswwench feoo] epnjoxe (s
wu x L 7] uopejiues Aunos saduy 507 ol ‘ejdumxe Joj) sepusby ewos jew puny v) ' Swesbad pue spoRIUD JEJWE M WS i
PUR PRAUGD BOMAS elEmas [BuCIBSY 9y Jo osLEGWOD, Hod JIPNE 3U) JSpUN PSSP Sy safiley?) sBelemeg Anpucyy pue
8884 Lajsaulog) Joj abieyg 6y} Wwoy seNR0RL SOAISS SN J0 UOISRINKE S1} JBRISUNO PINOYS serualy BURIBRUOD BU) pue Y3
fasHrY shaipiprg
jood wipys ~aflagon sBuping
oty Aaymys ofdpnus froguog  (asHND)
Buppjneg (@snas)  preyonage - sndwe) Jesje) Buipying
OISRy ooy UL ouND obzejo o3 LIOVISEBD
§ Housun 404207 m.uu.!asﬂ -afagol  jou avfoy SH opduies
fasna) PUS RIS ogousy  Aoymyd SIO[ISHOY  AEfION Hphw
Buiping Mgiong  pieRenps  @snAd)  epewMy))  {gSWO)  Jsd ‘paou PRINIOT S35 UORINRID OM (i SIFHS0S SHARS N 18084 J0 SHTUIEXT
UIOQISSRD Buptiuams; ‘xopdivos Bugpgng Sfdies Bugpyng osuoN
Aangipn Amy B H o ued WOOIESD upne HIOGISEND
{aswo) SIIHOUN)  'auicOISSed oy +od "pasou wag
ssodindgmiy SH Bptismp3 anes alioy ouaiop
welg sauley SUDLISERD PasMO}
i i [ .IQ_J i I [ |
L oHmuO | epHous | GMAD | ouyd | wuwuod | Jiimucw | pusdn | SUDRBPUBWILIOIY [on

v 3quyx3
panupuoa - gl Jusliysepy

6¢ Jo g¢ obeg

$10Z "g2 Jequeldag
Hoday upny [eulq
MalAeY PDEIUOY {RUOIBaY



Regional Contract Review
Final Audit Report
September 28, 2015
Page 39 of 39

Attachment 17 - Current and Prior Audit Reports Completed

The following reports have been submitted as information items to the IEUA Board of
Directors:

Current Review
2014-2015:
* Interim Audit Report for the City of Ontario (September 2015)
Interim Audit Report for the City of Chino Hills (June 2015)
Interim Audit Report for the Cucamonga Valley Water District (March 2015)
Interim Audit Report for the City of Chino (December 2014)
Interim Audit Report for the City of Fontana (December 2014)
Interim Audit Report for the City of Montclair (September 2014)
Interim Audit Report for the City of Upland (September 2014)

“Survey of Comparative Information of the Seven Contracting Agencies”
(September 2014)

“Regional Contract Review — Comparable Survey” (June 2014)

‘Regional Contract Review — Ten Year Capacity Demand Forecast” (June
2014)

Previous Reviews

IEUA’s Internal Audit Department and other external auditors have performed previous
evaluations of the application and administration of the Regional Contract by the
Contracting Agencies to ensure the contract provisions and requirements are being
applied in a consistent manner:

* 2009 and 2010 Chino Basin Regional Sewage Service Contract Audit (Interim
and Final)

2007 Sewage and Connection Fee Audit
2006 Independent Accountant’'s Report on Agree-Upon Procedures Performed
1999 Review of the Procedures on computing Equivalent Dwelling Units

1998 Agreed Upon Procedures Engagement: Equivalent Dwelling Unit Reporting
and Compliance

» 1995 Agreed Upon Procedures Engagement pertaining to the Monthly Equivalent
Dwelling Unit Computation and Reporting



	Agenda
	2A - Minutes
	3A - Action Item
	4 - Informational Items
	5 - Receive & File

